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*- NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

BOARD SREPORT
T I M=y,

The Board of Dirschars i delightea lo prasent the S4th Armunl Repart an tha biusines ond operations of the company Namodo Gelatine
Lmited ("tha Company) along with he standalons and consolidated financla datements fos ihe inancial year encead 318t March, 2025

Financiol Highlights (7 bakiha)
Consolidated Operotions Standolone Operotions
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
L Revenua From Operationg 1689207 N.A 1880207 1877958
L. Oter Income 165.25 NLA 166,25 16108
i Tatal Incorms 1906732 M.A 057,32 1834065
W, Totol Experses 1677835 Mo HATR.A5 1678283
V. Proflt Betoee exceptional llems and fax Qi) 227894 NLA. 227856 205781
VI, Share of Fratll of an Associole
{fefes noled to the corsolgated financiol Statemerts) 82.00 M. 0.00 000
Vil. Prafll Balors Tox (ValT) 236094 MA Z278.%6 ZUST.E]
Wil Tox Expernses 5BE 01 N.A 558.01 H24.83
X Promt After Toxation (VIEVID 160058 N.A 1720.04 153298
L Oher Comprabersive Incomea-amarsuraments
of ret aafiran benelt plons &6 1%) MLA (A4 19
L Nah Prodil foe e v (%) 1736477 MoA 1454.75 150664
Operating Perfeemance

Dirng the fnoncial year 2024-25, I1he mvenue fiom opamfions noreosad oy 3% from 2 18] 79 crates In the praveus year o 18852
cioees Prafitaffer tox for tha yecr wae € 17.21 crorenvi. 2153 crores in fhe prevous yea.

Eqrnings before Interast, foxes ond depreciation ond amortisation (EBITDA) stood af T 2823 crones (previous yeor T 2287 crores), Highor
thian e previouy pedar by 14 69% and Earnings pet shaire stood af # 28 45 ascompared fot 25,34 1n 2023-24

The Consalidated results include propodidndte shaia of proflt of India Gelolire and Chemicaly Limited (IGCL), which hos becoms an
auociate of the comparny with affect from 06th December, X24 inviaw of combined holding of the eouity shoves by the company, and its
promiates pusuont to applicable provisan of Componies Act, 2012 and efoted accounting stondords Consequently, consalidatec
tinanclal performance for the ful vear s nol comparcbie with the previows vear, as the share ocduisition acoured in December 2064 A
statarnan! cortaining the salient (saturesof the financialslotements of the Company s osiociale company it Form o, AQC | & provided
I Thi Anreure- Y of ths repo

Dhvicand

The Boord I8 plsased 1o recommesnd o diviciend of T10.00 (Lo, @ of 100%) pet Equity Shuoke of Re. 10-8deh.of the campany (prsvious yeos
1000 par Equlty Shane La. 100%) for tha finorcial yeor andad 315t March. 2025, The total cutfiow on account of the proposad dividand wil
e 604 96 Ieichis (Drevious yeor 180496 lakhs),

The saicd dividend on aauity shares it wubject 1o the approval of fre Sharehoiden ar the ensuing Annua Gereral Mesting CAGMT
nchedued o be nsld on2ing Sectomber, 2025,

Recard Dote
The Recod dote fed for datemmining the snttfiemant of Memben for poymant of Dividenid s Monday, 15t September, 2025

According fo th Hnanice Ach, 2020, avidend incoma wil be foxable In tre nards of thie Mambioe w.af, Acd | 2020, ond the Compary &
renuied o deduct fox of source riom hae dividiena poid 1o the Memben of prescribed rotes ospee e income Tax Act. 194

Transfet lo Resarves
As parmitted undes the Act, the Soard does nol propose to frorsfar any amount o Genanl Reserve, bul has dec'dad o retoin 1he anfire
amaund of pront for e Ninarciol year 2024-25 in | the prodil ong loss ocoound

Share Capltal
The Paid-up Eautty Snare Capital of the Company as on 314 March 2025 was ke 404,98 iacs compriting 50,49 587 eauity shares of Ba. 10/

soch. Duing he yeor undet review, yous companry s pelther el any sharmi with difesential veting rghils no granled ony stock
ciphions or swadl agully shares. The Company hos pakd listing fass 1on lhe financkal year 2004-75 to Ihe Bombay Siock Exchange Lid. wheéms
s equity sharas ore sted.

Quality intfialives

The Company & commitied fa Ihe highes! sval of qually loe ity product and custormer services, During the financiol yeor 202475, Ihe
Comoany raloinad it 150 camfication for Quoity Monogamernt (150 9001:2015), EDEM Certification from Euopeon Direciorote for the
Suallty of Medicings ona Healthoare, DNY Maonoagament System Cerlification for Foed Sofely Management Systern Standard (150
22000 2008), <OGHE N Carfification and Ha'al Atsuance System Cerfification,

Deposits fTrom public
Dhring he yaar undereview, the Company hat not acceptad any depoafs from public as defined under Chaphes V of ihe Comparnas
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Act, 2013, Noamount on ascount of pincipal or inferest on depodts rom publc wes outstending as.on e date of fre balonce sheet

Particulars of Loans, Guaraniees and Investmaenls
The Company hos mode an investment by acquiing 14,14% niaka Le, 10,053,000 equity sharss of M5 ndia Golafine & Chamicals Umitedd.
with the uncrimousaoproval of the Board of Directos, ulizig the surpbs funds of the Sompary daled ith Cecember, 2024

Ihe Defalls of Loans, Guaraniess and Invesiments covered under the provisons of Section 184 of the Compaonies Act, 2013 are olio
disclosad infhe notes fo the Fnanciol Staterments.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) .

In comalianos with Sactian 135 of the Act. the Comany has underfaken C5R activities and progams. excluding activities undardoken in
pumlanes of s nomeal cowrss of business. Under Seotion 135 of tha Act, tha Company wos reouiacd 1o oend 20448 igkhd 2%) Of Ihe
ovaroge qualktying nat profits of fhelost three finonciol yeon on CSR activities in financkat yeor 2024-25, Duning the yeor undel review, Ihe
Campany has spent o total of T34 5 laids. Accardingty, the Company has fuifitea its C35% spending obligation for the financial year 2024
253

The Anrual Reoort on SR coraining the compostian of fhe C5R Cammittes, safient fecrures of fhe C5R Poicy. detalls of cofivities. ono
athst Informalian as requires uneer Companiss (Catporate Scclal Resparsibliy Policy) Rules, 2014 ore provided in Annesiire 4 attoched e
this Repon. Since the average TSR oblipation for the praceding thee fnanciol vedrs Le, tinansic| yeaoy, 202122, 2002-23 ong 2023-24 wias
le=t ihan B0 crorsd. the Impact ossessman! iopoi widl rot sppiicoble lof tha vear 2024.25. The C51 Policy mby be oocassed on The
Company’swatsileal ke lnk: attnps ! fwww nomodoagEnlinss com

Risk Monogement
The Rigk Manogeman! Cammithes has besn enliusted with the resporslility 1o osil he Boord In (e} oporaving the Comparny’s Risk

Management Fromewoi ang (o} ovesesing tholegic. operchonal, irancial, kquidity, secumy, egularony, isgel, emvironmenta, humon
resource, and olher iaks Ihat hove been idsniified and cssessed 1o ersurs thal thete s o sound Risk Moragament Policy In ploce to address
sychconce el rska

The Audit Commirtes has exercead oddinanal oversight in the oo of finoncial isks ond confrots, Maojor mis identfied by the business ona
funetiars ars systernatically oclidressen theough mifigating actions, The oetalli of the Risk Management Cormimlitee. 5 terms of ieference,
key butiness ks dontfiad and mngation pians aresel aul In the Colpaata Governance Repart

Vigil Mechonism / Whistle Blower Policy

Ihe Company has @ Vigl machanism / Whstls-Diower Polcy In place 1o encowrage ond focitate employess 10 repart concotm oboul
ursthics ol sehavorn, anhual suspected fiouck and vialafion of Company's Cade of Conduct or Eitics. Tha palicy provides for adeouate
safeguords againe vicimsation of permomnm who ovall the scrms and provicles for direct decess o the chialipearson of the Audit CommiHes.
Ihe Augit Committes of the Company overseas Mo implementation of tha Whishe-Biowar Palcy, no pesscnneal hoobeon denlad geress fo
the Choirman of he Audit Commities.

[he Cammittes affirms that one comilaint has bean iecalved under the Whislie-Blower Policy/ Vigl Mechdnism. which hom been resoived
ounnE the yaar unds revies,

Infermatisn on Whiste Blower Palicy & ovalaible an fhe webilte of Ihe Company al htlps [/www narmadegehtines,com and n ke
Caolpuriole Sovemones Repar. o

Reporting of Frauds _ _ _
Thene were noinstances of raud or sepecied frauds repered dutingthe yeor under revlew, which requited the Stafutety Auditosto report
‘o IheAudi Commitesand /orBoardunder  Sectsn 143112 of the Act and tha rules mads themurder

Subsidiorias, Joint Ventures and Associate Companios
On Manct 31, 2025, the company hon no subis diares of joint verture companies within the magring of Section 2(4) of the Campaniss Act,
013{"Ac)

During the year under review. Narmogo Gelatires Limifed acquired a 14, [d% eqully sToke n india Geaialine and Chemicas Limitad 1GCL)
'While fris direct halding s Delow the threshalel presoribed under Sechion 2(8) af the Acl for clesstving on enfity as an esociale company.,
ISCL E corsdersd anamspeiaie of the Company . s Normada Geliofmies Limited, along with s proraten. colisc vely ho'ds mome thon 20%
ofthe sguity share capital of K5O, and hersby exarces significant mfiyenca.

Nominalion and Remunerotion Policy

Tha palcy of the Cﬂmpml,.- ls 10 have an aporophiole numbe: of executive and Independent directors on 1he board. Tne palicy of Ine
Comoanyan dirscion’ appontmen! and remuneralion. elo. asrequlred under Seclhion 178 of the Componies Acl. 2013 s avalicbleon 1he
wabifte (www namadiagelatines.comi and in the Coporate Govemance Repart, The ramunarafian pad fo directon s as per the temms
lzica cheswary by the Memnination & Remuneralion Policy of the Company *

The Compony hos a Nomination and Remunemfon Committes which mokes recommandotion o fme Boad with regoid o he
appaintment of ew Directors and ey Maonagerka Personne, This policy on nomincton and remuneration of Shectons, £ay Manogenal
Pemnorinal and Senlor Monogemenl has been lormmulated in terms of the provisions of ine Compaoniss Act. 2013 ond the Lisfing Regulkalion:
otamended frormfime o fimie. '

The main objeciives of the policy are; _ _

s Tolay down crltaria and ferms and corditions with segord to idontifyng pemons who are qualiind o bocoms Directos (Exocutive
and Nor-Executiveland prchs who may be appainted in ssnior management ondksy managedal posttons,

. fo deterrnine remuretction Doeed on the Company’s size ong Tihoncial pogimion and kands and prochcss on ismunenaton
prenlling In poercompanies and In tha maustry,
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*- NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

s Iecomy o evoluation ofthe performance of Directors. aswell os key monogiral ond senicr monogemant pesonnal 1
fo provide them rewatds linked diiecty 10 her efton, peffomaonce, dedication and cchisveman! reiahing 1o the Company s
oparatons.

. o teduin, mohvate and promohe talens and fo ansure lang term setormoaodty of taered monogenal pesons and 10 cregte
competitvaodvanioge.

Direcion and Kay Managerial Personnsl

Tre Board of the Company |8 comoised of aminant pardora with proven compatence ond Intiagrly. Besides the expallance. siong
financial acumen, thratage aslitanas, and laadenhip quaities mey have a sgnificant deges of commitmant fowardd the Company
and devote adequatetime fo ihe mestings and preparafion.

Re-oppointment of Directors retiing by rotation

In termrs of the provisons of the Companies Act, 2013, Me 5. Annomelal (DIN; D001 2811 Non-Executive (Nondndependent) Drector of fne
Caomoarny, 1ethes ol the ensung AGM ond being eligitie, seaks mupmnrrnm1 Az N S Anmamalal hos atfoinedd he ode of 7B (savaniy-
aight) yaors o pecial resalution 1 accordonee with Regulgtion 171 A) of the |&fing Regulafinns wsewr) the reapoaintmeant of Mr, &
Anncmaial fomsport of the Nofice corvening the eniuing Annuol Geneml Meeting scheduled to be nelo on 22nd Septemibes, 2025,

In he opin'on of ihe Boord, oll the grectos, o8 well o the drectan o-appainied dudng ihe vear possess the reausite quelication,
-aparenceand expartise and hold highstondend al nispty.

Im barris of requiramiant of Lislng Repulations 1he Soaid has Idantfed cole sdls, expartiss and compalancies of he Direc o n e coriax
otthe Comparyy's businesses for effoctive functicreng. which are detalled in the Comarote Govermance Report.

Attention of Sharaholdes s Invited to the relevart lems of the Mofice of the Arvnl G ol Meeting and s Notes fhesto. Brlef resuime of
Ihe Biraclon propossd |o be reappalnled. nalure ol Ihek expar ks In spesific luncliona! areds and names af companias in which ey hold
directonhip and mamisarghip/ chamanshin of commirtess of the Board, o8 shipulated under Reguiation 36 of the Usting Regukations are
atver Ir Thea seofion on Comporats Govamoncs in M Annual Report,

Pecuniary relofionship or fransachions with the Company

Duting the year under review, the non-sssculive disacion of ks Company hod o pacuniony relahonsnip o fromsactions with the
Camgany, othar than ditihg fees and mimbusemant of expansas incured by them for tha pupose of altending maalings of the
Board/Committea ol the Company,

Declaration from direclors

The Company has receved necesary declarationn under Section 14%7) of the Companiss Act. 2013 and Reguiation Z5(8) of the SEH
Lising Reguiations, from he Independant Directon  shaling thet they mes! the prescrbed cillera for independence. All Indepenceni
D aclon kave affired complionce 1o tha coda of conduct lar independan] Directors os presciibad in Schedula 1V ta the Cariganles Aci,
201,

The Compiany hos oko recelved. fiom them deciaratan to compliance of Rule A(1) & (D of the Companies (Appointment and
Bualificatior of Dilscion) Rules, 2014, regording onling registration with the “indian Instituts of Corperate Aftoirs”, for inclualen remswel of
thrnamas o the dista bonk of Indemendsnt Direc o,

With regard o proficiency of the Independen! Dirsciofs. aicananed from the online profioiency sell-asmessan) test conductad by the
matituta, as nofified under SUD-Section (1) of Sacton 160 of tha Act, the Board of Directon has takan onmcord the decioratinn: submitteg
by Indepanaen Directon that they o exempt from appsaring in the test, sxcept M. Manimegalal Thangamanl who had clearad the
online prcticiancy setf-cssassmeant teal,

None of the Directons of the Company are eigted nteese exceot Mr. 5 Annamcial andg Mr 5 Manaswaran, in Terms of Section 20771 of e
Caompanies Ao, 200 3, Inciuding Rules thareunder. The Compeiny has nal sued any converibie nsrormrents hence disslosine o fhls pspec)
I not applicotke.

None ol the Directons of tre Compary are dsoudified for beng oppoirted os directons s speciiied urder Section 164021 of the Act ang
Rl thers under

Kay Managerial Pessonnal

Purmian! 1o the provisions of Section 203 of the Campoenies Act, 2015 Me-Ashok K Kogur, Manogng Ditecton Me Arun Jelwal, Crist
Financia! Otficer and Ms, Mahima Patkarn Company Secratary are the Key Managaral Pemonnet of the Company os on 315t March, 2025
Ma. Meeru Shorma, Comparty Secrstary have fesigned from the office with =ffect from 2818 June, 2024, the Boord places onmcord s
appaciolion for he invaluatile conmigution 'o Ine Compoany dunng Rer fsours, ks, Mohima Palkor (ACS No. 77544) has been appointea
ai ihe Campany Sacretory and Carmpllancs Cflcer of the Company with @ffect fram O7Hh Augus!, 2024 M. Maohesh Verma, Chial
Financiol Office:. hos rosigrisd rom the office with effect rom O07th January, 2025. The Board pioces on reoord It appraciation for nis
nvaiucbies contritution to e company dusing his tenure. Me Aun Jobwal hes besn eppointed o the Chied Fingncial Offcar of 1he
company with 8ffect fiarm 15 Marct, 2005

Board Evaluation

Tha Nomination & Remunsdation Commitles ond the Board have (aid dowrs fha mannal in which a fomad anres evalualion of the
pedfamance of the Board, Commitess. Chaliman and novidua drectors hos to be moda. The Board of Directons hos camad out an
annual evaluotion of itk own performance, Boord carmmitteas, and indhaclual dirscton pusuarnt to he provisiors of the Act. SER Listing.
Regulations and ha Culdancs Mota on Baor Bvaiuallonissued by e Sacueilies ond Bdehange Board al India,

Ihe Board avaluated isown parfarmance, Board Commilieas os wall ai the individual ditector's pedfarmance after meking inputs from of
the direcion/mambes and alko on 1he bosls of eitera such o the Boord compadition ond structume, effectivenads of boord procases,
Infarmcion and lunclioning. ate.
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The Independeant airectos af thair sepanate mesting redewed e perfformance of nen-independent directors, the Board o o whole ang
Chalimian of the Carmpany.

The Booid and the Nominttion gng Remunesglion Comimilles viswed e perfarminc s of Incividudl dirschon on the bosa of cillada
such as the contribution of Ine indwvidual drector ko the Boara and Commitlee meetings ke precoracness on the ssues o be discussad,
meaninghy and corshuchive cortrbution and  Inputsinmaetings, efc,

Parfarmance avaludtion of indepandent direchinm won dong by the gntita Board. grciuding the Indegandent dirtctor being evoluated.
The mannerin whichits svaluafion was comag out s covarad in Ihe Corporate Govemancs lepan,

Board ond Committes Meafings

The Botrd mesrts Gt regulr Infenvialy o dscuts ong detide on company s business ooliclss and sirelagies. I cose of ipecial ond ugent
ounines. fhe Board/ Committes s opprovel s foken oy possing resolutions fhrough ciculaton, or by cafing Board/Cormmittes mestings af
ashorter nofice, aapamitted by law,

Iri2 Company hod compliod with Socraloncl Stondord: issued by the Ingtiyte of Company Sogratorios of Ingko on Boord magtings ong
Annual General Meatings Tha apanda for the Board onc Commifias meetings inchudes datalled notes on the Rems fo ba dscumsed o
enabie the Dirscton to fake an infotmed decliion

Dhurirrg the finamaial year under review. S Board Mesfings ond four Audit Committes Maetings were convened and held, Ihe dotalls of
wheti are givenin fhe Corpanate Sovernance Repart. The intervening gap behwean twi Mestings was within the penod prescrbed undas
s Cormpanies Act 2013

Adelailed note on 1he dompasiiion of 1he Bodd and il comimdiest il provided Irl The Compomle Sovemnances Repal.

Meeling of Independent Directorns

As per provisions of Schedule IV fo the Companies Acl. 2013, The Indepenaen| Direclon are required o hold al lsast orie maahing na

Frncris|al yioor, whhou the attenddance ot NorHindependent Directont and membeds of management. Durng the finanisial vear 2024-26,

e Indepaendent Direc torsmet on 28ih Februory. 2005

Direciors' Responsibility Statement

Puruant o thereguirarment of Section 134(5) of the At 1ha Booed of Directois, 1o the best of itsknowiadga and abiity, confien fhod.

g Inthe prapaation of fhe annual inanciol sfolamanis for he vaar ended Morch 31, 2005, 1he apolicabls gccounting sondards Rave
been foliowed clong with propar explandllon relating fo material departurcs. if amy:

D cppropdots oocounting pokcies have besn ssected ond appkad consiglenlly and judgemeanh ong estmotss modes ore

nacsonatie and prodent so as to ghve o true and foir view of the state of offain of the Company as of March 31, 2025 ona of tha profit

oftne Compory for the yearended  onthatdate.

Aropar ana stficent care hos been faken forfhe mainfenance of odeguats accounting recods in occordanc e witn ihe provisions

af the Compornles Act, 2013 for safeguonding the osseh of the Company ond for praventing and detecting froud and olher

irregpulcities

g heaornualfinoncial $orements have besn prepared on o going concem basig

a.  propar nlemnal Snonclal cortiols hove e loliowed and thot such fintncic! conmals are adeguato ani die opsiling effedfively,

o

ang

. proper systems 1o emue complance with the prosvisons of all appllicabis aws are In place and were adequate and operoming
affacivily.

Rolated Party Tansaclions

The frargociions with ielated porhies entered into dunng the finoncigl vear wene on arm s lenglh boss ang wers In fhe crdingny course of
business. Tham are no matardally sgnificont islaled parly kansactions mads by he Compony wilh Fromoters, Diectors, Key Managerdal
Piarsanrel or ather designoted pensons which may nave a polentiol conflict with the interest of the Company of lange

Parficuion of controcts or anangements with rekated parfes refered to inSection 1881 ) of the Companies Act, 2003 in Form ADC-Z2 are st
out Inthe Notes o Financial Statements loming paet of tha Annudl Repod

Slalulory Auditon

The Siotutony Aucion M/s Lodha & Co, LLE, Cnortereq Accountants, Hirm Regstrotion Ne; 301081 E. were appointed by the memoen of tho
Comoanyin & 15t Annuci General Mesting. fo hold office from the conclusion of b 15t Annuol Generd mealing fora ferm ol conmecutive five
yean il concluion of séth Arnug! Ganeml Mesting fo behesd In the year 2027 In s of the opplicable provisions of Sschion 1390 1ot the
At reogwift the Companies (AT and Auciions) Ruley, 2014 '

In b of the Notificotion ssued Ly 1ha Miniiry of Coporate Affels doted 7th May, 2018, the provisa necuiting ralifcation of the Awditos
oppointment by the tharsholgens af sach AGM hat been omiffed. Accordngly. Ine rafification of appolniment of Satutory Auditons
would not e reguired gt the ensiing AGM ond M5 Ladha & Co. LLP, Chortersg Accolntonh, Firm Regitralion Ne: J01061E wowso
cantinue tnoch asthe Stalutory Auddons of tha Company for five yean upto the conclusion of the dth AGM o be held in 2027,

Raport of Statulory Audilors

The Statutony Auditon. Mis Ladha ang Company LLF. Mumbcl, Chottstad Accounfaniy. have submiffed Ihalr Repor on e Fncnckal
Statements of the Company for The financicl year 202425, which forme part of this Annug! Report. The Notes on Financial Statamants
refemad fo in Me Audiio Report for fie yeor 202425 o selt-explanatory. There are no obsernaations. qualificaions, msenvations o
ooversa remarks in e Audilar's Remad thal cerlfor any sxnlandation.
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Cost records and cost oudit

Malntanance of cost recatds and reguirament of cost oudil os prescrbed undar The provisions of SacTion 14801) of the Companiss Act,
2013 are not opplicatss for the prodiuct manufactued by the Compary

Secretorial Auditar and their report

B, Asim Kumar Chattopodnyay, Company Secrefory. was oppointad ot Secrefonal Auditor of your Company for the financial year 2024-25
pumuant to section 204 of tha Campories Act, 2013 anct the Companles (Appointment and Remuneration of Manageriod Fersonned ules,
2014,

Tha Secratonol Auoit Recort s onnexed fo this Report as Annewuea - ||,

THare are no qualitcations. obzatvaliony or adverte remarae of The Secretorio! Auditorn in the Repad tsued by fhem tor fna fnanasial yeo
a024-25 which califor any ssplanation from the Board of Disctos

Transier of Unpaid and Unclaimed amounts fo IEPF _

Pursuan| fo 1he oppicabile provions of ha Azl racd with the IEPF Autharly (Accounling, Auch, Trarefer ard Refund) Rues, 2016 Cife
Rulen") os omended. ol unoaid o unclalmed dividends which were required o be frangfened by the Company to the EPFweie ransfered
o [EPF Authosity.

Tha Cameary hos oo lransfered thates n raspact of which dividand armour! semitired unpod/ uncliolmad for o consstutive pefod of
seven vean o maore folEPF Authodty within sipulcied fime.

Pumant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act. 2013, gunng the financlal year, the declared dividends wnich ramainec
unpaid of unclolimed o a perlod af 7 years have been franslened by the Company fo the Investor Education and Protection Fund (EFF)
sstoblished by tha CantralGovarimeanl. as detalledin the Comomle Governoncs Rapo.

Ihe detals of unpaid | unclomed dividand ana the shares frarsfamed o [FFF Authorty are guallable on the website of the company af
hittps /e nermadogeiatines com

Significan! and Material Order possed by Ine Begulators
[hare are no significant ana matena ordem pased by e Reguiatom or Courts of Tiounos mpacting e going cencem atatus and me
Company's apatationsin fulure,

Corporate Govemance Report

The Report on Coporate Governancs os shpulated under the 388 (Listng Obligafions and Disciosure Requiements) Reguiahions, 2015
festrs part of the Annual Repart, The Mahaging Direckar's caciaralien reganding compliance wih the Campany’s Cade of Business.
Cenduct and Enics for Directon ond Management Peronrial fomns part of the Comporate Govemanco keport. As required by the Listing
Regulations Iha cartficats on Coporote Govemance for the yeor ended 31st Morch, 2005 ssued by Dr Asim Kumar Chcftopodhyay,
Carmaary Sacratary 5 Practies bannsssd to s Regor

Management Discussion and Analysis

Puniuan! 1o Reguiation 34 of fha SEBI (Lsfing Chigotans ond [Rciosurs Requnamants) Regulafions. 2015, detalea review of
oparation, petformance and future cutiook of the Company & presantad under Managameant Cscusslon and Andlysls Feport naeparate
section ond forms port of he Annuol Repot

Energy Conservation, Technology Absomption and Fareign Exchonge Eamings and Oulgo

The parficulons rslating 1o.enangy comanvalion, technglogy absorplion, igregn exchonge omings and outgo, g lequined o be discipeed
undar Sectian 154(3)(m) of fhe Companiaes Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Comparies (Accounty) Rules. 2014 k antesed fo thisReoon
o Arreiiure - I

As provided under Section 92(3) & 134(30a) of the Act. the Annal Retum for FY 2002-24 Is ovaillable on the weabsite of the Cotmdny of
At / www rormadageiolines.com,

Particulars of Employees

Nong of The employees of the Company & i receipt of rarunsation gnoeading e imils prescised undes Sactian 197012) of he
Campanies Aot 2013 rend with Rules 502) ond 53) of Tra Companies (Appoinimen| ond Remureration af Mesnagernial Famanna!) Rules.
2014,

Déscisaes partalning foremuneration and offer detals in resoect of dirsr:fos ond employees of the Company o3 eauired under Seation
QND of the Componiss Act, 2013 ssod with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointmant and Remunerdtion of Monagerial Pasonnsl)
Futah, 2004 s annevad o (hi Repor as Anfes s - [

Disclosure undar the Sexual Horassment of Women of Workplace (Prevention, Prohibifion and Redressal) Act, 2013
Al the smpioyess 7 Ing Compory are considarad equal. Thara i§ na discrimination between naividuak al any oolrt an the s of ioce,
calour gandar, religion, angin, sexdual adentation ot oge. Every individhuc rexbected to teathiy/her coleagues with respect and digniny.

Ihe Company hoe m place o pobey for presvention of sesual harassment of workplace, This palicy of the Compary 8 in line with the
racglrements of e Sewal Hoossment of Women of he Worlpiace (Prevention, Prontllion & Pedessall Act, 2013, All empioyees
(esrmisnent, conhactual, lempoicry dnd hainess) e covessd undar [his poiicy. An Intemnal Comlaints Committes i in tloce 16 redres
The comedaints received regorang sexud Noesament. The faliowing & Tha surmmory of he Complaint ecaived ond Slsposed of gung Mo
financial vear evdact 375 Maron, 2025

gl No.of complainis iscaived durlng Iha vean 0
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B} Mo of Compiaints dspoesed of; D
a1 No,of Complaints pensing: 0

Disclosure undet he Maternity Benefit Act, 19461
Furgant 1o fhe requirements undern Fuee 8(5000 of fhe Companias (Accoun's) Fules, 2014, *ha Company has-complied with the provisions
otthe Mateeryty Banglil Acl, 1961 m otoordonco wim it intemal policy, aunng ne yedr under reviow.

Matedal changes ond commitrments affecting the tinonclal position of the Company
There hove been no matencl chonges and commiments affecting the finoncial positon of the Company which nava ccoumed Detwean
Iha and of ine fmanclal year of the Campany Yo which the francial statamen s ralale ond the date of thisrepat,

Appraciation

Trua Diracrons wish 10 convey Thed deap apprecionon 1o ol e ompioyeet. cuifomess, vandols, invesiors, and consuiants) odvson of Ing
Carmoany tar thal snoere and dedicaled sendces o wall as thelr cotacive contitution 1o the Company's performance

The Demcton oo fhonk fhe Centrol ond the Stoie Gavemmeants, siotutory cutharities, borkes ong weines guoclgtes and all the
rlokahichcan o hair continued Inlsmsst and valuad supipor

For and an behalf of the Baard

5. Annamalai Ashok K. Kapur
Chowrnan Managing Director

Floce: Janalpur
Date ; 137 August, 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ()



* NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1}  EconomyOvaerview
Asof the financial vear 2024-25. the global getofing merkat has demonshiated growfh. diven by incnacting demaond aorcss vanous
sactors such as food and beverages, pharmaceuticals, hutrocauticals, and cesmetics. india. now recogrzea o the fitthlamgest
acondimyln he workd, i oo corsigerad |he fogles- rowing mojor ecanamy ooy,

. Market Size and Growih:
The globol gelatne marke! was valued ot USDB.58 bilion in 2024 ond & projecTad 1o repch USD 9.34 bilion in 2025, reflectng o
compalnd annual growlhrate (CAGR) of 8 87% durdag this period

Domestic Market:

The domeshic cemendg for Gelatine s showing growth frend o India i shengthaning s idenhty as o pharma ong Nuloceuticels
manufschuting nub, Collagan ol shows gres? promiss in domestic maka! o= the nuttaceutical market in India is showing srang
growlh. The india's Gelaline marke! ks prolectad 1o regisier a CARS of 4% o 5% annually aver e nest few yaar.

2. Increasing Consumer Awareness on Health and Weliness
Consumens are Becoming Mmate aware of fhe health Baredits of gelatin usage. Gelatin, beng uth‘hmr:amfmllnger'r B recop) e
o bmsﬂngjnlmmmrh skin glasticity, and hal strength, diving s demandin the Mutaceulicals ond pharmacautical secios

Saioin s a natual preduct which 8 made of hyolyc degrodanon of praten fom cologan and 18 distingtive sructune of aming
ocich givet [ several benefin. i i8in the form of fobleds, gromules or powdears and Mol high protesn conterit,

3.  Increasing applicafion of Gelaline-

Galafing findy widesoreod use nvoricussactons:

« Foooond Beveioges Galoning i cordidersd o key mgredient in food ond Beveroges such asconfechonsry (gummy condies,
miarshmaliows, [aliles). daiy products (vogurt, cream cheesa ca cream), daserts and pthar fuctional fooa dua fa s galling,
thickaning. ond stalailizng piopertss,

s Prommoceuticols: gelofin it used fo manufoetun hord ord soff copauies, tor coafing ‘oblety, ond in syrupe a0 hos many
Bigrnedicol applications P i wead B 1he manulaciuing ol seaffolds for healing wounds. They effacthvaly mosil unplecsant
fertes and Soats. moking them eoshon to swollw,

. Cosmehcs; it B used incosmetics ond parsonal coe preducts for ta tim-forming ong os o binding ogent i mokawp products:

Photogrozhy, Although agital chotography hes langely reploced fim. gelotice rermoins citical in arehival photogrophic
micterials, ana line art photography.

o Nutraseutc dls and disfoary Supplemerts: Used in proteli-rich suppkements fof jent ond bone beatlih

Opportunities ond Threats, Oullook, Risks and Concerns

The countny’s diuge and phormmoceuticols exports incCrecsad 8.3 por cent year-oneyeot In 2034-25. o’ phiommaceuficol (ncustny [§ e
third longest by volume and fhe 141 largest by value n the word, producing mong thon 40,000 ganeric aruge acrass &0 tharopoutic
calegores,

High demandior vegan preducts posing a thieal la adifienal gelaline

The rise of prant-besad galatin substilules. fusted by feng damana for vegeanan and vegan goads, s one of The pimany manke! bormien,
Trodiiona galatin made fiom animal sources & In danger due 1o this hend, os coniumers ko for altemotves thia! toke sustanooiity ancl
gihice info accounl. Furtharmote, cuttural and religious orotib itors are impeding moket growin

Dug 1o fhie reduction in glotal Getatin pree, the pdce of Gelbone glotaly reduced signficantly during tha secong natt of tha yoor, This
apportunity s baing ulitsd o Imeort/puichase Gelbons. which will hefsimport Geleons ol compeatifive price.

segmanl-wise or produc!- wisa perfarmonca
Ihe Company sengagedin only one segement, namely, monufocture and sale of gelaline and reloted products ke ossein and di-colcium
phosphote (DCPand as such thers ara no reportable segmeants os per Ind A5 108 "Upenatng Segments.”

Intemal financkal contrals and s adegquocy

Ihe Company’s intemnal Finoncial Confrol fromework 8 commensurcte with the size-and e nofura of e cperafions. These have baen
designad to provide reosonable owuroncs ebout ieconding ond providing relinbie financial ana aperational information. complying with
applicable sofules, safeguarding assts from uroulhoiea we, secuting rereoctions with proper authorlotion and &nsuring
compliance of Catpdnato Pl ciss,

The Comgary has loid down procedures ond policles 'o gulde the opeaticns of the business. The © cmpm-.r haxs o wel-defined dalegation
ar pawer with authodhy mils o opprove rvenus o wall as evpenditure, Functional neads ore responsiole 1o anoure complancawiln e
policesond procedunes lald gown by the bocsd of girecton

The Compary hao cppainted M P8, Singh & Associates. Chortered Accountants to overses and cany out internal gudit of its activities.
Ihe oudh B bosad an on rtemal oudit plan, which i reviewed sach yaar in consuliation with tha stofutony oudion ond approvad by tha
audit commetes, Tha alficacy of fhe infema checks ana contril sytemsarna valoated by infamal auditors. The cudit 3 bosed on a focused
and ik bosed intemal oudht plan, which s reviewsd and approved each vear by the Audt Committes of the Cormgarny.

thie Audd Commifies evisws reports submitted by infernal auditon, Suggestions o imomove any procedss ale considerad by fhe
menagamant and Ihe Audl Committes follcws up on comachive octons haken by he managarmant, The Aud! Commites oo maelsthe
Compary’s matutory auditon to ascanaln, rier alia, ther vews on the odegquacy of Infernal confrol systerms ond keeps the Boord of
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Direciom informed of it maion atserations pedocdicoly

Min Looha & Co LLP. the Statutary Audifon of e Compony audited The financial saments includsd o this Annunl Beood and have
sseda report on the infemal contrals oves findnalal reporing (s defined In Secfion 143 of the Companias Act. 2013),

Hosed an sevalugtion (os provided undler Section 177 of the Companizs Act, 2013 and Clowse |8 of SEE Usling Regulations), the Aucit
Committes hasconcluded thot asof 315t March Z025, the infamal Fnanciol Cantrols were ooeauate and opamating effaciivaly.

Humion Resources / Industricl Relations

he Compary's human resources oganda conlinues 1o remain fecusea on fha develuprmant of s emplovees. bulding copatiitied infna
arganzaiion and progressive amployes relalions poicies. The Company addessed imining ana deysopman needs of ity warkfom s in
technical and behoviourda areas by deploying Intemal trd extemal foouty

Higmorn coplial B ot the haart of 0w comoory's sutoess. I can be atiibuted Hhrough ouw diveesified and compoalen! weorldoiice, capabls
odanhip and ampawaing cuthue ond afficient opaaliono excedanca,

We al o provicda a sale dymamic. ard iushwatity ervilenmenl [orall ow smpleysas rencaloih, Ouw people policlkes are desgned o
create afulue reddy worlklorce, whils empatwering tham and creating anenrching employes axpedence.

Our effortiwsss oo Inconjuncion with varlous ospects ke Employas haaith and satety, Tiairsg and sl cevalopmearnt.

e do not moke employes decisions o discfiminete ugainst indikdunls based on pemsonal charactedsfics ke roce. colon oge, gende,
religlon. notlonaify, moriiol stofus, sexuckorientation, elc. We bose ow empioymes| relaliorship on Ihe principie of eguc! oppordunity and
foyr racrtrment and sinve to createan anvironment thot fostees the same, Thers wake no madents of discriminafion in facol 202425,

We alwoysled amphosis of amoloyes wel-being moy e manlaly, ohytcally, emotiahoiy o sacicly.

nauEmal retations remcired cordlal hroughout the year, Your Dracton ploce on record their sncere agpreciation.of ne dignfizant
conlibulensmage and e conlinued suppot extendad oy cil employvess ol of levals lo the Company s opatations duting Iha yeat

Finoncial and operational pwformance
Rewaries from operabionsstood of T 18852 crores highe than The previous year by 19% Soles volume of gelotre and DCPincreosad by 2%
ardd 115 tespecively. Avarags ssling prics of galotine decrsassd by 0 5% but DCP ncrsaeed by 0.4% os comparad ool ysar

The contribution of Galatine salas o tha lumova: wos T427%, whamos that of 1he DCP scies furnovar was 25.45% duting the yaar under
TEVIEW,

Matetic consumed in fisool 2024-28 Increased by 5%, which Is clue ta Higher cost of Row materal, power and fusl cost redhoe by 15% dus
o decratzs Inlhe ool pdces and comgumption. Empliyés cos! stood of 8 5¢6% (B.21% pravious yoor) of lovenus from opations, Othar
aipanses ware [, 2% of tha révenua friom operaticrs dunng fhe yeor undcer reniew,

Pl batore exceplianal fems and laxes sfood ol 12279 crofes, highe: Ihan pravious yaar Growlih ked by batial yisld od lowet
consumplion of power ang ol B

Praff aftor foxat § 1721 orores, which b higher than ra previous financlal year

Eornings before infarest 1oxes and depreciation and ametisalion (EBITDA) stood af 7 26 73 crorag, higher thon the previous year by 14.69%
Diluted Earnings pes share stood ot 1 28 45 as comparad 10825, 34in 202324,

Tha financial highlighls for the yaar 2024-25 are asfollows: (7 lakhs)

2024-26 2023-24 Varlancs %
Ravanus from Oparahons 1807 1817956 390
Prafil pefore fos 22T8 94 206781 10,74
Profit ofter foxation | 720,594 1532.968 12:24
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Signiticant changes in key finarcial ralios

In oceandancs with the Lsting Reguiations, the Company i reguted to ghve dotolls of tignificant changos in thip ki finoncicl ratice. During
the year, the sgnificont changes in finonchal rafios of the Company which aemom/iess than 25% os-compared 1o the previous year one
summantes below

5rNo.  Parficulars 2024-25 2023-24 Viariance (%) Remarks
I Currernt Rafa fin limes) 455 4.45 -A5%
2 Deatat-Equity Ratlo (in tirmes) [t 0.0 100%
d Dabt Service Covaroge Rafic (0 times) .33 0% 105%
4 Returr an Equity Rafio (%) 15.07% 15.7% 0.50%
& Invanlony Tumovet (no. of doys) i Fo L
& Debton Turmove (na. of days) 45 az 7. 5%
7 Poyabéa Tumover (o, of Govs) a0 iS5 11.56%
4 Mt Coptal Tumower (n timasg) 355 P FIE Compary hos ovalled

Credt Faciies ke CC
Limmitz & Teem Loan (Mo

such focilties wera
avoied dutirg the
Fv 23.24)

") Met Profit Morgin 5a) 9.06% 5.36% 8.08%

10 Featun on Copial Employed (%) I 8% 1517% 6.38%

11 Market Prics paceqguity share (@) Ry dr i 333.35° 0,13%

12 Earmings par shdra (1) o8 45 96 34 12.27%

asan 3 March, 3004 and 313t March, 2025

Cautionary Statemant

Cartoin slatemants moda in ihe Managanent Discusiion ond Analyss Repart ralating to the Company's objeciives, prajections. autiook,
eectalions, sstimates ona ofhers moy constiute ‘lonward-ooking statements” wilfin the maaning of appicabile laws ond reguialion.
Actudl resulls may diffor from such evpactations whaiher axpretad o impllied, Soveral footons could make Ygnifican! differenca fo ne
Company's opamtians. Thasa include mw mateis avaiabidy. mpert ond axports of row mioteral ord finiihed goods, econamic
condifions. affecting cermand and supsly, govemiment regulations, changes in Taxation, nahural colomiries, onwhich the Cotmpany does
not R Qny direc Sontnal,
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Annexure - | 1o Ihe Board's Repard

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Briefoutiing on TSR Policy of the Company

The Comaarny is facused on cifivites contibuting to this sockaland eoonomic davelopment of the communities in which [foperrrasandin
daing 5o, bullkd g better, sustainatile wery af ife for fhe weakar sections of the society and raise 1he Fumaon develaprmant indeax in he
SUMCILINCE) Grecs

During fhe yadr uridss review, the Company s canhibufions 'o the commiunily were in the areas of protaction ol erwtronmanl, procrolion ol
educafion. ivelhood, promofing nealth care inciuding preventive heaifth core. providing wores sanifofion and ruce devalopment ong

conlibuluns fo olher social developmen! organisations The Campany alie suppor ond portnesad wiih savaral NEOs In communily
develonment ond health inlliathvea. Sorne of the soo=al activities comigd oul by the Compony duting the vear were an under:

Environment _
The Compary hos dere planfation In 22 acres approx. of land ol Ihree spals adiacen fo rver Narmarcda of Bheraghat, Jabalpur and ako
mainiainng the same since koot seyven yedrn.

The Company camad out plantallon of trees, moirmanancs of green belts ond garasos,

The Compary and s amplioyvees eguitrdy mromots ond porfclpate n projects for cleaniines of tver Narmrade through cleaning banke,
putting up e bones alc.,

Education

toycation remalns ona of e 1ocul oraay of social devalopment ond the Compary supcans acodemics ol al levels. The Company
provided confitution 1o vaiows school, rust/incieties engoped in providing ossifonce to poor chiicien for thair aducation such as
Viveronod Publc School, Ayo Vidys Sobho. Feandsof Tnbal Socety, Normoda Ved 'vigyen Vicyalaya, Dream Foundotion, Soham watiore
sacialy, Nevolhanom \Welfara. Tha Campany oo pronddas scholanhips fo poor gitls of tha locallly and naarey viloges

Hedlthcore
Camoany supponed 1o Vieo! Hospice Brahmrshi Somiti for Treatmean® of Concar Potlents.

Eradication of hunger & Poverty
The company hod donoted unds e BON sociesly and The Incicin Red cros Society foraccomplshing thelrmission of faedng he poor

Rural Development

Contibution towords the Angomwad af Bhadoghal and rnearty Vilkages for the uplitment of vilogees

Swochaota Abhlyan

The compony hosoonmbuted Towarts he promation of Claaniness-Jol Ganga Sarvadnn Anreyan

Briaf outtine of tha Company & C5R palicy, inchuding overviaw of projects or progrommas proposed to be underfoken ond areference to fhe
wab link o tha C5R policy ond projects or programmes

The rrain objective of the CSR Pallcy & o loy down guldair'm fee the Camoany 1o rmoke CSR o koy buslnass procass Tor iuslainotka
devalopment for tha society. tams ot iupplamenting fhe role of the Govemment in enhancing weore measures of the sociaty Dosed on
the immediate and long tetmsodal and emvironmantol cérseauances of thelr oo fivifias

Ihe Company shall congtontly 1iiva 1o ersung strong corpolale Culue which amphoszes on megrating CSR voluss with business

objecive. I shol oo punsue inatives related fo guolty monegemen:. arvionmant prasenvabon and sooo] awaraness, in thae creos as
getalled below,

iy Promating Fechincore Incuding preventve boolincor ond somifation and moking orallatbbs sofis drirkdng wote:

iy  Promating educaton Including special educaton and employ ment enhoncing vocolional sl aspecialy omong ohildrn. woman,
sldaly and the diffsrertly abled and veihocd enhaoncement projects

iy Ereuring enviionmental sustonshiily, ecologicol balance, protlection of llors ond fpung, onimal weifore, ogrodonestry, conservation
ofnalunal resouces and mainlalning af sl alr ond walae)

(W} Contribulion fo he Prire Mingtese's National Betiel Fund or amy aier fund sel up by the Central Govesmimeant fof sacis-acondarmic
saviatoprmant and ratel ono welone of the Scheduled Costas, the Scheauiad Tribes; otherbockwand closses, minontias and woman;

W) Rurdd devalopment profects,

(41)  Promaoteand particioats in proped s for ceanfines of Narmadaiver,

() Promaie educoiion of girl child and fhe undetprivieged by ploviding ocademic support, assslonoe 1o schooli; sponsorships for
etodicoling Mtemocy;

(vl Ermpihasis on regularheallh checls ona medhool aid/ health core focilties withspedlal focus for Ine mother and child oswet asthe old
opad cerons of sutoundings and making ovallable of sofe dinking wialer,

(M) Promate aird spanse vallows spors octiviies anu games aigenized by lbeal gram pane haypal,

x}  Promate ondsipeort ibodlnakgious and culhurol progeomimies:

(ly  Olher crecs as may e nafified by tha Govermmant froem Hrs 1o Hve,

i) anyachhilies or subjects spedilied n S heduwe Vi of the Act
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g
2  Composition of the CSR Committes:
5.  Nome of Director Designation [ Nature of Number of meetings of Number of meetings of
Na. Directorship C5R Committes hald C5R Commiitee oftendad
duting the tenure during the lenure
[ ML S, Annormoio NonEregutive - Norrindependant i |
Direeter (Chaimrran)
b AL 5 MGH adwontn NerExaculive - Nar-indeosncenl I T {vE)
Dirsctor
3 ML Ashok K Koo Marciging Cirechor 1 1
4 Nk B Vioyodurol NanExacutlve - Indapandent Diracror i 1

(W2}~ attended theough vidao confarancing facillty

3

Weo-lrkwi=re Caompasifion of CER commeltes, CER Palloy and C5R prisch opproved by e booid ore deciossd o The wetslle of
the Company

The projects undartoken are within the broodd fromewok of Scheduie Vi of the Compariies Act, 2013, Detals of the C5R policy and
ool orpeagroms undartakan by Ihe Compony o aualabia an lnky: kitps: /S nomadagedolines com .

Dislals of Impoct csassment of TR prajects comsd oul In pursunnce of sub-nde (3) of ula 8§ ol the Somponles (Conporata Social
resporsiblity Poley) Rules, 2014, It opptcoble (attach the report). - Not applcable

Credalls of The gmount aviliabys fof sal off I puruonds: of sub-sule (3 of 1ule 7 of the Companles (Comorato Soclal respansibility
Pokcy) Rules, 2014 ond amoun! raguiad Tor st ol lor ' financal year, Tary.,

5. Financial Year Amoun! avallable lor sel-oll from Amoun! raquired fo be satoll lor Ihe
No, praceding financial years (in'¥) financial yaar, if ony {in t)
| HEA25 2 004 Wk ¢ 0.04 iakns

Mveroga nat ool ol fhe company os pad saclion 135(5) ;117229 1akhs

(0] Two percent of averops nat profilt of Ihe company os par sechon 135(5); T 34.86 lokhs

(&) Surplus arsing oul ef Ine CSR projec!s of programimes of activibes af Ine previous nonei yaars: 004
() Amourt ssgulred 1o ba el off for he financiol yaa: : © 0,04okhs

lalal C5R obligation for the fisandiol year (o< 7b- 7o) - T 3446 ols

(a) CSE amounl spent o unspent for the financlal year:

Total Amoun Amount Unspent (in 1)

Spenl lor the Talal Amoun! fraonsfered fo Unspenl Amoun! ransiemed fo any fund specifisd undai

Financiol Year {in?)  CSR Account aa per sechion 135(8) Schedule VIl oz per second proviso ho section 135(5)
Amaouni Date of lronstes Nome of tha Fund Amaount Daote of ransfar

9450 lowts il e Ml | Ml

) Detolsal CER cmoun! spant agoing engoing proleicts fos ke inanclal yeart NI
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{(c) Dwslalls of C5R amounl spent againat other than ongaing projects for the financial ysor:

Sl Name of fhe Project ltam from local  Locafion of the project Amount Mode of Implementation
Mo, Iha fist ol oreq spant lor
oclivifies in  (Yes/No) the project
schadula VI (¢ lokhs) Direct Through impiamanting
fo the Aci (Yes/No)
Slate District Naimis C3R
registration
number

I Aranclal suppot by paying fee
ror pocr udents. free education,

wedttwe & Welihood of pooe chiicien (I Vi MP Japdpur 5381 Yas

2. Supporing acthitles e ree gually
ecucaton, capocity Bulding of

leochen, enriching leoming [ e (R Joboipr 340 Mo Fiiends  CS9000018%8
aoportunities for childean. affactive of Tribal
senocl goveInance Sociaty
3. Promoting Literacy '} Ve Gunt  ahmedabod  0.50 fa Creamn  CSROCOOTI25
Fourdation
4. Promaling Litaacy ti Ve RS Joboiow 225 Mo Songrm  CERODO31Z236
Weifare
Society
5, Promoting Literacy {}] Ve MP Joboknr 050 Mo Vondon  CSROO0E51TA
Punarvos &
Anwandhan
Kondra
6. Pomoting Liveracy ] Wi Jobolnur 0.20 Mo NalSoch  (CSRODOJMEATD
Hamar
Kotpnna
rAakiic
Marical
7. Fromoling Lienaey ) Mo MP Jobokwr 075 No  AlMo! CSROD00I273
Sown
B. Eradicotion of Hunger & Poverty () ND MP  obdpw A0 Mo BKON  CSN005241
2, Frodeglion ef Hunge: & Poverly ] Mo MP Joboleer 250 N ha  CSRODCI0IDR
Inciion
fed Cross
Sociaty
10 Ermrorrmerml susioinaiity, (vl Yas MP, Jopdipr 5465 Yk
ecologoal balance, protection
of flora ond Touno, agro forestry:
Troa phantction, protecion and
malntenance
11 Promotion of cuttural octivities {v) Ve ME Jubtir D15 Yes .
12 Promotion of soorts cotiviies (vl Yes MF Joaboipr 0,30 Yes - -
13 Promuofion of Heolhe are aclivities il Vi MP dobciour 1.85 s - -
1 Swochala ADhivon i) ey MP Jaboipur 1.00 Yen - .
15 Rural Devalopmen| (x) Ve MP  Jobokwr 180 Vex - -
Tolal 29
(@Y Amourntspent in Adminisirative Overbeods i 160 lakha
(&) Amourt ant on mpoc! Assassrrant | apipliic able M|
(. Tawe armotint spant for e Froncial Yeor F 34 .50 lokre (8b+Bc+ Ba 1 Ba)
(o) Excass amount for sat off, I any Mil
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5. No. Porlicular Amaount {2 lakhs)

in Twie parcent of avarage ral prafit of the company os per secfion 135(5) 34.44

(i Tatal amount spent for the Financial Yeor A4 50

(i Excess amaurt spant forthe fnonctkal veor [I0-(0) .04

{hl Surphus arsng out of the CSR proecls or programmes or ocihvities of 1he previous fnanalal veoss if any .04

(vl Arnount avallabie forsel oft In wecseding financial years ({3 0.08

9. Detalls of Unspent CSR amount lor the preceding fhree tinancial years:
Sl Preceding Amounl Amount spanl Amount tronsfemed lo any fund spacified  Amount remaining
No. Finoncial Year  ronsfered o in the reporling under Schedule Vil as per sechon 135(4), to be spent in
Unspent CSR Financilal Year {in 7) IF arvy. succeeding
Account undet financial
saclion 135 (&) yeors
(inT) {in T}
i Il Tl ol Ml Ml il

(b) Details of C5R amouni spent in the financial year for ongalng projechs of the preceding financial year(s):

Sl Project ID Nome of Financial Project Tobal ormeunt Amoun! Cumulalive Stotusof
No. the Froject YecotIn duration diccated  spentonths amount the project
which the lorihe projectinthe  spentalthe Compleled/
project was project (inT) reporing and of Ongoing
commence Financial Financial
Yaou (inT) Yaar (InT)
NI il il Ml Ml NI NIl il

10, Incos aof cieation ar acoultition of capital astst. fumish the detals reidting T the aasest 1o creatad of ocouirag through CSi soent in

the finonciol ysar (ossed wits cataily)
(o) Doteof creation crocousition of the coplialasel(y) - Nona
(o) Arrcant of CER spanttor craofion of acouistion of copitol aaset - NI

(c) Detallsof the antity or plblic authonity or bensficlany under whosa name such capiial osset s registered, thair addrass el : Not

Applicable

(i Provicle detoin of the capital ossets) created or nequired including complete address and locofion of the copitol asset) | Not

Applicaoble

1. Spécify thareasanis), fHhe company hioa folled o spand 'wa percant of the overoge nist profit on per Section 135(5) | No! Applicoble

5. Anncmalal
=NEman CEER Eommiites

Ashok K. Kcapur
Momoging Dvector

Aace Jabalpur
Dicate: 13" August, 2025
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Annexure-1l o the Board s Repor

SECRETARIAL AUDITREPORT FORM No. MR-3

FORTHEFINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3 1siMarch, 2025
(Pursuant o section 204(1) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulafion 24A (1) of SEBI(LODR) Reguiations, 2015)

To,

The Members, .

Normoda Gelatines Limiled, CARAVS, Room No. 28,

15, Civil Lines, Jabalpur- 482 001

| have conaucted the secretaricl audit of the complonce of oppiicable stafutory provitlors and e adheence o pood corponsie
meachcss by Nomada Gelotmes Umited, (CIN L2221 1MP1RSTPLCDTS023) (Hersinafter colled the compary). Secretorial Aultt wos
sonducted In o manner gt provided rre o eaonoble bosa for svalualng the coporste conduciysiatutory comalionces and
sxprEsEng my opinion themon,

Boued on my vesification of the Company s boaks, popers, minute books, forms and r=tuirs ked ond othar racords maintomed by the
aompany and aiss the informotion provided by the Company, s afficers. agenly and aulhorzed represantalives during the canduct of
secratanal oudit, | hereby report that in my opirdan, the Compony hos, during e audit pedod covaring the inenclal year anded ari 3 st

Morch 2025 complled with the statutory provisons listed hareunder ard clso thot the Company hos proper Boordprogessas and
sompliancamashanim inploce o the edent in Ihemonner and sumect o ha eporing moses harsinalted

| hove axamanad e books, nopan. minute Dooks. forms oo returns filea ana affar records maintamned by Namnaan Gasatings Lirmited far
the fincmiciol yeor encled on 3 1 Morch 2025 occoreding to the provslons as may be apollontsis o the commpory of

I The Comparies Act, 2013 end any Amendments themof (hetalnoftes collectively refened 1o aa the "ACT) and the Ruies maoie
I, TheSacusties Contracts (Reguiation)fct, 1964 SCRA Tand fhe nules moss frereundar
. The Deposrores Act. 966 and the Reguictions and Bye-lowa framec thensunckr,
V. Forsige Diehangs Managensan! Act. 1999 and Ihe nulesand regpuictions mode themsurhder;
V. Thafollowing Reguiations and Guidealines prescribed undar iha Sacurities ond Exchangs Board of india Act, 1992 (SEBI Act);
a  TheSacurtes and Exchange Booard of indin {Subatartial At auiition of Shares and Tokeovens) Regulations 2011,
b IneSecurites ond Exchange Board of indio (Prokilbition of insider Trading) Reguiations, 2015

. The Securles ond Bxchangs Boord of India (Lisling Chligotions and Diclosure Requirements) Reguialions, 2015 ond
amahdman's thareof (hareinahe: coliactivaly raferac toos 'Listing Reguiations );

o TheSecurifies and Exchonge Board of India (ssue and Lshng of Debit Securifies) Regulotans, 2008, Not Applcabls dunng he
penod undar review;

a e Securttios and Exchonge Bogrdof iIndic{issue of Copltol ond Dscloswra Pequirements) Reguctions. 2018

f.  Tne Secuities and Exchange Board ol india Bnhare Basad Emploves 3analils and Sweal Eouty), Reguiatiors 2021 Not
appicable dunng the period unser review,

g IheSecunies drd Exchenos Boord of ndio (Reglstrors 1o an [ssue and Share Tromsler Aganis) Reguiations. 1993, Nol aoplicabie
aunng tha padod undar mylew os ihe caompany B nat octing oso Raglstronand Share Transfer Agen|;

h.  Ihe Becurties ond Exchonge Boord of lhaa (Deieling of Eauly Shares) Regulafions 2009; Net applicatie durleg the petsod
LGS reEvidi,

| Thee baculilies and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Sacudlies) Reguiations. 1798, Not applicalsks durlng the perod unds
e

i IheSecurites and Exchange Boora of indio (Deoestones and Particants) Regulomons. 2016, and
¥ TreSecurtes end Exchangs Boore of Indio (saue and Letng of Non-Corwerble and Redeancbie Prefeences Snomex)
Reguialion 2013 -Nal applicable o e carnpany during the petlod under reviaw,
Wi, TheFood Safety cnd Stomaands Act, 2006 alorg with hood Safety and Stondands Rules 2011
VIl Polution Control Act, Rules and Notification lisusd theneo.
Vil LegoietologyAct 200%ondifulesmade thameunder,
K. TheFoctoiesAer, | S8ondRuesmade thesaundar
X ShopsardfstabimmantAct, G55
A TheEmployeas Provident Fund ond Vscetoneous Frovisans Act, 1952 and Rules mada thorauncern
. inousnol EmploymentStonding CrdenAcT, 14
i TraMatamity Sanafils Act, 1961
W TheMinimum Woges Act, 1048;
XY ThePaymentof BonusAct, 1966,
VL The Payment of Gialuity Act, 1972:
A Tha Employmant Exchange(Compulbbony Motiflcation af Vecanciaal Aot 1955
Wil ThaFayment of wagsn Act, 1934 andameandmsnts thersol ond othar applicatle indusital and Labour Lo
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| howe alw axgminad compliancs of Sacreosal Slondands an Baand of Direcion (85-1) Ganerl Mastings (35 2) mode afeciive )5l Ly
2015 dnd Dividand [85-3) maode affactive 18t Jonuty, 2018, Sacretodiol Stondaics on Report of the Boord of Directoris made effective st
Octaber 2018 ssuad by the Inilute of Company Secrataries of lndia,

Durirg fne pared under review the Comeany has compliod with the peovitions of the Act Bules Reqguiatitns, t;uummaa Stondors, e'c.
menlioned above.

lurther Report hat:

The Boord of Drecton of the Compaony & duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Diecton, Non- Executve Directon and
ndegandan! Dieclos There ware no changes in ths compasition of the Board of Directons thal took ploce duinyg the pedod uncer review,

Adeguate nofica i given o oll the dirsctarns fo sehedule fhe Board Meelings. oganoe ond detailed notes on agendo wate sent af leos
sven days inodvance, and asysiem edets for seeking ond cblaining urther nformation ond clarlfoations on the agenda ems before fhe
meating and for meaningful participation af the mealing, Video conference faciifies offe: audio-viiudl mecns ane used os and whien
mquired o facllifote the Directon of other incakions to paric patein the mes hng.

Waiority declsions camied fhyough wihia iha dlissenting membens views, I any, ore coplured ondrecordad as part of the minutas. However,
nosuch cose bos ansen curng the penod under reviow,

| furnet report It there are gdequate systemn end procedses in the Company commentuale with the se and coperations of The
Company fo monitr andensura comolancs with apolcable lows. iuiss. teguialicns and guldeines.

T oy be noted that | have conducted onling verdticotion & exomination of racords. ai facitoied by ne company (whare sver requined),
forthe pulpone of itming this keport,

Dr. Aslm Kumar Chottopadhyoy
Fracising Compeny Secrefaty
FCS2303, CPB80
Poar Naview - 8375/2025
Linigue ilentification No. 11 985WE01 5800
DN ¢ FOO23033000 1 56994

Dote: 207 Aprl 2025

ANNEXURE A’

(TO THE SECRETARIAL ALDIT REPORT OF NARMADA GELATINE LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3151
MARCH, 2025)

To,

TheMamibsars,

Narmada Selalines Limifed, CAZAVS, RoomNo. 28
15, Chvil ings,

Jabalpur- 482001

My Repart far 1he finoncial ysor ended 3 1sIMaich, 2025 of even dote s to bie reod clong with this letter

. Muairdenance af secrelarial recard s e responsibllity of ihe rmanogemant al the Company, My responsibiity & fo espress an opliion
onhesesecreignaliscorgtl basod onmy audit

I Thove fofowed the audl! proc!ices ond processs o warg oppoprole fo oblain regsonoble asuronce obout e conaciness of tha
cortents of the saomtanal records, The verfication wos dones on) teot bodt 1o ensure that comect facts are meflectad N secratarial
recovch | besiieva thot fhe procssesond prochicss, | Talibwed provide o recsonable bass foe my opinion

Il I hive not verfiod he comaciness ona appropratanass of finonclal iecords and Books ol Accolnis of fhe Cameany.

V. Wharevet required. | hove obtomed the managsment refvesentation aboul the compiance of laws. fules and iegulations and
happening of svertseic,

Y. The complorce ol the provisions of Corporate and othet applicobile lows, nies, reguiations, stendaray i3 the respansiolity of
managemant, My examinotion wisbrited jo the val faolan ol prosscdures on (as) bosis.

Vi, The Secretorial Audit Repio 8 rsither on assuichces of 1o the uturs viabliny of the company nor ol thaesHicacy orafactivensss With
which themaonagament hos conductad the offos of the company

Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
Practising Carmpany Sacretaty

FCS2303, CPEBD
Fesr Review Cerificate No. - 375/2025
_ Unigue idenfificafion No. | 1PB5WES 1 5800
Dobe: 207 Aol 2025
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Annaxure -l fo tha Boord's Report

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(Fection 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) ol the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
A& CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

3.

Stepe taken or impoct on consanvafion of anargy;

- Woplocamant of ald Ingficion! maloswiih nolw enargy SMclot motors and rstalation of tempaeralure contiolon 10 reduca
fha stearmnconsumpHan in galoln proauction

- Modfication of Extraction fank and raplacement of Stecam Radiaton by hot water to reduce steam caniumptinn

St tosen of utising afemate sourcas of enafgy: The solor plart within thae Foctory premises i sat for commasioning only
LESC UM confirmation in awadting

Capltal Investment on enengy consenvation equipment (Salar Party: Re 7.04 Crores

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

2,

Efforts i briet oo rowanas iechnlogy oosonpiian:

Efforlz are being made 1o Improve tha gualty! guaniity of Gelafing production with sudpad fam Pramotiorn company.
Produciion improved from 5.3 M1 par goy o 4.7 VT per aay on yvear foyears,

Benefis derved asareuil of anove efforts;

3.

Impofad rechnalogy mpored dudng the ost 3 yeors reckansd fram he begiemng of ha financial vear) : Not aoplcablo as
no technology importad

(a) Technology

() Yeorotimpon

(e} Haslechnology been fuly atsarbed.

(d) Meot iy cosorbad. oreas where nis bas nol fokan piose, reasons fheredf and future planof aalion

d. FOREIGNEXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO
Pariculars 2024-25 2023-24
FOE valua to sxports: 16.81 lckhs 47,99 1alds
Expmncimure in forelgn axchongs
imeof of spare parts 45 G4 Ikt 46 99 oo
Traval for expart promatian .45 lekhs L7 bokns
Others (subacription] 9.5 lckha 17,00 ok

5 Annamalal Aghok K. Kopur
Enarmon Manaaing Dirsctor
Place : Jabalou

Ciote ;13 Augusr, 2025
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Annexure - 1V fo the Board's Repor

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014

)

The percentoge nerease namunaation of ench Director, Crief Finoncal Oficsr ang Cormpany Secrstary dunng the financial yea)
2024-25, 1ot of tha memunaialion of sach Direclor lo the med on mrnunaralion of the employvess ol Ihe Company o the fnanclal
yeor 2024-25 and [he comparisan of remuneralion of aoch Key Manogedds Pasonnel (KMP) agolnst he petformonce of e
Compony ra asunoar)

5. Nome of Director/KMP and Remunaration % increase in Ratio of Comparion of fhe
No. Dasignolion of Direclor/KMP Remunaralion remunemation of  Remuneration of
for financial yeqr in fhe each Direclor KMP ogainst the
2024-25 Financiol Year o median perfomances of
(% locs) 2024-25 remunention ol the Campany
employess
Non-Execufive Director
Lo S Annameial - Deecior
2. S Morsiwoian - Disctol
3 B Vioyoauro -
Nar-Eraculive - ndsoendart Direclor - -
4. Marimagalol Tnangomani -
Non-Secuhve - ndependant Director
3 K Krisrmoemoottty=Direc ot
MNor-Exaculive-independent Diacion
Exncutiva Diractor & KMP:
b, Ashok K Koodr - Monoging Desctor ad. 25 5.47% 14,69
7. Malsh Varme - Ohiet firarcial Officer 15.94 845 Mol Appiicabla
B Ann Jaliwa-Chisl Arancial Officass 0e MA Mol Anplicable BoM afterlax
¥ MeanuShama - Company Sacretary* 059 NA Mot Appioable :ﬁﬁ’:ﬂ;r‘m
WL Mahima Patker- Comipony Secietary# 483 WA Mot Appicable year M24-25

"1, W Mahesh Verma Ceased to be the Chief Fnancial Cificer w &1, January 07t 2025 and . Arun Jalswal were Apparnted o the
CHO wiet March 15, 2025
"2 Mz Meanu Shommo Ceased 1o be the Compoany Secreiony weal June 28th 2024 ond #Me Maohima Patkar were Gopointed o the

Company Sacrataryw.el August 072024

The Nor-Execunve Directon of the Company. are ony entfied to stting fres o3 por fhe stotumory provisions, the detalls of which one provicked
n thia Calpaiate Govamanc e Hapart

L

i
v
v

Wl

Wil

Tha median rerrunsitalion of employess of fhe Company durng Ihe financiol year 2524-25wast 3,77 lakbs

Ihe percentoge ncreass n the median remunercfion of employess in the finonciol yeor was 7.20%.

Iherewere |98 parmaonent employees on the o of Compony as on 3! 5t March, 2025,

frolofionship heTwadn CVroge INgrodse M Famunamnan and company parformanca. The Profit affor Tox for e financal yoar

enden Morch 315 2025 increased by 12.24% and Ihe cverage emunenalion Increased by 7 26%, Perceniage increcss) for varous
categofie are grarted bossd anmaks trendi and perfamotice ciiterda

Comparkan of Remuriarotion of the Kiey Managars Pasannol() agolrst the perlomancs af ke Campany: The loldl remungialion

of Key Manageanal Pesonne incraased by 6,83 whereas the Profit offer ok increcsed by 12.20%

a) Variotions n e morke! contalsation of e Company: The moset capitclisation os on 3]s Moren, 2025 wes T 19400 lakhs, os
compared fo 1 20164, 3010khs o5 on 318t March 2024

Bl Pricakomingsrafio of the Company was |1 70asat 315t March. 2025 i compared to 13. 14 ca af 315 March, 2024,

Avemge percenings incraase n lha sranes ol employass olhso than Ihe ey Managenial Pamsanne in the linancal year 2024-25wos

9.40% whaioaos Ind Imanoges mmunarciion for the same fingncial yearwas Increasad by 5,67%

Th& key porosmaton fof tha sonatile companant o smunamion avalled oy tha dirsctos ore considared by Ihe Bood of Direcions
boead on he recommiendafions of e Nomingtion and Remunangticn Commirtes oz per the Remunesation Paksy for Direcfon. Kay
Maonagercl Pemsonmes! ond other Ermployess

Thaieno of fhe nemuneration of fna highest poid dractor 1o tnat of the employess wno are not girecton buttoceive remuneration in
ewsess of the highes! paid dirsctar durlng the year - Nane of the employses are In recalp? of remunenation In sxcess of the highest
Doid diresson,

Thi ramuniiation poildbs as pet e Remuneation Policy for Drectors, Koy Managanal Persannel ong olhar amployees
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Annexure - V o the Boord s Repord

Form AOC-01
(Statement pursuant to Seclion 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Company

Part "B Assoclale Company

5.No. Nome of Assoclate Compony Indlo Gelaline and Chemicals Limited
B Lolet Apdited Balance shest dale 3151 March, 2025
2 Dota of acquistion/iIncoporolion 15 Decenbe, 2004
3. Snores of Associote held by the company on the year and 1003000
Equity Shcires
i Nurmber of Sharas W3000
Amaunt af Investrman! n Associale Campany 411531
i Estend of Holdings 14.14%
4,  Descripton of how Iheme i sgnficant nfllusasce shamahaldng

5  Reason why the francials of Associate & not consalidated
b, Nsl warm atinbutable (o shorshaolging os per the (afes!

Aldited Botance Sneal (T 10 o) 242502
7o ProitLoss o sy
| Cormidersd In Cormpliciotiod” (T In laki) 8200

I Nol Corsideied in Consalldated” (T In kakha)

Notes Associate Comoany have been datermined based on the Accourtng Sondords.

S Annamalal Ashok K. Kapur
Chairmaon NMaraging Deacton
Mace - Jabapur

Datre: 13" August, 2025
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Camparate Govemanes i the Implemantation of best moragemant practices, compiiance of ldw and voluntary adhstesice to ethical
slondorcs which ore inevitasis fof cohkving orgonizotionol sfficiency, enhoncing sharenoiden volue and dischorge of sociol
fesponsitlity. Tha principie of geod corpaiio’e gevermancs i o amsure Taimess m ol ranmctions within and culiide the comporny with
nveshors, custamen, amployeas, partnes, oompetitans and fhe society of lage:

Ihe-concept of norporate govemance primarty hinges on compiata ranssarency, integriy and accountabiify of the management, with
anincreasirgly greater focus on invesior profesiion ond publc Inferest. Sooud corpomta governance s on essenfial port of wellmonoged,
suc cessfil business anfemprite that deffven value o shareholden,

Governance procices may vary but 1he princples ore genans and uhiversal, viz. commitment of the Boora inmaneging businsss sthically
and In o mangpatent mannss with the proflt obijsctive Dalanced by 1ong term volus eguitably for o stakshokies Wil Increcsing
corrpdexition in business afgarzations, sound govermance practcss are ndispersobla to bulld and sustain frust,

Good govemance enhonces the confidence, Trust and enthwsiosm of s stokehoiders. Far ensuing tound copornate govemance
proctoes, the Governmont of India has putin ploce < framewark baned on the sipulations contained under i Cormpanias Act, Seauttfies
ond Exchange Board of indio (5 8 Regulctians, A¢caunting Standards, Secretorol Somdaords. slc

The Company i committed to run its businass in o wgaol. ethicol ond fransparent manner with dedicotion that pravalls mroughout tne
orgonizaton. This tepot sets out the compliance status for the Compuary with e reqursmants of corporale govemance for the fimancial
yaor Z)3d-28

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The company i comrmithed 1o focus on long term values creation and protecting siakeholdss interests by apoiing proper care, siol ond
gikgence to busness ceciions. Tha Compaony nas estobished systerns, procedunes and pokoies to engure ot 78 Boord of Dinpctons s well
nformed and well equibped to dischorge its overal responsibilities and pravias the Management with the strategic diection caterdng o
exigency of long-term sharehaldsr svalue,

The corperate govemence smuctura in fie Company ossigns eeponilbiliies end entrusts guthorty omong different porticipants in the
oganfzohonvi. the Boord of dheclons. the senlar monoagemanl, employess. afc. The company conlinuolishy endedvouts 1o mpove upon
thete aspeciy on on ongong basts and adops mnovative opprocches tor levelaging mesowced, converting opparunites o
ochisvements through proger empoworment and motivafion. Tostaring o hoalthy alkround growth ond deveopmant to foke the
Company fonward,

Your Company |3 in complianics wih tha mouiemants of Comonoia Govamaonce as sipdated In the Secuities ond Bechongs Board of
inciia [Listirg Obligations and Disclomsre Requiremeanis) Regulotions, 2015 Listing Reguictions"), In addition fo comphing with the statutory
isquirsments, effactive govemonce systams and prochces iawands Imgeoving raripanenc . dlilosures. interndl contral and promotion of
aifuc: ot work clace have baen insifufionaized, Inefollowing codes and policiss hove besn adopited by fre Campany
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Codeol Congluct

Code of intetnal Procedune and Conduct for ingldet Trading
Wristle Blowe: Policy

Reloted Party Traneacon Policy

CoipatoteSociol Responstility Fobcy

Serudl Hotessrment Pobay

Nomincicn and Remunsialion Polcy for Dirsctom, Key Managenic Pesontesl and ofher Emplovess
Baard Pertormanoe Evalucion Fedioy

Risk Manogemaent Palicy

Pobcy for determinotion of Materdalty of army svant

Holcy on preservaton of ocuments

AnFCauptian and Ant-Beibeny poliey

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Beara of Drectons along witn s commitiees provides leodership and gusdance fo The Management and diects and supenises e
parformarce of the Company, hamy enhancing Sfukebpioer walue The Board hasa fduciany miafionship Inensuing thatthe rights of all
stokshalgessore protected. Your Company hos an engagad and well- farmed Boord with qualifications and expedience i vanous areca.

The memoes of e 8oard ore from alverse bacsgraunas wimn sils ona expatience in different sectom lilke Technoiogy, finance, legal,
powis oned gieneia managiment, With @ view o hove o mare focised aHenfien or vanous focoels o bisiness and fon betta)
accountatkly, the Board has consliiuted the folowing commitless viz Audil Commetles. Stakasholoen’ Rslofonstio Commilles,
Nomination cnd Remurercion Commitiee, e Manogement Committes, Corporote Sociol Responaibiity Commities ong Compioinis
Commitiee pursuant2 Sesual Homssmient Policy of the Compary

Tha Company Secratary B pimorly rasporaibia for enguing complicncs with opplcoble satutary mouiements and b the niedfoca
petwesn the manogermant ond reguiatony authomes for govemaonce matters. The Cornpany Secretary oloys a key role in ensaing ot
Ite proceautes are followed ong iegulorly reviewsd ond Ihat oll relevantintormation, details ond decurmenls ore modes ovailoble to the
Directors ond =anky menopement foreffective datkion moaking.

ComposifionoltheBoard _ _
As on 31t Maoreh 2025, Compary's Booard comprsad of & marmbers which inclodes one Exscutve Director, threa Nor-BEmcutive
Independsnt Directon (nciudng one Waman Direcion) and two Non-Eiecutiva Non-ndependsnt Dirsctors. Theprofile of Dkectorscanbe
Tound al Ihe webslte of the compaoany ol hitps:) e nomodaogeiotinescom.  The composition of hs Boord | In conformily with 1he
Comearies Acl. 2013 and Lsting Regulations anjoining speciiied combnation of Exacutve and Non-Executiva Directorn with oflecst ona
Worren Director and ong half of tho Bodard comprising of Indepengent Diectons as kald down for @ Board with the Nor-Exscutive
noependert Drscto ol the Chalmem (salsd 1o promiotar).

Calegory No.ofDirectors _hoftofalnumboroldieclars  or Euscue ‘miif:fﬁ;
EpERDE
acufive Directon | 17% Oreclon
= = nclaging =
Nor-Dxecutive Indepandent Drecton B waman
(including woman direciarn) 3 5o dirngtur), S0%
Non Ewecutiva Nor-ingopendernt Direcion 2 A3% Wun Execultes
fiom indaponoent
Tetal & 100% Dirccion, 33%

Datalls of Directorn ottendance and olher Direclohips/Commiliee memberships

As reguired by Regulation 26 of the Litng Reguciions and declarafions disciosus recedved fram the Direcios. none of Ine Dékectars o
mesmbir of e fhcan fen Board commilttess (consididng only Aucr Carnmiftes and Stakehoiders’ Relationshio Committee) of Chalmman
ot ot thontvs Commitfons ooicas all putie Imiten Companiea (isfes ar unlisted) inwhich hathals a director, Nonaoftha Discioe offhe
Compary servas oy Dirsc| ot nmisrs than seven libse Companies, and s independer Dirsc o in moee than seven lsed Compartiss omd
n gose hefshe s serving as g Whola=Time Dipector noany isted Compaony, dost nof hold the pestion of Indepandent Clrectorn i mome thon
o iffed Componias.

All Directant hova itfomad about ther Diiecioshlot. Commiltea Membauhios! Chalmanships Inciuding ony changes in heir poalfons.
Nona of the Diracton of the Campany ane reiated Infer-se except Mr. 5 Annamalal ana Mr. 5 Maneswaran, in fiarms of Section 2(77) of the
Comporss Act, 2013, ncluding Rules (hers unde:. The cormpany feas not lsued any convertibls nshiuments hence, cisclosure in Ihs respect
anc appicalile.
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Destaib of attendonce of Directon of Boord Mestings and ot e last yeor's Annual Senemal Mesting together with parhoukss of Shedr
Directonhip end Chalrrarshis/Membeship of Rodid Committeas os on 31" Mateh 2025, ale s uncden

Mame of Direclors Calegoryd Altendance al Directomships ond Chalmanship/ Share-
Memberships of Boord Committees  holding
In Indlan Public Companies infhe
Board Meetings AGM  Direclor- Commiflee Committee company
24092024 ships' Member-  Chaitman- (equily share
Held Attended ol ships* ship* of 110
attend- pet share)
ance
W, 5 Annamalal NISMNED 6  A{2VE) 100 s rd Ml
W, & Mahsstworan MISNED 4  SVC) RO Yes 2 Ml
W, K Krghnamioartty o] & &6V0) 100 Yes 2 2 2 Mil
M, & Vijoyadutal o 6 HEBVE) 100 Ve 2 2 2 NI
Wik Ashiok K. Kapur ED & & 100 e | 1 - 1060
Mes. Monimegalal Thangaman D & SVC) i) e | [ - Ml

(VChi-attended fhrougn vides conferancs
D Independent Dvacton NI Nor-indapandent Dracior NECH Mon-Execuine Director: EDx Executive Diractor

"Thi abdwvae inCludes only directoship neld in companies whose eauity thored are isted on o slock axchanga ond does nal include any
altamoie. Dinctoships ond Direcloships of Forelgn Companeas, Sechon B Compones ong Mivala Umiteg Companias
Mermbernnios/Chalimanship: of only the Aud| Commilless and Stokahokien’ RBealionihp Commibiess ol Bisd Pullie Lmitea Companies
v B corsichanad.

Narme of other listed entifies where Directors of the company are Directors and the category of Directarship

Name of Direclor Name of listed entities in which the cohcemed Director is o direclor Category of Directamship
M, 50 Annomalcl Indla Gelotine and Charmicols Limdled Ml & NED:

Wi Mohasworon indio Gredoting and Chemical Linited NI & NED

M. K Krighnamoartny MPL Carporation Limited iD

. B Vijayoourol india Galgting and Chamicols Limited ]

Number of Board Meetings and dotes

Mirdmum four Board rraetings are hetd every year (ane meafing in evary calendar querter), In cose of any axigency/ emangency,
resoluthons ore obo passed by alrewiation

Dunng the financial yedor 2124-25 the Board of Directons mat shcfimes on 21° May 2024, 00" August 2022, 02" November 2024, 4" Decomber
2024, 17" Feonuary 2026, ana 287 February 2025

The maximum gon Detween any two consecutive maetings was oss then one hundred and twanty days. o8 sipuiated under ihe
Companias Acl, 2013, RBegulalion 17 of the Lsting RPegulatons ond Sectelaial Slandatsy bn ol Board mestings during the fnanchal year
2024-35Video Confesance focilty wos also providesd To the-directon

Necesary quartim wos presan! n all e Boand mselings
Skills/Experiiie/Competencies of Ihe Board of Direchors

The Board of directons of the Comparny are professionals. possessing wida expanance and axpartsa n thelr arecs of funatlon, vie. Soias &
Market ing, Irfsinational Business, Seneal managemaent and leadership, Financial & rek management skills and Techricod, professioral
wifs ond knowtedge Including legal, govemanoe ond reguicrory aspecte In tefm of reguingrmants of fro Listing Regulafions. fre Board has
dentifiod the fobawng skilin/expertsa) competencies of tha Dvecton as on 31 March, 2025;
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Thespecitic grosaf focusor experss of individudl Boord memisen have been Mighighted and given in the table below:

Direclar Area of axperise

‘Company's Behoviourol leodership  Soles&  Boordond  Finonclol  Technicol& Legal/

business & skills Matkeling Comporale Professional  Corporale
Industry Govemance lawe

Wh, K Kishraamoartiy v v v v v v
S Acksl K Kopur v v ¥ v v v (T v
M. 5 Arnarnalos v v v v v v v v
Wi, § Maheswarn v v v v ¥ v
Mir. B Viiovockorm v v v U v v v
Wi, Marimagaked
Thongoman v v v v v v v
Profila of Directors

Dielolled profie 1 i e Board memimes s ovalale on he Compony §weliste ol wwesnarmadaislilines som

A bzl profile of Diregtor belng opovinted/re-gppaintéd, natlre of thelr sxpertissin spacific funclionol oreos and nomies of Companies in
which they hola direciorshipg, membeships/charmanthips of Boord Committess and their shoreholong in the Company, it any, ae
providsd balow.

Direcior(s) refiring by rolafion

WA, 5 Annamick (LN, 0000 | 381), aged atout /8 yeon, 80 Bochslor of lechnology (Chem Engg. ). He hos vost expenesnce in successiully
miemaging Chemical Indusiies overa pefog of § decades. In 1973 he wis appointed o the Manoging Director of Pandian Cheamicols Lid
(PCLLwhich ln the lorgest produces of Potcsum Chiorate inindia,

Ha i also on the Boord of India Getatine ond Chercol Umited, Proneer Jelioe India Private Umited, Sree Ayvonar Sginring and Weaving
Wiills Peivate Limted, Pendion Chamicols Limites, Mepcd Indutriss Umited, The Metal Powder Company Limited, Ata Match Compary
Privite Limited, Ashink Mot bes o Tirber Inclustriss Privats |milies, Nirarion Sansot Erterprises Priviste |imitesd. Plonsies NF Farginge ndio
Frivate Lirndfed.

He goesnat hald ary shores of the Compary as on 315t Marsh 2005,

A M B Annomalal hol attaned e age of 78 yeorn, thetefone In complionce with the provisors of Regulation 1701A of Sedurities and
Exchange Boord of Indle (Lsling Ooigations and Dscloswe Reguremeants) Regulations 2016, meman approval Is eauired by passing o
Speciol Resohution. o te- appolnliment of M, 3, Annamalal o2 o direcian llable 1o relive by iatation

Board Procedure

e Agendo ond Nolas on Agencao for Board Meshngs o circuiated o Dwacion in oovancs o anobis tham to Joke informad decison:.
The Information partaning fo mandaroy fams o specifled in e Lsting Regulatiors, Compares Act.2013 omed otter applicable lows,
alang with ofhe: businessissues, b provided fo tha Boord. on part of 1he ogenda. All metaral informalian b incomoated these Int facltote
mesnnglul and fecused decussionsal the mesling. Wheses |l is not proacicabie o attach any docurnent lo the agaenda. || stabled belass
ne meaing with speciic reference fo thi effect on ne agoenda. In special ang escephiongl circumetonees, ony othor matios oo
discused with the parmision of the Chairran of fhe Beard mesiing. A viden canfemancing foclly & movosd 1o faciitate Direclors o
parficipote in this mestings.

Recording minutes of procesdings ol Board and Committee mestings

The Compary Secretary records the minules of proceedings of Board and Commities meetings. Droft mindtes are crculated to membets
of thie Board { Commifteasfior thelr Comments and are finoleed by incarpoling the comments of this Directon. The minutes are enfered in
frie Minuites Back within 3l doyi from the concluiion of tha masting.

Post-masting follow-up mechanism
Monoageman! lokes ocllons on 1he decislons ond direclions orfding cut of the diecussions of the Boord/Commitass Mealings. Impartan|
geciions iokenat mesaticgs of the Boord/Commitfess are communicatad promatly 1o the concarmed departmernts/divitlons,

An action faken reped on decsons/miniutes of the evicws meelingis) k& placed al Ine succeading meeafing of (he Beard/Boand
Committiees forrviow ond follow-up

Compliance

The Comporty Secratory, whiles prapofing the oganda. notes on ogenda and minutes of the meating(s), & msponsibie for ond |s rmaqurned to
arsure odherence o all opplicable lows ond reguishors. ncluding Ihe Componles Acl. 2013 nead with rulet ksued thersunder, o
appicaks ond Ine Sscretatiol Standords recommandead by It Insliiute ol Company Secrataties of indio.

During the finoncal yeor 2004-25, informiation g mentionea in Parl A of Schedule | of the 528| Lshng Reguialions. hos been pioced befors
the Board for ity condasiation: The Board of Directon s providea with dll tha information ond update on ke sublects delolled undear and
nova complote gocess o any Information within the Company.
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Annudl oparcing plans ond budgets aond updafes

Copital budgetsondupoates

Quaradyfannuol inoncialreats of tha comparny

Mirutas of meatngs of board, audit committas and ofner committeetof fha ooard

Show-Cowue, demand, prosacution nofices and panafy nafices, which ore motadally mpartant

Inforrration f resritmen! and remunsealion of senior oficons jus beltuw 1he laved of Loard of dirsgion, InCiding aoooinirmant of

ramaval of Chiaf Anancial Officerand the Company Sacretary

Totol or senows accdents, danpeous poourences, any matesal etfluent of pollubon problar

Any matarna defoult in fimancictobligehons toand by the company, orsutgtantial nor-poyment forgocs pold oy he company

Any mue, which involves passitye putilic o product llablty ciolme of sutwtan il nature, Including any juggsmant o order which may

nove pasad stictures on Ine conduct of tha compary of token an odversa view ‘agarding ancther enterprsa tnaf can hava

nepativeimplications on fhe cormpany

o Sprificant lzbour pretlems and thar oroposed wlutions

e Anysgrificant develoosient In Human Resources! ndustol Relations fron) e signing of woge ogreamen:, Imolementafion of
YVolurtany Refiremant Schama_sto.,

e Soleofmotodolrature ofinvésiments, Qssetn, whioh B notinthe sormal c oune of DUniress

o Nor-complance of ony regulatony, stotutany or litng reauromanty and shorehdidons sonice sech o ror-poymont of dividgnd,
oalayinshare trorsfers, afc.

s  =nrtedy complioncea carfificates whilch includes ron-compllanca of any reguictory. stoturory nomuae of B7ing redpirarments and

S P lcdpes sesryice

Apposrtment, remunerafion ana resignctlian of Directomn

Hroposals quinng sategio guiconce and oppravals of fhe Boord of Drecion

Rekted party Trarsachon:

Formizfion and recangfifufion of Boog Cammitteas ond thelr terms of referance

Decarotions by Inaspendant Diectorns

Diigctasures of inlersst of Directon and Ihe s shareholding

Appairtment and fixing of remunatalion of Stotutory Auditars ol recommended by the Audit Commithee

Apporimsn! of Intamial Suditon and Secrstanial Auciios

Discssion o repodsand observations ol iInfernal ond Stolubary Audiors

Dividend declorriion

Moking of loors and nvestrment of iurplus funds

Proposal formajor investments, morge: amaigomations

Barrgwing mongy . giving guarantaas of providing sacuity In respactotloan

lsum of securities, shores. debesniunes

Independont Directors

The Companses Act 2013 ond tha SEBI (Listing Obligahons ond Disciosure Requirements) Reguiations. 2018 (" the Listing Requiations ") define
anindspendent director’ as o parson who, noluding hls/ ferrelatlves. 's orwosnol o promoter or employes o key managstial petsonned of
IHe company o s subsidanes. The parson and his Mhee relatives should fnothovs o matenol pecuntary relatonship o trarsactions with ne
company of issubsidianes, during the three immedicte preceaing finondial yean or during the cumest-financiol yeo: opart from receiing
amurerchion s on independent director

ndependert Directon of the company hove besn apponted as pet the provisions of the Act and uies thereunder, The independent
Dirsctor howve confirmad thal they mas! this Crifenia of indersndencs Ioid cown unde: tha Compoaries Act, 2013 oned Regulation 16(145)
of the Listing Reguiations and that they are nol aware of any crcumstance et diuation, which gxint of may be reasonaly anficipated, thal
ol impalrar mpoct thalt atility 10 diechorge thelr dutieh with on cbjedative Independant judgmant and without ary extemal IRflusnce.
The Board of D¥actorn hova okt on meord the decloration and condirmiation submitled by the Indepancent Dirsc tos offer undedoking
ous assesmant of the vesacity of ihasams.

In e opinion of the Board, the Indepsndent Diiecion. Wil ih2 cohdtions of iIndependencs soesified In Ssctlon 1498) of the Companies
Ao, 7013 ond Reguiation16( 1)} of 1he-SER| (Listing Chaligotions ond Declosses Reguirennseniy) Reguialions, 2015 and o Indeoendan! of
nemancgamant,

Fajmal lettan of appolatment have been lisued 1o the Independen Dirscton and (e larms and conagllions of ther q'q:l-:dnlmm'a!
discicsad on fhe company 1 webdte at wivw.namodogiliofines. com

Tenure of Independent Directors

noccodance with Sectan 149() 11aithe Companies Act, 201 3, Mr. K. Kristinamoor iy won appointed o ngepencent d rechor wifh elfect
hom 21092021 who shol holds office for st ferrn of § comsetulive veois ke om the date of Annuol Geneal Meeting (A5M) held
an? | “Septembe 2021 Up to the conclution of 657 AGM of fhe Compaony or 112 1" September, 2025, whicheve: Eearller

Wi 2 Vievaduml ena M Marimegalal Thanpemanl were appointad o indepancen) direclons of he company wilh effec! from
14.07.2023% by the memibers of the compony af the 527 Annual Genesal Meating (AGM) held on 25° Seotembar 2023 who shall hold office
ferfist tamm of B (five] consacurtve yaars tl 13.07 2023
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Ssparata Mealting of Independent Direclors

Incegendant Diacion of the Compary me! sepaolaly o 28° Felifuary 2075 withaul 1ha presence of Non-indeoendant Diectors and
membears of the Management, In accoonnce with the Lsting Regulations, tolowirg realten were, interaln, isviewsd and discussed in fne
meatng, csreguired under Schadule IV fothe Act (Code for independant Direcion) and Reguiction 26 (4) of the Lising Regidations.

Al tresoidmesting. tha iIndependent Tirectors, Inler-aig, conpde=d na folowing:

s Svipwad tha parformanca af Norindependan! Directan and he Bisasd as a whoks.

o raviewsd ihe pesformance of the Charman of the Company faking info consderatinn the views of Eeculve and Non-Exeoulive
Diregcion.

s Assessed the gualty, quontity ond tmedness of tlow of nformaticn cetwesan the Compony Managemant onad tha Board that i
necessary for tha Boord to alfec tvely ond reosonobly perform thelr duties,

All tha Independent Dirsctam ware prasent ot both the Meetingn. Theindopendert Dirictons oxpresed satisfoction on the parfermanca of
the nor- indepanoant drectonin the funchionng of The company. on the parformance of the Chairrnan of the Board ond performance of
e Biaaie as o whins.

Direcloss' Familiorization programme:

Thia Company hae on anentation processTamiliodzafion programme for s indepandent andg athar direciacs that inciwcas briafing an T
le, responaibiibes, dutes, and oblgatons s o member of tha Board, noture of busines: of frie Compary. plant &, manulfaaturrig
process, quality. sofety mecswss in ploce. C5R aclivites etc . matfarns relafing to Corporaie Sovermnance, Code of Business Conduct, Risk
Monogarman!, Compliancs Pragrams. Inlemal Audll, sle. and inlroduciion o ssnlor mancgement Team. This provides Irsights info Ihe
Comgany to enable the Independent Dractors o undestand the Comoony's business In dopth That woula faciitote tholr oot
porficipafiorinmanaging the Campary.

A3 o process. when ¢ now independan! direcior 8 eppaintad. 0 dekaded Appointment Lettar ncorporaing e rolo, aufies and
resporemiities. remuneration and parformance evaluation process, Code of Conouct and ooligations on disciogures, 15 ssued for the
accaplance of lhe indapendan! Diresion

Efforts are made o continunily update the independant Dirscios an ol impodon developmeants within fhe Company ond regotony
changas viz sharing mportont developmants in the noustry, e company’s intamal enviionment ond extemal erimnmeant, indushial
1mm.mumﬂsmmmma_mmﬂrumbn for the Company § products. efc,

All new directons appoirted an fhe:Board go thiough an anentation process/Tamillarzofion programme: The detals of freining and
femiligrzaion program are srovides In ihe Corporate Govemaonce Repor and alse avalabls on the websia of the compeny al
whww rarmndogeiatinescom

Direclors and Board Padormanc e evaiuafion

Busuant in the provisors of the Companies Acd | 201 3and Regulation |9 of the SERI (Lsting Obligations and Dsclosure Faquiremeants) 2015,
e Boora has caniad out the annual perormante evailohion of (15 dwn pedlamances, he D#E:*Inrslmbﬂmmy o yeal) o8 the evanation of
the working of ity Audlt Commitiee, Namination and Remunerafion Committes and atnel Commitieas

Pursuont o oppécabie proviskons of the Companies Act. 2013 ond the Lsting Regulations, the Boord. in consultation wilh lls Rommnction
ARemunerafion Committea. has formulred o hamewor conloning, Meraia, the peocess, lomal, alfribufes and cifera ‘of
performance evaluation o the entite Board of the Company, Iis Cominittaen ond individual Dinsctors, including indapendent Dirmclar
The iomework s mooload, revawed and upaated by 1ha Board, in consullation with the Nomination and Ramuneration Commiltes,
pated on need and new complance regurements. Evallaton of the Boord and ts Commitiees i bosed on varous cspects of thelr
funchioning. such o3, adequocy of the constiution ond Compasiion of tha Board and fts Committtess. matien adorassed in the meatings,
processes followed at the mesting. Boord's focus, reguiorony compiionces ond Comorate Govemoncs. efe. ars in place. Smilarly, for
evouction of ndvidual Dikectors performonce, vatlous porarmstes Bee Decion’s proflle, conhibution n Board and Commiftee meetings,
axecution and performance of specific aulled, cbiigations, reguiatory compliances ond Sovernance. ale. gre considerad.

Furthes: The pedormonce of Chorman, Becufive Dirscion ond Indepenacen! Srecion ofe svalucted on cenain odditionol paramsater
depenaing upon thialr rolss ond responstilities, Similarly, crifara for evelualion of Indepandent Cirrecton include effecfive daployrant of
snowiedge and expertss, commitmant ta et e tewords the Compary ond varous stakaholdan, high ethical standards, coharence to
oppicotie codas ond policies. sfaciive pardicipalion and apolicalion of chiscve indapendant judgament dutlng mastings. ete

Accordngly. the anvrual performanca evaluation of the Soard. its Committeas and each Direator wios comed out for the fmoncial year
2024-25 by the Board on paiomaten sch o isvel of engogement and carribution, Independence of judgsment, safsguardng fhe
nteiest of he Cornpany and ilsminglly shorahoidel, efo, wos canleg out. The petformancs avaludiion of the ingependat! Diagion was
camed out by the entlre Boord, The parformance evaluation of Nan-ndepandent Directon was camed cut by the Indepandant Directars,
Ihe Diecton expressnd thed satsiostion on the parfamance of ol e drecton and board In the fupationing ana thak cantbutan
liwords the growih of tha company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD _ .

The Bodrd hos corslituled sic commifesy, nomaly Audl! Commities, Nomnallon anel Ramiungalion Commilles, Corporale Social
Tesporsbity Commiftes, Stakehalden’ Relationship Committes. itk Morogemert Committea ong Comploirts Comerittes. Tha Bogrid is
outhoreed to conmifute addfional funchonal Committess, from Sme o fime, depending on business: needs. Duing e year, ol
mcommendatiorsmads by the committees wane appieved by the Boarg
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1.

Audit Commifiea

The Audit Commiftas as been comifitutad b.y Ihe Board in comaliance with the requismants of Seclion 177af the Companies Act,
201 3and Regulction 18 ot the Listing Fegulafions,

The Audt Commitee asests the Boord in s responsinilty for avesesing the gualily aond infegrity of e aceounting, ouditing and
eparting prochices of tha Campary andit compliancs with tha kgl and reguiatorny mauimmeants

Tha Committea's purpona i o overses ha oecounting ond financialregarting prociess of the Company, e audils of the Compiany s
finonciol staternenty. the appointmant, independence. parformanca ond remunsiation of ks sotulory ouditon, Ihe serformonce
of Intemaol cutsion and the Company's tik monogement pallckey. The Audt Cammities mioy coli for Ihe corrmants of 1he ol
cbvaul inlemal control systarms, the scope of audl Inchuding the obsenvatons of Ihe auditons and review of Fnanclal stalemeant balore
their subrission to the Board. The Aucit Committes shall have outharty fo investigate any mather within the terms of relerence of
refarted Yo vy the Board

The tarms of rsfemnce ot the Audt Comrmittes cover ol fhe areas mentionad undead Saction 177 of the A2t ard Regulalion 18 mad
with Part C of Schechule i to The | _shing Regulations. The leams of referarices of the Audit Committes. inte:-oia. ans as foliows)
eviewing thefinanclal ieports and fhe daclosure of il financial iInfarmation 1o ansue that the tinancia statemeni reflect o e and
Tar poston and that sufficlent ond credicts iInformaton s declesad in the raports,
Recommending tha appeintreant and remaval of intemadl and extamal oudlons. fixation ol oyl fee and ather paymants
itewiewing the inoncilsiotamantana droft audi report, including quartery/half yeany fimancial nfermartion;
Revieang witn manogement the guererty cnoannual inancial stotements betore submisson fo the Boond tocusing prmeaiy an;
- Any changes in acciounting polciss and prochicas:
- Moot accounting eniies bosed on exsicia of juc_lgimn’rht,r monogement,
Gutiificationsindior aud)! rapod|
Slgnificant agjustriants anting out of qudif;
- Tregoing concetn ossumplion
- Complance with occounling stondorde
Compliance with slock exchange and legalrequirements canceming financial siatemants:
Approvd of any subsaquent modlication of trareoctions of the company with reiated partios;
= [Reviewing fhe Compony s financial anc nsk monagement policies,
= [hsclosusof conlingent liabdities
Scrully ofinter-corponate nans and nvestments
Valuerion af undertakngs o assets of fhe company. whemaver I s roecessary;
Monltorng the anduse of unds rosad througn publc offers ond reicited mctter.
rn'-Ermﬂwrr'rg with themaragemant, and rfermal guditons e ooagquacy of intamol inonciat carirolsond sk morogemant,
flevewing fne adeguocy of infemal oldil funcion. ncluding the audil cnader approval of the oudlt paon ong i execLUfion;
coveioge and reguency of Intarnod aucit.
Dlseusmon witn infemal auditons of any significont findings ana tollow-up thason,
Reviewing the findings of any misma! nveshigalons by the milsnal auditan info matians whiare thees o suspeds fad froud o imegulanly
of crfoliare of Internal contrel syskerms of o matesal nature arc repoding the mabter ko the Board
m::;iljl;u Nt the rensons for slibstontiol cafaultsin payments fo the shoreholders {In cose of nor-payrmant of declored dividends) ond
crediian
To revlew the funclioning af the Whisfi= Blowse mechonia

Approval of oppalniment of tha CFO (. Ihe whole-fime Finance Direstor or any offver, pamon heading the financzs functior of
alicharging that funclian) after assasdng qualificallans expedence ond background. alc. of Ihe candidala.

Recommandation of tha Polcy an Relatad Pary Transachion.
Carmy aut such ather functions as may be geecifically mfensd 1o the Comrrifes by the Booand af Discton of othet Commiites of
Chrecion

During the financiol yeor 2024-25 Audll Committes met four imes on 21 Moy 2024, 07" August 2024 04" November 2024 and 12"
February 2008, The Hime goo behween wo contecutive mealings wad less Than 120 doyd, on 8 requited under Regulatian 7(2) and
1823y of SEBI [Lnting Oobadtinns and Daclosuws Requirements) Reguations. 2015

Necassaty quonm wos prasant ot ol ihe obove Meotinge

Thia Augll Commities Meatings are attendisd by the Manoaging Directorn Thiel Hranciol OMcer-ond outhorired reprasatiolives of tha
Stalutony Audlitons ond infemal Auditors. The Compeony Secratany octs oo the Secratary to the Audt Committes,

e chairman of the Audlt Cammifies was presant af the Annual Geneial Mesting of Ihe company held on 247 Sepltember 2024
trrougn Video-Conferancing.

Allmamizars of 1he Audlt Committoe have occunting andfinancial managoment knowlooge ond sxpartas.
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Compaosifion ond Atendonca during the year

Asof 317 March 2025, tha Commiltes ¢ orssts of 3 (Thies) membans. ofl are Non-Eacytive Independant Dlirecions. The mambersof Ihe
Aualt Committes have relevant axpadence in linoncial metes an wel as haove acoounting o miated finonclal management
axpertise ond are carsiderad financiglly Ferote s defined in Reguiction 18(1 {c)of the Listng Regliations, The Chairmon of the Auct
Committae has expert knowledge inoccounts & finonce. comarndle lows, and govemance morias

The compasifion of the Audit Committee of the Boord of Directon of the compary ana the datalls of fhe meetings affended by s
memiemn duing e financiol yea: ended 31" March 2025 are as under:

Direclor Calegory Sletus _ Date of Mestings _ ol
21052024 07.08.2024 04112024 12022025 aMendance

M. B Viloyadural NEID Cholrman (AP {AP) (W) (AP |00

NI K, Krishnamaarthy NEID Mambear Wi e V) VG 1¢0

M. Manimagoo

THangeman NEID Mesmibes (V) (VC) (V) ILOA BO

WErattanded Ihough video confarance: (AF] - attarded In pason, LOA-Laove of abence; NA- Nel opgillicabla: Nor-Emculive
independent Diracton INEIL], MarvExacutive Diector (NEDH

Intermal Controls
Ihe company hos o faimal system of iInlemal confal which exrnires opemafional eiectivenss 1o ensute reiability of financiol and
oparational information and all stotulon/egulaioy compiances

2. Nominalion and Remunerafion Commiltes
The Nomination ond Rermunamfion Committea (NGC) has bean constituted by e Baara n complance with the mquiremants of
Section | T8 otthe Companies Act. 2013 ond Regliation | 9 of the SE81 (Lating Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements 2015,

The: brong mrme afreterenceof the Nominohon and Rernunesorion CommiFhes ofe as uncern

o loideniily posons who o quoliied fo becorme dirgcton ong who may be oppointed in sendr manogemant in Qooogonos
with the critana loid down. recommend o Ta Boord their appoiriment ana ramaoval.

o ToCany cutanevalbotion of everny directar sperfommonce,

s otormuloteineoiteiofor detemening quaifications, ponithve atfibutes, and independenco of o diecior

¢ Tormecommend 'o the Board a paley redaling o the eemuranatian for he direclas, kay managerio pasanndg ard ather
employaes,

s Tokdentty pesons whioore quoified to becorme direcion ond who moy be appoiited in senior manogement in ocoordonce
with The criteda laid down. recommena 1o the Board hel appainimeant ana ismeval.

s Toocamy out anevaluchon of every direcion s parfonmanas,

s Ioformuiate the omlerdo o determning qualilic allons, positive arrbues. ond iIndepandanos of o dracioe

Compodifion and Attendance during the yeor _
As ain 31t Mdich 2025, the Nominafion ond Remunamtion Committes conalsts of 3 (Thee) Non-Executive Directorns, of which 2 {(two)
Director are Independent Diecton. Me B Vigysdutol s the Choimpeaman of the Camimitiee.

The charpamsan ol the eommiltes altenced the Annual Ganeal Mesaling of he Company hed an 24ih Saptesniser Y024 to arswees
e thvaraholchen” s

Diuring fha finarcial yeat 2024-25. the Commifhea meton 21" May 2024,07" August, 2024, 04" Novenbee 2024 ond 28" Februcey 2025

Ihe compaittion of the committes ond the detalis of meeings offended by fa memberns aunng he financial year ended 31° March
2126, cre given DElow

Direcior Category Status Date of Mesfings Yol
21.05.2024 07.00.2024  04.11.2024 28022025  olendance

Wi B Vilayadural NEID Chairman {AF) {AF) (V) V) |GG

M1, § Annomalal MED Mesmiber (AR {AP) (VL) (WC) |0

M K, Krishnamoorthy NEID Mesmitar W) (V) (WC) VG 100

(VCrottended Ivough video confatence; (ARy-alfended in penon LOA-Leave of atsence; NA-No! applicatile. Nor-Execulive
independent Disechod INEID), Non-Executive Diector (NED)

Remunerafion Pollcy

Tha Nomination and Rernunanalion Cammities hos odopted a poley wiveh, inferalio. dedls with Iha mannat ol seéacllon of tha Board
ol Directors, Key Managerial Pemonnal ond thelr remuneration. The Poliey B avalioble on the company’s
wabsta{www normodogelotings. com)
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Remuneration of Direclors: .

Casirg I year under renview, iere wos o pacuniary relafionstio of arsactiors balwean the Compary and arry of s Non-
Eecutiva Directar, apart from siting fees, comemisaion (If any) and reimbusement of expenses incumed By therm far s purposs of
attendng the mestings of tha Compory

Cuning tha Finoncial Yaar 2024.25, the Company dict ot oavanca any kyarn o oy of 15 dmchols o componias and firrms in 'which
dirsclom areinferesed,

a) Non-Executive Direclor s compeansafion and disclosures

Trea Non-Exacufive Dirscton, nciuding Ihdecandent Directon, ane paid sitling feas for olfending e mestngs of ha Baard andg
Committees of the Boord. The Compoary pays sitfing fees of T 20.000/- per meeting o the Non-Sxecutive Dltectors fo offending
Meelings of the Board. 210,000/ par masting for atanding tha Audt Cammittes Meating ond ! 10000/ par meating for offanding
Namination and Remunercton Committes. Stokeholoer’ s Belonorsp Committes Masting ang independant Director Meating.

fitting fesa paid 1o 1he Nonfreculive Dirscion duting the FY 212425 are as defoled below!

Direclor's Noma it lacs)
M. 5. Annamoilal .60
N 5. Marseswonan 1,00
M B Viievadunal 220
Mrn. Manimagalol Thangormand 1.400
M K Krishnaimioarthy 220

b}  Managing Director and Execufive Director(s)

e remunsration paid 1o 1he Managing/ Bseculhve Direclarislo! the Comoany & appioved by the Board of Drschats an 1he
recommendatan of the Nominahon ond Remunamticn Commiifae. RBemunaration of the erecutive drachon conssls of o fhed
companant dnd o virobes pedormanca Incentiva. The Nomindtion ond Remuneration Committes mokes on crnuol apioraisal of
me padomnonce of the Monaging) Executive Drecloni) bomed on o detaled parfarmonce evaluction, and recomrands the
companialon payable o tham, within the poiarmelen oppaoved by hashalaholders, 1o the Boord fon el approval

On tha racammendation of Normination and Ssmuneiation Commiltiesin il rresting held on 14" Augus! 2023 ond subject 1o Ihe
approvalof memoen in the s annual garenl meefing held on 75" Saptamber 2025, The Boerd of Dirscios re-desgnated Mr. Ashok
W Kapurt a8 the Manoging Drecta of compary w.e.f 01" Jura, 2022 gng satenced the tenure of sahves fo thme yeans, Lo up 1o 31
May, 2024, at k= remuremtion o detallsd hamsuride

Remuneration, perquisites, allowances and benefts; Amount ()
(N Remunarction;
Batc Poy 250,000 o.m,
i} Peroustes & Alowonces;
HRA/C ompany Accommodolion 50% of the Bosc Pay 1.25. 000 o,
Comveyancs Alowance 15,000 .,
Speciol Allcwonce 0000 D,
Co. 't conmbution o Frovdant Fund (12% onthe bosic of per ing Company 1 noies) 30,000 pm.
Tatal 450,000 p.m.
Leave Troval Alowancs One-rmanih basie pay
Madical raimbursemant of ocheg axpanses [ diowanca for self and family Cnamgnih basic poy
Parsonal Alowonce 1.00,000 p.a

Annual ncrement 10% on the Basic poy

Performance based bonusfincenfive.  On ackisving on ERITDA (Before ofhwt income o infesst Income) of 2 20 Crores - 5 lakks
an tha On EBITDA above ¥ 20 cranes, on adalonat 1% of the ERTDA aodve T 20 crolos

The oggragate voiue of the solory and peiquisites pald for he yeor gnded 31" Mareh 2025 1o M. Asnok K Kapur (Manoging Deeecton)
wos T 6424 100, Bosdos this, Ihe Managing Director s enliled lo gratulty and ancaihmant of lecrea at tha and of tenure of sandca.
Iher agreerment with the Mancgng Disactar s for & perod of 3 yoon fram e date of appoirtment e up to 318 Moy 2026 and the
same can b tarminoted by eliher porty by giving fhiee months’ notice inwriting

Stokeholder's Relofionship Commities
Tha constitulion of e Srolehoider's Relationshin Comimitles rmests with Ihe requitements of Sachion 178 of the Companies Act 2073
ond Reguiation 20of tha 5281 (Listing Chiigations end Disclosure Requirarments), 2015,

The Commifies specifically laoks inta the varlous aspacts of Inlasest of sharahaliders, debeniure holders and ciher security haldar.
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in terms of Section 116 (5) of the Agl ang Regulation 70 of the Lising Ragulations. tha terms of referance of 1he Stokaholdén
Redotiorenip Commilies ore ms urder

o Resoling e grisvancesof Ihe sacurty holder of (He lsted anlily Including compialnisralafed lo ramfernrorsmisson of shames.
norreceiptof annual repor, non-recaipt of declored dividends . isue of naw /dupicote nerificotes, genenal mestings ete.

e Peviewof maawies foken for sffectiye sserciss ot voting rghts by shareholdess

s Review of adherence fo the service stonaards ndopted by The ied entity n respect of vorous services being rendered by the
Registror & Shote Trons!er Agaen!

o Neview ol the votlous msosdres ond iniliolives loken by Ihe kited enllly for mducing the quantum of unciaimesd dividands ond
enmeang hmely eceipt of dividend warants fonnual repords Ataluiory nofices by the shareholgss of the company,
Recommend mainods 1o upgrode the stonadard af tenicas 1o invesion.

s Monitolmplemeniation and complianoe with the Comoany’s Code of Conducl for Prohibilion of intider Trading.

s Comy oul any aiter funchon os i referred oy the Boord from time to lime and for enforced by any statutory notifcation/
omenament mnmﬁﬁ:mnnmnmbﬂﬂpﬂcﬂnh

o Parform such afwer funchions os may De necessary oraporoonate for fhe perfoormancs of 15 outles.

A oy 316t March, 2005, s Shakeholders Relalionship Cammilies compriad of 3 (thies) Ditectars cotmpriing 2 (wi) NorExecullve
ndenandent Diractor, | fona) Exeoutva Direatdn Me, K Klshnamacethy, indapandant Directat & tha Chalman.

Mi K Krishnamcorthy the Chagmon of the Committas altendad ne Annugl SGenergl Masting of the Company heid on 24"
Santambar 2024 thiough video conlarancs fodilfy to ookdrass the sharahtadan ouaras,

Dng tha Mranciel vear 2024-25, 1a Committes mat an 127 Fabruary 2025, The Cammities ovaness he siors of nvaston
grievances, Duing the year, one complaint wias receavea fram e sharenclder which nave been resoved to the satsfacfion of the
complginantsand no investor compiant was pending of the baginning o af me end of the yer

Tha compasiton of tTha Siokeholdens Relaionship Commiffes and the cafais of fne meadings offended by fsmembes during ne
financial year ended 3 1" March 2025 are as under

Direcior Cotegory Slertun Date of Meating % of aitendance
12.02.20258

Mt W Krismrcm oottty MEID Chesrman (VE) [Ea}

M, Adrion K, Ko ED Meamibee CARY 100

M 8 Viiayodurm HEID Mamber (AF) 10

OVC-attendad hrough videa confarencs: (AF) - alendsd in penon, LOA-Laove of abiente NA- Not applcatile. Non-Execuliva
Independant Drectar (INEID), NonExecutive Director (NED), Execufive Diractor (EC)

Name ond designation of Compliance Officer
Dunng the perod under review Me. Meenu Shamao, Company Secrefory wis the Complioncs Officer il 287 June 2024 thersattar Ms,
Mahirma Patican Company Seciatary, wos the Compliance Officen w.el 0 Aug 2024 for complying with the regurermsnis of SEBI

Reppaation:

Iy ccher lo provids &fficksn! pevices to Irvasion. and for spsedy nsdiestal af *he compialnle, the Commiltes hos delsgalsd the
power of opeoving froremission of snares ond ofher matten ko spif up/suc-civiskon ond consoldation of snares. sue of new
Idupicate carfificotes. consalidation and axchionge. toMr. Athak ¥ Kopur, Maroging Ditec tor, M Mahesh Vermio (upfo 077 January,
2005). Mr, Arun Jeinwal (wiet 16" Mareh, 2025) Chief Financlal Officsr and Ms, Méasna Sharma (upta 287 June, 2024), Ma. Mahima
Pofior (w el 07" August, 2024), Cormpary Secialony,

4. Comporate Soclal Responsibliity (CSR) Committee _ o _
The Company hae conslifuted o Componata Socigl Reponshilly (CSR Commites os required unddr Section 135 of the Comparies
Act. 2013 Tna lemiof refarance of tha CER Committaetiroodly compirmes.

a lomeview thaaxsting C5R Pollcy and to mawe | mom comprahansive so ai o indicate fhe aciivitles 1o be underokan by tha
Company cs specifiedin lehasules Vi ol ine Componles Act, 2010,

e [orecommend the omolnt of expanafure 7o be Incurmaed on CHR oonymes,
o Toprovide guidance on varous CH actiyiies o be undartoken by the Company ano fo manitor iis progress,

he Bootd hoo adaopted the TSR Foloy of formulated and recommended oy the C5R Committesa. The some i disployed dn the
witsite of tha Compony (www nomadogeiatings.com). Tho Annual Report on CSR activities for the year 2024-25 fome o part of the
tomid s Beport,

Az on 317 March 2025, the Corporote Secial Responsthity (C55) Committes comipreed of 4 (four) Directors compriging | (one) Non-
Exacutive Ingependsnt Directer. 1 (one) Executhe Diector and 2 (two) Nonfwecutive Nor-independant Director M 5 Annamolod,
Non-Baculive MNan-ndepanden! Dirsclar s Iha Shalman, Me § Annamalal tha Chalrman of the Commiliees altendad 1he Annual
Foneral Masating of the Company held on 247 September 2024
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Diunrg 1he financicl yeor 224-25, the C3F Commites met one fime on 21" May 2084, The composition of the C5R Committes and ihe
cletalls of members’ patclpalion ol the meelings of {he Commities ate csunder

Director Categary Shatus DoteofMeeting %ol atendance
21.05.2024

M-S Annomalal MES Chalirrman (AP} 100

e S Mabesaoran [HED IMambot L 100

M B Visyadural NEID Misrritsa (AP) 100

M. Asholi K. Kapie ED Meatnbie (AF) 00

(VC|-attended through video confererce; (AP)- attended in peison; LOA-Leave of absence, NA-Not applicable; Non-Exacutive Independent
Divector (INEID), Non-Executive Director INED): Executive Director (ED)

5 Risk Manogemeni Commilles
The R Manageman! Cammities of the Compary Fas been consfituled (o frame. imessmant and manloe (e Risk Managemeant

Flan far the Company, The Commiltee iy respaniiois for mviawing The Risk Manogemant Plon ond enduing 13 affactivaneds. Majar
ks identiied by the busaesses and lunclionsaa sytematically addressed through milkgating actions an a conlimgng besls,

Bumirgss Risk Evouction and Manogerent B an angoing process wilhin the orgonésation, The Compary has o robust sk

MCINCgEEnt frarmeswark to ckeriify, rnonttor cred romirmizs (ks o oo icentify Dsiness onporunitie.

IHe abipcvesand scope of s Rsd Maragemaent Commites broadly comprises

e Oversght of sk monogamert perfarmed by The executive mandgemeant:

e Reviowing the Risk policy and fraewetk inline with local legalreguiramants and SEBI guidalines!

s Raviewing rikeand evoluales realment including v afing rmiligallon action: ond awnanhip os pera pra-dafined cycle

s Defining framework for identication. asiessrment. moniliating, and mitigation arc reparing of

e Witrin ifs overal scope o8 aforescid. the Cormmities shall review sk trands, expoaure, potential mpact analyss and relligation
oo,

Durleg tha finarce yeor 2024-25, ihe committes me! on 31" areh 2025

The compeasiion of e Rk Manogaman! Commiles and the detalls of memben” parficipafion of thie maelings of the Commities

I8 cEundar
Director/Members Calegory Slahus Dole of Meseting %ol
31.03.2025 atendance

M. & Annamalal Non-Exacutive Non-indecanciant Dractor Chglrnan (V) j[e1]
Iir. Asrok K. Karur Managing Director Marmber (AF) 10
M. Sudthie K. Shrfvastovo Factany Moncger Marnbat (AP [en]
Mr. 5. Braftachorya &M, Upsallons Sarnoer {LOA) 4]
Mr. V.M Thpaft Managar Manferoncs Nernber (AP) 100

(VCHatended through video conforence AP -atlended in pamor, LOA-Lecye ol alserca: NA-Not applicakble.
{1y Mt VN, Tapathl wias oppainted as the Memiar to the Risk Management Commitles wet 01 012025 and during his teure |
{oane) rerating waces Fsakdl

&, Comploints Committee
The Campany has In piace o palicy for pravention of sexucl harassrrent ot workploce. The polcy of the Company & in ine with fhe
requinsments of the Sesuol Horasiment of Wormen of-fre Workplote (Preverthon, Frohitfion & Redressal) Act. 2013 Al employees
(permonent, controctucn, remponany and troeness) ars covered under this pollicy, An Intemda Comalaints Commiites s in ploce 1o
redress |he cormplaints ieceved regarding seesatharcssment, Thae compoutian of ine Commities lsasundar

DirectorMembers Category Slotus

M. Aghok K. Koour Managing Dirscto Chdirmicn
O, Sushmiz Rojput Pragiding Officer ambe
B, ¥alpana Mishrg Froem NGO Mambs
M Sudhir K. Snovostova Factory hManoger fhemmbey

No complalnt was ecalved by tha Company duing 1he inancial year anded 31" March 2025
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CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

r-oomplionce with Reguialion 1 7(5) of the SEBI (Listing Otlgations ohd Discloture Requirsments], 2015 and he Cormpanied Act, 7313 Tha
Bocrd of T Company hos odopted e Code of Busness Conguct S Etnics{ the S.odae’), The Code B opploatis 1o ol Deston ang Senicr
monagemen! parsaingl of tha Compary. The Cods. while layng cown In datoll the standards of busingss conduct affics andl
govemarce. cerer 1on lhs folowing theme

Ihe Compary s Boord of Cirecton gna Sanior Manogamaeant Personnel are resporaible for conduct of the busingss. and ame commitied fo
salling Ine stenclonds of conduct cantalned in Ik Cade ond for updoting thess slandards, a3 cppropeate, 1o ersure el continuing
fslevancs, slfectveness and relponiivarsss 10 s needs of Inveslon and dll st slakshcdens as ol o eflec! caporaie, legal ond
reguicion developments, All the Scord memben ond Senior Management of the Compory 3 oo March 31, 2025 hove offirmed
complancs with fhelr respective Codes of Conauel in accordanca with Regulation 2603} of SE3I (Lising Obligotions ond . Distiosure
Requirementy Reguialions, 2016, A copy of the Coge has been pul on the Compony's webste iwww narmodagelafines.com). The Code
has bean oirculated 1o Etecton ond Managemant Patsonned, and i complionca s offirmed by thiam ancuolly. A deciomtion signad by
the Manognp Director of the Company to confrm that the Company has adopted o Cage of Conduc! for ite Directon and amploysees of
e Company s given below,

Complance with the Code of Conduct

1 Ashok K. Kaparn, Managng Dlreclor of tha company, hately doclors Iha! ira cormpony hos cdopled a Code of Candue! o i Board
Mermibesand

Sanior Monagament, In tarms of Reguiaion | 7(5) of 368l (Listing Cihkgations ana Dsclosures Requirements) Reguiations, 2015 and the
doord Membbars and Sanler Moragemaent hove affimied compllance with tha sald Cods of Condue! of oard of diregions and sania!
monogarnaril.

Dote: 24" May. 2025 Ashok | Kapur
Hoce : Jobokwr Managing Deactx
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Locafion and fimes whers tha lost threa AGNS ware Riald. whathser any speciohresolubtion possed in the previouws Hres AGM. Tha lash tries
Annual Canenl Meatings of the Company wess hald o undarn

AGM  Yeor Vanue Dale & Time Special Resolufions
61 2021-22 Hotel Narmada Jacksons: Thumday, 22nd Seghamibser None
Soith Civll Linas; 2022 ol 1MXaem
Jobalpr - 482001
47 2023-23  Hotal Normadao fockions: Monody, Z25th Saplamber, i Fe-apooinimenl of M Ashok K Eapuras the
Sauth Civil Lines, 223 o 1200 noon Mcnogng Direclar
Jooalplir - 482001 Iy Appointrant of M 5 Annomalal os Director of the
COMpany.
i) Appontment of Mr 8§ Maneswaran os Diector of
thia Company.

w1 Appontment of M 8 Vieyadua o Independent
Cirecior of the compony.

vl Appontmant of Me: Manimagakai Thangoeman! o
ndopendent Disctor of the company

1;.-,3; l‘DEiE-*I Rotal Narmada Jocksons,  Tuosaday, 24th Seplambe:. Re~zppointrent of M S Maheswaan a8 Nnrkléxecumﬂ

Sorath Chvll Lires 2024 ot 1240 noan Non-independant Diragtor
Jatalpus - 482001

Extraordinary General Meeting: .

No Exfracadinony Genefal Mestng of the members was heid auing tha finoncial year 2024-25.

Postal Bollot

During the yoear anded 31" Manst 2026 no fesolufion was possad fhrouigh postal pallot. Curardly, no rescution B ploposea to be possed
hrough pastal Dalol, Howewver, i required, the seme shall be posed In complance of provisions of the Componias Act 2013, Liting
Regulaiions orany afher coplicable lows.

AGM via Video Conterancing / Other Audio Visual Means

The Mekstry of Coporate Afforn ('MCA" hen vide (4 Gananl Crcular Nes, 142020 datad Apill 8, 2000 and 17/ 2020 astac Apdl 13, 2020, and
subsagient clroulors [isued in this regard, the katest being 972024 doted Septembe 19, 2624, (Tollsctvely relered 10 as "MCA Clreulas® )
nas permittad the cornganiod 10 hold thell Anfuol Genend Meetng CAGRM' through Video Confarence (V) of through Other Audio
Visuol Mears {OVANM'}, without the phiysoal prasencs of he Membens of o commcn venue. In compbancs with the provaons of the
Comoanies Act 2013, ('fhe Act ), the Securites and Excrangs Board of Indio (Lnfing Ohiigations and Declosure Reauirments)
Raguiction, 2015 CSER Lisling Reguiotons’), and Sectelonal Stancord-2 on Ganeal Mealings {557 Buwed by 1hs Inslitulz of Compony
Secraloes of India and MCA Croulan. fre Adth AGM of the Cormpary i belrg heid Hhrough VAWM on Mondday. Sepl, 22, 2005, al
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1100 m, (157}, The proceedings of me AGM ora deemead to ba canducted ot tha Registersd Offica of the Company sifuated ar CARAVER
No, 26, Civil Lines, JABALFUR, Moadhya Frodesh, India. 82001

Remole e-voling and E-vofing af the AGM

The company hoe cnanged evatng and Remote Bvoting Faclities for the shireholdess fo vols an Me resolutions fo be pomsed of ha
drguing AGM, The Compary bes e Monday, 15" Seplember, 2005 o2 the cul-off dote fal datermining sharaholdist enfiisd o
parficipata in the o-vofing orocass. Tha focity for o-vating Wil alio be ovalable ot #ha AGM, and the shossholdas who have not costed
thesn votes by remcteavoling con exerc s thes yotes of e-vating diring AGM

DISCLOSURES
Complionce wilh mandalory requiremants
e Lompany hiag I:::'rrﬁl:llbnd wiitty ol thie apolicabie rcnaaiony redusamatts of The Lisfing Keguikkiions auring fhe fnanoial yeco 202425,

Quartery complianca report on Coparale Goyernances, in the prascribed fatmot, duly signed by the complionce officet s siomitted
regulatly with the Stock B harges whers ire shares of the Campany ane bsfed.

Furthes, in ine with tha 558 (Lsting Obligattons and Disciosure Reguiramants) (THird Amendmant) Regulatioes, the Carmpary has obso Sled
he ntegoted Corponale Govemonces Roportin the formol specilled by SEBI within 1he prescribed fime ines.

Related Pary Transoctions
The Company has formulated o Falicy an matarality of Related Parly Trarsachiont and on dealng with Related Pory Transachions, in
accordance witnRelevant provisans of Companias Act 2015 and Lsting Regulafians,

All Retated Party Trarsoc)|ond o approved by the Audll Commilltes prior 1o the borsaclion. Al homoctions antarad o with Relaied
Parties oi defined undsr the Corpontes Act, 2013 and Raguictions of the SEB (Usting Oblipatont and Disciosue Reguiremenis),
Ragulotions, 2015, during tha financial year were In the ordinary couse of busness and on on om's langth pricing bosn and s per the
rrovidors ol Sacfion |ASof the Companies Ac) 2013,

Thess wers no matetaly sgrificant honscotinns with reloted parties dunng the financial yeor which wers in confiic] with the interest of the
Company. Attertion of the Shorehdlders 5 drawn to the declosures of fransactons with the related parties et oul If Notes an Fnancial
Sictemarns. foming port afthe Anrual Recon

he Policy has been dsciosed on ha wabdile of e Company al wiwiw Noemadogaiolings com,

Strictures and Pencllies

The Compony how compisd with gl the requirements of regulctory authorties. No cithar strictuies of penaitias have besn impasad on ing
Company by Stock Exchonged or e Securhes and Exchange Board of Indio (SEBI or ony stafutory authorty orony matten relaled o
copltal morkats during tha koit three yeans. except durng the yeor 2021-22 here wos o dalay In compliance with Regulation T7(1) of SERI
(Listing Obligotion and Disclosuis Requiternents), Regulalion. 2015, for which canally wos Imposed on fhe company, the same was mods
good onl9 Novernber 2021

CEQ & MD/CFO Ceriification _

The CEC & MD and 1ha CFO have =sued csrfificate pumaan| o the provisions of Regulaban | 1E) SR (Lsling Chiigatiors and Distlosus
Raguipamands), 2016 carlitying that tha financial datements do not contoin ary unhus staledmenl, dnd hese Batements represant o us
ond fairview of 1he Cormpony s offors. The sold carfificsio s armaxed and forms part of the Annual Report.

Vigil Mechanism,/ Whistle Biowar Policy

ihe Compony bedieves in conducting M affain in o 1o ang arsporent manner by adopting tha highest siandards of prafessionallsm,
honasty, infegrity and sthical behovior Ay actus or polenliol vialotion of thess pdnciples and fhe Compony s Code of Concluct for
employeaswouldbe amatier of senots cohcen for The Compary.

Empldysas hove o mold and resporsitidity in poirfing out tuch violatond This Whishe Blower Policy b larmulatad 1o provide g ey
anviranmen| and lo ancowogs amoiayees of fhe Company 1o repart unathical, unlawiul orimgrapar practices, ocks oracivilies In he
Company and fo prohitr manogeral pemannel from tokng any odverss pasonne action ogoing hose emoioypes whio repor much
practiced in good fofn ond no penonne hod been donicd occens 10 the Auct Commitfes,

The Commetten affirms el ond comoiaint hos besn secenved unaer the WhinflieBiowear FolcyNVigl Mecnarism during the veor undor
S s b heing resolvea

Code lor Prevention of Insider Trading proctices

A4 par SEBI (Profilelion of Irsicker Trading) Reguintions. 2015 the Company had adopted Ihae Code of Conduct foe Pravantion of Insosr
fraging and Code of Corparote Discioswre Proctices (which ncludas Polcy an Delermination of Legifimate Purpose), Al the Directars,
amployens and Mg patel such a audRon. comulfants. oft. who could have ococen o the unpubiehad prce wenaitye nformation
of the Company are govermsd by tha said Code.

The Code of Conduct for Freyenton of Inpdes Troding lays down gudelines advising the Management, staff and ather conneched persang,
on preceduss (o bs toliowed and disclonns 1o e mods by them wiille decling with ihs shares of 1he Compary, and whie honding any
Unpublished Plce Sarsiiva Informalion, coutloning tham of the consequancas of vidlations. The Compoany Sacmlary & resporsible Tor
mplermentarion of the Code,

The iading window i closed duting the fime of decloration of results and on e cccwrmnce of any material events as car the code, The
Codeo! Carparate Disclosum Proclicad 4 hogled on Ihe'wabille of the Compaty ond con ba ascasssd ol wew. noimodagsiotines. com.

Al Directon ond designated employees hove confimed complorca with the Code.
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During the yaar under reviaw the Audit Cormmittes has reviewed Ihe complionce witn the provision of the SEBl insaar Tiading Reguictions
and hesverled hal Ihs spslems got inl=nalcontrols ore odaquote ond opsicling effec valy,

Legal Compliance Reparling
Thie Boorg of Drecton reviaws In Qatol, on oguortsrly boss, the regort of complionce wiin respact fo ol iows and reguichions copiicabie o
ne Company.

Thie Company hos developad  very comprehasnsive Legal Complicnce Systerm. Any non-compliiance i sedously foken up by the Board,
with fisation of accourtabiity ond eporting of steps takan tor rectifooton of nor-compiiance.

Recommaendafions of Commifteels) of the Boord of Direchons
Diuting thes year, all recofmmandotions oft Committea(s) of the Bodrd of Dirscton, which am mandatodiy requibed, were acceptad by the
oo

Meons of Communicalion

Mhe auartary, nattyaanty and yaarly inancial redulm of the Company are sent to Stock Exehanges immadiotaly afta they are-opprovid by
treBoord, The quorfardy / anruol results o genemlly pubished inal least ane English sguags nofional daily newspoper cimulofing in the
whites of setstanticlly the whols of Indla (Financial Espress [ Hitavoda) and in one reglonal aally newsoaper alreulating I Madbya Pradesn
wchcs, Novihoia!, Deshioardadhy, Dainlk Shoskor, Nol Daanbya and Patrika,

Pursuant to fhe MCA cieulans ana SEBI Cliouior, fhe Annuol Repo fol FY 2024-28 contalning fhe Nofice of AGM wassan Ihroughemal fo ol
these Mambiars whose email 105 were tegliteted with the Campony/ Depository Partic ipants

Annucl tepors, quortady readlty, sharsholding pattem. nolloes, press release sfock axchonge discinsres and ot impoftant intormation
of the Cornpony ate aiso posted on thie 858 wabisdts and the Company swabsite wiww normaogogoloiings com,

Monagamen! Discusson ond Andlyis Repor forms port of the Annual Report,

Communication related lo Dividends and updafion of records
The Company iBsues venpus communication sech o8 reminder ietten o shomehalden tor clalirming unclomed dvidends, updotion on PAN,
Bomk datals, signaturs. and ofter dalols. ond nalice bafam fransfaring shores aralinbke 1o fransfer 1o EPF

BSE Corporate Complionca & Listing Centra (the Lisling Cenlra’)

B3E & Listing Centia 5 g wab-bosad gppication designed for cormporates. Al patdodoal complancs Mings ke sharehokding paitenm,
cotparate Sovemonce repot. rmediarelsases, amaong oftie are alio flled eechoncally on thelisting Centra

5EB| Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investol complaints ore processed in o centrised web-bosed complaints redms systerm. The sakent features of s systam ore
Centroled dotabase of all complaints, onlihe upload of Action Taken Reparts (ATRS) by concemed companies and online viewing by
invesion Of aoions taken on Ine complaint and fscurman! STams.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION

i} Compary Regshalion Delals The Compony 16 régisiarea in e STofe of Madhva Pradesh, India, The Corporate Iﬁanﬂl‘{r
Number (CINjafatted fo the Campany by fhe Minstry of Conporate Affols (MCA)
L24111MP1961PLCD 16023

{iy  &d" Apnual Genarol Meafing Mondiay . 22 Sepfempar 2025 af 1 1:00am, _
Venua: Ratel Narmado Jacksans, South Chl Lines. Jobaipur-48200)
(i} Fnonciol Yeor) Apxil 1 to Morch 31
V) Frorciol Calendor 2074-25 First Ghuarier Resulls 07" Aupust P24
Sacond Suarter Results 04" Novermiber, 2024
Thind Guariar Rasdts 12" Fabruany 2025
[esLilts fo (e quoter, and
Annucl Ragutts tor fna yoor
anding ar 31" Mareh. 2025 247 May 2025
v Cut-off dote: 15" September 2025
(W) Dividard poyment date Dividand og recormmansiad by the Boord of Dimcfan, # opproved of tha Annuol Senesal

Meefing wil be pod after 237 Saptemnber 2025 1o those shoreholdess whoss nomes oppeo)
N he Company's Rageler of Mambbas on 15" Septermbar 2025

(W) Lsting of Shares ond olher Secunilies: Bombary Slock Exchongs Limitad (BSE) Prkase Jesiesbhoy Towars Dalol Streat. Mumina-01
) SockCodae Sarip Code; Rombay Block Exchange (BSE) *526737" Company Syrmbal: SHAWSELTIN

(x) Shock Market Dala The manindy high/low markat pricss ol the shares during the yeor 2004-25 af Tre Bombey
Stock Exchanges Lmited (BSE) were as undef (¥ per shars)
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Month High Price Low Pnce Trading Volume
A 414,70 S27.80 d3R15
) May-24 43480 365 .55 3691
Jurr24 407 00 5200 4wl
Juk24 404.95 S780 45588
Alg-24 41500 020 R
Sep-2d 41400 L 125666
Ocr-24 388,95 330,00 67440
o2 26600 332.65 53396
- Dac-24 40940 360,00 235615
Jorv 24 395,95 335,00 &abE 1
Fob25. 3795 0100 g
hoe-25 8270 e Js Sazaq
(Source BSE websita)
s Shore price performance compared with brood based
BSE
Compary's Shoes Price As on 1042004 259,90
Agor 31 032025 332.00
BEE Sormex Ason 1042024 7396842
“Ason 31082025 77.450,49
Changea 24.56%

« Pedormance of Share price in comparison fo the B2E Sensex

Shock Priice (M)
g B

Stock Price Vs Sensex Movement

HiHH

<+ 1M

3 4 5 & 7T B % W N
—h— T FreehE
- B Nrear

Seniex

Note | Monihily ¢lotng ploes Vs sorsey

s Reglstrar & Share Transfer Agants
<8 Monogemant Savices Pul. Lid
lesenl Caird Sy oo
20, 8r R N Mulhedges Noad,

KON KATA - FO0000

Tl Mio | 033-401 7 4700
Ermol ; itofcme com,
Wabsts - www. chmg.com
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s Dividand declared on equity shora for the last five years

Year Rale of Dividend Pai equlty share Dividend Payoul Tlocs)
01920 0% 10.00 6029t
200021 100% 10,00 L0496
il 0% 000 604 94
2022-23 iIntenm Dividend ang

Final Dividend poid) 1000% 10000 604859
2324 100% 10.00 e 9%

« Dalolls of Public Funding ﬂlﬂdnﬂ Intha last fhiee yoears
The Campany hos net obitmined ony putilic fundng in fhe lasf fvee yeon

s Shoretranster syslem
in termrs of Reguation 4001 of 5681 Latng Reguiations, os amended Niom fime bo Tme, sacumes can be honsfemad oty In
demateralized tom with affec! from Aprl 1, 2018, excepl in cose of requat recelved for frarsméssion or fronsposlion & tecunties.
Membam holding thores in physical form ors requested to comsider converting thel nioldings 1o dematesalzed fom. Tronstam of
sty shorss in slactronic form are affec ted through the denaifores with no invalasmant of e Campany.

» Demoteralizafion of Shares-Process

With ntact heem Aonl 01, 2019 586) hos batred phwsical Horsier of shares of lisfe companies and mandated rransiers only hrough
chamat, However, invesion o nol bamed from holding shares in physical form, W requett sharenoidsn whose shiares ore in physcal
mode fo dematerolie thelr shares. Sharehoiders holding shares in dematenolizea mode have been requested to regter helt emanl
addrats, bank accaun! defails and mobile number with |her depostory porficipants, Those holding shoras in physical rmiode nava
bean requarted to furmish thol Parmanent Account Numbar (FAN), amall addrest, bank aocount detolt and mobile numtsat with tha
Compary' s Regetmar and Share Trangtar Agan! (RTA), of fMoftcomsl.com. Jpdatng ol the eevant information will archls
sharaholtan o tecale dividends and commuricatinns antims

Farcanvenancaol sharshoiden, the ploces of gatling ihe shore: demolericized n given hersundar!

al  Dernot oocount shoula be openad with o Dapost ory Participant (GP),

B Sharehoiden should submt the Demateralzaton Reques! Form (DEF) along with shars caniticales in arfginal. fo thel DR,
c) DPwil process me OWF ond wil geneate a Dematanolization Reguest Number (DRN)

d)  OF wil submit the DRF and arlgindl share cemfficates to fhe Reghtrar and Trarsisr Agents (RTA), which & C, B Maonogement
Sardioes Pyt Lig '

a) HIAWE ploces tha ORF ana confinm o rejec] he mguest 1o OF  depoaifones.

f1  Upoh confimation of tequest, the snoreholder Wil gel cradl! of e aguivoisnl numbe of shoras In hlk demat ocoousl
moirtained with tha DR

s« Lisling Fees
Anruzal Gsting toes for tha year 2024-25 hove been poid to 1he Bombay Stock Exihonge Umited (BSE) whers tha wousties of tha

Compary arelfited,

Incompliance with the Usling Reguiofions /SEBI Guidelines:

s A Pctcing Company Secretany camas out the Reconcliation of Share Copltal Audit as mandaled by SEBL and reports on tha
meongillation of total esied ond isted Coplttal with faf of tolal shore copita! admilted /heid in gematenalizad fomn wilth NSDL and
COA and those held In physical torm. Thes guditis camad out on & quartery basis ond me report thaneot & suomithed fo the Stock
Exchunge. whede the Compary's shares one isted and kaso ploced befors e Eoard.

s Sharsholding poftern and fnonciol resui (auartedy) and fhe Annugr Reportrlannuoliyl ore being uploodes on
www listing bseindla.com

s A PFraclieng Company Secretory. comiag dut a Dus Diigence suriay, pardaining 1o shore tronsfens. ansmissions, eft. annually ond
ngcesary cartificate o thet affect & susd and Ihe sams 8 Red with e Stock Bxehangst n compliance with #Regulatian 200¥) of
T SEBI {Listing Olligotiors and Dlsgiosurs Reguiements) 2015

Fomittedw.e 127 Dacermdiorn, 2024 viche SEEHLODR) third Amengmenty Reguations, 2024
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«  Dishibution of Showsholding

Range (No. of shares) Shareholden Equily Shaies
Nos % lo Total Nos. % to Totol

Shareholdars shares
Lipta 500 +248 24.26 Ad4974 .36
501-1000 238 ol 160/07 3.07
1001 -2000 126 1.30 147054 243
20013000 4 041 22050 0a1
300! -4000 4 0,18 ARAZT 021
A0 -5000 [ ¥ 016 24934 0.91
500 1=10000 24 034 161493 3.00
1000 | andatacva a0 0.26 AR50 .07
Total mnm 100.00 A049587 100.00

s Demaleralisalion of shares as on 315t March, 2024

Category No. Shores ! %ﬂ;;;f;l |

Demaof 4014715 99,42 '

PRy 34R77 [ =8

Tatal 6049587 100
[ha vl
1= bt

s Shoreholding pattein of the company as on 31s! March, 2025

Category Nool  No.ofshares % holding
shareholders
Mromotens 2 ASSTARD 75.00% S = S——
* (1 4]

NRis [ B 0.64% e /
trudicn insttutiors 1 350 0.01% ' ;ffT.n:r! C1EY
Nafionained Sanks Al 0 L% Livitad) Lin i
Domestic Companias 42 B3204 |36% Fanarsss 1004

Domezbe Compane
Limitad Liability Partnacshin 3 7 0.00% 1308
Public Shareholdar 1254 | 0792 21.65% """’“c'f;: Ha
Diirec tors/ Relathves 1 1050 007% M"“ﬂ'ﬁ“ﬂ"
EDF ! 24334 LA Nl B 24
HUF 154 Ll 0.90% N
Cloaring Comaornation ] |50 0.00% Li i
Trusts | A 00
Total 7560 S49587 100,00

Note:Uifterence In = Number of Sharsholders In dishibulion of sharshalding ond sharsboling pattern due o merging of
Snareholdes as per PAN

« PRegistered Office:
"Copows' Roam Mo, 28

15'Civil Lini2a, Jobolpur-4B2001 (M P.) Ph. (0761) 2678427

s«  Addrass for Comespondence To the Company:
Narmoda Gedahines Limihed
28 Corovs. 15 Civl Unes. PO Box Na 91, Jabalpur-482001

Te the Regishor & Shome fransier Agenis:

L8, Manageament sanices PvT, Lid

Hasal Court Sth fiooe 20 5ir B N Mukenes Road {0LKATA - 70001
Tl N 033-2011 6700

Ermal tadleksnsl com., Wabsita: www chmat.com

e Plant Lecalion
Moargan). Bhotaghet Rood, Jabclipur, M7,
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¢  Transter of Uncloimed amounts fo investor Educotion and Protection Fund
As requited under Sections 124 and 125 of 1he Companies Act, 2013, all uncaimed/urpald dividena, debaniue nfatest as well o
prncipal amount of debeniures gsof March 31 2025 remaining unpald or unclaimed for o penod af seven yean from the date they
bacome dus for payment. hove been fonséemed o the Investor Edocotion & Protection Fund (EPF) estoblished by 1hs Cantrol
Soyermment.

The Irvasion o advised fo clalm e unencoshed egully dyvidand money for the years 701718 to 2003-74 lying In e ungloimad
accountsofthe Compony before the due dates (os indicatsd in the Nates to the Matice),

Diiting the financial year 2024-25. the Camprany has transtesrad fo the Irvestar Education and Protectian Fund, uncliaimed divicenids
s detalled hévaundar

Equity Shwre Unciaimad Divicend 2016-17: 2 1 85004/

o Transter of Equity Shareste Invesior Educalion and Probection Fund

In teoms of Saction 124 (8) of the Comparies Act. 2013 rogd with Rule & of e Invesiol Edunalion and Profection Fund Authorly
{Accounfing, Audit, Trarster and Retund; Rules. 2016, (os cmenced from fime to fime) shares on which dvidend hos not been paid o
cloimed by o shorehoider for a parlod of seven comedutive yeats o mote shall be credlled to 1ne Demat Account of Investor
Educalion and Prataction Fund [IEPE) within o pariad of thdy days of st shores becorring due to e so lransfarad. Upan rarster af
such shares, all banafit (ke bonuses, afc.). il any, occrungon such shanes shall alio be credited fo such a Demat Account onc the
volng fights on such tharsa shall remaln frazen 18 the dghitul ownee ciaims the shores. Shanes which are transferred 10 the Camal
Account al IFFF can be claimed bock by the sharmhoddar from B9 by fallewing the - procecure prescribed urder the a'oressid nules.
Thetefdre, tisin the rietest ol shashaldes 1o 1sgulary clalm the dividends daclorad by the Cormpany.

Durirg the financlal yesr T50 equity thares of the Company were frarsfemed fo the (EFF, Releyont detais of such shares s avalllibile on
the wablite of the Compary www. naemodagalotines com

s Coedificale froma Company Secretary regarding disqualification of Direclors
The Secratorial Audrors of tha Compeny Cr. Asim Kumaor Cnottopodnyay nove issved o cenificote haf none of the Directors on the
Baond of the Company hinde besn dabomsd o disqualifiea from being appainted ar contimdnn as Drecton of Caompandas by tha

Board/Ministry of Corpatare AHoirs of any such stalutory outhornty, The some b annexed hesswith os a partof this repor.

¢ Ceiificole on Corporole Govemance
Complicnoe cetilicate from D Asdm Kumar Chattopadhyay. Aoecticing Company Seciélaty, canfiming complance with the
coniition: of Coporate Govarancs o3 shipulcted undes Schiduka ' of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and Discionurs Requiremenis),
fegulohons, 2015, a aftacted to the Direcion’ Repod forming nart of ths Annuo Repor.

» CEO/CFOCerfificale
Tha Manoging Direcior ond tte Chist financiol Officer provide annual celfication an the inancial reparting ond Inlemal contmals o
thie Board in Tenrs of Regulation 17(8) of fhe SEE (Livting Obilgofions and Diclcewrs Requirarmants). Reguiations. 2015, The Whale-Time
Director and tha person heading he Accounts funclion olio oivo quaiterly catification on tha fngnclo! resus while placng the
firancial mesults belore the Boord in ferms of Reguotion 332 of the SERI (Usfing Obligations ond Disclosyre Requirsmants),
Regulations, 2015, The arnudl cerfficate for the inancial vedr anded 37 March 2025, given by the Managing Directon anid Chief
Financial Cilicear of Me Company s pubishad hemounoo:;
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[}
This Bogind of Duechork Marmiodd Golafines Ld. Jabalplr

Sub: Complance Cestifigote for the year ended 316 March 2025 o8 per Regulation 17(8) of the SEB (Listing Coligations ond
Diclowre Requiramants), Regulations 2015,

Sir.
Pursuicint o Regulialion 17(8) of SEM (Lsling Dbligalions ana Dlsclosure Requirements), Pegulations, 2015, we haneby cerfify thal 1o
miebest of curnowledge ond bt
A Tha!we have reviewead financie statements and Ine casn fliow satemant Tor tha vear and thol 1o the besl of cur knowladge
andoslaf;
1. the=e statemants do not contaln any matesally unirue stofamen® o omit any rmafesal foct o contain stotements that
might ba rresigoding,

2. thesa storements fogether presant o Tiuo ong far view of the company s offars ond arg n compliance with cxshng
accountngsiondaas. apeicable lows and regulations

B That tothe best of our knowlectge and belket, no rorsactons vere entered into by he company durlng the yeor which are
fraudulent, liesgal o violatve of the company’ sooos of conduct.

C Thet we ocoeot responsdty for astabsning and mantaining Infema: confronm for fincncl repormng ond fho! we hove
evoluated fe effechivensss of memal control systemy of me company pertaining to finonciol reporting and we have
dsclosad o the oudiion and ihe Audil Commities, dalicisnclss in the design o ooscalion of suen inlemal contral, 11 ary, of
which we are awareana e stecs we have token or propose o foka fo ectify Ihesa deficlencies.

0 Thatwa have indiccted fo tha auditornand the Audit committedq:
1 Eis;ril'imm changes inintemal contrl ovet francial reparting during fhe yeas, IFary,

2 Sgnifican! chionges in accouniing colicies dusing the yeor I any, and hat ihe sarme hove been disciomad inthe noles o
the fincacialstotementy and '

3. Instonces of sgndficant freuds of which we hove become owore ang the invohement theeen. 4 ony, of fhe moncgement
ot onemployee Ravinga significont role in the comipany's intenol canfrol system oves financicl reparfing

Thamridng oL

Sdf- Sclf-

Ashok K. Kopur Arun Jalswal
Managing Director Crvat Financed Oficer
Fioca Jobalpur

Dare: 24" May, 2025

Onbanhall of tha Boord of Cirectos

5. Annamaiol Ashok K Kapur
Chairman Managing Director
Piacs Jattlpur

Date: 137 August 2025
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 1SSSUED UNDER SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

To The Members of Narmada Gelalines Limited

| hove adaminsd the complionce of e condiions of Coiporate Govemoance by Natmoda Gelofines Umiad (CIN
L2411 TP 198 1 PLCOHS023) § the Company’) for the vear ended on 3 18 March 2025. ossmpulatad in The Secuifias and Exchanga Boord of
naia (Lisfing Ooligations And Daciosure Requremeants) Regulcfions. 2015 ond The Securifies and Exchange Boord of Indie (ifing

Ohligations And Disclosrs Requirsments) (Amendmean! ) Regulafiors. 2018 and olher Arrendment thesenl [hesingfter coliecively
refened o os " LEting Reguiations™).

The compionca of the candltions of Corporate Govarmance & the mspansibilily of the marapement. My sxamiralion wos imdled o raviaw
of procedurss and Implementation trermal, adopled by the Company lor emuing (ke complionce of the conditions of Companats
ovemanca: s nalthonan audit nor an axoression of cpesion on fra fmonchal sfatomants of the Company,

In rmy pinion ang i he best of my nfermaticn and goccording 10 the esplanctiprs g]«ran o e, ond the lepreseniofions made by Ihe
Olractom and Ine management. | cadify that the Company hes complied with the condifions of Comannte Governonce as stipuated in
Listing Regulations guingthe yearanded 3 | stMorch 2025,

| state that such camploncs is noalther on chtlirance g to fhe ftues vability of the Campany norof the efficlency or effectvenns with
which themanogemant has conductad the affaln of the Camparny.

Dr. Asirn Kumar Chatlepadhyay
FCS Mo, 2303, CPES0

PiMNo. -63/5/2025

Deate 20" Apil 2025

LICEN - FOCRZAGIGEEN0 154988

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE REGARDING DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant o Regulafion 3413) and Schadule V Para C clouse {1030 of SEB! (Lisling Obligafions and Disclosurs Reguiremants) Regulations, 2015)

Tha Members,
Narmada Ealofines Umited, Cora, Reom No, 28,
15 CM] Lnes, Jobalpur - 482 D0

| havi examined tha relevon| reglitels, records, forms retims and cleciomses recaked rom the Dirsclors o Nomvoeda Gelalines Limited
(CI 1241 1 IMP 1961 PLCO16023) and having registerad office ot Carave, Roam Mo. 28, |5 Civll Lines, Jaoalpur - 482001 (hersinafter rsfamad
to of “the Cornpany” § prociucad batore me by the Compony for the purpesa of msuing this Cemifoots. m occordance with Regulation
340 ared Schadule V Pora C elouss (100 ) of SEB| Usting Ouligations and Disclosure Requismeants) Regulations. 2015

iy apirion and fo the best ol my informotion ond occording o 1he venficalions (Including Direc tors idendiflcaticn Murmber (DIN]) shahus

of the parial www.meo gy in of consdsrad necassary and explanations fumished o ma by e Compary and ifs officens, | rerety caily
trial none af the Dlrectors on fhe Boord of the Compony o sfoted balow as on the Ananciol Yeor endad 3'st March, 2025 rod been
debared ar deaualifind from baing appoinied o continuing o Dirsctos ol me Compoanie by 1he SER, MCA or ary auch ofbar Statutony
Autranty,

5t.No, DN Name Dlﬂgnuihn Dale of Appointment
[ QETeTe 6 Koilcaamn Krishnamoornhy Dirgcron 7110897202
3 001 26807 Ashiok Kumar Kaput Managing Diractor 01/04/2009
4 00001381 Annomota Sankaringrm Drsctor 14/07/2053
5 00143046 Sanuaringarm Mahssworon Drettor 14/07/2023
4 03506 Ralosubramanan Vigvoours 'Ii'n_rﬁf;h.‘n ‘ﬁifﬁi‘:
7 10224123 h‘ft:lnmlagml Tl'rr:r-gumum Cractod 1400 2023

Ennuring ther eligiziity tor appointment / camtnuty of every diector an e Board Is respanaiblliy of the Maragement of the Company. My
fesporsiiliily 14 1o @xpres an opinion based anmy verfication: Thiscadificata nallhar on gsurance i fo the future viabililty of the Comgany
o of the efficiency o effacivanas win which the monagement hos conduciad the aflams of the Company

Dr. Asim Kumaor Chattopadhyay
FCS5MNo. 2303, CP880
NG, -A3 75,2025

Diote : 207 Api 2025
UEHN : FDOZ3CAGO00 1 56903
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Independan! Auditars Repod
To the Memboers of
Narmaoda Gelalines Limiled

Raport onthe Audit of Sondolona Finoncicl Siatamants

Opinian

We hove audifed the accompaenying standolone financial sialements of Naemada Gesalines Limifod (Thie Comipony™), whicn compeises
of Boonce Sheat as al March 31, 2025, the Stalemant of Profil and Less (nchuding Other Camprahanshe Incoms), the Statement of
Changes inEguity ard the Stamament of Cash Fiows for the year then anded. and notes 1o the stondaona financial siotements reluding o
smmary of matarial ot courting policlas ond olher explianatory information. '

In our epinlon and fo the best of our infermation and according o fne explonalions given to us, the cicresald siondalona financial
statements glve thainformalion requiked by Ihe Companies Ach. 2013 (the Act) in the monnerso requised and give a frue and ol view in
conformily with tha Indian Accounting Standandd phssctibsad urided Sachioh 133 of Ihe ACt mod with Companies (Indan Accounting
Stanciarcs) Rules, 2015, s amended, ('Ind AZ") and other accourding principlac ganercly cccepted in incla, of the stare of affals of fhe
Company as ot March 3 1, 2025, its profit fincluding ofher compreherive income), chongas inegutty and its cash Hlows fol the yeor endied
ohthat dola

Bosis for Opinion

We corducted our aud!t inaccordance with the Standords on Auciting (5As) speciied Under seclion 14301Chof the ACt Durresponsiblities
Jrdder ihose Sfondoros are lurhar descsbad I fhe Audifne's Resporsibiltias foe tha Audlt of he Anancial Sfotements sacion of ourreport,
We ore indapendent of the Company in accoidance with the Code of Efhics ksued by the lnsfitute of Chartersd Accountonts of indin
(AN together with 1ha ethical requlisments thaf are refsvant o our gudi) of the standalone inonc of staterments under the provisions of
e Act anc the Rubas maades thersundcan and we hawe lufiled our ather albcal resporsioliies in accordance with Ihese requirermen’s and
tha Code of Efhica.

We biskeve thar the oudit ayiﬁﬂru:e we have ootained b sutiiclent ong spesoprote to provide o bodis for our audt oplnkan on the
stundalons financiol totements
Kay Audit mattern

Kay oualt matters are those mertens that. in our professional judgment, were of most significance n our oudit of the standalone financial
statements ol e cunenl parod, Weshove delermined thal thers e na kay oudit maties 1o communicatain out oo

infesrmiction Ot Inan 1he Slancalons Financial Siatamants and Auditor's mpod eson

The Commary's Board of Direction & resporsibia lor the other nformation. The Gl nformation compes |he nformotion neludea in the
Soord's Repart Including Annaxures 10 the Boord repon bul does nal inciude the stondaiones financicd sfatarmants and ou oudibors repod
theraon, Tha reparts are expectad (o be rmoda avolioble o ws affer he dataof ths auditor's report,

Qur opinlon on fve slondelone financil statements does nal cover ine oiner Infermation ara we do nol expres any form of cssuance
conciugion thereon,

N connection with our audit of e standalone fnancial statements, our resporsibliity & to read the othar mtarmation and, i dong o
condaar whamat ihe oihe information s matenally meansatant with the stonoaione froncial sioiemens of our krowledge obiairsd
aurnp ibe course of our audil or otherwise ansean o B matérnially missiotea.

When we read the report, ifwe concluds that thers 1 o matenial misstatemant tharan. we are maquired to communicate The momsar o
o chirged with guvernence

Maonogamaent responsibilities for tha Stondalons Anoncial Slalements

he Campany &Board of Chacton s responaible tor the matten stated in Saction 134(5) of the Act with respec! 1o the preparationof fhese
stondalone finonciol statamants that ghve a hue ond fof vew of e finoncd podiion, Mnancil patommance (iIncludng olhar
comprEtengyve iIncome). changes i equiy and cash flows of the Compiany in accordance with Ihe accourtng principles genssally
gctepled in India, inchuding the Accounting Standanh specified undsr Section 133 of the Act This reshonsallity alss nckades
mentahance of odequate accounting reconds i accomanca with thi provisions of the Act for safaguarding of The asset of ine
Comeany and for preventing ond detechng frouds and other iregulanties: selsction and applcation of opproprate accounting oollcies:
migking judgristis ond estimotas that are regsanobile and prudent. ohd dasign, implamanlation ond montenonce of adeguots intemal
financial contint, thot wens operoting afeciively foransuring ihe accuracy ana completeness of theac counfing reconds, relevant 1o fhe
preporation and pressniation of e stancalone nanciol datemants that g o hue ond ol vew and are lee from materal
missfatemant, whemardiug 1o fraud of eror.

n prepanng the standalone financiol statements. monogamant ls responsiie for assasting the Company's ablltty to continue a5 a going
concer. disclosing. o1 oppicable. matters relnted fo going concemn and wing the going conceam basis of accounting. unkass
managermsni allher iIntends fo iquidate the Comparny ot to cedss openaticns, o has no realistic aflermative butto da so.

The Boord of Directons cre albo rasponsible for ovarsesing the Company s tinancicd reporting proces

Auditor s Responsibllifies for the Audit of the Slandalone Financial Stalements

Our objectivet are o oirtdin reasonoble ossurance-aboul whsthar ke slondalone inonclal statemeanh as o whole are ee fommateral
misstatemant, whather due o froud of emor, ond fo Bsue anauditor’s ;epon that includes our ppinian. Resonable cseaancs k ahgh lavel
of asurance. butlsnot o guarantes Twat an auait canouctsd in accordance wim 5As wil always doetect a matenal misstatemant when i
endsts. Misstotements conomse fiom iaud o error and ars-Considared matedol I, ndvidually of in ha cggregale. hey could reconably be
expeciad oinfuencs thaeconormic daciaon of usecs faken on the boss of thess slandalona financial siatemeants
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Aspart of onoudil in accordance with SAs, we exeise prcfessional jucigrnen| and mainaln profesgonal kapdictim throughaul Ihe oudd),
We also.

o iclentity and ostess e ik of moterdal misstarement of the standolone itanc ol stofements. whether due to froud of emor, deskgnand
parform audit procedured responsiva io fnosa fgky. and abion oud!t evidence that k sufficiant and oporoprate fo provide obasis *of
our cpinion. The fisk of not detecting a motersal misstatement resulling from froud = higher than for one resulting from etror, oz froud
may involye coasion, faegary, Infentional cmissions. marspressnianon, o The ovenide of miemal confral

o Oolomn onurdsmianding of infemal control isisvant to the audlt n order 1o design audlt procedures thal ore appropate in 1he
cheumstorices, Uncar Section TAME0) of he Aot we are aiso responsible o sxpeassing our apinkon on whatne i Comparny hos
coequate irtemal financiol contros syatem in place and tne opesating effectivenens of wch confios,

s Evoluote the oppropdotentess of ncoounting oolices used and thie reasonacieness of oocounting estimares ond related dsciosres
miade oy tho managamant.

¢ Conclde on the oppropriatensss of monagemant’s wsa of the polng concarm basls of oocounling and. based on (e cuwdl
evidarce oblained, whether a maferinl uncetainty avsts reloted 1o events or conditons that may cos sigrificant doubt an he
sty s ability o confinue g8 o going concerm It we conclude That o matesdol uncertamty earty, we are reguires fo drow otfentionn
our gudior'srepor fo the related dgsclosures in the stfondalone financlal statements or. f such disciasuras ore Inodaquate, o modity
ol opirkan, Our conclusons ore based an the auditevicerze obtolhed up to the date of ourcuditor s rexpart, Honwenve, fufurne aventy
of condiliors may couse tha Campany 1o cadee 10 Conlinue 450 gong contatn.

o Evonote ne overal presentation, stucture and cortant of fhe standaione finonclo stotements. INCucing e declosses. and
whather the thondolors financlal thatements reprasent e LNOeslying Yorschons and eventt in & manner that achisves o
peEsEntdion.

Materaity is the mognituds of mistatements n the standalone finoncial satemans that ndividually o in oggregotes makes It prababks
el fheeconomic decikions of o regsanably nowleggeabia war of Ihe standaions firarcial solaman|s may be influencad, We comldar
auantiaiive maledality ond ausdiofive factan in [ planning e icaps of aur audi wotk andin evaluoting he @sulls of ourwork and (i) 1o
avoiyota tha eftect of oy idantiled msstetamaentsin tha standalions financlal statermeants

Wi communicate with Inese chorged wih govermanca regarding, among olhes matters, the plonned scops and timing of the audit ond
sgnificant oudit findings. Including any sgnificont deficlencies Inintamal confralthat we identify durlng curoud,

We aiso orovide ihose chamgeo with govenance with a slatement thal we have complied with relevant efhical requiremants regarding
nospendence. and o cammunicate with them af migtionshine and ofmher motens mot moy recsanobly Be thaught 1o bear on ol
ndapendarice andwhors oppiicoble, related wafeguands

From the matters commiumcates with those charged wilh gevemanca. we detarmine (hose malters trat weare of most sgrificance inihe
oudi ol fhe slandalons financal statements of ke curent perod and am, hemelare, the key aud! mattes. We deserlbe ihese mafles in
oLt Oucitonrs spor unbess low o segulcion precludss pulxic ascicsure obout The molte:r of when, in exdremely rore Croumsiances, we
daterming thaf amalie: shiuki not be communicated in sut raport bacouse the odvana consaguances of aaing so wouk recsonnbly be
eqmcied to outwaigh the puolic iInterest benefits ot auch communication,

Report on Cther Legal and Regulatory Requiremants
L Pursuont fo the Companmes (Audifor's Report) Ocoer, 2020 ('the Craer’) lsued by the Cantral Governmen! of India in terms of sub-

sartion (1) of Saction 143 of e Acl we give In he Arnecurs "4 o stataman| on the mathen ipeciied In pamgrapts 3 andd of e
Crael,

2 Asregulred by Section 1A of the Act we report that)
(gl We hove sought ond obitoinga el fhe inforrmalion ond emionafions which fo the best of our inowsedge and bale! wim
necessany fof ihe purosas of ow audl,
B} In our opinkon, propar bocka of cocount an requirea By low have besn kept By Ihe Compaony 20 for o | oppean from our
sdrmination of IMosa Dobks.
(c} TraBogncoshaal, e Stofamant ﬂFPtﬂﬂPﬂiﬂﬁ{lnnhidhg othat combeahaisive incoma), Slalément of Chonges In Equ ly &nd
the Staternant of Cosh Fow dedlt with oy this Report are in ogreement with the booa of account,
(di  In cuwropnion, he oforesoid stondalone finoneiol Matements comply with the Accounting Standords specified under Sachion
133 ot the Act read with Companias (ndian Accounting Srandards) Rules, 2015,
(@ Onhie basls of the wiitfan rapressntotions recalvad from thi deecion a3 on Maren 31 2025 fakan on record by the Boora of
Cirecton, noneof the: directon b disaucified a2 on March 31, 2025 from being opponted of o Director i termd of Sechion 16400
ol the &zt
{f)  With respact lo 1he adeguocy of the infemal inanclal contial over linancial repating of the Compary and the opaasting
affachvanes of such corfioli, refer fo our seporate Report In Annese 8’

(g)  With respect 1o he other matters to be incluoed in tha Audtor's Fepart In occordance with the reaurements of Sechon 18/(14)
of the Act, In our opinkan and o e best of cur Information and accoraing fo the sxplanalions given 1o us, he remunestion
podd by the Company o e directon durng the yeer b inocoordance with the provsion: of Section 197 of the A
() With mespect 1o the malten 10 be nchudad In the Auditor s report inoccordonce with this Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Audifors) Rules. 20714 in ouwr opnion and 1o fre bast of our information and occording o the explonations givento us:
L The Company hos discksed ha impact of pandng WMgallons on i inoncial perfarmance in il standaiane tnancial
storaments, (Refernote no 34 fo fondalona fingncial statements)
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Il The Company did not have ary lorg-lem contime!s inchuding dedvalive conlracty for which thare wess any malaial
forssmeatio lossaes.

i The hos baeh no deldy in hansfaning amounts, edquied 10 De rongfared, 10 e Invieston Education and Profadtion Fund
oy thaComgany.

. (@) Tra Monogement hos reprasented not, 1o the et of s knowledge and edel, ne funds dwiich ore mataral afther
ndividuolly ot in the oggregate) have bean advonced or loaned o invested (althar from borowed funds or shae
premim of any ofher saurces ar kind of funds) by the Company to or in any olhsr penon or eniity. inchiding forsign
aritity ClrrtermmediaiesT), with the undestanding. wrethes recorded In wiiling o ofberwlze, that the rtarmediany shal,
wheine:, dmchy ot IndEachly lena 1o of invee! in othar pomors of ant!tles [dentified In ary mannael whatsosver Dy of on
pehalf af ine Compary {Uimate Beneficiardes” of provide any gucrantes, secuty of the like on bebalf of the Linma'te
Beneficidnes. '

(b)) Trha Moroagemen! hot represented. thot. 1o the bost of 3 kndwladge and Ballal. no funds (which ore matedicl allbet
ngivicually or in the oggrepate) have besn mcsivad by the Company from any penon or enlity, neluding fomign
antty (Fundirg Parfies?), with the undesstanding, whsthe mecidad In witing or afhanise, Inol me Company shall,
whiging:, diaclly or indraclly land 10 of Invest b othee pamong oranties Identited In ony manner whalsoaver by aran
oenall of the Furiding Pory ("Ufimoies Bereficionss’) of provide ony glcrortes: sscurty o the ke on beholf of fhe
Uitirmate Beneficianes.

{c) Bowad ontho oudil procadures mat hove been consderec reasonable ond oporognate in the circumstances, nothing
hos cama 1o oul natice ot has cousad us o beiave thal the reprasenlafion unde sub clause ) and (i of Fule 1 1ie) of
Tha Comparies [Aud! and Auditarn) Rules. 2014, os provided unded (ol and (b) above, contoing oy matarial
misstaternent. (Reter Motena. 80 (v) & (vl to Se rfondalone inoncial statemeants)

v, Thiz divigend pad By the Cormpary dunng the yeor s in occonaancs with Secian 123 of e Act. As tfated in nots 45(c] 0
the stordaions financol statémetits, the Baond ot Dracians of fhe Compory bom propasad fnal dividend for thio yoaor 2024-25
whicn i subisct to Ihe approval of the memoen of The ensuing onnual genesol mesting. The proposed dividend deciored by
naccordancs with Section 123 ol Ihe Aot o the edeni if appliss to e declarciion af dividsend

vi. Bosed ot our sxaimination, which Included test chacks, Ine Camporty hos uied accounting software for mggintaining i
account books for the finoncial yeor endad March 31, 2025 which hes o fegture of reconding cudl frad (2ait kog) focility ond
fé same hes oparated throughout the yeaor for ol rievant ransactions tecorded Inthe softwars, Furifier, curing the coume
of aur oudi! we did not come oores any instance of the audlh ol fegture bsing tompeed with. The Company i in
comphancewlih the preservation of audit fral a3 par the stalulory requssmeants for recod relention

For LODHA & CO LLP

Chortared Accountants
Firrm tegistration No. - 301051E/ 300284

R. P. Barodlyo
Movc=: Mumboil Pariner
Diele: Miry 24, 2025 Marrbarship Neo. 48101
LN 26044 101 BMINNCARES
Annexure ‘A’ _
Relemad to In "Feport on Other Legal and Regulafery Requirements” sechion of our report to the members of Narmoda Gelofines Limited lor
the yeor ended Morch 31, 2025 ' '

Oinhe bosks of our expmination of the bocks ond recotds of he Compony carred out inogcodance with the audiing standonds geneally
acceplad|nindio ard aceoding i theinformation and éxplanaf@ns gven fous. we stalethat

| =

b respect of Company s Fraperty, Pt and Equipment (FRE) and infanglble Assets:

A The Corpany has mainteined proper recorcs, inowing full parlicuions inSUding auoanitetive detals ond ghualioh of PPE ond
mlevar detal of dghit-lo-wsa oty

8. TheCompany hamoiniained proper reconds. shawing full particulan ncluding guaniiiative delak of intanglble amsets.

As eplained fo us, the Campany hies o phased program for phivsea) verlfieation of all the BPE over o pedod of three years. In ol

gpinicn. (ha equancy of verificalion B redionatle camidadng the dize ol Ine Compdny and naturgof 15 PPE Putsuant 15 he

program of the physical venficahon of 29, phyucol venficafion of cartamn PPE has baer camea out duing the year and on iha

beasls of our mxmination of therecotds of he Campany ro mateidl dserapanciet vise nohcacd on such vesticotion.

Accoiding to the Infarmiaticn and espand ions ghwan ko us ond on the Dosts of our exarmindgtion of the records.of the Compony,

tha tifle deeds of immovable properties daciosed in the sandalone fnancial siolements includiad under PPE are hisld in Iha

narme of tha Comgany

Thi Company hos not tevalusd any of its PPE (including rght- of-use omels) ond infongible cmisels dielng he yoor Hancs

reparing undar Claouse 30){d) of the Urder linot aopllcabls to the Company.

Acoonding fo the informafion and explonafions ghven fouws, and on he basis of pur examinafian of e Dok and reconds of no

Comipany. neithar any procesdings have bieon inffiated duing e yen! nof are pending as at Mearch 31. 2025 fot halding any

benami propeity undet the Benoml Transoctiont (Frohibition) Acl 1988, o amended. and rukss made thersunder and hence,

reporting under Clousea 300 (e) of the Crder i not oppicable to the Company, Fefer Nate no, 53 () to the stondalone finandial

slotemants)
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Lo () The inventones have been physicoly varified by the managemen! ol recsenabile infervals duting the yecr, excapl for geods in
trangt. The coverage and procecures of phyilcal verficaton of the Ihvertotes followed by the manogomant ane reascnabie
and ooaquala in relafion e e siza of the Company and nafura of 1's business, Goodd in randt nova been varmed By way of
misequent recelrt/ confimations As per the information ond espanalions given fo us and on the bass of examination of
reorch of the Campany, ho ascrepanches of 10% or mare In the oggregate for sach glass of nventory was naliced on physical
viarificofion of invendones ascompared 1o book records

oy Based on our oudif procedurss arnd on 1he bosis of informction and exXonations gven 1o us, 1ne quarfarly retums arstotemants
fied by the Company with Banks in respect ot working copiiol are in agresmeant with e books of actourit of the Compary.

i nrespect of Investment In, rovided any guarantee o tecudty of gronted any loans of advances in the ngfae of loans. securad or

ursacured. fo comparies, likmsa, Limited Liak ity Portneships or any olner parties;

fa) Accordng fotro information and explanations givan 1o us and on The Sails of ourexaminciionof the ooy, the Companty has
not provided any loons o odvancss In e notue of [oong o gucrantén or provided security fo ary othes antity ond héncs
raporting undsr clouse 300 (o) a not applicabla fo the Compary,

) Accordng o the inforrmotion and expianations given fo us and on frie posis of ourexamination of the secards of the Campany,
imvestment mode cre b he ordinary couse of business and occadingly In olr opinion, pima foclke, rot prefudicial fo ihe
Cormpany’s inlatasd, The Company has nol providstany guararisss, given oy sacutlly ond grantsd any loon and advance:
Inthe ncrure of loana end guarantee.

(£} Accouding fo thainlammaticn ond expédnations given 10 us and on tha basis of our sxaminalion of the records of 1he ComDary,
tha Company hos net granted any isans or agvancas in the nataea of inans and nence repading unosr Slouses 30iKe), (d), (&)
ane (i ofihe Ordet lsnot applicdble fo e Company,

% Acconding 1o the nformation ond spianotions given 1o us ond on the boss of owr examinallon of the records, the Compary has

complied with tha provisiors of Saction 185 and [Bé of fhe Act. to Iha exdienl applicabie wilh nespact fo theinvestments madea durng

e yaar. The Company hae not pravided any loants, guarantees anad secuies fo partles covered unde section 185 and 184 of the

At

v.  According fo the Intormation and explancations given fows ond an the basis of examination of records. no cepesits or amaunts wiich

ore deemed fo be denasim have been occepted by the Campany within the meaning of Section 73 to 74 or any othe ielevan)

proviglonsof ine Act and the Cofnpories {Acceploncs of Depcsits) Rules. 2014 {os omended). Hanc e, reparting under Clauss 3(v) of
the Croe s notappicabls o the Company

v, According the information ond explanctions given to ws. he Centfral Govemment has not prescrbed mainfenanee of cost records

unded clolse (9 of sut-sction 148 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (v} of the Crdeat are not appiicobia 1o ne

Compaory.

i (@) According o the nformation and explanations given to usana an the bass of our examnation of tha records, the Company s
gensily regUltr It depasiling urdiiputed stotulory dues incuding goodn and services taw. provicent fund, employess’ siate
Irslrance, income o soles 1ox, custom duly. duly of excise value oddad 'ox. cess ond cthar slatulony duss durng tha vaarwith
the oppFopriate authonities. No undisputed amounts poyobis iniespect of the afaresaid statutony dues wete outstanding as of
thi st day of the Tnanglal year for g pertd of moss 1hon stomoning from e dote they become payaole.

by Accordng o the infernation ond explanctions glven 1o us, thare ora no statulony dues mentioned in Clouse Vil (a) which hove
nof been depasted onaccount of any disgute excep! fhe toliowing:

Mome of the statute Nature Amount Pariod to which Forum where dispute
ol dues ¥in lakhs the omaunt relotes lspending

The Cantral Exclse Act, 1944 Excise Duty 24058 JO00-03 High Court. Jobalpur

Meadhya Proadesih VAT Act. 2002 VAT 75 0213 Bagiuly Commissinnrss, Jabclipor

MF Lond Raverius Code. 1959 land ReverueTox 2597 201718 Commissonat Jobalpur

The Incoms fax Act, 19617 incorme Tox 785 A 701314 Commrissons ApDeaks

* Ao, tefer note ra, 34 (1) to the sandaore financika’ statementy

il According fe thertormetion andexplandations given to us and bas=d on ot examination of reconds of Ine Company, theis wate no
cmeunts (o be recordes in the books of ogcount thot hove been sunendared o daciosed as income duling he yaor In he fox
cmassmants undar the Ineome Texd Aot 1981 (43 af 195]) Hanca, reparting under Clause Jivil of the Order & not opplicatile o fha
Company

. [(0) Bosedonou audt procedurstand bn Ihe boaly of information ond explanatians ghvan o ws, the Compony has not detoulfed in

therepayment af lnars ool Borowngs o in e poyrment of irteres) [ herson to ooy lende

(i Qnthe bosisof information ord explonations given tous. the Company harnot been geckored cawilful cefaufter by any bank of
finoncial Insiituhon o ofber lender,

{c) In ourgpinion and accarding to tha informafion ond expianations ghven fo w. tha Company has aepesed ferm logn for he
purpass ol which it was obtained,

() O en overol exarmiration of the stondalons financhal stahements, in owr operion, e Comipany bes not ulilized funcs sesad o
shart harm basis for 'ong ferrm puipcsan

(e Bosed on our audl pracedumes and an ihe basi of infaimalion and explanalions gven o us, tha Company hos ral 1aksn any
furicts frormeany enfity of peson on aocount of o to meet the obligotions of i associote, Accordingly, the proviions of ciouwse
diedied of the Order s opolicotla 1o the Compary:
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wll,

LR

ol

il
wlil,

(N Based on o oud| procedures and on the basy of infareretion and explanatans given ‘o us, durng 1he yaar (ke Campary Hes
niot raleed any funds on the pledge of secutes hald in its dssociote. Actadngly, 1he teovislons of clolse 3NN of the Order 1y
applicatis fo ha CTamaony,

tay TnaCompany hasnat raised any monsy by way of infial publc ofer or further public olfer (ncluding sebt instrument) during the
yaar anet hence, mporing under Clausa 3?al.’:v:.‘l of tha Order s not appliconke 1o the Campany

(o} The Company has not made any prefarantial aliotment or private placement af ares o fully or partly convertible debantures
durng the yearorintheracsnl past and henca, rporting under Clouse 300(b) of the Crrde s not oppleabis lo the Comparny.

{01 Dunng the coure of owr examination of the boows of occolnt and ather recond of fhie Company camed out in accordoncs
with fhe gensrally otceptad oudiling sfandard ond basad on its infonmation and sxplanations given (o us, we rspor! 1hot no
froud on the Comeany of by the Company nos been noficed of neparted dunng tha vear, Howevar, during fhs yaar, o whishs
Blower compdant was recalvoed by the Company cleging corfoln uneinledl fvactces corcamning the operdiions af no
Company  Asexplomed in note 44 of the tinanciol statementy. on enguing by the manogsmsnt with the wopoit of on extesnal
agency. fwas found ihat the alegohons were mes surmiss ond oevoid of cny sbstantial evidence which are legally lenchie.
a formal repart from the sald ogency 8 awalted ncluding hed suggestions to strengthen the Intemal cantrl mecsunes,
bettarmen! ond smoah funclioning of tha Company.

{1 Durng ir= yegr norepord B reuined 10 ba lad wilh the Cenhal Goveimmen! under Saction 148301 2) of the Companies Acl, 2013
gz the Individual instance of olleged unethicol oractices mertionad In the whilso biower compiaint do not aiceesd the
prescrbad imtmanbonadin tha Act and Rules.

(e} Aspant of our oudit proceduras performea and accondng to the infarmation and esgranalions given 1o ws we report that wea
v fosken Into conalderction the sola wihte-biwier c:ur_lnlnlnirece!'md and dealt with by the Campany during the year

Inaur oplinkon and accordng o the riarmation ond sxplanalions glvan fo Us, e Company & nol o Nidh| Company and hance,

raporting unde: Clauss 30d) of the Ordar s nol appicobis to tha Company.

Aceording to the Information and explanatons ghen fo us and based an our Sxomination of the recorck of the Company, all fne

frarsactiong with relalsd pofiss cren complonce with Saction 177 ang 188 of Ihie Act and ol Ihe datolls hove baen disciossd In hs

stondoione financal Maternents as raguined by the oppicoble accounling standard. Refer note. 37 to the slondalana franclol

Ll i =T ) L

(0 According fo the Intformation ond explonations given o Us and bassa 6n olr examination of i records of the Company, fna
Compony’sintemol audit system b eormmenauna tawith e doa and nalurs of il bus e

b} We hove comidarsd the inlerna’ oudi! reports o the year under audif =usd to this Campany during the year and il data in
detarrmining polute, Iming and axfent of our audif proceaes

According fo the information ong axpionations givan 10 us and bosed on our examinalion of fne recoms of the Company., ne

Company has nol enfeted inla any nor-cosh fransactions prescibed under Section 192 of the Act with direclon of pemsans

cunrectec wih Tham during the year,

(@) The Company sno® sequired 1o be egeesd undarSeciion 45-A of Ihe Ressive Bonk of India Act, 1934, Hance reparting unds
Clousedlan) (), (D) and{c) of the Order inng appicabie o the Company.

(o) As per the informotion and axplanations gvien 10 @ and s per the definition of Group undet Core Invastiment Comparnias
{Resarve Bank) Drections 2016, there are no Com Imvstment componies forming por of the group

Tra Company nos not incumes any Sash icasas guring tha curman) inanciol year and in the imrmadiately preceangfinanciolvedar,

Thiere fes Deed no resgnotion of the sotutony oo of the Company dunng 1he year Hence teporting uncar Clouss 30005 of e
Credaranot applicable to he Campaty.

Acconding ta tha Information ond explanctions given to us and on the basls of the financial ramice. ogalng ond expecied dotos of
realisafion of financio! asets ona poyment al financial latlfites. other infonmation eccomparying (he standalone Sancial
statemsnly gnd our knowladge of the Board of Directon and Manogement pland ond bosed on our sxarnination of 1he avidancs
supporfing the assumpfions: naining has comea foour otfenfion. which cowses us 'o haleve that any matadal uncarainly awists oson
the cate of the auctt repod Indlesting that Company s not capable of meaesting s labditles: exsting ot the aote of balonce theot as
anid when thay fall dus within o padad of cne year from the balance taet dote. Wa, howaver stale hat this b rol an assuane s o to
i future viotsiity of trie Company. Wie furher s'ate tol our eporing sbased on e foctsup o lhe dofe of fre audit repart and we
neither ghve any guarantes nor any assurance that all Iabiikes faling due within a penrod of one year ingm the balance sheet date,
will gat dlschargad by 'hie Compony o3 and whan ihey fall due

There are no unscant amounts fowards Corporate Soclal Bespansibilily (CSRY taquidng a ransler o a fund specifiiea in Schacule VIl o
the Cormanies Act i compliance with the second proviso 1o sub-saction (5) of Saction 135 of the said act. Accordingly. reporting
underclousa 3xx of the Ordar orenct opplicable to the Comgany.

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chatarsd Accountanis
Firm regstration N, - 3010615/ E300284

R. B. Baradiya

Place: Mumbal Porines
Dot May 24, 125 Membeste No, 44101

UEIN: 25044 10 1BMIVINC ARS8
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Annexure ‘2"
Reterrod toin 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” seclion of our report 1o the members of Narmada Gelalines Limilted for
the yeor ended March 31, 2025

W hove ouditad the infemal finonclal conhols s francial reporting of e Namada Gelotines Umited Cthe Company’) asaof March 3 1,
2025 n conpuncfion with our aud! af e slandalons financial stotemesnts of the Company for the pear endead on (hal date,

Management s Respaonsitaity lor Internal Financial Confrals

Ithe Board of Directars of the Campary |5 resporsible for establishing ana malntaining intarmal financial controls tased on the infemal
contiol over finar< ol repamng critang estoblEred by the Company canslidening he essenfial comparant of memal control sated Infne
Guldarca Nofa an Audll of Intemal Fnanclal Contiols Qver Fngniial Reporing issusd by Ihe institule of Chorered Actotntdnts of Indio
HCAD. These esponaililies include the detlgn. implementation ond maintenance of adeguale infema financial contiok that wers
aparating effectively for eniurng 1ha orderly ano efficlent conduct of 's business, Incuding adharence 1o company s polcies, na
safeguarding of is assets. 1he prevenfion and detection af frauds and anor. fhe occuroey and compistenas of tha occounting mconds,
an the Simaly prenonation of reiob inancial infarnomion, asreouired unde the Ao,

Auditors’ Responsibility

O responaibilly 2 1o sapress on opinion on fhe Company’s intemal inancial canfrol aver financial reparting Dasea on aur oudl. We
concucted our audt in occordonca with Ihe Guigance Note:on Audilt of Intemgl Financicl Cortrals Dvar Finarciol Reparting (the
‘Gudance Mote’) and the Standards on Audifing deemed fo be presciped underSaction 143(10) of the Act to fne exfent opplicoble fo an
audit of intermal finorcal confroly, bath appléatble to on oudht of Intera! financd contol gra bath islued by the KAl Thoss Standards
ond thi Guidanhea Note raguite thal we comply Wik alhcal requirementt ong planand perform the dud|tH o oblain reasonable assroncs
abaut whathar casguate remal inancial contialzavar inanckal regonring wos esloolbead-and maintcinea and f saschoonlol oparated
sffectivalyinallmoateralrespacts

Our gudit Involvss performing procodures to obtain oudit svidence abiout the ndequacy of e intordal financiol carrtiols system over
fingncialiaporting and thelr oparmaiing effaclivansss. Ow gudt of mfamai inongial conhes over finangiol repofing Inciuded optdining an
urdastanding ol infemal linaraial contis over inanalal repoting, cssesing he ek thal o mratecal weckes evats. and lesling and
evaluating Ihe design and opataling offectivanses of intemal cartrol based o the ostessed rek. The procedurnes soleched depend on tho
auditar's udgment. Inciudng e assessmant of the ks of matedol msstotemant of the stondalene financial statermants. whather due o
frud ar eman

We bislave thot the audit evidence we Rove obtained s sutficiant and appropricre o provide ¢ bosd for our gudd oplnkon on tho
Company s miemcd inoncialcontrols sysiem over ingnoiol mporfing,

Meoning of Intemal Financial Confrols Over Finonciol Reparting

A Company's Infemal financial contral vver tinancial reportinig i o process designed 1o srovide retsonabie assirance regarding e
saliablity of finoncidlreporting and the preporoticn of stancdaions financiol stalemsants for axlamal purposas in accordonce with geneally
oorepted acoouring prihcighes: A Company's Intermal financial contrad over fnanclal reporting ncludes those pollckes and proceduras
il (1) pertain fo the mairfenonce of ecords ther, Inmcsonabie datol, ocourately ana fally refiect the onsactiors and dispeaitions of
e asesh of Ihe company: () provices reaonabls assurancs Thal Horsaclions ors recoidsd o nacessary fo parmil pregaalion of
standaions financiad statements inaccordonce with-generaly accepted cocounting principles. and mat recaloh and expendfures of the
antTy ane baing mooe only In occorgance wiln autharisatons of managemant. ona (1) provich recsonable amumnce eganding
prersanlion or Smely detection of unouthossed ocaunition. s or diposifion of e anlily's oaeh that could have o motasal etfac on e
sliendaions finoncial siaterments (4) obo provice esamongbie ossurgnca by the nremal aualtons hrough thek infemct aucit reports ghven 1o
the ety fiom timatalima.

Inheren! Umilafions of Intermal Financlol Conliols Over Anancial Reporiing

Bacouse of e icherant imitotions of intemod finanicial controls over finonoidl reporting. noluding he possufty of coliusion or Tproper
monagement overide of confrols. matenal meslotemenis due to eror on froud may occur and nol be detected, Azo, proectons of any
evaiuclion ot ihe Infenal financo contrals ever tnoncial repeding 1o futune pelods are wibject o tha sk that the nfermal fioancicl control
over financlalapoiting may Sacome inadeguate betouze ol changasin condilions. or Ihat tha degrea of complanca wilhi the poiciesor
ocacuras miy datenorate,

Opinion

In o opinian. o the dest of our information and ocdording fo the esplanaliong given 1o un. 1he Campary hal, traadly. in all moterial
respech. on odeguale intamal Mroncie! conhrals system over Ananclel reporting and sach Infemnd finangiol controls over financial
feparting wera opaioting affectivaly as at Morch 31, 2025, basea on the intemal conttol ovar finonciol reparting crifara estabished oy tha
Comeany considening the esanfia component of iIrfemal confrol stated in the Guldanca Note on Aud® of iInfernal Financia Coantole Cver
Financial Reparling ssusd by e insttuie of Chortersd Accountonf of india

ForlODHA & COLLP
Chartered AcoolUnicnis
Fimn registration No. - 3010818/ E300254

R. P, Baradiya
Aoce; Mumbol Fartnes
Dole May 24, 2025 Misrnpaiship No. 44101

UM 2504410 1BMIVNCA958
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BALANCE SHEET
s ol 313t March, 2028

(A arnowunts in Incion rupee lokh, uniss offerwise shofad)

PARTICULARS Nates A af As ol
318t March, 2025 31st March, 2034
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Prapesty, plain! and eguismen) 3 3267 &7 249205
Copital work-In-progiess 4 &78 29 4783
Intangible aats b - .
Fmanciol omels
= Invastment in o ossocials 4] 411537 -
« (e Imventrmeirite W60.48
= Locns ¥ | 0 Q.09
- Othar financlal oot 8 16718 Ik 62
Ineorme Tox osssts (nsl) 40 52 4335
Cihar nom-Cument ossets 9 g3 /& G829
Tolal Non-Cunani Assals 6.385.77 4,012.69
CURRENT ASESETS
Invartones 0 & 457 37 4 65043
Fronclol osal
- Irode recaivoidas 11 £ 488 0 20952
= Cosh and cosh eguivaienTs 12 19.03 66174
= Bank boloncas othar tnon abovs 13 26,35 1,553,710
= Lo ia 4598 025
- Ofher finoncial csats 15 &AL 05,539
Crthasr cumrent ostats & 247 53 | 54,40
Total Cunent Assels 1.547.91 934643
TOTAL ASSETS 15,933.68 13.359.12
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capllal ITa (G050 605.08°
Critisr &uity 17b 11334923 10,269.44
Tolal Equity 11.944.25 10,894.47
LIABILITIES
MNON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Harowlngs 18 603 08 -
Frovisons 19 1998 21.48
Ciefarred tow Sotlifes (net) ) o5 a9 43188
Total Non-Curtent Liobillties 1.032.95 453,
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabiiities:
- Boerowings 21 689.12
- Tradke cavabias e
() Total outttanding dues of micro and smad enrarprises 951 B4 B384
(il Tofol outstonding dues of craditon other than 16685 | 368 43
ety and smol| enlesqrnses
~Ohner finandial fionikties &3 14277 182.10
O Cument lobsiles 24 271.20 23723
Provesons 2h 12825 G042
Cunent 1ax ot#tes (natf) 2631 5926
Tolal Cument Liablifies 2.956.37 ]
TOTAL EQUITY AND l.I.ulthuTIES 15,933.48 1335912
Matotial Accounting Policles 2
Notes torming part of acoounts 52
The acocormparnying moden ors an infegral paet of s nonciol iatersanh
Ay i ouf repait of even cale
Fou LODHA & CO LLP Fror ond on behok of the Boomd
Chorfeesd Accolrhants
Frrm legn. N, = 3010815 EA00264 3. Annomalol Ashok K Kopur
T e g Manogng Dirachor
F. P. Bomadiyo i O 381 DAND0 25807
Pannce
Merbasnn Mo 42101 Aun Jomwal Marima Fatior
P« Murmiol Chiaf Anoneld Offcer  Campaarny Secrefary
Derte - 24 Moy, 3085
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
oz of 315t March, 2025
(AN arnounts in Indion rupee lakh, unies ofherwise stated)

PARTICULARS Motes Year ended Yeor anded
318t March, 2025 3ist March, 2024
INCOME
| Revenus from cpenations 26 |§.892.07 18.179.56
N Ofhearincoeme 27 16525 41,08
W Total income (| + 1D 19,057.32 18,340.65
IV EXPENDITURE
Cost of moatsnials consurmad zB 1140713 10,844 43
Changes in invantory of finished goods,
work-rrprogeess & stock-In-tods o (423,10 {23449
Ermipioyees banafite expenie a0 1461821 1491.95
Hnances costs | | 22,08 2591
Bepreciaton and omorhsation excense 32 22223 203.64
Fonwet B Fuel 2A55.65 ZRST 25
Oinat expoarsas 23 137681 1.154. 14
Total expenses (V) T 16.778.36 1628283
¥ Profit before exceptional lems and tax (11l - 1Y) 227854 2067 8)
Vi Bxceotional hemi
Vil Profit befora tax {V - VI) 227896 205781
Will  Tox Expense
{a) Cunent 1oy rii S80.00 526 00
(&) Dedarag fax (21.99% (L1
X Profit altet faxition (VI - VIl 1,720.94 " 1,532.58
X Other Comprehensive Income
Harms ol will niot Ba seclossifad 107 Bioit OF (s
Rermvecsulerments (amsss) of nat dafined banefif plom (£, 194 [27.28)
Tolal Coamprahensive Income (X - X) 1.454.75 | 50544
Earning per Eoully Share of Fode Velue of ¢ |0 eoch
Bosie and diuten Eamings per share () 28.45 25.34
Mataral Accounting Policies 2
Notes forming par of occounts 3-52
The occompanying notes are an Infegral port of the firancial statements
A% par our report of avan dofs
For LODHA & CO LLP For and on betalt of the Board
Chortered Accounlants
Finm Regn. No. - 3010618/ E3C0284 §. Annamalal Ashale K Kapur
Chalman Managng Orector
R P. Barodiyo CAN: Q0001381 DINOO1 24807
Parfries
WMerrbarsnio Ma. 44101 Arun Joiswal Mahima Patkar
Chsal Fimanclal Offiesr  Compony secrstory
Place  Murnt=al

Date 1 24th May, 2025
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Al armounts in Indion rupes lokh, uniess ofherwise stated)
Pariculars Yeor ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 315t Mareh, 2024
A.  Cash Flow from Oparating Aclivities
Me! profit beloms fox 247096 205781
Aajustimants for
Depreciation ana amartsafion expense 2 203,44
Irfees] Incoms {115.18) (104 44)
Frofil an redempitior [ foir value of Inviestmanty {A9.47) (S&.68)
Finance conts 12205 2591
Prof on dispusal/discard of proparty, plant ond aguiptmert {060}
Lgbilties ra longer neguired witten bock (Mal) 2236 201,39 (25.748) 4212
Operating profit balore working capital changes 2 480 35 210053
Adjustmeants for :
Incracee n frade and olher recevobles {£93.48) (244.18)
tncrease) Docrensn n nventonns (6.54) 32.73
(Increcsa) Decredsea In loons & othar financlal cesals (&7 08) 1990
Irec T i othar curment asssts 93,13 {1A.08)
Cecreaie/(Incraass] in olfer nor- cumant aizaty 10.02 (107.51)
Increase in trode payoties 25407 16729
Pacrease inshort term provisions (29,85 _ {5.04)
Increase (Dacraase) in othet cumant fabilites 536 - _(222.11) _[2ao4 LI7E.81)
Cash generated from operafing oclivilies 2,258 24 1.921.72
Toss pod (Ma! af Refund) (553.9%) (A6 34)
Netl cah generalad lrom sperating achivities (A) 1.704.25 | 457 .36
B.  Cash Flow from investing Activithes :
Furchose of proparty. plant and equipment
{irclucirg CWIP and copltal advances) (147001 {17763
Purchosa of Curenl/Non - Cuntent invesiments (4,115.31) (S00.00;)
Sale of Mon - Cuerént invesimants Qi 48 -
Bonk cepoats not comsiderad os cash ond cosh equveients (plocea)/ retund 152903 (B18.61)
interast receves 20635 (28%044) 5102 (1238 |2
Nel cash used In Investing oclivities (B) (2.890.44) (1,248.13
C.  Cash Aow from Financing Activilies:
Ervictanct pabd inciuding o thenaon (604,981
Froceads from Lang term bamowings - Bonk A3, 06
Net Procesas from shor ferm bamowings = Somid G, 12 *
Amourt transtamed 1o investor Edication and Pratection Fund:
Urpaiel dividsnd amaunt {149 28
Hnanca cost pakd {122.05) 543 51 (25911 (23.04)
Nat cosh from / {(used in) finoncing aclivilies (C) 54351 (23.04)
Net Increase [ (Decreqse) in Cosh and Cosh Equivalents (A) < (B) + () (84271) __ 18430
Cash and Cash Equivalanis al the beginning of the yeor 661,74 47554
Cash and Cash Equivalents of Ihe end of the year 19.03 Gal74
Parficuians As ol As at
1151 March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Cash on hand 10.03 156
Baiarce witt Barks .00 454 18
TOTAL 19.03 &81.74
Meterol Accounnng Policies 2
Nates forming por of occounls 352
M accomeanyng nelas o an nlegal poet of he inancicl ssolemers
Ag pet DUF renor of dhvien dalo
For LODHA & CO ULP Far ang an benoif of fie Boorg
Crortored Accoironts
Fm [2egn, Mo, = 30|10 1E] EXXEEA & Annomicia) Ashok K Kopur
Charman Manoging Drecior
R. 7. Baradiya DY, OOC0134 1 Dit;00 1 26807
P
WemDesrip NocAd 10 Arun Joiswol Mansmo Patior
Chisf Fnomcief Cfless Conpory Secietory
Poce : Mumbo
Diaks : 24h May, 2025
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{} NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
{All amaunts in Indion rupee lakh, unless ofherwise staled)
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As o Ag al
31st March 2025 31st Monch 2024

Issiied, Subacribed ond Foid up S04 96 R
Forimited Shoms Q.07 0.o7
TOTAL 60503 605,03
OTHER EGHATY
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Total

Capital Securities  Genesal Retoined Comprehensive

Reserve  Premium Reserve Earnings Income
Ag ol st Apell, 2023 T.51 42537 2312940 5,999 84 e d B 783.50
Prafr for fre yvaar - - 1.532.58 1 55258
Cner Compralansve Income for the year - - La7.54) (27 34y
Asal 316t March, 2024 151 42607 2,329 .60 7.532.82 {5.13) 10,289.44
Proft fof the yeaor - - - |05 . 172094
Cinal Compnehanzive Intom for The Yaor - - T ML) (&6, 17
Dhvidend Pag (a0 D6 L604.945)
As ol 318l March 2025 781 42537 2,329 40 B 448 80 (71.32) 11,339.23
Materal Accolnting Policles "
MNotas forrming pant o oocounts 3¢
I GEalEparyirg nofss areab [nlecid pant ol iMoo ckd salemsnh
AL DO U feport OF Svdn i

Fod ond oo bebolt of fie Bocrd
For LODHA & CO LLP
Chormied Accoynanh
Fem flagn. Fo. - 301057L) (300284 5. Annomaic Ashok K KoDur
Chairmen Maroging Beecto

K. P. Baradya fAR CEC013B1 P01 Zo8r
Parirdgr
fleembsaratop R 44701 Anum Jaigwal Mahimo Pafko

Ptz - Murrcol
Chatiy = 2dik My, 205

Crled Firvoreesd O e

T DTy S ey
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-% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupes [akhs, unless oltherwise stated)

CORPORAITE INFORMATION

Mormoda Getafines Lid, was set up in 1981 o5 Lenar Knit Galafin Compony Pt Lid. Tre Company wos corvered info o Putic
Cormpany and registered o Show Lelnet Urmited i 1969, In the yeor 197€. the name of the Company wes changed fo Shaw Wallace
Galafines Lmted, and In the yadt 2002, 1he Compoary win fenamad o Narrmoda Galating Limited, The Comparny s reghtesed in
Jabalpur (Madhyo Pradesh) under Reglstration number L2411 TMP1981PLED1E023 The Regkletad office of ihe Company s ol 28,
CARAYS, 16 Chvil ines, Jabalpar (IME.), The Company & engaged in the manufaciure and sale of Ossen and Gelatine and haa it
manufacturing facily located at Jaoalpur (M P )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Slotement of Complionce

Tre finanaiol dalerenl; have bean prepaied i aceoidence with 1ha indan Aceounling Stardan (hamsinalier refered 1o m Ine
Ind AS') os neffied undee the Companles (ndion Accounting Stondargs) lules 2018 ond Componies (Indion Accounting

Stondands) Amandments Ruies 2016 presorited under Sacfion 133 of 1hs Componiss Act, 2013 reod with fuls 7 of the Carmpanies

{Arcouri) Rulas. 2074

Recenl occounfing pronouncemanis

Ministry of Caperote Affals ("MCAT) nefifles new sandords or ameandmenis [o the axisling stondoras unde Companbes (ndion

Accounting Standards) Rukes ot issued from time to timea On August 12, 2024 and Septembiet 09, 2024, MCA bsuad the Companies

(Indban Accounting Slancdordst Amandrmant Rules, 2028 ond Componias (ndion Accouniing Stordards) Second Amendmant Ruiss,

2024 intmducing folowing ehanges:

aj g A 17 =lirsurance Contracts; ind A5 117 inseuronce Contriacts was nhoducaed ang ing AS 104: Insurance Conhaots wes
withdrawn, Ths wos oocompanled with conteguant amandmants inothar siondards.

B) nad AS |16 - Leotas: Tha omendments clonfy occounting feoment for o fekardesee mvolved In sole and leossback
trarsos tons andf ntroduced some relcted lustrative sxamples.

fhe cbove stoncand ote effealive om Aprl 012024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncaimeTs ond based on i
avaluation has detarminad thal [ dosd rol have any significant impoct in s financlal siatarients

The Boors of Diectos-appraved tha Fnancial Slatemants for tha yearsnded 315t March, 2028 and authardsad for s on 24th May,
20045,
Basis ol Accounting
The fimancial statements have Deen prepared on ocenial Dots under the histoncol cogt convention, except for cedoin fnonciol
ausats ond laliilies meaasured ol falr volue, The accounting palcies adopted In the prepatalion of the Inanclal stotements oe
condstant with those ollowad 16 tha previous yaar
Curtent and Non-cuifart claasfisation
(i} Tre amstsand liobilfiesn e Bolonce Sheat ore basad on curent) non - curent clasification. Anaset o cumsntwhen i

a Evpectediobaealired o mended 1o be sokd or conmumed innormal operating cycle of fwalve months

b Hald pirmiary o fhe putpose of hoding '

¢ Expected toba renlizd wihin twalve months after fhe repering perlod, o

d, Cushorcash equivalents unless nesthicted fram being exchanged o used foseflie aliobiity for of least twelve mantts after

tha raporting peticd. Al other assets ore ciossifiad osnan-cumant,

0y A kability s curmant woen:

0. Eipeciedivbe setiedin normal operaiing cycle

b Hald primaily far fhe purposs oftrading

¢ Dusiobssattisd vithin tvalve manihs aite e repoiling penod, o

d

Thae k nouncansiticrial right to defer [he witlament of e Sabllly far ol leds! hwelve months offer ihe reparing pariod. Al
erinar bctslites are traated o foo cunent '

Diefenad tox gsseti ond lobilties ane clossifad os non-current cesets and liabilites respectivedy.,

(i) Use of Esfimates
Tha prepatation of the financiol statements i in confamity with the Ind AS, rsquires ths Maragermen! o maks asfimates and
assurnplions comsidarsd in the reportad cmounls of asssts ond llobithes (ncluding confingsnt kobilties) and the reporied
Income and expensas duting e yeol, Tha Monogement belevas thol tha sstimates wsad in praparation of The financlol
yotement ale prudent and secsonchie. Future octugl results could differ due to these esfimates and the dfferances bofwean
IEa actual resuits ond s astimotas as meogriad in the perlodd In which the sasulh e kriown fmictetioliss.

(i) Propery, Plantond Equipment & Infongible Assets
Freehold lond s comed af nistorical cost, All othes ttems of prooery. plant ond equlpment ore measured ot cost
less accumulated depreciationand impalimant losses, f ony. Coastsinclude frelght, import duties. non-refundable
purchase faxes and other expensas direclly allfibulable 1o he ocquisition of the assel. Subseguent costs are
inclutied in the assst's canying amourt or recognised s a separate ase!, a3 appropriate, only whan it i
probable hat future economic benefits asociated with e ifem wil fiow o the Company and the cost of fhe
Itermn can be measured reflably. The camdng omount of any companent accounted for as g separate asset s
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-%‘ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupes [akhs, unless oltherwise stated)

derecognized wheneolaced. All other repairs ond maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
during e reporting pariod Inwhich Ihey arelncurred,

Irtainglbis ossatst Intangible assels ore dated ol cost of ooqustion less accumuidted amotikotion and
Impairment, I cry Losses arising from the refirement of, and golns or losses onising friom disposal of Mked ossels
whichare camed ol cosl orrevalued amaunt are recogrized in the Stalement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Depreciation / Amortisation
Depreciation s providea on the stralghtdine method applying e uset llves s prascribed in part C of Schoaduie || to
the Companies Act. 2013 except for plont and equipment. wherein usaful [fe 5 detzmined bosed on intemaol
technicadl assesmeant. The range of estirnated usaful lves of Property, Flont & Equipment'sara csundear,

Calegory Useful Lite
-Buiiings (Including roods) §- 60 Yaarn
Pront & Equipement 5 25 Yoars
Electical insralictions 10 Yisaam
Fumiture & Frehurs 10 Yeam
s Eoulpmeand 26 Year
Vahicias B Yaqus

Tha manogamant balleves thal tha wafullife o ghven above 1he ba rapreant the perlad dvee which tha management exoac s to
use thate asset. The Campany moviews e usetul Ives and reskdual value at each tepaling date. '

Cepeaciafion on geests oddadold or dissardiad dumg the vear k balng senddad on pro-rafa bant up 16 the data on which much
msety Oe ooded sld or discardad.

Aszets costingup tof 5000 eacn ore depreciataa fullyin tne vear of parchose

Gaing/Losses on disposals/ de-recognition of property, glanl and egqulpment are delermingd by comparng proceeds with corrying
omount ohd these arerecogniznd in ioterent of profit & Loss.

Intanglbie assets-ore amotkied over thelt ssfimated Leeful economic e under Stroight Line method. Computer softwaee coet (s
ametived ovel o panod of five ya)s.

v) Inventones

Irventones ingludes Bow Morsdal Work-in-Progesss. Finished goods, Stores & spares, Consurmables, Packing Motsnaly) o valueg ol
conl of nel realiioble volus, whichaver kiowar Mol reolsable valus s the elimaled seling prica In 1he ordinarny coute of builnes ks
hio estimated cost of complation and the astimcted costs necessary o make Ine iate, Cost of Row Materkal, Semifinlkhied ond
Finshed Gxoods amd Worke-in-Prognos B determinod on wasighted ovinoge boss ona comprised of expandtue incurred in the normal
courss af business In bringing Inventordes o fhair pesent Incation including opprorate overheods appotioned on o easenobke
and cansslent basls. Otsolets dow rmoving ond defective stocks are dantiied of the fime of physical vesficatian at siocks and
whigts Necsssary. provigan B made for those nventaies, Adeguole ofowance Bmods forobsolets aondslow moving Mamis.

(vl) RevenueRecognifion
The Company recognizes revenue. whenever confel over dsfinct goods or sarvices s ronsfoired fo the cusfomer; La, when fne
customer [ able 1o direct thewss of ihe transfansd goods or senvices and obtains substarlially o of the remalning benstils. provided
a contioct with enfarcedabie fghts and cbligaions exists and amongst ot colectabillity of corsldeation |s probabia taking imo
oceoun! cusfomar s crad twimhingss.

Revanus i Ihe lhonsoction pilce i Company expact o be enfitied fo. In delaimining Ihe Trensaction pice, e Comgany
condcen effacts of vonoble consoeration. the exefance of signficont financing confrocts. noncash conpcerafion and
cormderation poyoble o the custormern, It any

Sale of goods

Reverue from the sole of goods is recognised wnen the controd of e goods posses to the buyer eftter ot the Hme of dspatch or
dellvany orwhen Iha risk of loss ansfars. Expor soles are recognized bosed n the terms ¢ tha sale which s when sulstanbial ks and
tewiarels of cwnemiin ora possad 1o the Sustomaers,

Revarase lrom iase of goods & ne of 1owas and recovary of ohargss collected from customan ke rarspon, packing e, Proveon i
midce for miums whan applooiain. Fevenue s messlrea ofthe far volue of contideration racaivad of recalvalée and snat of price
dacounts, alowanca faryalurne retiates ond similior tems.

Cldrms | fefunds ol sscedainable with recsonatla cananty am occountes for on fingl setfement ona ars recognizes os revenus
oncartointy of ookt anpeuden? basls.

Reventie recognition rom sale of ‘Tuty Ertffiement Pussbiook Licerss or Merchondse Expaorts frorm Indid Scheme- (IMES) is mode on
sale ot tre license affer recsipt of tha wome hiom [he offic e of (ke Director Genaral of Forsgn Trode.

Incoms fram Duty Dvawtack s secognised on recsiol bosly
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-% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupes [akhs, unless oltherwise stated)

(vid)

Cvili)

Dividend
Divigard income from investmants i recognned when ne sharahoidar & right fo recaive poymant hos been astabiishsd (orovidked
that it s probable fhof the sconomic banefitswili flow o the Campany and the omount of Incorme con be mecssesd raliably)

Interest income

Inteest Incomefiom & intnciol cessl & recognssd whan | s otobotls that fhe sconamie Benefils wil low o ine Camoany ana fhe
amount of iIngome can be maasired relichly. iNterast Income k ooonued ona Tme boss, by rferenca fo tha princpal outstanding
andl at the affeciive inlecast ile applicabile, which i the rate that axactly decounts estimahea fulure cosh recaipls thisagh ins
expected ife of thafinanchil aset io that asset s net comying arnount on initial recognition,

Income trom Invesimean|
Incars from Investments (olher than weslments in shares of compapes ana Mutuagl Funds ) i accounled on accnuc basis,

Divictand income on investiresnts | recognised whet fefght to receve-dividend 4 established, Infetest Income i recognized on g
fime propamonate Do 1ong info occount the ameants nvested ond the rata of Infersst. For oll finoncial ngrumants meosurea o
ambrisad oo, ntarest incoma & recarded usng the Fifactiva interestrate method o ine nat canying amoun! oftha finorncio| omats

Foreign Currancy Transachions

Farsign cyrancy rorsactions are accountad of the sxchange ratas pravailing on ra dote of tne tromactiors. Going and losses. i
any, an sathemeant or reinstalement of vear ena closing bakinces by apnlying 1rs closing rafes In respect of monatlary cssals and
moratory lobities nol coveiad by tha fonwatd Contoch ara recognized in the siatemeant of profit ond oo

MNor-monatary fems cenominated i ioreign curanoy ore stated ol the ote prevoiling on ne date of 1ha hansoction,

The premium o discount orking ot the Incaption of the farward controdt entered Infe 1o hadge the exisling assst / Sabily. i
omodtized as expense of INcome over he life of Ihe contrach. Exchange dilferences on sach conlroct are recognized n the
starement of profit ana less inhe teporfing perod nwhich e exchongs ofes change. Ary proft or inss areng out of cancedation of
sarawal G sUch confros! o recognied o Income or exparsa i the reporing perad. Fowerd  axchanga contrach autsiandirg
o of tha year &nd on oocour! of firrn commitment [ Righly grobabis forecos! insrsoc lion ate marked 1o market and the lossas I
oy oarecognied in thestatement of protit andl icss and goins araignoned,

Employee Banefits

thie Company nas The foliowis g post-emiploymasbanedT plons:

L Defrod borefit plans such ot grabuity:

i. Definedcontrbution plans such ax Provident fund & Supsiannuation fund; and
i Ofharemployes barlie

i) Defined benalil plan:

Volurtary Refirement Schame Expenses, T any, are Tully onceged off in ine year of paymeant,

The kability or osset recognisea in the baanca shaet in respect of cefined beneft gratulty plon & the present voiue of defined benetit
obligotions of 1ha anad of the reparfing period less tolr volue of plon astet:. The dafined banafit cbligation b coculated onnuoly by
aciuaries hraugh acuarial valustion wing (e Prisectied Unll Cradil rrathod.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined bereft abiigotion oy an sapensa in the statemernt of profit and
[a[LH

g Sanice costcomprsing cursn! sanice coili pastsenvice cosls, pairs and lesses on curlaiiman? and non-oulice sattlsmeani
and

b Naflnfemg sxpenss ofiBcame

Thie net intseest cost & colt ulalaa by opplying the discount rafe fo fhe niet bolance of 1he defined benafil otdgatiznond kol velue of
phoen asesli. Thiscosl s Incluciad Inemployes bansafil expanis in Ihea slofarnant of prodil and s,

Re-measurement comprising:

o Re-mecsurarnant of Actunnal (o oses

0. Rt on plan ossets. excluding amount recognized ineffect of asset caling

Cc  Re-mEanremant Qriging becouse of chonge in oot of gssat coling

ata 1ecognlied in the petiod in which thay ocoul diectly In Other Camprehensive Incame. Re-mecsuramants aie nat reciassifed =0
profit oriogs nsubsanuent pandods

Ind AS 19, Employeas banafils reguires the avarcse of judgrmant In raatkon 1o varous assumplionsinciuding fulurs pay nses. nlicfion
and discaunt rates and employese ana pensioner demographics, The Company detsimines fhe assumetons In conjunation with 5
octuanas, and beleyss thess csumpliond 1o be inline with best plactice. butthe appleotion of difersrt assumptions coudd hove o
sgnifican! affact on ihe amounts relsct=d in fhe ncome stalerman|, ofher compretensive incoms ond balance shes!. Thers mioy
D b Inter-cependency benwesan sorme of the ossumptions,

iy Defined conkribution plan:

Under gefined conhioution plans, fhe Company pays pre-defined amounts fo mepanite funds ond ooes not Rave any kegal of
nformal eblgation fo pay eddifional sums, Defned contibulion glans comprise of conhilbutions to provident fund, Insurence and
Employess’ Penwon Scheme. The Company's payments fo the defined conlilbulion plans ors recogised os axpensas dutlng ine
parod n which the empioveen perform the sevices thal the povment coves
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(xi)

iy Other employes benefits
o Compersolad obsances which oe nol eepacted 10 pocur witin twadve months affer He end of the pedod Inowhich Ine

employes randers fe relaled 1envices are recognised araiatiily at fhe presert value of the cbilgation s af fhe bakonse shesl
date determined baseo on onachusrial vatuotion,

p Undiscounted amount af short-term employee boanefitt cxpected fo be paid in exchanga for the services rendered by
empioyess ans recognited during the peiod whanihe emploves renden The relofed services,

c F.manr.?alnmmdmwdawhmfmw retiremientscheme are chorged to the statement of prolt and kotis cs and when incured,
d.  COrtharberaiits comprising of cscrelionory iong senvics cwdrds ore reécogrired a ond when defermined,

Cument ond Defered hax

Incarms fox cornprisen current ana defared fox Incore Tox expense s recogniged n the satemaent of peofit and fom except to the
atant It ralotes 1o lams diractly ecognieed in @quity of n ol cemprehansivo income, Curent fax s bosad on kot profit for ihae
vear, Toxable profi s differen| from accounting oroft dus fo femporary differences betwsen accourting ana fox rectrnents. and
due to e thot are never toxobile or o deduchitie. Tox provisons are included In cumant labiifies. intemst ond poncifies on tox
babl tias are providad for in the tox charge. The Compary offsats, the cumant fay assets and lobiltles (on ayear on year bosis) whare
It has o legally enforceabis Hight and whare [t Intends to sefis such assate and llebiifies on a net basls o 1o reallse the aeste and
kabithas on nat bene: Defered Ibcgme oy i recegnizad uiing e bolance sheat aporeoch. Dofered inCome o omsats and
babd=ias ore recognizad for deductible ona ‘oxabile termporory differences arising betwean the tax bosa of assetsand liakiifies ord
s camang amount (n finonalal staternerti. Delaredincome fond cssat e rmeogniized fo the extert that it s probaible hart fopabile
profl wil be avalatle againg! which the deductibls lempdiary diffaiznces, and the cairy lorward of unusesd boae credits and unussed
o [ogses Car be ulilzed, Defered 10w assels ore nol recogrised whara it is morne likaly thon nat fhiat the ossets wil nol be ealised n
thi future. The camylng cmount of datemed ncome fax aasets 5 reviewed of soch reporng date and neduced to tha axtant that it b
v longar proboble that sufficlen) foxotle profit wil be avaliobie o allow ol or pod of iha deferred nooma foe asel lo be uikred.
Dafamrsd Incame ok assels and lablifies ars mecured ol (he fax iales 1hal are sxpactad |o dpply in the paetod when the assst i
reciizad or the bobliny 8 setled, based on Tox rates fond to laws} thot nove been enocted o sutstontively enocied of the repormng
date Dafamed fay feme ae racegnizad Incoreiation to the undarlyisg ranseoiion etfhatin Ctharcomprahansihve coma ordirectly

rrenulty.

Impairmant of Assets _

Tre Company oseses al ecsh regarting dale whether thee i any abjective evidancs Iho! a nondinoncial assel of o groufs of nen-
franciol ot arempaied. T ary such Indicotion ez, the Compary aslimalas thie amount ot Impairmant loss, For the purpess of
msassng impairrant. the smalast idestificole group of omat thot genenatas casn infiows fram continuing use thar are largely
noependant of the cosh Inflirws from offver assets or groups of asset s consicderea os o cash generafing unit. if any such Indieafion
airisty, on estimate of the recovercbile amaunt of iha Indiwdual oset/ cash genseating unitismods. Ap impalren! loss s colculgied
ot the dilfsrenca belwasn dn dssel’s canmying amounl and recovaatie amoun!. Lodset e recognisad in prafl! o les and eflectad
n an alowance account, Whan the Campony corsicen that nere ane no reaific prospeats of rmcoveary of the assat, e ralevant
amounts creweilan ol Fite amount of Impalrmen| losssubsequentty gaecreases ong (ha decraise can be reloteo obijectively o an
avenl acouring affer the Impaiment wiol rec ognised, haa the previously recognisd impaliment o ks revassd [hrough prafit of
08

Hnonclal irstrumeants

Finoncial ossets - Initial recognition

Finoncial asseh an recognisad whan 1he Company becairiat a parly ta Ihe conlraciual provisians al the ingliumiants. Financlal
ausats oifer ingn rade recevobiag are inllioly recogrised of fol volue plus transaction cogts for all finonciol assety nol cartied af folr
value through prafil o loss, Hnonclol osais corea af 1o valug thraugh prefit o o ore Inftiolly meognesd ot falr vaue, andl
fransaction costs are expenssd in thestotemest of profitomd lom

Subsaquant measuramant .
FAnonclhal ossats, olher than eaullty instruments, are subseouently meosured of omorlbec cost falr value Ihrough alhar
comprehansve inccmeor o value through prollt o los on tha basis o,

g Thaerity's business mod| o mancaging the finonciel asets; and

b Ihe conhostualcoh fow chamne laties of ihe finoreia) ssal

M Meosued of amorised cost:

A fnanciol cxet B mecswrad of omortised copt. it it s held undar the hold o collect buginass model |8, helo with an objective of
holding Ihe assets fo eofect confractual cash Nows and the cantractual cosh News are seialy paymants of principal ana intarest an
the principal outstanding. Amodised cost b colculated wing the sffective Interest rate (EIR) misthod by faxing info occount any
dscount of premium on ooguisiion and fees o cosls thot are on infegro] port of the BR. The BIR amortisation & Ingiuded 0 intanest
rcome in he slatament of profit and kaee. The lassas atking rom mpalmean| ame recognissd in the slatearsnt ol prollt and less, On
daresagnion, goin o lees. Fany, s recognised to statement of profif and boss,

(i) Meosured of fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCH):

A fnandial cset b meosaed at FVOCH, 11 bekd under the hald 1o eollec? arct sl bositess mocd Le. Feld with an objective to
colec! canfrociual cash tiews and saling sech finonckal cissl and he conlraciual cash fows e sakély payiments of principat and
nfer@st on fhe principal outsiondging. Il 8 subsedquently maasuned ab foll voiue with lalf value movements ecognised n fhe OCI,
except for inferast ncome which recognised usihg effectve inferest rafe memodl. The losses arismg from imporment ara recognsed
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in the sfatsmient Oof profit and 1o On dersoogiition, cumulatie gain of 1o breviously recognead In the OC!k reciossfied from tha
aquity tostotement of protit and loss.

(i) Measuedatialr valua through profit of |oss (FYTPL):

Invesmentin financiol aiset offernon eguty inshument, not maosured ot either amortised cost o IVOC s maagured ot FVTHLL, Such
financiol nssts are meaiured al fai value with all changes in foir value, inc'uaing intereit ncome and cvidend income I any,
HECOgH st i The satemant of Grant ond ioss

Equity Inshruments:
Allirvastrments 0 eguity instrumernts. fany closfied unde: finonciol ossetsore subseauenty measurad of fairvalue,

he Compary recognlies a joss dlowance for Expacted Cradit Losses (ECL) on finoncial oisets thot are mecsurad of cmonised cost
and at VO, The <reditt (ods is difference betwoen oll confipctual cash fiows that are due o an entity In gocordance with the
contmc) and of the cosh fows thal fhe entity expects to rsosve (i, all cosh shortfolls), discountad al tha origing| effeclivs irnfensst
rote, This 5 omassad on on Individuce or collective bosls after corsldenng all reasonolxs ond supportobile Including that which ls
faneand-oaking.

The Carmpany & ade recavablies or conlrac! evenue ecenvabies do nol conbain significant financing companant and
K81 allowonce on frode receivanies |8 meqsures af an amount equdal 1o e time epoected iksses Lo timected cash thartol, being
smpltiegapproach terrecognifion of mporment ioes tllcrwancs

Undest simpifiad approach, the Compony ooos not mock ahangas n crodit k. Romne Hrecognzes imparmant oss ollcwance
nased on fhe liletime Expectac Cradit Losses ol @ach reporting date dght frorm its ol eoognition. The Compary uies o provson
et bo detertming mpairran las allowance on the potfolio of rode receivaliles

Ther provision miakie s based on e ietorooiy obesreed detout rotes over theespactag iz of the ode receivabis and Incdjusted for
furward ieoking sdimaoled. A avey repodling date, the histoncol atsanved dafoull tales ore updoted and chonges in Iha feiwoang-
Inoking estmates are onclvsad,

For financial osselfs other than frade repelvoblen. he Company recognises 12 month expectad cradit iosses for all originalea or
acqulred financal assts 1! ¢l 1he reporting Aale the ceditrisk of the fnancial ause? hus ot increasad sioniicanily since 18 inlfiol
recagnilon The expected cradi omses o maasuted o lfetme sxpectad cred ! lossas | the crackt itk on Snancinl qaset increases
significantty sinoe i inifiol recognition. I, in o suosequent pedod, aredit auality of the instumert imgpraves such that thene s no longet
sgnifican inCrecss It Sred! neas snce milial recagniiion. then the Company reverls forecognizng impaliment s allowanc e Dowed
on 12 montns Expected Cred | osmes

The mpaitrnant |oées and reversas ore ecognned it staterment of profil and loss. For equity mstremasts and fncrckal ossets
meosured ot FYTPL, thers i na requlrerment forimpairment festing,

De-eco

The Company derecognisss a financial asset whan the cartractudl dghts fo the cosh flows from the tocmcial assed sapirs, or f
marstans aghls o recalve cosh fiows froman asset, 1t evaluates if and 1o whot extent i hos retcinad fha rsks onc rawans of cwnership
Whan 1 hes nelther fransferres nor retainea subpanticly of of he fitks ona /ewards of the aess!, nos bansfamsa conirl of the gzl
Fe Compony cortinues o recognine e frorslermed deset totha axtent of the Company s continuing imdolvermant

In tnot cgse, the Compony ot recognisss on assooiated |abillty. The transfared osset ond the ossooioted lability are measurad on
o basts thot teflact tha rghts and abligetions that the Company hasrataingd

Financlal Uabilifes
Initial Recognilion and measuremant

Fnoncial lichiities ars recognised when e Company becomas a party to he confrochua provisions of 1ne ingframents. Fnoncial
sandities ave Initicly recognised at fall value net of fransaction costs for ol financial kabitles not cared of falr vaue tmrough proft of
omn,

The Campony's finoncke kobilites includes frade ang ofner payobiss, loons and bomowings Including bork overgrafis and
detivotive instruments

Subsequen! measuremenl

Fnoncial ioblifes mecsured af amorised cost ore subsequenty measured ot wing B method, Rnancal kabiities cared al for
volue thro ugh profit o iss eesemagsated of falr vialee with oll chonges in fo valua recogrilies in tha statarmant of profit anetoss
Loans & Borrowings

Aftar initol recognifion. inferesr bearing kong and torowings one iupseduently measuned ot omorfised costusing ER method. Gaing
ond losses ore recognysd in profit & los when thelloblitiss ars derecognized aswell as rough EIR amorteation process,

Financlal Guorontes Confrocts

Finonciol guardntss conlroacts sued by the Company ons thoss conhocts thot reguires o paymsnt 10 be mode of 10 rEirmbunis the
nolder for o nss [t incurs becouwe tha speciiied dabilon fal fo make payment when due in occordancs with the tarm of o debl
rastrument, Fnonclal guarantee confracts o recogrized infidlly os o llabiity af fair vohe, odusted for ronsoeton costs that o
deacly ottrbulobis fo thesuoncaof the guorartse.
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Subaquentty, e labilty & meatured af the kighe: of the amourtt of loss alidwanie delemined ai pes Impainment requiremerty of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recopgnized less cumulative odiustrmants,

Da-recognifion

A finarciol looiify b cesecognsed when the cbiigation unider the licoity s discharged o conceliod of espires. Whon an existing
fincaneicl oty ity is repioced by anathar from the sams lencier on substonmally difterent terms. o tha-terrms of an esisting atility o
wastamilially madifisd, such on exchange o modfication 1 recrtad o3 the derecognilion of fhe r_rlrulrrul Bobiity ard he recognificn
of craw labiify, The diference in tharespachive camving amountiisrecognised in tne siatement of profit and loss.

Darivative finoncial instrurmantz & hadge accounfing

The Compony uses demvaive financlal ingtuments, such os forward fareign exchange contracts o heage its foreign currency risxs
Such dervative inaneial retrumels are inifally recognesad of fair volus on e date an which o deivalive canimet s anferad it
and arg iubiseauantly remessuned of foalt valde, with changes in tar value recognsed |n Stolamant of proflt ond o,

Dedvatives ore canles as finoncle assts when Ihe fall value ks posiive ond os financial liobitles whan the falt value b negative. The
Company dasignates thalr darlvatives a2 hedges of forign currancy sk esaciated with fie cash Mows af highly probatile forecas!
‘rantastions dnd wirlable nlaiest rate Hile oetocioted with tha Bomdwinga. ' '

{xdii) Fair Value Measurement
Thie Company measuies financal instruments, such as, dervatves af for value al each balnnce $we! date Fail value s the price
thcl would be recalved fo sl on ossst o pokd 1o tronstar & lability in an oderty drsaclion betwesn markel parlicipanis af e
meassrament dore, The foir volue mecsurement i Dosed an the presumotion Mot the Tonsoction to sel the cmset or fronstan tha
katiity tokes place efthet)

o Intheprincipal mordet forthe asetot iobllity, or

o Inthe aosence of a princlpal mankat, In the most odvantageous moket for the ciset o kabilty The principal or the most
covontogaous marke! must ba docassibie by the Company

The foil vaius of anassat o o lagllity i meosured using the cesumphions thar markst paficoantswould e when pricng the osse! of
kabd ity amsurming that morke! parficipants act n ther econamic best inferest

M tar vale mectwsmant of anon-firiopcicl qsset fokes infe account a maket parficipant’s abiity 7o genenote economic benati
by Lsing Ihieossst inilshighest ond best s o by selng it o onother manest participant that would use the ossst nits highest and beat
=)

Tha Carriparly uses valuation technigues that ore appraprate In ihe clicumslancas and loe which suflicksn] dalo ans avallable o
measure fain value, moxmising the use of relevant observabibe Inputs and minirising e use of unobsenvabia nputs

The Compary wses The ‘olawing hlenrchy %o determning dnd disciasing the falr value of financial Instuments by vauclon
tachnigus:

Lovel 1 Guocted (unodjusted) prices in active mosals fordeniical cesets or hobllHes

Leval 3 Ot tachnke s forwsich all inpuls which have o dgrificant effec) on fheracarded falkvaluz arp obsarinbla slihar direcly
ol Indiractly

Leva| X TEﬂI"ﬂ-'ﬂIqIJES which use Inputs that hove a significant sffect on the recarded fall value thot are not based on obseneble
markal dara.

for cesets and koDiltas that are recognised In the inanciot siatements on a recunng boss, The Company detarmings whagther
rransfarn hove occumed batwean lewals in tha hiemrchy Gy re-assessing cotegoriscfion based on the 'owes avel iInput hat (5
sgnificart totha fairvolue measurement as o whes) ot fheend of each reporting pesiod.

far the purpose of Tor voue disciosuras, the Company nos detarmined clases of cese™ ond labiiles on the bess of tha nature,
chamctedslics and risds of tna asat of bty ond fhe vel of the folr volue Nerarchy as exploned aboye.

{xiv) Provisionand Contingent Liabilities
A provision s recognised whan the Compony hos @ present oigolion s o resull of pastevents and 1 b probebie fhat on gutfiow of
resoutces emboadying economic benafin will be recuirea o seffle ihe abligotion n respect of which a rellable estimate con be
mades Thess ars reviewed of soch baance shisst date and od sted toofiect the curer bast astirmotes,

Contingent Lisbiifies are not recognsed but ore declosed in The noles, Coniingan! Assaly ara nalther reSognisd nos dsciosed In he
fimarciclsalermens,

(xv) Lledsas
Asolessea:
The Company ossessas whethar o controot confaine olaase, ot Incephion of o contract, A contract 8, of conhalns, a leosa if Ihe

contract conveys the nght to cantral tha ute of on | denfified ciet tor g parad o ime In eechange tarcorsidetion.

To asssss whathera controo! corveye tha night to contral the use of anigentilies cisel, 1he Company ossesses wnether
) thecontractnvolvastne wse of anigentified assatl;

{iiy the Comoany has substantially of of he-economic bansdlis rom uge of 1he asa| Ihrcugh Ihe Desiod of Ineieass: and
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(i) the Cormoany has e ight 1o direct the uie ot the assat.

At the dote of commencament of the lecse. the Compary recognlies o right-c-use assed RO ond o conesponding laose llakllity
for all leose cerangamants inwhich Il s o lessea. adcepl ér leages with a lem of hwelve moniths or lass (shart-lermn \eanes) and low
valueieanae, Forthese short-term and low volus leases, the Company recognizas the lese paymants ot on apetating expanse on o
shoeght-ine bos over tha term of the jease

he right-of-use astets are niticly recognized of cost. which comprizes thi inffial oreount of the lecse lablity adusted for ony lemse
caymants made of ar peior to the commencament dote of the lBoss plut ony inifinl disect costa kess any leoise Inecentivel They as
aequenty meosured of oot kss aooumulgted depreciotion and impdlirment Kases.

Certain lsose arangenents Inchides the options o extend or fermindate he leass Detore thieend of fhe isose teem. ROLU aziete and
lacise Habilltes ncludes Ihesa cotions whan I s eosonably cartoln thet Thoy il be exarcissd.

feght-cuae aeals ors daprecialed fram Ihe commeancarman! dale an o sleaghl-bre bosk aver the sherter of Ihs leoms Jarm and
useul Ife of the Lndeyng cssol, Rignt of use asse are evaluated fof recovesctlity whenever avents of changes in croumstonces
ngicate that thair camying amcurts moy not ba meoviarmble. For e purpese of iImpalrment hesting. the recavaratie ool (e,
the higher of the falr vaiue lesi cost to sel and the value-in-use) |s determined on an individual csset bast undess the osset does not
generate cash flows that are laegely Independent of those from offer asaets, In such cases, Thie recovenalse amou b defermired
for iha Cosh Garergting UniH ICGU Y o which 1he Desed beiongg

This lease lletdity s nially messured df omotiies cost af fha presant value of the fulure lease cayments, The lease payments arme
decounted using e interest rate iImolici! in 1he leass o, I nol eadily determinable, using 1he Incremental Borowlng raltes in ine
courtry of gomicle of fhese loozes. Leose Ioblios arg remeasured with o conasponding ogjustment fo tha reddied fight of use asset
i tha Campary changes s assessment T whislha it will asercins an exlessan o o lemmination opfian,

Lercsa llaaballity caned ROU axsel hove bean sspamtely, presaniad in 1he Balance Shaat and lease povimeants have been clxssfled os
francing 2o hows

As alessor:

Lecss ircoma from oparaling lecses where the Comrpany & a lesol & recognized in ncamie an o sfraighitline bass over ine lease
tarm unlgss tha racaints ore sruciuned o increasae in ino Wit axpectad gonoral inflotion (1o compangata for the excodTod Inflationoey
continceamsas. The saspec Tve leosed cesafraraine luded in the bolonca shast bosea an their nature.

fiasad or Campary's assassman!, the confracisentered o by the Company do nof contain o lease as specified above or fhey are
alther shesrt ferrn of o value leases: Therefone, thase have bieen oocounted os per other applicable accounting strandarnds,

{xvi} Segment Reparting .
Creiafing segrments ote repared in e manner consitent wifh the Infernal repoding provided to Thlel Opendating Declslon Maker
(CO0M).,

Tha Company nas keentfied it Manogng Deactor s COOM wha s reepongiie 'or ologaning resources ond osiesiing performanco
of i@ opanfing segmants and makes strafegrc declsinns,

(xvil) Earnings per shata
fanc earnings per shore are coculated by dividing the nat profit or less for the perod atiibutable fo equity share halkders (affer
deducting prefesence divicdends, |1 any, and atibutable toxes) by the welphled averoge nimber of equity shares oltstarding
during the perod. Far the purpose of colcibaling dilutad ecming per share, Ina net ool o ke for tha period attibutobie 1o equlty
iarehalders ond the weighted averoge number of shares auistanding during the paried are odjusted for the stfect of al diufve
paten ol equity thares,

(xviii) Cash and cosh aquivalents
Cosh and cah equivatantl include cash and chegus In nand, bark balonces, demoand deposti with bonke and ofrar shor-fekm
neghly bgued mvastrments thot ona readiy convertlole fo known amounts of casn ond which are subject fo an Inegnificont risk of
changesin volue whete ariginl mcahurihy s three marite or less

Coshiiows are repormedusng the indirect melhod whemsby me profit before fon s ogjurted fos the eftectaf ha ransachons of anon-
cash nature; any deterrals of occrual of post and future openating cash recelpts or paymenty and tems of Income or ekpenses
awzocioted witn investing or finonting cash flows. Tha cash fows from operoting, investing ond finaircing achivifies of the company

org egra(laian.

() Botrowing Costs
Ganaral drd speciic borrowing cogts that are dec!ly offiicuiable o the acquision, consuction or praduction of qualifying
mmsets are coptalized o3 o pot of cost of thot osset, duing the peslod tii gll the activities necessay o prepate tha qualitying
assats forlls Inkended use o ok are complets, Sualiving osssty o asets that necessarly toks o sutstontial penad of ims o
et re0dy for ined infanded ule or ks,

Oithier bottowing cosh are retognized of an sipetes in 1ha pediod Ihwhich they are ibcumed

() Excephonol hems _
Whien an flem of iIncame or expende wilhn profit or loss from oramary acfivity |5 ot ruch site, noture of Inclgance thal thelr
decioaurs o elevart 1o explain the parfomancs of he Company for fie yeor, the noiure and amaurt of such ams (& discibsed
o axcaplional iTerns,
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Parficulars Freehold Bulldings Font&  Fumitiee  Venicle Office  Elechical  Tolol
Land equipman! & Flxhues aquipment Ingtallations
At cost | deermed cor
zrass Block
Bolance o al 1sf Apel 2023 11692 35928 284404 3.50 a.92 11.84 M05 338255
~Adathons 9202 32,43 421 786 1alig
Pecuctions; Adjustment 62,05 - 0.08 62.13
Bolonge as of 31et March 2024 1692 35928 287460 3.50 41.35 15.98 3851 45304
Additions . B05.25 0.5 1.63 3413 A1 28
BaciicHona Agugtment 6823 Ha23
Balance os of 315 March 2025 11692 35028 341343 185 4133 1751 7284 4,225 18
Accurmuloted Depreciation
Balance as ot 1st Apeil 2023 . A1.81 501.76 1.70 411 7.00 18.48 616,82
Addriond 20,40 | 75,73 0.2 291 2:13 .18 203,064
Deductions’ Adjustment - - &0.56 - - - - 60,36
Bolonce os al 31 March 2024 - 104,21 &§17.13 1.99 7.02 213 20588 740,10
Addrons 1137 195.21 030 362 250 3.24 22224
Daducnons’ AdjJsiment - 54.84 - ) - - S4.84
Botonce as ol 315 March 2025 - 121.58 757.50 229 10.64 11.63 2350 927.50
Nel COMYINg oMo
o3 gt 3lst Morch. 2004 114.92 25507  2,75948 1.52 2433 454 1785 24205
Nal cormying armount
o3 ot 3st March, 2026 116,92 23770 2854673 1.55 0.7 587 £874 BRIV AT
fatar Mot | 51or the datally inrienest oF cartain propamy, Sior ond saqupimont fryeathocated Mot goged ot secumty for Domowings
Parliculars As ot Ay at
315t March 2025 315! March 2024
4  CAPITAL WORK-IN-FROGRESS
Hant and saulpmeant undes Instoiction” 578,29 4781
Buliding undar conghucion .
TOTAL &678.29 47.81
*Refar Nole 18 for ke defoll In respct of cedain propesty. planl and equipmenl hypoltecotad/margaged oy securtity for
Domowings.
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AGEING SCHEDULE
Parliculars Less than | yeor 1-2 years 2-3 years  Meore than 3 years Totai
As af 31sf Morch'2024
Projects n progres - ; :
Prafach femporaily suicandad
Total - - -
As af A1st March 2025
PIoects mprognes: &89 GRS
Projects temporamily susoanded - - -
Total 4784.29 - - - &78.29
5.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS Software TOTAL
Gross Block —_—
Bolance os af 18t Apell 2023 292 202
Addtions :
Deductions [ Adjustments - -
Bolonce os ol 31s! March 2024 292 292
Addtions . .
Ueductions / Adjustments g )
Bolonce os of 318t March 2025 292 292
Accumulated amortisalion
Balance as of 1st Apell 2023 2.79 279
Amarteafion charge for The yeor 013 013
Daductiors | Ad|ustmants - -
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Parliculass Asat As at
315t March 2025 315t March 2024
Accumulated omaorisation o8 af 316l March, 2024 .92 292
Amotisalion charga for the veor - -
Creductons / Adjuntrents .
Accumulated amortisation as of 315t March, 2025 252 g2
Net canrying omount as at 31st March, 2024 - -
Nel carrying omouwnt as of 31st March, 2025 - -
& INVESTMENTS - NON - CURRENT
Irvestments in Mutuol Funds ot NAV) -Unspuciad, lly paidkup (Refar Mot 39) - D0 48
Invesiment in an asodiate (Refs Nate 40 41153
TOTAL 4,115.3] 96048
7 LDANS
Unsecured, conagersd good
Advance to emgloyses 148,05 .05
TOTAL 14,04 P09
B OTHER AINANCIAL ASSETS
Uremcuied. consiniared good
Secutity Depasits 147,14 16452
TOTAL 167.18 164,42
¥ OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Ursaouwnad, consigensd good
Capital Advanre 56,72 0.04
Frepald Expenssy 7.02 7.03
oAl 63.7 93.29
10 INVENTORIES
Row matedoh BS54 24 1.116.74
Wod-nsprogress 1477 61 I 516,47
Finkrad goods 185574 143315
Stared & Spares 427,78 Se4.08
TOTAL 4 657 37 4465043
lHefar Note 2(v)
MNobe: Mo irventoriss writtan cowry duning the yaar dnd In tha presdous veor
11 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Tade Fecenvobles considersd good - Unsecured 2484.7) 2. 19052
Trads Recevables which have significont
Irads Recevolles - cradlt mpoired 28] 28]
Laty Allwances lor sxpac!ed creail s (2 A1) (2A1)
10TAL 2484.20 190.52
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE;
Qutstanding for lollowing periods from due date of payment
Particulars Nol Due Llesss than 6 months More than  Tolal
& months -1 yedr 3 yeon

As al 318t March'2025
il Undisputed Trode recavables - consdaea good 191017 57200 402 281 248101
il Undisputed Trade Recaivables -

which have significan] increoss in ciadl Rk
iy Unaigputed Triode Recehabiles — cradil impaied - (281) (@81
W) Dlptesd Tiodds recswables = canmlclesd good - - -
W) Disputed Trode Recevables <

which hove sgnificant incraass in cradit Msk
vii  Disputed Troda Recevables - credis impored

Total 191017 572.00 203 - 2484.20

Qutstanding for laliowing periods from due dote of payment

Parficulars Not Due Llassthan & months 2-3  More than  Tolal
émaonths -lyear years  years 3 yeons

As gt 31st March'2024

0 dndispulad Treds meoshvobles - conadatea good 182787 56245 - 28 219333

i Undisputed Trode Recatvables -

which hove sgrificcnt incress in credit Risk
liy  Undisputed Trode Fecelvables - cragit mpained
Wl Dmputed Trode recanabies — conldesd good
Vi Olspikad liode Recanvabies -

whizch hove sgnificent ncrecse in credit Mk

vil  Dispured Trode Recevabias - crodit imparod

{281y (281)

Total | 82787 56245 - . 219052
Particulars As at As at
4151 March 2025 3131 March 2024

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bors Dalance In cunant occounts f.00 654,18

Cosh an harnd 1003 1§

TOTAL 19.03 41,74
13 BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN ABOVE

In Dividend aceounts 22.30 2051

In Depogits ocoounts 406 L ERLOY

TOTAL 26.34 1.553.70
id LOANS

Ursscued, consitiened poda

Loan o amoloyeas 4598 N2E

10TAL 45,58 025
15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Wrisscuradt, consioanad good

SECUNTY deposty 440 518

Chee Recalvoble 07 92 -

Inferest aochusd aon Med depaonliz 0.04 e021

TOTAL &7 44 105.39
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Panlculars Asal As at
315t March 2025 d15t March 2024

it OIHER CURRENT ASSETS
Uns=oured, consicensd good

Anivancss (o sunolisn 22342 10743
Frapaid 2249 37.06
Boiarces with govatnme! authicnties ., 591
TQTAL 247 53 154 40

1Ta EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Aulhorsed Shag Conliol,

| 0000000 equity shores of £ 10 eoch 100000 1.000.00
L0000 000 9% cumulabive redesmaoble preference shares of Tl eoch | 000 00 000,00
TGTAL 2,000.00 2,000.00
wsuad, Subscibed ond Paid up
60,49 587 equilty shares of 110 ecch, fully pald 0494 H04.58
Fortalhed shoms 0oz oor
TOTAL 405.01 605.03
i) Reconcilation of Ihe number of shares outstanding and the amount ol shara copital al The beginning and al the end ol the
reporting period:
2024-25 2023-24
Parlic ulors No. of ghares Amount Mo, ol shores  Amount
Foulty shates of the baginning of tha yaar G049587 40456 A049 587 ADARE
Add | Shored ssued duting [He yecar . -
Less © Sharas bought bock during the yoor . . . '
Equily shares outstanding at the end ol year 6,049 687 40496 6,049 687  604.96

{iiy Terms/righls attached to equity shores
Tha Company has only one clots of equly shargs having o par value of T 10 per shore. Foch holder of eoully shares s enfiliad 10
ane vata per sharg, Tha Company dediares and pays dividends in ingion ripeed. The dividend peopasod by the Board of
Okeclorn s subjest to the opproval of the snarenaldensin Ihe ensuing Annual Ganeral Mesting In the event of the lguldalion of
thix Carrpany the holdars of eouty shames will be enlilled 1o recaive the remaning csteh of the Company In propertion o Ina
rimibeEt Gf e Bands el

(i Details of sharss hald by Ihe holding /associate company-

2024-25 02324
Particulars Ne,ofshores Amouri  No.ofshares Amount
Manser Jelkoe indio Privoie Limicted 2423371 247 23 2683419 25834
Autiol Molchiss and Timbér Indushiles Private Urdtad 2113870 21129 2113870 2139
Total 4537191 45372 4 697 48% 44975

(iv) Equity shareholders halding mare than 5% of equity shares along with the number of equily shares held Is as glven below:

N24-25 2023-24
Particulars No. of shores % Mo, ol sharas b
Alonear Jelco ind o Frivaho Limibedg 2,423 321 &0 (b 25835819 4271
Ashiok Melehes and Timbear industiles Private | mitsd 2113870 a4 G 2113870 404
Total 4537191 75.00 4.4697 489 7165
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(v} Delalls shateholding of pramaler and % changes in the holdings durng the year

2024-25 2023-24
Particulars No. of shares %  No ol shores % Y%of
change
Flanesr Jelkce nda Private Limred 2423321 a5 06 2583619 4271 0.20%
Ashok Molches and Timber Indusitles Privale Limited 2113670 M 2113840 afa 000
Total 45379 75.00 4,597 489 17.45

Note

A5 per letter daled Seplember 09, 2024, Picneer Jelice India Frivate Limited, ane of Ihe Promolers of Narmada Gelalines
Limited (the 'Company'), sold 160,298 (One Lakh Skly Thousand Two Hundred and Ninsty EIgnl) equily shares of the Company
naving a face vaiue of "10 each (reprezenting 2.65% of e tofal lued apd pad-up eguity share capial of the Company),
fiuough an Offer for Sale (OFS) conducted via the desgnated window of 85€ Limited The sale wasunderfakenin accordance
with SEBI circular po. SEAHO ! MAD/ MRD-FoD-3/P/CRIZ023/10 dated January 10, 2023 on Whe ‘Comprehensive Frameworon
Offes Tor Sale (OFS) of Shares through Steck Exchange Mechanism' Consequent to the said sale, the sharehaiding of Lhe
PFrompterand Fromaoter Group hasreduced from 77 65% 1o 75 00% of tng paig-up equity share capital ofthe Company *

(vi} Aggregatenumberofsharesafiotied asfully paid up'hjr way of bonus shares during the last five years
Durng thelast five finmancisl years, the Parent Company hasnot alolted any bonusshares

ivil) issue of shares lor consideration other than cash
Curinig tha praceding five fnancial yaars. tha Campary Bas nol Bsuss ary sare (or consdesation affwear ihon Sosh

{viil) Dividend paid ond proposed (Refer 45(c))

i7Th OTHER EQUITY
Parliculars Reserves and Surplus Ottt Total
Comprehenilve
Income
Copital Securilies Genarql Relained Ra-measurement
Resarva Premium Rasarve Eamings o the dafined
bensfil plans

As at 15! April, 2023 .51 425.37 2.320.60 5999.84 2n 8,781 80
Proft for the year - 1 53z58 - | 83294
Dither Compranansive [noome 1o the yeo - - - . (7.3 27134
Ap al 31st March, 2024 751 42537 2.329.60 753282 (5.12) 10,289.44
Profit for the yoor . . - 172094 . | 720,94
Ot Comprehanaive Income for fie yeor - . - (6. 19) {6, 19)
Dividand paid - - . (60 04} - {404 06}
As at 3st March, 2025 751 13537 2329.60 8.444.80 {(71.32) 11,339.23
Purpose of the Reserves:
Sacurifies Premium; Securities premium & credifed when shores are Isusd at préamium. This will be ulifsed in accotdanoe with tha
prowvisions of theAat

Generol Reserve: The Canam) resanss is creled by woy of frande of profits from relained eamings (o aboropriclion pupoases. This
reserve 5 utlad in cccordance with tha provisions of the Act,

Retained Eamings: Reloined earmingi ore the profifi fhial fhe Campany hos eameaa il dat, les ony monsfas lo penaral reseve;
cividends arothar distibutions pald to shareholdan
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Particular: As al A at
A1t March 2028 Ji51 March 2024

18 BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT

Fram ogank

lerm Lowan® TRE.D8

Less Cunant Malurities of Long tarms bofowings { 1%5.00)
TOTAL £03.08 -
"Term loan

= Torm loon one secured Dy O fimt rorkong por-possy. hypathacotion, Exciusve change an fhe ossels created oul of the termn joon,
Repayabla in &0 ecual manihly instalments(refes bedow), RBote of Infement -8.20% p.a (previaus yeor i)

Repaymend Schedule
Foiculan As o Asal
318l March, 2025 315t Maich, 2024

From Bank:

|2 Yaars 195 0

2-3 Yaors 195 00 -
3-£ Yaars 195 00

4.5 Yacin I'7) .85

&4 Years 4).16

Total outstanding Borawing 798.02 -

19 PROVISIONS {(NON-CURRENT)
Perzion |9 68 2148
TOTAL 1998 21.48
20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Caf@mired Tar Liakiifes (Mat) A0S 5Y A3 88
TOTAL 409.89 431.88
(N Tha maar camponant of INComa 15x axdanss o af fodows:

Padiculans Year anded Yeor ended

315t Maueh, 2025 31sl Masch, 2024

Cuwmant ncoma oy charge aall. i Sn.00
Detered fox

Relating o edgination and mvesal of femparary diffarsncas 2ee i1y
Income tox expense reported In salemant of profil or loss 55801 Ged B4
Reconcllialion

Accounting proft/ (loss) before incoms fox 227894 2.057.81
Enocted rax rode in ncin 25 17% 250,17
Computad fox akpanse 573.461 517.95
Differences dus lo

Expansas not decuctibls lor fox purposes (1643 7598
Obhars | (33 {11

(15,600 .85

Current Incoma Tox axpensas recognised in Proft or Loss 558.010 h2d A3
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() Oolered tax relates fo following:

Recognised In Bolance Sheal Recognised in Profit of Loss
As ol

Porficulors As ol Year ended Year ended
18t March 2025 31sl March 2024 318t March 2025 313t March 2024
Accalerated depreciation for o purpese {d18.60 (425.19) (6,59 {15.04)
Expensos alibwonla on paymant botl 872 8.53 0.9 025
Foir valuation of finangal insthumants . {1522} (1520 16,42
Dafered tox assel [ (Tabiily) {40988} (£31.88)
Nel (income); sxpenss 21.99) (0.17)
Pariculars Asal Al at
315t March 2025 215t March 2024
21 BORROWINGS
From Banks
dank el (Reter Nole below) 1 86
Cenh Cradl Foclly (Refer Nole bisiow) N72.26 -
Cungr Moatudties of Lomg hern Dorowings 19500 -
_ 669,12 P—
Bank Overdraft
Tha ovandraf foclity b sacured ogaoingt bonk caposfis
Cosh Credi

- Cosh Cradl 247226 Lokns (pravicas yeor nil). Primary Secury-Exclusive chargs on anive curren! assals (presant ond fuiure),
secondany Colkateral- Nil- 12 months, repayalie umpsum on gamand Rote of Irterent-8, | 5%hp.a (D yiows yearni.”

22  TRADE PAYABLES
Total cutthanding dues of micro and small enlerpaes o51.86 H3.86
Tolal oulstanding d.ss of creciios athar than 746 A5 1.384.43
rricro and smidll srferprihes

TOTAL 1,718.71 1,442.28

Tha Management has ldantifled entermrises which hove provided geods and services (o the Company and which quallty uridas he
gofinttion of rcro, sraall and modium enterpases, os defineg uncar Micro, Smol ong Medlum Entonorises Devesoprmant Act, 2D0&.
Accordingly, o dscitems In espech of tho omaunts peyobio 10 such anterprises hos been moadds in theg inancad materrsnts bosed
on nformoton mesived and ovalobs with Ine Campary, which & misd upon by the gudliiore. Futher I Mg view of I5e
moragement, ra impact of irtersd. [f any. thar may be poyable n accardonce with fhe provisiors of the Act k notepacted fobe
matarial.

i The prncipal omount culsionding o of the yoor and AL
iy Poncipal emount due ond remaning ungoid

i) wrerest dueon (1) abdve and e unpoid interest

) infarest paid an ol galoyed payments undes the WEMELD Aot

vl Paymant mode beyond the appcinted day duing the yeor

vl Inferest cue and payable for the perdod of delay other than (v} albove

Wity Irferast ooonsed and remoming unpog

vil) Amount of furthar intesas! mmoining due ond payable
N At Ceaoing yeon

* I nchudes omount povakla in e nalure of copital craditon omaunting 10373 Lok (previcus yeor nil
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Farticular: At at A% at
315t March 20285 a 15t March 2024
Trade payables ogeing schedule:
Quistanding for ioliowing periods from due dole of poymen!
Parficulars Nol Due  Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
| year  years yeor 3 years
As af 315t March'2025
0 Unkdiled
0 Micmo and sroll entenpniss 951.85 951.84
iy Credilomn otfier thar rrcto and smoll enlerprises 757.80 L 450 0.64 T&4.85

vl Dhputed gues - Micro gang small erterpdasss - - - - . -
W) Dispured cuss oiher hon micro and smol enterprises

Total - 1,709 44 3.80 459 0.64 1.718.71
Az at 3sl Mareh'2024
0 Unbilles 24.78 . - - Q474
I} Micro and sl enterprises . o385 - - - S3.85
iy Cradilon other than e and wmal enlerpriss 128473 159 0,78 7 04 1.28%.15
W) Depured duse - Micio ong smcl enbepesss - - : - - .
v Dliputed duss othier than micro and small snbeprses : - . 500 .00
Total o4.28 1,338.58 1.59 078 704 144228
Particulars Year ended Yaar ended
SistMarch 2025 oS1stMarch 2034

23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Security deposts 8.10
unpaid dividend' a0.30 2061
Addvancss from cuslomean 11237 14149
TOTAL 142.77 182.10
"1 ,85,00 (F.F- MNIL) Transtamed to Invastor Education ana Protachon Fund undar Sactian 125 of the Companies Act. 2013 as af yegr
erd.
24 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues poyable 21,20 731.23
TOTAL 271.20 237.23
25 PROVISIONS
Sty R L¥.T; 49,44
Compersalad obreinces 141 31.11
Persion 018 9.55
TOTAL 128.24 90.42

26  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
aale of Monufacturad producti {net of recates ana discounts)

zalcitine 1402783 13.780.7
[PCP - orimal teed glacde 4 {09 2% A1 6D
Bone medd produc's 2404 2847
Other Operaling Income
Sale of sorpy Coal ash |2.22 1257
Export Incantivas and duly drawlock 014 &l
[Jobiities na iongar mouied wittan back (Nef) 10.93 2395
Miscelanesuss income a.73 655
NET SALES 18.852.07 18,179 .54
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
315t Mareh 2025 315t March 2024

47 OTHER INCOME
Interast nooma

From Lanks @6.0 8439

From atters (KA K 115.18 18.05 104 44
Lhange Infalr yoiuation of curant ( Ron-CLIrn
irvestmente in mitud] funce 49 47 5AAG
Soiit on depesal [ discad of proparty.
cfonl ond egulpmert (MNel) 040
TOTAL 145 25 141,09

28 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

oW Martarals
Opening Steck 1.116,74 L3163
Addd . Purchses 1714463 10,427.54
Lesy ; Closing Stock Ahh.24 1.116.74
Raw matarals consurmed 11 A3 10,844 43

2% CHANGE IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND S1GCK-IN-TRADE

Cpsning Shocks
Finshed Eoods | £33 16 1.213.06
Work-in-progress 151647 294963 10209 261614
Closing Stocks
rirshed Goods 188574 13316
Work-n-progress AT S| 33335 1 bigd? 204943
Nel {increase) [ Decrease (423.72) (334.49)
30  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Sargriag ond woges | 360.72 | 26458
Conhitunion 1o provident ond oiher lunds S0 0 19414
Etaff wallore axponzss 53.43 3125
TOTAL 1.418.21 1.491.95
41 FINANCE COS5TS
inferest expanse on bomowlngs 104,79 005
Oither botrowing costs |5, 2 25.85
TOTAL 122.05 2591
32 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Uepreciotion & Amofisation experse 22213 203,54
TOTAL 232.23 203.64
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Paniculars Asal A5 at
315t March 2025 d15t March 2024

33 OTHER EXPENSE

Conmnsumtion of sharsd and spiam poris 12685 105.7%
fortes ana towes (othat than koses on incame) o8 159
Effluent expenaes 206 nwd
Eround woter cbsthochon chargas 2592 26 bd
Irsrance b7 2225
Repar Cnd manfenance
Buldng gl 1463

-Fant and agquipment 40807 K247

= (ihet Répoin 1317 62197 0.0 S
Leqol ond peoisional chorges 1357 %45
Auditon’ remuneration (“Re'er note below) 617 G.44
Fraight and dalivery chargeas | 18,65 120,11
Cammission 10 seding agants 1005 883
Rent 1584 |5 43
Travaling 1415 16,12
Achertinarmer 1148 350
esaarch ong DevaloDment axponsas 1395 19.15
sunary bolances written off AR
Dyrecton Foe 866 ol
Fongign exchongs loss: 012 0,19
Comorate sockl eeponsiblity sxpenditune 3411 2572
hMscelanaous expenssg 85 15150
T0TAL 137681 1,154.14
Aldon” Remunsnticn’
Statutory audi leaes (Inciuding imied eview leos) d4.00 & .00
Ten Auait 1.00 .00
Cthier cemfcaon fees oar 0.36
Reimbursament of oul of pockat expenies 1.0 1.08
TOTAL 617 644

34 DISCLOSURE PURSUANTTOIND AS - 19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS'
B Gratully: In occordance with the applicable aws, the Company proviaes for gratuty, o defined benedt refiement plan (The
ety Pan') covering eligible smoloyess. The Gratully Plan providss for o lump sum payrment to vested employees on rafiremen
sutyec! 1o compration of fiva yoan of confinuous empicymant) . death, incopoeciiafion or lermnofion of emialoyment that ore caseg
an ot deawn salony and tenure of employrrant, Labilbes with regard 1o the Gratiilty Plan are determined by ochuatal valuallon on
Ine reponting date ana the Company makes annual contribition to the gratully fund odministersd by Us insutaoncs Corparalion of
Ircha under SoUp Sty Scheme.

The disclonte nregpect of fre defined Giatuity Panana given below:

A Balonce Sheat
Defined banafit plans
As ol A al
315t March, 2025 31l March, 2024
Prassnt value o plon labiiss 419.43 183 58
Falr walue of pion asets 0275 33392
Asset/ (Liability] recognied (116.47) (49.66)
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Particulars Asal As at
J1st March 2028 4151 March 2024
B.  Movemenis in pian assets and plan lobiities Presant vaiue of Fair Volue of
abligations Plan ossats
As of 18t April 2024 38353 aaae2
Cument saneoe oost AL
Adustronnt In oparing oaloncs
Pasl sanvice cobl :
Interart Cogl/Incorne) 27.58 24.00
Retum on plar osssts excluding Intsrsst Incorne - 0.45
Aetucmial {galn)/iots arging fram changes in financiol ossurmpoilions 2228
Aefuardal {pale)loss arslng due lo changs In damographié assurmipshions -
Aciuaric (goin)/ioss arising from sxpsience adustments 44,34 -
Employer contributions . 20465
Benafil poyment: (122N 920
As at 315 March 2025 415.40 302 75
As at 1st April 2023 340.54 307.94
Cunant sarvice cost 16,90
Acfustrient in opering Dalance -
Hash senvios cos!
Intasast Cost/incorna) 2523 2.8
Retunm on pior assets exciuding Inlamest Income 1.82
Actudrial (galn)/lods anslng from chonpes in fifonciol assurnphions 18.32
Actuarial (Gain)/los atiting due 10 changs In demograohic assurmnpticn 0.33
Aciuceic {gain}/lcss aridrg from exparence odjustments 10:.4%
Emplovar canfribunars . 3260
Beanafit poymien's (3128 (31.28)
A at 315t March 2024 383.53 jaez
Statemeant of Profil and Loss
Employee Benefit Expanses
Cumrant Senace Cost 20 5% 19,50
Intesest Cost A57 241
Pant Service cosl (vested benefingd
Nal Actuorial (Galn) / Loss
Inferest cosl{income) - -
Tolal amount recognised In Stafement of profit & loss 24,49 2.3
Remeaasurement of the net defined banefit Babiliihy:
Achuonal {Gain ¢ Los recognises for tha panog o6 44 .15
Azt Imilh effec . -
Retum on plan ossets excluding net Iiterest oLAS) (1.an
Urrecognesd Actuaral (Gan)/ Loss from previous pesod . -
Tatal amount recognised in Other Comprehansive Income 66,19 27.34
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D

Assumphions
with the abective of prenenting he plan aseh and plan kdbllities of ihe dedned benafits plans of theal fait vale on the balanes
shaat, assurmplions under Nd A5 19 ore set by referance to markest conditions al | he voluohion gota

Particulars As at As at
J1gt March 2025 15t March 2024
The significant actuaniol asturnpmions wera o [oflows:
Financial Assumptions
Cecourd rate Gl 1%k 7. 1%%
Salary Exaloton Role
Monagamant Emgioyees B0 B, 00%
Nar-managemeant Employess B0 7 00%
Demeographic Assumplions
EBxpected Averoge remainng working ives of employess inno. of yeors
Monogement Empinyesas |4 14
Mom-managemant Employeas & 'f-
Maorality Role IALM (2012-14) AL (2012-14)
Urban Urban
Attittion Rate
Monogement Empioyess 1% 1%
Noo-managemant Emploveas &% %
Retirement Age &6l &0
Adpsted Average Future Satvices
Senaifivity
Thir seraiviny of fhe overal plar abllfes to changes In five welghted ey cssumptions are
impact on defined benelit abligation
Chanpe in  Increasa in Decraase In
QssUm kan
Dcount rale +1% 0200 a7
Salary Escolotion Role + 1% 218 (2015

ke sarsitivily cralues obove hove been détermined bosed on regsongtily possile changss of the Iedpeciive aisumplions
occumng al the end of 1ha reporting pedod and may not be epreseniaive of hs aciual change. It o based on achange in 1he ey
mssumption whie holaing ol othar assumplions conalanl. Whan calculating (ha sarsitivily 1o The cisumgtion, ma jameae mathod wscl
to calcuiala 1hallabbily recogrisad in tha balonca sheal has bean aoplied. Tna mathad:s ond types of adsuriplions Ussd inpreparning
the sanstiviy analyss did notchange compared with the previous parad,

iy Compensoted Absences: Tha Campany parmils ancashman! of carmpansafad dixsencs gccumulatad by [hei amployeas o
rafirement, ssparalhan and duing The colse of senice. The lat:ity inrespec! of the Company, Tes sutilonding balance of laave af
e baloncasheat dote s defermined ono provdea on na boss of actuarol valuallan pafformad Dy an indepandent actuary

Ihe disclosurs inrespect of the defined Compensated Absences ars gven below!

Pamiculars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 315t March 2024

Euvpanse recognisad in stalamean! of prafit and loss J.44 2413

Baolancs thest llability 1.41 101

iii) Pension

Thia ietiremint penetits pension will b e amaount of INR 585 par cnonth for on ermployee only affer refiing from e orgonéotion
and ifservics renderad by the emplojes i 25 yeas and above of the time of retirement, A perslonst may opt on ogtion fa cammuts
NI 34,000 g8 o urmp sum onge in ltetime. Affer commutalion of pengon mamzer won T get any monthiy pension. it ony empicyes
aapina hin/ner spouse will gat mosurm bensefit of INR 34000, thereafter no moenihly pansan will be poyable. Liatility determined and
provided an fhe bass of octuadal voluation perfprmed by o independent octueary. The disclosure I respact of pension lialility are
ofven b

Pariculari Asal A at

315t March 2025 J1st Mareh 2024
Sapensed [ {gain) ecognisad n statemert of profit and foes £,10 48]
Balance shiest (kblity 3014 3113
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5

3

Pariculars Year ended Year ended
15t March 2025 315t March 2024

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Estimicitad amoun] of canrac! emaining 1o be executad on 131 1.4 10,79

coptal occount not peavided for

Less Copital advancas pald Ihere apaing 5472 .08

Capital Commitments 1,254, 74 340.7%

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Claima no! ocknowledged os delly (sxcharg hrther mirsst 7 any)

Income Hae maters®

Excine duty 240,88 240,68

fiales tox . 3.78

Lond rgvanie coss 1414 14,14

*'rn‘r._tl. 268,78 258.74

Moles

iy The Compory's pending itootion: comptise many clolms agains! the Compony, procaadngs panding with Tox and ofhet
auinonties. The Campany ho reviswed o i parding Higolions and procasdngs and has made adesauate provalons, wharsver
raguined anc daclosed he conlingert lablites. whetevier spoioatie, In i financlol stadements, The Company does not easanobly
axpect the oulcome of fhese processings 1o hove a maleial impact on g financlal stalamarnts:

() CIncome lax mattar refoted fo cssasmen! yaor 201314, resulfad n depuied tox desnand of 7 85 locs arkan on occoun| of
disdliowancs of adaficnul deprecation clomed which & d mistoke apparerd from records agoinst which the Compary's
rectification coptootion/cppeaal s perding. The Management i conlidont that this deputed demand will get reversed or ractited in
chue counse and hance, nat consdemad o conlingant liobditias,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS _ _ o

Eranprsa whan the control axists Relotionship Ceosed lo be the reloted party#
Jurrdso Wioild saldings Limited Utimars Holding Compariy 14 .07 2023

Afformont (Maurifies) Limitad Holding Campany 1407 A23

Clher relaled parfies - (ceased fo be reloted party we.l 14,07 20234)

Acamon Maragement Sarices Pyl Lid., Darchali Invastmants & Trading Co. Pyl Ltd,, Frestormn Electronics Corporabian Py, Lid,
WL Propedies L., Homshll Findease & vastments Pyl Lid,, Jumbo Blectmonlcs Camparalion Pul, Lid., Jumbio Investmeznts Lid., Jurnba
Word Hotdhngs (nigia) Pyt Lid. . Prima Erterpriies Py Uid.. S8MIN Enginears Lrd, . Srorfire Investments Lidl, Plous investrrants Pyt Lid,

Enleiprise where the contiol exisls Relotionship with effect framd

Panssr Jelice Inda Fibvate Umited Assccinte Ca 1407 2023

Ashok Matches ord Timber Industies Private Umitee Associote Co 14.07.2003

Koy manogerial pasonnel

v, Ashiok Keapur Maonaging Disgier .

Wl AL Joueeel Chigl Fnancial Officer (w.e.f 15.03.2075)

Ms. Mahirma Patkor Compary Secralary (w.a.1 07.08.2024)

M. Mohash Varma Chiaf Fnonclal Officer {Camed fram sandeez tow.e f 07.01.2025
M. Mesnu Shorma Compary secretary (Ceased from snvices fo wel 28.062024)
Nan-Executive Directon

Wr 5, Annornoiol®

W 5. Mahaesworan*

W, B\Vioyadural®

M. Monimegalal Thangomon”

M, K Krishnomoorthy

b Pkt M Nere*

Wi, Rovingra k. Rije

Mrs. Drushti R Desar®

M. Calinang on ™

*w.el 14.07.2053. "uplo 14072023
Refer nota 1 Talvi(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 202:4-25




# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
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Particulars of ransachion and outstanding balonces with related porties

Particulars Nature of Transaciion Year ended Yeor endad
' dlstMorch 2095 s Morch 2024
Transoctions with reloted parties
Pareal Jalice |nda Private mitec Furchome of now motesic! | 534 44 | A2333
Uncluding &aT)
Tachnicol Consutany Sanvice
Soles commitison received 4672 7.3
Oulsionding Balance with relaled parfies
Fionsar Jalica Inda Frivate Umitedt M 99.21
Transactons with Key Monagerial Personnel (Remuneration paid)
tr M Asnok K Kapur Bt 20 53.62
) M. Ariry Jaswal 091
i Me Makirma Pertkor® 2.95 =
v Mr Mohash Vermo®** 16.44 15.15
(vl Mz Meen Shama®"** 0.5 3.41

“As tha Grofulty ond Compensdled cbiences ore computed for ol the employess In oggregote, the ameount migling 1o Kay

hMonogeriol Pasonnel connot be Individually bo identified *
e Arun soswol Jomed wal H500 2025

Wi Methirmo Fatkar w.e 10708 2025

W Mobsssh Verma (Caaned rom serviceslow a1 07 01.2025) "
M. Meenubnama (Ceased frombsvices iowe l 28,00, 20248
Transochons with Non-Executive Directors (Sithing fee paid)

M S Annamolal

Wi & Maheswaran

N B Viayaduoi

Mee. Manimegolon Thangamani

il Prakosb W R

M. K Kriskimamaoiy

Wi, Ravindra K, Rae

Wiz Coushll B Desci

M, Gourang Shah

Nales:

1.0
.00
.2
1. 40

220

0.83
040
131
28
073

(M Noemourts in respact of related porfes hiove been wiithan ofl [ wiilten Dock during the yeor ror hos any provison been mods
for doulsiful dabt /recalhyobies durdng theyear sxcapl oo dicicssd abovs,

(i} A tekated party rarsactions arfared duiing e year wasg Ik ardinary coursa of the business and are onam's gt bk,

(M) Key Monagetiol Perzons who Qre under tha employrnant of the Company ae enlilied 1o past-amplaymant benefls (gafined
banef gratutty plon) eeognised ot per Ind AS 19 "Employes Sanalils” In ke financial ststements and shorl-lerm employes
oanefitn In the tom of premiem pald By company for group heath nogranes plan. As thete employes berofits ome lurmpsum
arncusnds Pprovided on The boes of ootuatol valualion premium poyrren fol he Company o a whiole, he same & nol Included

ahove.

38 EARNINGS PERSHARE
Proffl avaiable fof eguity sharahdidens
Welghied averope number of equlty shores
Marringl value of ety shore
Eamnings per shore - Baske / Diluted

3% INVESTMENTS - NON-CLRRENT
Invesimants In Mulual Funds (ot NAY) - un-quoted, llly pald-up

112094
&0 A% 587
ey
2845

| 53208
&0 4% 587
10.00
25,5

As at 315! March, 2025

Asat 3\st March, 2024

Pamiculars Fak Volue No,of  Tolal FoltValus No.of  Total

Perunit _ Unis Value  Perunit  Units Value
Nippan India Short Tarm fung- Growin Flan - 105094 54,54
Nippan India Maney Marksd Fund- Ditact - Growth 2E51 10894
5Bl Savings Fund - Direct - Growin 133388 5394
ABSL Sovirigs Fund - Dirsct - Growth - M2977 21T5h
A TPrL Liftrg Short e fund -Deach Erowm didd Llag iz 1788
Nippan India Uitra Shiort Dusation Fund < Direct Growlh Plan 2650 10806
ABEL Savinge Fund - Draat - Gronwth - <1064 10657
Telal 48
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40 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
A, Investments in Equity Shares

A of 3T WNGrch, 2005 As of 318 Warch, 2028

Particulars Falr Volue No. of Tola! FalrVolus Noool  Tolal
Perunil  Units Valus Perunl! Units Valus

Ecu ity Shares of Incla Galaline and Chsrmicals Lid 1000 003G 4,77531 -

Tolal 4,115.31 .

B.  Summarnsed Financial Inlermation of an associate { Indio Gelaling ond Chemicals Limited)
{  Summarsed Balance Shaal:

Fariculars Anaf A:af
315t March 2025 318t March 2024
Mor-cuman! ossely [0017,38 G333
Current ossals Q440,87 & 306.45
MNen-cunran) Sobill)les 123006 145304
Curmsnt bobitiss 1 e 5 1 57087
Equily 17.150.10 1540693
Camdng amount of investrmiaet 411531 .
(i} Summanised Stalemeant of Profif and Loss:

Raven= |9.852 87 OLHE3.97
Cas! of motenial Congurmed AL el SOE3. M
Purshosm of Stock-n-frode i 4.9}
Chanpes in Invenjoey, Finkhed Goodd WIRST 57455 (65.58)
Emoloyss benafity axpenss 1217.83 127479
Cepraciation and amarfisalion expenia 5h0.08 225,95
finance cost &L 7374
Fower & Fusl 278502 2,902.50
Oiner sapenies A 29.2% 417125
Proftl before fax 2.264.84 3,726.45
l=as Tox expens 59591 B 40
Profil to! the year 1,738.93 2,838.85
Othar comprahasntiva Incorma - -
Total comprahensive income for the yaar 7517 (8.68)
shore of profit for the yeor &2.00 -

41 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As per Section 135 of tha Companipg Act, 2013, o CSR Commithos has bedn formed by the Company, As part of initiatives under
Corporote Socol fesponsiolity (C3N), The Company hos undestoken project in the arsm of environmant | dver protechion,
aducalion, valihood, healthcare sanllation, nral devsispment. promation of sparts ond cultural activites, whieh are geacified I
Scheoula Vilof the Cornponeag Act, 2011 The amount soenf on the sarme i given Dalow;

Particulars Yeor ended Yaor ended
3181 March 2025 31st March 2024
{1 Amount requiien fo be tpent os pet Saction 135 of the Comparies Act, 2013 34 44 24,00

(i} Amount spant during the vaar on:

Corshuction / oogustion of any aset . -
O |aliposss ofhar than abiovae (ncluding odminishative cvertced) 3450 2522
Bolgnca Ulllised Tiom The excass gpant i FY E 0.E]
(i) Shortal of the and of the year :

(i} Tstel of presdlei years shorffol . -

{v] Reasan fion sharlfall M, MA
(vl Nature of 3R achivilles titeracy promotion, Environmsnt protecton,
Hegith care getwitias. Eradication of hunga:

& porverty
[l Dewtoalis af related party ronsactions in slotan i CHR-expandifure -
42 RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Revenue sipendliure

Soilcres and woges 13,44 :
Ditsah expanas - o4

by
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43

FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

'The fair vatuas of the finaonocial ossets and iobiites ore noludea of the amount at which e Insfrument coud De exchangad ino

cufant transoction batwoaen wiing paitios. alhar thanin g fefced o kqudation wale, The follswing mothods and asumpliang wen

Lsed o estimats (ke falr valus '

(0 Farvalua of cosh and short-termm depanits, frade and other shor Tem recehvables, rode poyobias, other curent latilltes, short
terrn nans ram barks ond other Inoncal insfitutens approimate ther corrying amounts largety due foshart bern matuntiess of
thiess iratrurrsnts,

) Financial instuments wilh feed ond variable Inleres? rotes o evolualed by the Company bosed on porarmeters such os ineres|

rertes and individunl credil worltvness of the counter-party . Beesd on this svaluation. allewoncss ars faken o account for svpechsd

frssas Of neses recevabyes Accordingly, fal valus of such InsfrurmeEnts s not mat=snially diffessn) rom their canmymg amounts

Tne Compony wes ine [olowrng nisrarchy for defarmining and disciosing e ol volue of fnoncla) nstrumants Oy vaiuohon
e us

Level 1! gquited (unodusted) poces Ih octive markets o dertical asseti or labiites.

Level 2, othar fechniquas for which all inputs which hove a significont affect on tha recosted far vakue ore obsarvabie. aliner direcily
o ngiraclly,

Level 3 techniguen which use inputs Mar hova o ggnificon! offect on e recorded Tar voide thot ahe it Daied on obsanoblo
mioket data,”

The carrying amounts and falr volues of financial instruments by categary are as follows:

FVoCi FVIPL  Amorised Tololfair  Caorying
Wede 20i) Mofe2 (ki) cost value amount

318t March, 2024

Financial assefs

IMveztmants Gl 28 a0.28 Velh48
Tradke recmvanies 219052 2,190,552 2,190,562
Coash and cath sguivalsnty - = 681,74 641,74 &61.74
Bank boances ofbar tihan abovg 185370 1.553,70 | B53.T0
Loan - 39,34 39,34 3934
Ottt financial aasests 220l 27201 2ram
Tolal - D548 4. 717.31 B&71.79 5677.79
Financial lobliifies

Trade payables 14238 | A28 | 4328
Cithee fincineial lakllties 182.10 18210 182.10
Tolal fingnci : - 162438 169436 162436
Ast March, 2025

Financial casats

investment in an mssociate . - 4716431 4711631 411531
Tiade receivatlss . . - 24AB420 245420 2484 50
Coash and conh aquivalents 1903 1943 1%.03
Bk bainnces othal than above 26,34 26,36 24,34
Lacn - 20,04 A0.04 &0 .04
ity finciriciol assety - - 23442 234,42 23447
Tolal - - 693956 493954 6,939 54
Financiol Babiilies

Bomowings . - 127220 | 27220 | 27220
Trocke payohbil=s - - 171871 .78 71 |18
ity THEFF 1d2.77 142 77
Tolal financiol labiiilles - - 313349 313349 313389
Fair valus estimation

For finoncidl inghumenty magsuied of folk valus in 1he Bolonce Shest, a three level fair vialye erarchy 18 Led thot milecty the

dgnificencs of nputsusec in tha maasurements. The herarchy gheas the highas! prorly tounodiusted quoled otces inaclive markets

fon |centcol ossetior laklites (Level | maosurementsh and iowest pronity o unobsen-able inputs (Leved d measurarnants),

Tha cafepones Use ore o8 follows.

o |eva| || guoted paces for identicol inttrumernts

s Lave| 7t dirsctly of Indirectly otsstvoole marke! inputs, athat than Level | inpuls; ond

= Loval 3 nputs which 09 not based on chsarvatia markel data

For ometsand labillies which are cormed ool vaue, the elossification of feinvalue coleuiations by cotegon Issurmmctizad below
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

3181 Morch, 2024

Asefs of folr vaup . o480 48

38l March, 2025

Assets-of folr voue

Investments in Equity Shares Not Cartled af Foi Volue

Thera ware no significant changes in classfication and no significant movemant: betwasn tha lair vals hemrchy classificotions of
financiolassets and finamcial liobaities during the yeons,
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dd  RISK MANAGEMENT
Hnancicl isk management objsctives dnd policies |

Ther Company's financial fek managamant i an nfegeal part of haw to plan and execute s busmens rimtegies, The f.‘.::amp:inv 3
oetivity axposs I bo market de. Equidity rsk, commodity tlsk ond cradil risk, The Company s inancicl rsk manogeman| policy s set by
i Risk Manogsmant Committea ond governed by ovesall direc ion of Board of Direc los of the Cormpany.

Mcarket Hek |5 1he i of foss of futune ecenlngs. fair vialues of futute cosh Mows that rmcy rasult frorm a changs i ihe price of a fnancial
iratrurnent. The value of o Enonilal ingtrument may chonge o o esull of changes in The infares! ioted, fonalgn cumency axthange
rates. equify orcas and othar morket changes That afftect masket rsk sensitive nstruments, Market sk s otinbotobie 1o all ot sk
sersfive financial ingtruments noluding mvestments and depaisits, foreign curency receivobies. poyabies ond inons and bomowings,

Risk Exposure arising from Meosurement Risk Monogement
() Credir nsk Cosh ond cozh eguivoients, Apaing anolyss Crecit Cradil fimitn ond istters of cradit
frace recehatiles, financial rerhirien and Parformance guarantess,

rEtruments, tinonola) ossaty
e ded al amorized cogl.

(M} Liguidiny right Borowingy and omiar loblines  #ollng eash e forecasts  Avodability of commifiod cred!
Ines and bommwing ficiities
(W) Morkar msk-interest role Long-tarm borowengs ol Senaitvity arolyn Interani rate swaps
vorcible rotes
) Markat rsk-faraign exchonge Fullms commarncio! frarsochons . Cosh fow forecasting Forward fomign axchang
racogrised finanoial assets and - Sanitvity onolyals Coniroets
fallities mot denamindted in
Ingicn iupeas
(v) Commacty rsk Purshase of Fow Motoric! As per produchion Frocuramant and Invantory

planning ond budpeting  stolegy

| CREDIT RISK

‘Credit righ anses from he possitvlity or counter pamy may not bo able 1o seftle thalr ablgahions os ogread. To manoge this, the
company pancaicolly assesses 1he fnanclal rebetiiity. of curtomen, faking Inle aecount the finonchal condi®an, cutten! aconemic
frends, o analyis of hstedcal bod detits and againg of account rscaivotres. Individual cradl! limits are 58 accordingly. The
Comprny consices the probobility of detault upoen Infial recognifion of asset and whisther Thoe hos been o sighificont noreose in
cradll isk on on engaing boss throughod! eoch eporling peiod, To ossess whathar there 5o significan! increosa n cradit nsk ne
SOmpany compares the nsk of defau! oocumng on ihe asset qn ol Ihe wepoing date wilh the risk of galaull as at the dalé of inllial
recogretion, Tha company consders recsonalile ond suppartivie forsard-ooking informotion. Finonciol assat are watien off when
there s no mosonabls sxpectation of recovery, such as dabitar faling to engage n o repayment plan with the compary. The
campany provides foroverdue outsianding s par the policy appraved by the Scard of Dirscton. which are evaluated on o case o
oode basls. The Company s concanralion of ek with raspect fo rade receivabies i low . as s customdr s bose ik widely soroad oéoss
the length ond Braadth of the country and maicethy of e custorman ais with sound finaned neallh ©

The averags credlt panod edended o cuttomas mnges within 30- 120 doys
repeciedoea inss for rode recevanias undar ampified oppreach

Pariculars As al As of

(o) Agsing of frade receivables

Fram the derte of rwoics

0 - & morithg 248217 2,190.57

& - @ monits 203 .

¥ - 12 months

beyongd |2 montne -

TOTAL _2484.30 219052
() Reconcillalion of loss ollowance provision - Trade recelvables

Opening provision 281 281

Adddibaral pravision mode : -
| B ciatts wiittan off | recovered -

Clasing provisions 2.81 2.81
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LIGUIRITY RESK
Licpchty risi ts clestinedd o8 the sk that the company willngt = obie fos=itieof meet Th chigations on time ot of 4 recsoncble phice

The Cormpary 3 freasury department s iesporsiods for mlrtenonce of boidity (includling auasl liauldity, continufty of kanding o well
aslimely setliement of dably, Inadd ton, policies redatea Yo mifigation of rss are overseen by serlod manopemen!

Managemant moniton the Compary’'s nel iquaity posiion on 1he basi of axpectad coh flows ve o vis debl servica uifilmient
obligation,”

Maturity profile of finoncial llabiifhes
The fable balow provides detolls regording the remaining contrac lua! maluntiss of tinorciol lobilites ot the repording date

Confroctual maturity patterms of Financial Labilites

Porficulars As at 31sl Mareh 2025 As ot 318! March 2024
0-1 year/ 1la5 Tolal 0-1 year/ 1ios Total
on Demond  yeans on Demand  yean
Borowirgs 127220 - Jar2an - - E
Traicle payaoles 1.718.71 1.718.71 1442728 144228
Oitrar fircricia kabilities 142,77 . 142,77 18210 - 16210
Total 3.133.6% 3.130.6¢ a24 38 | 424,38

MARKET RISK- INTEREST RATE RISK

Irvereeegt roxbe ek (s the dskc thort the fiolr vaiue ar future cosh fidwe of a fincrncicl instiumet will luctuate becows of changes in markal
Intarost rotes In order fo balence he Compony's podfion with regorgs 1o Infares! Incoma and nlemest oxpenie ond o manage the
Intarest rate rok, fnonce departrment performs o comprehenshve inferest rate sk manageament. The Company 18 nol exposed fo
sigrificant infesest rote nek o= at ine respective reparting dofes.

MARKET RISK- FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Tra Company b exposand 1o foian exchongs ek fowords honouisg of sxpont/ Impon commitmante. Monogermeant evalucies
sxchenge rate exposurs In ihs cannaction in terms of [y aslabishsd dk managemenl policies wiesl ndludss 1he ws of denvallves
like Torelgn exchongo forward controcis fo nedge sk of expotune i forsign currency. The compony B not axposad 1o foseign
cumancy rilk ot tha respective reporting dotes.

COMMODITY RISK

Principol Raw Matenal for Company s product i Casned boee, HEL, Lime and Coal asa fusl, The Companiy sourcss fa mar remw
rrafurial equisarmant fram domestic suppliers locoted In vosaus por of india

Tha Company sftectivaly manogss with ovalialillty of rcteral o vl ot ooos volat ity Dosed an thefolawing:

s Howmoteiok g procued from different olrcss of compalifive prices

s Allermcive sourcss ore developed for unlniem.piﬂdmmvmrnw matenns,

s Cemond and spply are edernal focton on which company has o confmal; howsver the Company pians ds production and
sl from Ihe esperance gained In tha post and on-going study ond oppratsal of the moel dynamics, comesiilion. econarmic
poicies and giowth pottarms of differantsegments of wan of cormgany ‘1 roauchs

p  SpecinnElepstoeducs the pop between demand and supoly by eipanding iroustomar bose. Salvery rmachaninme, 6°C.

o Properinventory contiol systemi have been putin ploce. The Rk camrmiftee ottha Compary comprising mamies ram Boord
ol Dirsctors ond the opaiations hos deveioped ond anocled o ni management sholegy tegaaing commadity Prica rak ond itn
rriigation.”

FINANCIAL RISX FACTORS
(o) Capitol risk managemeant
TheCompany’s cbjsthived whenmanaging coplta arelo:
o tofeguond thedi cbilily to contineg ak a going concam. o that ihey can condinue 1o provide rehuing for shicrancldas and
barafils for other stoketoldens, and
s maintainonopfima copilolstructure foreduce the coslofcapial

(&) Term loanare secured by a first ranking park-passu hypothecation/ Exclusive charge on the assets created out of the ferm loan.
Cash Cradil Primary Security-Exclusive charge on enfire curren! ossels (present aond fulure) & fixed deposits referred in Nole 18
and 21,

(e} Dividends:
The Company folows the policy of Dividena for any financks yaor a3 may be decided by Boond consldanng Snandcial
parformance of e company and othar infemal ond exfemal foclon
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-% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025

{All amounts in Indian rupee [akhs, unless otharwise statsd)

al

Parhiculon

As ot

31st March, 2025

As af

318l March, 2024

On Equily Shares

Dividends not recognised of the end of reporfing period

Since yaar end, 1he dreclan hove recammandad the paymant of a inal
dividend af ¢ 1000 per fully paid up equity share. The proposed dividend s
sublect to the opprovol of sharehoidars In the srsuing onmual general

rrsaating-

corlidan? 1ol tha mpac! wherao!, ITany, fol Tha yadron b Tinanclal slalemaniswil pol o maledicd

A R

Durmig 1he year. (he Company hod eceived a whistie tlowsr complaint alieging cenain unethicol prochices concaming the
operations of tha Company, On angulry with 1ne suppor of an axtemal ogency, I was lound ftal the ategalions were mans surmise
ond ceverd of any whstonfiol evidence which are lagolly tanable. A formnl repont friom the agency & awoired irciuging thair
suggestions o srengthen the inteme| control measuses, Bettarment ohd smoain funcllaning of tha Company

Cerfain finoncial ossets and tinanc' ol letiiies are subiect to tormal confrmation and recanchalions. The Managemant, however, s

&0, O

Tha Fresidan! has given his ossanl o ine Coda on Social Seculily. 2020 ("Code”) in Septembal 20200 On 13h Novembed 2020 tha
Mindtry ot Lobour and Employment reieased droft rues tor the Code, However, e dote on which the Code wil come info affect has
not bean noliled . The Compony wil csses he Impoct onca the subject rules ors notilied and wil gve cpgropriate Impoct (ot
financial statemeants in 1he perled in which tha Coda bacameas affective,

Finoncial Ratios
i Mo, Paricuion 24-25 2023-24 Vardance - Podton forvarlanca
Numerator Denominaior Ratios %) aver 25%
] Cument oo Current Assats Current Uotdities 255 A.65 45 Company ho
(Ir firmes) avalled Cradit
2  DebtEguity Ralo Tatal Sorowinos Nt Worth 01 000 10o%  Focllites like CC
f1r Kres) Lmits & Term Loon
3 DebtService Poff before Tk, FnanceCharges+ 533 000 l00% 0 R ST
Eﬂ'ﬂ'ﬂrﬂgﬂ Aot E!I:Epﬁﬂnﬂl [fams, Long Tarm E’mmng& e FI.I.I 21"3‘“
{In fimas) Bepracialion whedulsd Principa
Hnanco Chorges elele gl =g
(axclucing
prepayrments +
refinancing)
during the vear
1 Retuer an Bauly Met profls cofter Loy Ajerape Nebwordh HOM 157 -20%
Ratio (%]
8 rvwentary Tumover Mis Veriol & Srores & Avercgs ventory 74 70 5.08% -
{ric. of o) Sporas cansurred
& Debtos lumaover Averogs Trods Revenia from
(ho. of cloys) Recatvabies including  operchions 45 42 7.14%
unbited revanus
7 Poyobles Turover Avaroge Trode Cost of grods soid % a5 1155%
frio. of dayil payalies
8 Net Capital Turmover  Annual flumove: Working Conital 395 248 5524% -
{ir fmvez) {(axciaging curment
maturdes of long
lemrn dalts)
9 Net Frofit Morgin (%) Netb prof) for lotal incames 0% 838% B0d%
e ot
¢ Retum on Conilol Profit offer tox pius Average cagiial 1408% 16127% 4.58%
Empioyed (%) Interest on lang erngayed
teim lmans ord
asneniuies
1l Rehamon Income gersrafad Time weighted 515% 7.48% -312.95% Company soid
nvesiment () from investments avarags investimertd vl funcis
Notes:

Networlh = Eaquily + ofhar Egully
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-% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupes [akhs, unless oltherwise stated)

50  Other statutory inlormation:

i

k)
i
)
V)

Wil

will

il

x

1]

The Company doas not have any benam| propery. whers any proceeding nas been Inifiated o pending cgoinst he
Campiany for holding any benami property

This Cempainy does not have any fransoctions with componban shuck off

The Company doasnal have ary cherges o satlstar ton which I et 'aba reglslared with ROC bayord the Hatulory perod
Tha Company has rol raded et ireted 0 Cryplo cuttency of Vitual Currency duting the frionciol yea:

The Company hog nat acvanced o lponed of Invegted fonds fo any other pamanis) or anfibylies), neloding Toregn enfifias
(Intermecianes) Wiih the unassionding MGt 1he Infermediany shall (@) dieehy oF Indireaily lenhd of Invast in ofhol persone o
erillies ideciifisel In ary monrar whatsosver by or o0 bahall of the company (Ullknata baneficianss) or (D) provide any
guarcntee, security or the ke to or on behalf ot the ultimare beneficiarniss.

They Carnparry ho not recalved any fund fiom any pancinis) or erfihyies), ifncucmg ioagn enfifies (funding poarmy) witn he
understanding (whather recorded inwiting af oiharwize) kol Ihe Company shall: ) drecily orindirectly lend of Invies! 0 atber
pesons o enfities [dantifea In any manner whilsoaver Dy of on bahall of the funding party (Utimate benaficiaries) o )
provide any guarantess. security or tha ke on behoif oftho uimote bereficionss

The Campany doas not have army weh fronsachon which & not recarded i thie beoks of accounts thothas been sumendaned or
disciosed an neorms duing the year in the-fo cssessments undesr the income Tax At 1961 (such as; ssarch o survey or any
oftet telsvan! provisons of the Income Tox Act 1961,

The Company hos compllied with (he numbe: of layes prescribed uncer ciowsa (57) of Sechon 2 of the Act read with the
Comipanies (Restrizon on numiser of Loyers) Rulas, 2017

The Company i riot caciorad wilhul defauther by ary bank arfinarcial inatifutian of lendes during he yeoar

Tree Quuartany rehuma or sroramants of cumant assats fled Oy the Company with) Donwa or Inancial nstitufions ore In ogreamant
wall The books of aooounts

Ihe Comparny his ueed the Domowlngs from banks ana finanool irshtutions forhe specific purposes for which il wos foken as al
Bolonce shas! dofe

51 Tha Company i angaged in ihe monufochue and saie of Cssan and Gelatne, Snce of Thess segrments meal the ocpgregoion
critena o per The ragquiramants of Ind AS 108 on Opéraling sagments , The monoagamant considars these of o sitgle repariobls
agment, Accordingly, no further deciosurs s required o bafumished.

52 Praviowsysar s igunes hovie e re-grouped | m-cliosifiead whsmvel requiredio confornmn la cumen! yean’ clossficanion,

Signatuss tonote | jo &2 Far ond an behalf of ine Beard
5. Annomalai Ashok K Kopur
Chokrran Monagieg Dirgctar
DN DOO0T 281 DINQO 126807

Place | latalpur Arun Jolswal Mahima Patkar

Data : 287 May, 2025 Chig! Financial Ofical Company Secretory

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25




-% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Indepandent Auditor s Report
To The Members ol Narmada Golatines Limiled

Waparton the Audh of Consoldated Finanalal Statameants

Opinion

We have auditad fhe cordolidated fingncial statements of Narmada Gesotines Limfred {Mhe Porent Company”) and an asiociate
(fogether refered o8 "he Group™). which comprise fhe consoldoted Bolonce Shest on ot 318t March 2025, the consalidated
Statarrant of Profil and Loss (rcluding Omrer Compraharsive ircome). the conscidoted Slaleman! ol Changas n Bquily ard the
consolidatied Siatement of Cash Flows 1 the yeor then ended, and nofes fo the fhoncial datemants, including o summary of
materal sccounting policies and otfwer explanciory informotion

I our opinion and fo the best of our infermation and occording to the explanations ghen to us. fhe aforesalc comolidated finatcd
stotaments glve ha nformalion required by the Companias Act, 701 3 (he Actin the manne: s recuired and give o hue ond ok view
incanformity with the occounting pinciples genemilly accepted inindio, of the stote of affais of the Comparmy as of 3188 Moeh 2025,
ondpaoflt, changes nagulty and s cosh fows for the year ended on that dote.

Basis for Opinion

Wi conducten our cudlt In ccoordance with ha Standoics on Auditing (541) specified undee Section 143(10) of the Act. Dul
resnoraibilites under (hess Slandardd are lurther descrlbed in the Auaitor's Resporsitilttias for ke Audlt of the Fnancial Statemants
|y 01f o repet Wi ars inclapanden) of the Caompony in accoidancs with 1he Code af Finlcs aued by 1he institule of Charensd
Acocounionis of Indid (ICAI) togethor with tho ethical equirements thot are rekevont 1o our audht of the congalidated tinancicl
mtatamonts undar the provisions of tha Act ond the Rules tharsunder, ond we have fulfied our olher athicol responsibllities in
occordancs wiih these requirements and the Cods of Ethics. We belleve that the oudit evidence we have obloined |8 sufficlentand
opotopriaie o provida o basks for ouroplnlan,

Infarmation Othar than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor s répor themeon

Tha Parant Compony s Board of Directon |f responsitls for tha preponation of other Informalion, (he Ginar iInformaton comprses the
Imferrreation ineludend in. the Baara's Repart ircluding Anrexures o the Board tape | bul does nel inchude ine comelsatad linaneal
sotermartond our ouditor Treport ihamin,

Cur apinlat on the consolichated frnonclal fotemants doss not Gonver The ofhier informetian cnd we da not express any foom of
CrRsLanCe Conoiualarn T man

in eonnEstion with ou cudlt of ihe comolgated inoncal starsments, our esponaitilty i@ to jead the ot informaton and, in doing
w, comider whether thi ofher mformation & matedaly inconsistent with the consolidated financial stalements or our knowledge
oblanad nunngm:ﬂ-.mmm audita othanwlse oppoarns to be matodaly miwtated,

Bagad on e work wo hove performeg, Iwe conciuds Ihol Thisse s o matedal misstatermant of this of e infarrmeation, weregues 1o
rapart that fact. We have nothing terepart In the regerd

Management responsibliities for the Consolideled Financial Siatements

The Pareat Company's Board of Diredion s respomsibs or the matten satad in Section 134(E) of the Act with iespecd o The
preparation of these consoldated financlal stotements thot glve o true and for view of the financial pasifian, financial performonce
(ncluding ofher comprehaniive ncome), changes in eaulty ona cosh ows of the Company In gecardancs wilh he occounting
principlss generally accsoted in india. Inciuading the accaunting Standaids peciied undar Saction |33 of Iha Act. The meponiibillty
aho includes mairtenance of adequate accounting records in occordance with The provisom of the Act for safeguanding of the
cxssely of 1he Compary and 1or prasseniing ang detecting rouds ond ather regulod e selection and applicolion of apprapiate
accounting pallcies: making judomants and asfimales thal ara reasibnable ond proadent and desion, Implemenialian ond
mairfenance of adeguate intemal inancks! contros, oot were operating eftacively for ensuning the accurccy and complateress of
the oocounting reconds, elevant fothe preparation ond presenfafion of the finonciol datements that give o tiue ond falrview ond
are fres from metsialmsstiatemeant wheaihar dus to lioua af smor

In prepanng ke fnoncial slatements. manegemen| and Boord of Deecton & maponsbls Tor osessng the Company's abillity to
continue of a going concern, diclasing, as oppleoble, matters ielated fo gong concem and Uilng the galhg concarn basls of
accourfing unes managaemeantalihar intends o loudnta Ihe Company o fo cadie oparmtions. of hes no rpalstie attemalive bul 1o
doso,

The Boord of Drectos are aiso reiponsibks for ovesseing the Company's inenclal reporting irocess

Auditor's Responsibliities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financiol Statemaents

Cayr ebjectives are 1o obtain recssonabils asurance abiout whether the trancml statements o o whoe e free from malenc
miggtatemenl whelher due to frold or eron and 1o ke on oudior's repor tho i‘th.luaﬂl.umkmn Recsonable assaonce & o high
loved ol assurance, ou! knola gunrnnlnmhnlnn aualt cnhdmlldmncmrdnnm with Sag will alwoys datec! o rnotesol misstatemant
whian it exioti, Misstotements con arse fror traud ar amor and ars considersd matanial i1, Individually or in the agoregaote. thiey could
egonably be spected to nfusnce the economic decsons of uson tawern on the basls of these comsolldatea financial sroternants

As port of on gudll In occordonee witn S4s, we axarcise profesional judgmaent and rnaintaln protesiona skepticism throughou! the
aldil, We also.

. lqertty and ouses ihe ks of motenal messtatement of the inoncial slatements, whethsr due to froud or smor, dasign ond
perdorm oudit procedures fesponshve to those deks, and obloin oud evidence thal b sufficient ond approgiote to provide o
bass for cur opinion. This sk of nol daetecling a materal msstotement resulting from fraud & higher than for ane rasulfing fom

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 an



-% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

o Dbbainon undestanding of nlerma combial relevony’ fa the qudit m ods) o dedgn oudil precedures thal ore appropnale i e
choumstances. Undes Section T43END of the Acth, wa e olso resporsiohe Tor expressing our opinion on whethir the Company
Thias ecequata infarmal inanciol conlros syslam in plocs and ha oparanng afechvensss of such confrols.

» Evolugte the opprogrioteness of accountng polcies used and the reaionoblenays of cccounting estimales ond related
disckaures mode by e manogament.

» Conclude on ine approoratenass of Monagemen? s Wse of the going concem bas of occourting and, based on the oudit
evidencs chlgined, whethe o materal uncertainty sists related to events or congitions thal may cost dgrificont doud! on the
shllly’s aklily 1o continue as a going concam. Ilhws concluds Iha! o maleslal uncarlainty exish, we ars requzad to diaw
arfention fn our alditor's repart fo the reloted diclosures in e conscldated fnoncial matermnents o, If such disclosures ore
Inasisgquate, e madlly our opinien. Qur sonciusiony oia based on Ihe auall ovidence obxlolngd Up 'o1ha dale of our auaitonrs
rear. Fowave: fulue avents or conditions may couse the Cormpony 1o ceasa to continus as apoing concein.

Evotuate the overall presentanion, siuctute and content of fhe consoidated financiol sotements, ncluding the osclosares, ond
whether she finoncial fatemen tsrepasent the undstying hansactions and svanis in amannes thet achieves falr presentation

Cotain suficent oppropnate oudt evidence regarding fne financialinformafion of fhe entines or ousines aclivifies within The Faren?
Company ond on asociole o express an opinlon on e consalldoted financlol stotements. We are resporsicke for the dirsction
supandson and performance of the aud ! of the noncsol shatemends of such anfties includad n the corsolidated finonclal folemants
of which wa ara |hé Indapondant auditon. For tha ciharontlfy included In the consolidatad finoncsicl sfotamants, which have boaan
ouclifed by otfer oudilor. such oiber auaiton ramans respacsitr s for ine dischon. syperveion ond perfarmance of e audit camed
out by e, \We remaln solaly responsiible for our audi opinlon

Metstiolly' & I8 magnituce of mesiolemants In i conobdated finoncical statemsnt hat indivicluolly ol in dg@regote makes it
probable that The economic dechion of o reasonatly knowladgeable wer of the francial dalements may be Influencad We
conslder quorniitallve rratenally and cualiiolve foaton i () plarnng Ihe scope of our oud! work and in evaluoting tha resufs of o
wiitk and (i) to ovaiuate the attoct of any idonifiod migstatomariain tha inoncial sietamante.

We communicate with those chargea with governanca rgarding, amang cthial mottan, the planned scope and fiming of e audit
and significant audit findings. inchuding any significont deficiencies in ntermial coniral ihat we idenfity durng ouraudi,

Vs oo provide fhose cnoepad wifh governance with o statemant nat we: hove complied with: relevant efhical recusmamenty
regarding independeance, andto cemmunicate with them all relationships and ofher mathers tnat may reasonably ba frougnt fo bear
onour independance, und where applicable, rsloled sofeguords

Ofher Matar

The consoidated ingneial steraments oso Inchuda the Group s share of profit afmer tox of s, 82,00 lakbe for padod om 8" December,
24 e, dote of acauiifion by Parent Company upfil March 31, 2025, as considenad in the corsolidorted fnancial statarmants. in
manect of on asociate, whoss financial ftatemsnt hon not Been audited by ul The financkal sfoterment hee Besn audited by other
adice wihose renor hove bsen furrshed 10 8 by ne Monogesment. and aur opinkan on the consolootes financ ol siatermsn) in io
far osil redates to tha amounti ond disclosunes. and oo spod Inkeitms of sub-sectons (3 and (11) ol Seclion |43 of the Aot Inmoforailt
relalesta the oforesald amocials, b bosed soialy on the mport &f Ine othet ouaitor,

Qur opnign on e conpolcated finonc:al piotemants, and owr repordt on Othed Legal ang Regugiony Requirements Selow, i not
madifleain respec! of fha above mattern with respect to finanalalstatermants cuditea oy athar auditor,

Reporton Other Legal and Reguiatory Requiremants

Asreguired by the Companiss (Auditor' sRaport) Ordes. 2020 ("the Order or CARD') issued by the Central Govermment of inciain lems
of wlb-seclion (11 of Seclion T4 of the At we ghve n Ihe Annenure " 4" arlatement on tha marles specified in paragrapts 3 and 4 of
tha Crdat, fo tha axfant opplicatia.

Agrequired Oy Saction 143(3) of the Ac), we ragor Inot;

(e) Wea have scugh! and cbiaired of 1he nfcrmidhion and sxplanalions which to he Best of our knowledge and bolel were
necessary for the purposes of eur oudit,

(D} I o cpinion, proper Books of account 08 requrad by faw nave been kept by the Compony 5o tar a3 T Oppoarn fom our
exprminofiaon of thoss bocs ond recons

&  Tha Balancea sheal, the Statamant of Prafit & Less (hcluding other comprahenaive Income). Statemant of Thanges In Equity ond
the Stofemant of CashHows dealt with by this Report are In ajgeames wih the books of cocount,

() Inour opinkon, he alolesald comsalldated Mroncial siotaments comply with v Accounting Stondonds specied unads! Seclion
133 gt the Act, ieod with Rue 7 of the Corriponias (Accour) Rules, 2014,

(87  Cn the basis of the witten regreseniotions recelved from the direcion asan 317 March, 2025 faken on records by the Boara of
Directomn, rons of the diredton one I:ﬂﬂql.lﬂllﬂﬂﬂ as on 31° March. 2024 from being oppoinied os d Ditector in fsrmes of Section
1642 ol tha Act

(1 With respsct 1o the adegquacy of Ine ntemcl fnoncial confrol over froncial reporfing of the Campany ana s apealing
affectivensss of such confrols, refar to our separare Repart in Annesurs "8°

(R Winrespect o the offar matmons to be ncluded In the Auditor's Regon moccotdonce with the requiramanty of Saction 197(16)

afthe Act, inouropinen and o iha bestof eutinfarmation and accarding 1o fhe ey pkarafions given ta Us. Tre remuneriion paid
by the Porent Company o diectons diaing ine yeor bin ocoordancewith fhe provisions of Section 197 af the Act,
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(N With regpaet 1o fha rrattan fo be ircludad n (e Audiice'smpar in oecoedancs wilh tha Rule |1 of the Companles (Aud)l and
Auditon) Rules, 2014, In out opinlon and 10 He beat of aut infanmation and acoodding to tha axplonations given o us:

| The Grougs hos cisclosed the impoct of pending Igatians on fs financlal paston |n s corsalldoted finarcial s#otements. -
Reter Nate No. 36 fo the congobdated inoncial statements,

i The Soup ad not have any long-term confrocts including denvaiive controcks for which there wese ary motedcl
lresaeatle lossas

I There hos been no deday in tansfeming amounts. reculred 1o be thangferted, fo the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by tha Company.

Iv. ) TheMancgoment nas rapresented that, 1o the Dest of 1y knowledge and balisd, oines than os disclcsad in e roles 1o
ihe adcounts, iio funcl (which ore malanial atther indvicuclly o in the aggregate] hove been advanced or lnanag or
mvestad {ether fiom bomowed tund or sheore peermiurn o any other sowes of kind of func) by the Porent company or
I ary aiber pasan of @nlity, Including feselon entity Cintaimediarias”s. with tha undestonding. whether recorded in
writing or otherwba, that the Inferrnadiary snal, whainer, direclly or indirecily lend or invest in other persons or enfifiss
identified in any monrsr whatsoevet by or oh behall of the Porent company O Ilimale Beneficianes®) o provides any
guorontes, scurlly or Ihe ke on behall of the Liimale Banaficionas

() The Monoagemsnt has represantad, Ikat, o the best of itsknowisdge ond beliaf, ofhar than as dsclesed in the notes fo
the ascounts, n funcs (which ane mirefiol sitter indvidually o in the aggregate) have besn recelved by the Pament
company from any pason of enfity. Inthuding torelgn ertity (CFunding Parmies”™), with he undestonding. whalhar
recardad In wiiting of otherwise. that fhe Campany shail. whather, directy orindirscily. end orinvest in other pemons o
enfities identified Ih oy monfe whiotioeyar By of on bahalf of the Funzing Farty (CUtmate Senefcloies™) o provice
-ary guarantee, seculfy of the ke onbshalf of 1ha Utimate Senaficiared

() Bossd oo ihe audt procedurss that have been considersd remsonabls and appropiatsin the ceumstances. rolhing
hiexs come fo our notice That has coused us 1o Balieve thal the represenioficn under sub clowse () and (I of Rule 11(e) of
The Compeonias (Auch ond Auditors) Rules, 2014, ai provided under (g) ond (o) abova, containg any matenci
risstatemant, Rafer rote 50 (Wand (v 1o the consclaatad fnancial siotemants,

v. The dividend poid by fhie Parent Campany aunng the year & in occordonce wiin Sacfion 123 of the Act. Assitrad innola
458 to e consolidoted financial fotements. the Boord of Directors of the Parent Comparty has proposed final dividend for
The yeor 200425 which s subisct 1o Ihe aporcval of tha memibers al 1he 2nsuing annug gerena mesling, The proposed
dividend daciored it in occodoncs with Section 123 of Ihe &ct o ke adent It applies to' tha daclanstion of duidend.

v Bosed on our exarmination, wheh Included feat checks, Ihe Group has used accouniing software for mainlalning s acoount
boaks far the finoncio year erded Morch 31, 2025 whéch has a feature of recording oudit rall (edit 'og) faciity ond thasoms hos
opemiad throughout theves forallrelevortronsoclions recorded intha soffware, Further. during e course of Gurauditwa aid

ol come Goioss any Irsfonce of e aud® ol faotue being lomperea with. Tha Group s in complinnoe with tha presarvafion of
cuiell! ol os per e slahulony requiretrkents fon ecand ielenllen

vil.  Wiith tespect o the moarters specified in porogiophs 30od) ond 4 of the Companies (Auditors RBepont) Ordes; 2020 (tha "Crdet™ [
STARDT) ksued by the Central Governiman! in terms of Section 143(17) of fha Act, o ba included in fhe Auditor's repor,
geconding to thainformafion and axplanatons glven 1o ws, and basiad on the CARD reports leud By us fx tha Parent Company
and by the ouditor of ar agociote. Included in e cdngalidatad inencial stotermenty of the Porent Company, to which
reparting under CARD s appicatie, we repart fhal theee are no qualificotions o amverse remarks n these CARD reporsexcap)
hot posatvolions regearding a whisle-Dlower comglaint hove beanmoda In he report of The Paran! Company under Clousa X0

et CARC 220
Fot LODHA & CO LLP
Chortesd Accountonrs
Firmm registrafion Ne., - 301061 F/E300284
R. P. Barodiva
Murritsc _ Partrer
24" Moy, 2025 Marmbenhip No. 44101

UCAN: 2504410 1 BAVAVNDS393
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* NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

“ANMNEXURE B*
Raporl on the Intemal Anancial Conirols under Clouse (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of Ihe Companias Acl, 2013 ("the Act”)

Ineanjunchon with aur audl of the comsalidated ind AS linanciad stalemants of 1he Campany as of and for thie year ended 3 18 March,
2025, we hove auaitad tha internal financial contres over fmancial reporting of Narmooa Getotines Limitea (e FarentComgany™ L

Managemant s Responsibiily for Infemal Financial Controls

The respachye Board of Directon of the of the Halding company . ond an associate, are responanbs forasfablishing ana maintaning
Inberiall fincincial confiols based on the intermnal conhol aver financlal ieporting critedo estobiished by fhe Company considering the
asaniial companen|s of intamal cortrol stated In the Suldances Nots an Audll of Interme! Rhanciol Conbals Over Francial Recoring
sued Dy the Insifute of Chartared Accountants of incia GCAD. These resconiblifes ciuae the desgn, implemnentotion ond
maintenance of odeguats mtemo! finonoal Sonfrols that wams opamting effechively for ensuring the ordery  and efficient condact
of 1y business, Inchuging odhemnce o 1he Company s policies, the safeguarding of il asels, Ihs cieventionand detection of fmuck
anderors, Iheacouracy and completensss of the accounfing recards: and the fimely preparation of reliable Tnancicl formation, &s
required unde: fha Act,

Auditor's Responsibifity

Currésponsiblify is o Sipress on opfinisn on tha Compony'sintamal financiol contvais over fnanciol reparting bosed o ol oudkt. We
conductad our audi In eccomdance with the Guidancs Nata on Aualt of Intermal Financial Cantak over financial Beparing (e
“Guldoncs Note”) ssued by Ihe ICAl and Ihe Stondords on Audiing, ssued by ICAI and deemed 1o be preecribes undsr Saction
1430100 of tha Act. lo the esten! apollcatis fo an cuddt of Intermnl financial conmole. both lsusd By the nstliute of Chartered
Accourtants of india, Those Srandards and the Guidarce Note mauire thed we comiply with effical reaursmesti ard glan and
perfonm he oudi ho oblan reaoroble assurorce aboul whether odequate nlernal financil control ovet financial repording wis
oflobishad ond maintained and I such conlrok oparated offectivaly Inoff matadal teepach.

Cour cwcht imvalves perdorrming procedures 1o oblon gudt svidence abou! Ine adeguacy of the infemal inoncial controls system over
finanche mpoting and thelr opeting effectiversess. Our oudlt of Intemal financlal controls over fihoncial reporting ncluded
chianing an undanianding of temal financiol controls over financial raporting. ossessing he riak Ingt @ matenial waakness existy, ond
feting ond avalualing fhe catign and apesaling sffaciivensss of nlemndl conliol bosed on He oitessed (k. The procedures selecfed
depend on the ouditor's judgement, including e cmessment of the rsks of materal misstatement of the Consaliduted Ind AS
financhs stofements, wheher due to fraud or e,

W melieve that The ouoh svidence wo hiove obinked B sauffician ond apoeoptiota to provids o bokil foe our oudi opinion an he
Company slntemal financia controk system over Ainanciol repating

Meaning of iInlemal Financiol Contrels Ovet Financiol Raporting

A Company s mrlemal inancial corhol sver financial 1eporfing i o procsss designad o providea iscsondble asunoncs regardng the
mabanity of financiol reporing and the paporation of finangied statemants for aamal purposes In occoidancs with genaniily
accaplad pecouniing pinclples. A Company's Infamal Minanclal contre over financial reporting Incluoes thoss polclos and
procedues that (1) panaln tothe mantanance of recotds thal . in remonanhs datal, occurately ond farly refiest e transacfiong and
dapoiifions of the ossety of the Company: (2) provioe reasoncble ossusonce That Tronsachions ore recorded Gi NEcEisory 1o pemit
preparmtion of fnanciol stofements In occomrdance with, gemerally accented accounfing principles, ond that ecephs and
expendhoes of the Company e being made only In accodances with autnorisafions of management and dirscton of fhe
company; (3) provide ieascnotia asturance regording prevention or fimaly detechion of unguthoriiod ooousfion. use. of disposition
of the Company’'s assat that cauld have g matenal effect on the financind starements: and (4) alie provide regsonable cansrance by
the Intestnal ouditors through thek infemad audit mporfs ghven to the oogaréation from Hime to e,

Inhesent Limitations of Intermal Financiol Controls Oves Finonciol Repoding

Becousa of me rhatent imitenons of infernal inanciol cortrals over financlalporting, nciuding e possibiity of colugion o impeoper
management ovemdo of conlros, molerol misstotemants due 1o emor o fraud may oCCur ang Nt oo catectea Alie. projections of
any evaluahon ofthe nlemal financal controly over inorcial rporing 0 folure penods re sulsect 1o the s thot the ntemal
financicl control over firancal reporfing may Become inadequote becowe of changsl in contitions, o that the degres of
campliance with the palicies o proceduras may detardonale

Opinion

In curapinion. fne Parent Company . hasbioadly. inal motenal raspects. on odequate infarnal finenchal contiois syslem over finansiol
regathng ord suchintemal fnancal contrals over financial reparting were opemting effectively asaf 315t March, 2025, bosea on the
Imfamal contral over fincncia reporting cilena sstablishaed by e Company considering he ewsantial compoeents of infemal contuol
stalad In tha Guidance Nola on Audll of Inlerral Financial Conhioli Ovet Financal Reporing Biued by 1ha ireliute al Chanered
Accourtantiof india:

For LODHA & CO WLP
Chorfered Accountants
Firrny registratinn No. - 3010518/ E500284

R P, Batadiyo
Murrbod Portnes _
M Mary, X025 Membership Mo 44101

UGIN: 25044 FOTEMIVNDSIS
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as ol 313t March, 2025

(AN arnounts in (nadion rupse (okh, unies onenase siared)

PARTICULARS Nates As ol
3ist March, 2025
AS3ETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Propety, plont ond eguismen| 3 329767
Canital warn-progress 4 47829
intangible assats 5 -
Finoncial casats
«rvestment in an ossociofe & 4167 37
< Cithat Invetitmanty :
Lercans 7 |4 06
- Ofthies fnBnckal assals ] 147.18
Incomy: fax assets (met) 44,52
Oriher mon-clment gasets ) 63.74
Tatal Non-Cumenl Assels B,487.77
CURRENT ASSETS
Inviariciras 10 4 657 37
Financiol casals
- Trade reasyobles 11 < A84.20
- Caah ond cosh equivaients |2 | 5.0
-Rark bolonces oiber than above 13 2434
- Levaara 14 45.08
- Ctfet fnonciol ossets 16 6.7.44
Cihar cumenf ossats [ 247 583
Total Cumant Assels 7.547.91
TOTAL ASSETS 16,015.68
EQUITY AND LLABILITIES
EQUITY
Eoulty shoee caplial 17a &6 .03
Ciitvar eauity 7hb 11.£21.23
Tatal Equity 12,026.25
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 18 0308
Provisons 19 19,95
Belarad tax lobllihas (ret) 20 05 BY
Tatal Non-Current Liokillfies 1,032.95
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Frionciol liobitias:
- Barrowings 21 669.12
- Trade payabios i
N Total outstanding duss of micro and small enfammeas 951.85
i Totol outstonding dues of creditors oftes than Thh.85
micrn and srmol enlEprises
- Ohar Mincincial licbililes 23 Fie s
Ottar cument licpdites 24 e B
Pronvsions 75 128.25
Curant o lokhdtes (nat) 26,31
Tolal Cunenl Liokilities 956,37
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,015.48
Matenal Accounting Policlies )
Notes torrming part 2! accounts 350
Ihe actomparying nofes ors on Integral post of 1he corsbdatad frnnelal sfatemsnt
AS BIGT DU reEt of aven aale
Fos LODMA & CO P Fea anel on Bedhalf af fhe Boom
Charteres Accombons
Firm Regn. No. - A01051F/ FaCGI84 i Annamaolal Ashok K Kopar
Cheirman Minocing Drector
E. P Boradiyo Gl OO0 38 DINDO 2807
Pairies
Warrontn Mo 42101 Arun Jainwal Mahimo Patioor
Piats . Murmbol Chist Fingnicial Cificer  Compony Soorrory

Date - 2d4in My, 2025
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-# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
fon the year ended 11at March, 2026
(AN armounts in indion rupee lakh, unies oinerwise stated)

PARTICULARS Notes Year anded
3ist March, 20@25
INCOME
| Revanug from aparationg el 18.8%2.07
1 Oitrear Income 27 145.25
W Tobal Income (| + 1) T 19,051.32
IV  EXPENDITURE
Cof ol materals consumad A1 A07 13
Charigat in inverdary of finshed goods,
wark-ry prograss & riock-n-frade &5 423,72
Emploves bensfils psnne iy 141821
Finance costs a1 12205
Depreciaton arnd omaorfisation experse a2 2223
Power & Fust 245665
Ofhet exparsas LE | 1 37681
Tolal sxpenses (V) T16,778.35
Vo Profit batore excephona Tams and tax ¢ Il - /) £2T0.%5
vl Excoctiona ihem
Vil Share of Profit of on ossociole 8200
Vil Profit belors lax (V- VI) 2.360.95
(¥  Tox Expanss
{a) Cument fox 20 R80.00
(k) Detarad fox £21.99)
X Profit atfer taxation (vil - Vil 180254
a Ofmar Comprehensive income
Herne thc! will not be eclossifiedd 1o profit oF loss
Remgcsutpments dosos) of net dofinad bonelt plans {64, 19}
Tatel Comprenensive income (IX « X) ~1,736.75
Eamning par Equily Share of Fope Viowe of T 10 each
Basic ond diluted Eomings per share (7) 29.80
Mafaral Accounling Palisies 2
Notes forming parl of accourts 350

The occompanying nated ol an integral part of the consalidatad inoncial slalemeanis
Al par our report of @ven date

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accourtants

Fewr agve aony ekl af the Boae

Firm Regn. Nao. - 30108 1E/ E3002B4 5 Annamaial Ashaok K Kopur
Charmicin Momagng Director

R. P. Borodiya Dt 00001 38| DIMO0 126607

Parimnas

Merribersmio Mo 44101 Arun Joiswal Mahima Potlcor

Chil Financial Oficae  Cormpany Secretary
Hacs . Murnbal
Dote 1 240 May, 2025
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

for the yearended 315t March, 2025
(AN omounts in Indion rupes iakh, unless ofhensise shoted)

Particulors Year ended
31t March, 2025

A, Cash Flow from Operating Aclivities

Nat peolil Defors ox 2.560.94

Adjistments for

Deprecation and omartiiotfion expense 22223

Interest Incama (15 18)

Brofil an redesmphion / foir walus of weshmesnts (49.47)

Financs ooat 122.06

share of profll of an csociole (82.00

Frofit on dsposal/decard of proparty, piont ond ecuipmsent (060

Uabiites no longe: reduined witten bock (Net) 23.36 119.3%

Operating profit before working capital changes E,ﬂﬁ

Adjustments for -

incracsa in rode and ather recevatiies (293.68)

{Incieces) (Decrecse (n inveniones 15.54)

{ncreca)/Decease nloans & othar financiol cessts (&67.28)

Incraase in othar curanl ousats (G2 53)

Decrecze/(Incrocss) i gl ndn- cument oot 10,02

INnciassE N ode povalia 254.07

Diacranss in short Taem pimvisions (% Bd)

increqee/(Decrecs) noher curmart aolhes Bl 22 1.48)

Cash generated om oparating activiles 225887

Towas pald Nat of Refind) {5563 23

Nal cash generaled from opataling oclivities (A) 1,704.88
8. Cash Flow from Investing Activities -

Putchass of propedy, plar! ond squipman! (Inciuding CWIP and copilal advancas) (1,470, 148)

Purclmss of Cumant/Nan - Cursn| Invasimants (11530

gaie of Non - Current invesiment w0 48

Biank gegosts not corscerad oscath and cosh eqguivalents (Oloced); refuna 1.52%.03

Imterest received M8.55 7 B90.5)

Nef cash used In investing ochivities (8) (2,890.54)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Aclhivities:

Drvictanct pond including to thistean (&605.468)

Proceads from Long term Donowings - Bank 603 08

MNet Proceads from shart term borawings - Hanks &50.12

Amourt rarstamad 1o irvestor Bducatian gnd Protaction Fund,

Linpaid dividestg amaLnt (1.4%)

Friance cosr poald (122,68} 2301

Nel cah from / (used in) financing activitias (C) 54301

Nel Increass [ (Decreass) in Cash and Cosh Equivalents (A) + (8) + (C) (642.71)

Cash and Cash Equivalents af the beginning of the yeor &61.74

Cash ond Cash Equivalents of the end of the year 19.03

Poriculars Asaf

31st March, 2025

Cash o1 hond o3

Rotarce with Banks Q.00

TOLAL 19.03

Al ertonal Sooomnnmg Foficm F §

Nedes fabminig pen et Gecaurls J-E0

Tre ocsompcrsy g noss (35 59 Rfegns =0 of S5 Somsidots moncisl shotameants

AR BB pur Fmer ol oyan clrrhe

For LODHA & CD LLP o e o Enief il 0f 18 Bocrd

. marigind. Acesurians

Frm Regn, o, - 30005 E: E3OCEHA 5. Annomoial Ashok K Kopur

Choverrdr Managing Diecior

= Borodiya [T 00381 (N (O AR07

Pemrtre= )

Mernitiantig Na 81| Artif Jesiwal Menima Pafice

Pocs - Muripo ‘Tl Francipl Offcey Ciormpory Secmbory

Dt 2010 Menv. 2008
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{} NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

{All amaounts in Indian rupse lakh, unless othervise salad)

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As al
315t Morch 2025

l=siied, Sutecribead ond Poid up 0494
Forfeitad Shoms iy
TOTAL 605.03
OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Othes Tetal

Capital Securifies  General Retained Comprehensive

Reserve  Premium Resarve Earnings Income
As of 318t March, 2024 7.51 425,37 2,329.40 753282 LA RY] 10,289 44
Prafit for Tha yaor - . - | BO2.54 1 8294
rher Comprabanihg income for the year (o419 (56,19}
Drviclerd Pac - - - (A0 ) - {04 94)
Ag at 318t March 2025 751 425.37 2.329.460 8,730.80 71.32) 11,421.23

Maleral Accounfing Pollcles
Motes forming port of adcounts

[ Geosmpinying noted o o integesl por of the Saorackdoted Aronckal shosmgnts

A3 Pan our repol ! of e dole

For LODIHA & CO LLP
rrtEred Aot
Frrm egn. Mo, = 3010518/ E8002684

. P. Boradiya

ForinaT
MambanEp Mo a4

Floc= - Kurmiood
e = 2d3t Moy, SLEE

Fes ared o Bt of (e B

5. Anmamalal
Cralmman
DM ecniag]

Asum Jamwal
Chisd Finonciol Cificor

Ashok K Kopur
Mlanaging Puedtcr
D001 38807

Maohimia Pofleor
Compony Sacrgiary
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-%‘ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, uniess otharwise stated)

(i

CORPORAIE INFORMANON

The Corsdlidated financil statements compiise inancial statemeants of Rarmaada zelantines Limitad (hereinafte iafered to as {"me
Parant Company™) hoving CIN L2411 1IMPIR6TPLCOIE0RI for tha yeor ended Moch 31, 2025.The Forent Company |5 o puble
company damicied I Inda ond B oomparated under e proveons of the Cormparses Act aoplicsbla in India, The Parent
Cornpony wizs set up in 198) as Lalner Knit Gelatin Cormpany By, Lid, The Parent Company wos corvertsd info o Pubiic Cormgany
and regstaned os Shoaw Lalner Limited In 196%. In he yaor 1875 the name of Ine Parsnt Company was changad fo Show Wallocs
Galgtines Limitad, and i the vear 2002, tha Parent Compary wat renamed os Narmada Galotinar Limided. The Parent Cormoany s
ragistersd in Jaoolpur (Modhya Fradesh) undee Registrotion numibed LE41 1 TMPISGTFLCD 16023, Tha Regivterad offica of the Pamnl
Compony b of 28, CARAVS, 15 Crl Linas, Jabalpur AP, Tna Company -angoged in fhe manufociune ana sale of Cssain ond
Gelatine and Fosils manulootunng feciily lecatsd al Jabsdpu (MNP )

Thie Parent Company has the lollowing Atscciate

Nomeof tha Proportion of Malure of Business Dote of ocquisition
Company Ownership Inlerast
Indic alatine and 14,145 Ranufacivne and ale of 05 122024
Chemicos Limitad Casain ond Galoting

lﬂgamnerrﬂmtf:.mwwmum cssocione logeherwl barataimed o ' Group”.

This baing e fist yeo of consoidated financiol stalemants in view of il cegustion. disciosure for the pravicus yoor = nol
oppllicable

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Complionce

The financicl siotements hove bean prepared n accordance wilh the indan Acccuniing Standands (herenaffar rafamed to i he
Inat AS'Y as mofifea undar the Companies (indion Accounfing Stondorm) Rules, 2015 ara Companies (ndion Acoounting

Stondond) Amendmanis ke 2016 prascriped uncer Sachon 133 ol he Componies Act, 2013 reod with Rula 7 of tha Carmanias
[Accounts) Russ, 2014,

Recen| accounling pronouncemenis

Minisity of Corporote Altais (“MCA™) ndlifies new flandads o amendments 1o the edsting slandards unde! Companias ndion
Accounting Stondordn) Rules o8 issuad fram tima to firme. On August |12, 2024 and Septermber 07, 2024, MOA sued the Comperies
{incfan Accounting Stondards) Amandmanit Rulips, 2024 and Companaas (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amandmant
Ruilen, 2004 Infrecucing foliiwang ehanges.

al I AS 117 = msurance Confrocts: ind AS 117 Insronce Coniracts wos miroduced and Ing AS 104! nsurance Contracis wos
withidrawm, Ths wis oocomponiled with Consasuant ameandmens in otharstandards.

) el AS 114 - teomes The omandmants claify occounting kaoiment for o isfelessa ivaieed In jale ond leossbock
frarcc iom ond infrrocduced somemsioted udallive sxampiss,

The abova stonderd are elfective iom Aprdl 01 2024, The Campany has reviewed [he new pronouncemen's and bosed on
evaiuttion has deternined that it does not have ony significart impactinifefinancial soterrants,

Thiz Board of Clrechos opproves the Fmanelal Sratemants for the yeor endad 3 16! March, 20125 and authodsed for lssue on 2810 My,
2025.

Basls of preparation of consolidated financial statements

Thiaso Comsoidated financlol stotemants hove been prepored In occordanca with the Indlan Accounting Stondards nanainot o
rferred 1o o e ined AST) o notified by Misliry of Comparale Affain pumuoant 1o Section 133 of ihe Companiss Act, 2013 read wilth
Rulg 4 of Ihe Componiles (ndian Agcounting stongorcs) Rules, 201 b op ormandad from lima to time

Tha financial sofameants of e Group ore prepered in occordence with the indion Generally Accepted Accourting Principles
(GAAP) on The accrudl basi of accourting and nhistorical cost corvantion axcant for Ihe cenaln matadal ftams 1ho! hove bean
measirad o fairvalue os regured by the splavan? ind A5 ang eiploinad ir Fhe eraLing pokciag Defow

The Consolidated financial staterments are presented In Indan rupees U INR ) which s funciional cunency and all values ore rounded
o ine nedres! oo excapt ofnanise inokc ofd

Use ol esfimates & Judgements

Thee pesparation of the comndlidated finandial statemants s in confarmly wilth the na A%, egurss fhes Monogemsnt o moks
astmiotos and asurnlions consddated In e reportad omaunts of amealy and llabliles (ncllding contingsnt Habiilles) and ne
repodad ncorme ond aponsss duling the veaor, The Management belibves that the esimates used in prepaidation of the
corsohdated finoncle! satements ore prudent ond recsonabio. Futune octual resulls could ditfer due 1o these erimotes and the
differences balwesn trw aclualresulls and fhe sthmofes o recognsed in the panars in which the results ae known | moaledoie

Basis of consolidation
Tha carscidalad financiol statermants compess ha financ ol sratemants of he Porant Compony and arvassociala asof 318 March
2025, Corsallgoted financial statermnents are praponed using unttorm accourting potales tor lliee rarsocHons and offr everits in
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.* NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
Al amounts in Indian rupee iakhs, unlass otharwise sioted)

(i)

grnlia clreumstanceas, Il & ramissn of the Group usas accounting policies olbar ihan Mosa adopled In the cansolidated inancial
starements for flke frarsocnions and events in similar crcurnstonces, appropiate adisments ore made fo Mot Group's ftnandlal
statements inprapoling the ¢ oracidated financiol sictements to ansure conformily with the Sroup s occounting poliales.

Proparty, Planl and Equipmenl & Inlangible Azsels

Freshold lond & camed at historcal cost, All other fermaof prope©ty, plont ond eguipment are meowired of cost less oooumulatied
dapraciaiion and impaimmant |ossas, IF any. Costinchude aght, Impan dulles. mon-refundable poe haee o ond olher expenses
dractly arffiduiably jo the ooouiition of the assel. Bubsequent cosls are included in e assel s camying amaunt o tecognised as o
separate ceset, o8 oopioprate, only when it isorobgbie that future aconomic benofis associoted with the BEamwill fiow to the Groug
and the cost of the item con be meosurea reliably. The camyng amount of any companent oocourted for as o separate asset fs
derecognized when replocadd. Al ofhel repais and maintenances gre charged 1o the Satement of Profit and Lass during the
repiting parod nowhich they ara ncumed:

Ihtanglble ossels nfargible msets are slofed al ooyl of oogulalfion less occurmuialed amondisalion and Impekment, If any Loses
areing from the retirement of, and galne or lassas arsing from dspascl of fred asnes which ore camed af cost o revalued omountore
racognired in theSlotement of Frofitand Loz,

Depreciation / Amortisation

Depreciation s providad on Ihe shaight-line method appiying 'he useful fves of presciibad in port C of Sehadye || 1o ne Comporias
At 2013 sxcap! for plont and eqgupmanl. whedain usstul e iy delarmined bowad on intlemal fechnical cuamanl. The range of
estimoted usehul ives of Froporty, Fiont & Eguicment's orne g undet:

Calegary Useful Lile
Bufdings incuning roods) b 6 Yiaars
Piort & Eauiprnan & 25 Yaan
Eieciticalinatallaticins 10 Yasrarg
Fumituee & Fdure 10 Y
Cfce Equipmient a-oyeors
Vehiclas B Vacrs

The manopemant balievas that the usetulife o given above the bert iapresant the panod over which Tha monggement axpects °o
e thets assets. The Group reviews the wield lves and resfdual valus ol sach reporting datie.

Pepreciation on asels adasc/sald or discarded dunng the yaar s baing orovded on pro-rota bass up 1o the dats onwhich such
ety e cdded,wid of dincarded.

Lasahy costing up to e 5 000 sach as depreciated fully In the vearof purchase

Gaoirs/Losses on disposols/de-tecognition of propesty, clant and egquipment ore dafermined by comparing procesds with cormying
amourt and theds afe meognlsd indotemant of proft & |Loss.

Intangible assats o amodlea over thalr astimoted lseful economic fe unde: Stroight Line method. Camputer soffwara cost is
amsed dvel o peniod of e yaars,

Invwentores

Invantoes includes Row Matetal, Work In-Progress, Brishea goodu, Stores & spares, Consurnabiles. Packing Matenala) are valuea ot
cost or el raolisoble verus, whic revar s iower, Natroolisobie volues 5 Ihe esfimated saling price in the oedingny course of DUGINness kas
tha estimaled cost of completion and ha aslimalan coil recesary o make the sale; Cost of Row Maladal, Seméfinlshed and
Finshied Goods and Watk-n-Progress s determined on weighted aovesage bosis onc compiises of expendiiure incumed in the nomal
coume of butiness In binging Inventokes fo ther cresent locahon InCiuding oppropricre werheods Sppomioned on o rasonc ke
and congifent boss. Otsolsts . saw movirg arvd defechve focia o ldantified at the time of physcal vedficaton of sfocks and
whiste hiscessaty, provision s mode-for thess inveniotes. Adequals olowonce B mods o obsolets andilow moving IPeris

Revenue Recognition _

hig Group reconries revenues, whensve: control over gisfinct godds o services |5 ransferea 1o he cusiomen |e, whan the
curtomet |5 atie to directthe we of the tronsfened goods or 3anvices ond cotons: sebstantially all of he remaining benedfits, provided
o contact wih enforceabie nghts and obigotions exss and amangst othen colactability of consdesation s proboble taking nto
acrounl customes's orech worthines,

Revenue i the Tromaoction price the Group axpech o bz anfitied to. In detenmining the ansattion pdce. the Group corsiderns
affacts of varoble cormsderalon, the axklance of signiicont finoncing contmcls, noncash comideaton and consdeaiion
payabye to 1ha custamer I any,

Sals of goods

Ravanus from the scie of goocs s recognised when the controd of Ine goods passas fo the buyer eirher af tha time of dspatch o

dalhvery orwhen the ik of ioss fronsfers. Export soles are recognired bosed on ihe ferms of thasols wihich swhen sbstantol raxs ond
rewirels of cwnarshin Gre potssd 1o the cuformiers.

Revarws from sole of goods s pet of ioxes ond recovery of chorges colaciad from customean ke irgrsport. pecking ste. Prowsion s
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(viy

{ifi)

rradcle Tor returmie wihen apprcotiote. Revienue s maasured ot the tair value of corsidesation recelved of rsCalvaoliz ond B net of price
discounts, glowancs lor volume rebates ond simlior ems.

Clobms / Bafunds rol cscedainoble with recucnabia cenanty am accounlad for anfinal setiement ond e recognized as evenus
oncorianty of receipt on prudent Dasis.

Reveniue racognition fram sale of “Duty Enftiement Postook Licenss or Merchanalse Exports from indis Schaeme (MEIS) s macdks on
salerof the license offer receiphof he somefrom thi office of tha Diector General of Forelgn Trada.

Incotma from Duty Drowback i recognised onrecaiot bas

Dividend
Divicard intdme from investrments b recognissd wien Ihe shareholds s right 1o reCeive paymant hos been esfublahed (provided
that i i probablz ihal fhe ecormmie banellls wil flanw 1o the Goup ord fhe armaun| of income can be g @llabiy)

Inleres iIncoma

Imerest ncame fram a financial assel s recognised when it & probabla that ine econovpic benafits will flow fo the Group and e
amount of incomea cah be mamured milably. Intemsst incdma B ocoued ond time bagh, by rafatences 10 e princloal oltstanding
and of Ihe affectve inless! role oppicdbie, which i the rofe thot exactly discounts 2stimatad fufure caosh receipts through the
arpachad ile of ths inanciol assst 1o that asset's nel camylng ameun! an ind ol recognition,

Incoma from Invastment
Incarms from investments (othar then investrmants in shares of companies and Mutugl Funds) 8 occounted on accnal boss,

Dividand incame on Investmants s recopnised whan 1ha dght 1o receve dividend i eslatiisned. Intatest Incomie & recopnized an o
sime propamoncte Hask foking o acaourt the amourts nwvestod and the rate of interest. For ol findncacl mstrurments maosured of
omortsed cost. interast ncomeErecodedusng fre Efective inferest ote method fo the nat camying omaount of the finencial ossats

Foreign Currency Transachions

Forsign cumency arsachons are accourted at the exchangs rates prevalling an tha data of thies ransoctions. oins and logsee, I
any, on saffiamant orrainstatemant of yeor end closng boiancas by Gpplying 1he closing rafes in respact of monatary ossale and
manafory lobiittes not coverad by the forward contioch ara rec ognized in fne stafamant of profit cnd oo

Nor-mionetary ferms denominated in fomign curoncy aro stafed of tho rote prsvalling on e dote of the trorsaction

The promium or discount onsing ot the incepfion of e forword contract entened into to kedge the exefing assat [ Sotility,
omitied @5 cxpense af incoma over e Ife of the contac!. Exchangs differancas on such confract ore cognizad n tha
slatement of profil and less i the reparing period inwhich the sxchangs ialeschange. Ary prolit or lost ariing oul of concalation or
remigwal of such conhoct ore recognized os income o expasse in the mporfing pedod. Forwerd sxchonge contracts outstanding
o af the year end on account al firm carmmitnient [ hiohiy probakie forecost ironsocton are moked to morket and tha oeses, I
any, o ecognized in the statement of prattt and loss and galrs are ignored.

Employes Banefits

The Group hos the lolowng post-employment bsoali pont,

| Dafired baneft plans such on grotuity:

. DPafirad contrbution séans such of Frovident fund B Supsrannudation fund; ang
i O employss benstis

Defined banefit plon:
Volurtary Reliement Scharma Expansas, if any. ae fully chaged off in Ihe year af paymean|,

The Bability or asset recognised in the balonca sheet inrespect of defined benafit gratuity plan i the present volse of defined banafit
obiigertions ot the end of the reparfing perod kess foi volus of plon csiets. The defined benalit obiigetion b coculated annually by
czthuarnias through octuanal waruotion wing the Proiectad Unli Cradit mathod.

Thie Group recogniies ina following chonges [niha nat defined sanslit colgalion as on expanse in The statamant of profil ond loss:

0. Ssfvice COSTE COMPISnG Cumen' senics Cosli. poshseiice cosls, goins and losses on curlallment and non-routine selllements!
[y

B Natinfeceal axpanss orincome

Tha nat marast oost s colcuintec by opoiving e dscount rata o menat bokance of Ima defined banafit chlgation and foirvahieof
phan agssts, Thin cost s includad In employes benefit experne in the stofermartol profit ondios

Re-megsurement comprising:

a  Re-macuernen of Actuanal (galngosses

B, Retuanonploncssels, excluding armoun! ecognined in effect of assel caling

. Re-measurement afsing bacouse of change Ineffect of assel calling

e recognised n e penod inwhileh they ocow dirscily n Ofter Compranangive Income. le-meaasurameants ore not ragkossified o
et orloss In subsequent parads.
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iy

(il

Ingt AS 19, Employest Benefit éduires the axacne of judgrmant I miation to vatous assurmphons inciudng fulure Doy rees, inflcrtion
ond discount rates and employes ond pensinner demagraphlcs. The Group datermings the assurmplions in conjunchion with i
octuanes, and bekeyas inese assumplian 1o bein line wilh best practice, ut the applcation of diferent assumalions could hcve o
sgnificon! effect or thie omounts refactad in he Income slatemsan!, ofhet comprehanalye ncoms and bolonce shes) THare rmoy
b aisc Inler-depandhEncy belweaan sarma of e assumgtions.

Dafinad contribution phan: _ _

Urider dafinad conhicufion plang, ke Geroln pays pre-demed amolnts 10 parats lunds and doos not have any legal or niormicl
obligotion to pay additonal surms. Defined conttibulion plare comprise of conirbitions 1o providen! fund, Insurdnce and Ermnployiees’
Parglan Schama, The Grpup's poymeants o the defined cartribation phans ore ecognived os expanses durng the padod m which ihe
arnployoas paffarm [he sanicos thal 1ha poymaon! coven

Other employes benelils

o. Compersoied gosencal wheh are rol expected 10 ooow within fwelve monihs after the end of thie perod In which the
amployes rendens o ilolea services o recognized as o kabiity af thie presart yalua of the obiigation caar the bolonce shaal
date determined basea on anachuanal vakuation.

p.  Undiscounted ompunt of shortt=rm smployes banafits expected 1o be poig in sxchangs for the ssnvices rendersd by
employsss ate recognised duling Ihe patoa whan1he amployes randess the felaled sevices.

o Bpenssincuned lowards voluntary reflirement scheme are charged fo (he slalement of profil and koss cs ond whsn ncued,
d. Cmarbersfifs comprking of secrehonany long senvice gwardsans recognizes as ang when determinsd,

Current and Defered fox

Incarme tox cormprben curent and defared o Incams lax expansis is recagnized In the rotemant of ol and ks except (o Ihe
axiant it relatas fo ferns directy recognized in equify or m other comprehensyve ncome. Curent faxis bosed on toxabée profit for the
year Tarable pmfit i different iom oscounling coofit due o lemponary differences betweaen accourting and fox freatments. and
due 1o teme that are never 1axable or far deductibe. Tox plovisons are included In curant Baolifias. Interast and penallies on oy
hooil s are provided fof in the Tax chorge, Tha Group offsely. the curment tox ossaty ond liobiities (on o year on year boss) whom i
hons a legally enforceate right and where t mtenc 1o satfle such ossaly and Fablities on o net bass or o reallse the assets and
fabdties gn ngl bose, Defpmed income has s ecodgniped Using he balanes sheet oppiooch, Defemed Income hox aaess and
kabiltios ore recognized fon Caductble ond taxable termpoiony difesnces alisng batween the tax bose of ossets and liabiilkes and
ther camyang amaunt in ironciol stataments. Defered income fax aise! ore reeognized 1o the extant nal it is probablé that Toxabie
prafitwil e ovialable agoinet which the deductinle Temparnary differences, and the camy fomars of unusea tox credits and Linusdl
taik Iossas can be Ulilied. Defarred |ox assals are not recognisad wharm || i more llashy thon not that e ossets will nol be raalised in
the fuhee. The camying omount of defermed Incoms fox casel s reviswad al eoch reporing date and reduced fo theardent thal if is
no longer proboble that sutficlent fuxoble profit wil be avallabie to aliow of of part of the detarad neoma 1ok oael fo be Uiked,
Deferad neome tox st and llablifies om mesued of thefox rates Thal ae sspectad 'o apply In e oerica when the oset s
realizad or the liobility i sefflad, bosed on fox rates (ond foi laws) that have been enoctes o subsfortively snacled af tha ieporing
date Datemad fox lams ore recognied incomsalion o tha undailying tarscclion sithe in Cithar compransnsia ncomas o dirsctly
naoulty.

Impairmani of Assets
The Group cssesses ol eoch reparling dole whether thane B any otiachive evidance thatl a noninoncial cuset of o groun of non-
finaneiol nssets are Impared. If any such indicafion edsts, the Group estinales the amount of impalimaent loks, For e puroose o
oisedsing Impaimmend, the smiclest dantilable group of ossah Ihal gensatas cash Intlows rom confinuing uss that are largaly
roependent of lhe cash inflows frarn offier osalsor groups of asssls s coniderea o2 a cash genercling unil, if ony such indeotion
ity an esfimate of the recovergbie amount of the Individuc csset/cath generating unitis made. An impairmant e s coculated
o thiz diference bistwsan an cesel's canying omount end eoivetable omount, Losses ore recognised in prafh or o and eflected
nan alowance ocooutt. When Ine Gaoup cortiden hal thets ae no eolislhic plospsch of recovery of e aisel, (he relavan
omcxanin are wiitten oft if e emount o impairment los subsegquanty decregsesand the decracsa con be nalated objectivaly fo an
avent accunng oftar tha impaiment was recognissd, ihan the previously recognisad impairment fass bs reversed through prafit ar
ltand.

Finoncial instruments

Finonclal assets - Initial recognifion

Fnancial assohl are recognised whian ths Group becomes a party fo the contractual provisans of the insfruments. Financ ol assets
ot than Troce recok-okxes oro Infially recognised of 1ol volue i ronsacTion coems fon ol inancicy ossaf not comad Gf fo valuo
thresugh orafil ar foss, Financical oassls conied of foir value through profit or loss are nitioy recogrissd of faifvalue, ang frameaction
conts e expensed in thestotement of proflt and (ose

Subsequent measuremani

Firancldl cssats, other than eguly metruments, ore subsecuenfly measuted of amorked com far value Mrough olher
compreharsve income o foy value trvough profit o loss on e bass of;

a.  thaanhity'sbusiness modatfor manoging Ihafirancial assats. ond
. theconlactual cash flow chatactamstics of the firanoal osset
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i Moaosured of amorised cosk:

A financial cata B measrad ol omortisad cait i it i held undar he hold to collec! bisingss modal |2 haio with an oblactive of
holcling fhe ansats to colect contractual cash ficss and the conmactual cosh flows are sclely payments of pHincpal and iffatest oh
ha ptincipal outstonding. Amorised cost B colsukated usnp the affective nfees) e (ER) method by takng info occount ary
disccunt of pramium on cogisilion and fees o costs Ihat are an infegrl port of e BR. Tha BR amartialion s Incluced in rlessl
ncome in The rhatement of profit and 1o, The lossea arsing from mpaiment are recognised in the statemant of profit and lom, On
deTRCogTNTion, gaincr |oms, Ifany, isrecognised o statement of profitand s,

i Meaosured ot fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

A finoncial oesa! § meosurad al AVCCL, IF 1 & neld unger The hold to collec! and sel businagss model Le, hetd with an objeciive 1o
coliect contractual caah Nows arid salling such financial assal and Ine canfractual cosh fows ara solely poymen's ol prinelpal and
rierast on tre oincipal outstondng, It B subsequently mansurea of far volue with fail volue movements Tecognized n the OC),
axcept for interast income which recognised using efféctive intanest rate method. The losses arsing from imparmeant are ecognise:d
n the statemesnt of profil and Ioss. On derecognition, cumlatie goin ot loes previously recognsed In the OC1 s reclossfled fram Ihe
2gully tosiotement of profil ond los.

(i) Measured al falf value Inrough profit orloss (FYTPL): .
Inveastimeant In financia ossat omer thon equity nstrument, not meamured of effheramortisea ot or FYOC smeanured af FYTPL Such
finonciol assts are measuied of falf value with ol changey in falr vialue, Ine'ucing Interest income and dividend Income |f any,
recagnisedin thewiaternsnt of prolt ond o,

Equity Instruments; _
Allinvestrrents nequlty nsiidmentz [ any clossifed urder financiol cssets are subiequant'y measures atfalralue,

Thie o recoEss d 108 allowance fof Expecied Cradll Lotsas {ECL} on linonciol assats thal are mecsured ot crnonited cosl and
ot FVOC, The credr los o aimerence batween ol confractudl cosh fows hat oo cue To an entity n occordoncs with e confract
and ol the cash lows that The enfity sapech to recelve (e all posh shorffally), discountad ot ihe orginal offactive Intanest reto. This ls
assessed on anindidun! or colschive bosss ofter consdadng al repsorabla ond supportablsincluding that wheeh s fansand-IDoking.

The Company s fode mcaivables or confract revanue recevobles do not gontaln significant financing compenent and
ioss oliowancs ah tode recaivabies |5 meabuiea al an amoun! egudl fo it Hmde eapocied loses |0 eoedied cdsh Shorfok, being
grmplified oppreach for recognilion of imoairment loss allcwance '

Unecler smplified appioach, the Group does not frock changas in cradit sk, Rather it racognizes moarmeant o dllowance based on
e lletimea Bpacted Credt Lodsas af each reponing date fght from 5 inital recognition. The Group Jses o provision mati to
datarming impas mignt ioss allcwianc e on the potfols of trode recebokiis

The prowvislon matix s based on its hstorcaly obsanved detoult rates over the expaciad |ife of the froge naceivabla and s odjusted for
fonward Iooking ssfimates. Al evesy repaording date. the hislodcal cbearved defoull rales are updaled and chenges i ihe fonward:
inoking edimoles dis onalysad.

Farfinanclol assats ofher thon node receivables, the Group recognises 12 month expeched Credlt lasses for of onginoted or ocquired
financicl asals I ol the reporing date (he credi riek of the financlol cass! hos ned Incsamsed signiflcantly dnea s indial recagnition
The expectad credit icsses are meaurad ar Ifetime expacted cradit kosses if the credtt rlsk on financkol asset increases significantty
gnce it mtlal pcognion. i, n o suctequent pared. creat guality of the ngtrument iIMpioves such that e [ no langer significant
rimose in credil sks snce nillal recogrilion, hen the Stoup reverls to weognlzing mpalirman| s clevwanee bosaa on |2 moniths
Expoctod Cradit Lossss

The mparrmant iosses ond reversals ore recognised in staternant of proft ang loss. For equlty netruments and finoncial ossets
mansuted of FYTPL. thara & no regliraeman! formpairnant festing,

Da-recognilion

The Groug derecognisas 4 financ:al assat whan e contasiuecd ngnts 1o he cash Tows Tom the inoncicd cesal exods, of [ ranstans
sghits fo receve cosh flews fram on agset, It evaluates i and fo whol extent it hos relaned 1he ks and rewards of ownembop, When |l
hias nalihet Mansfermed not retalned substanhichy all of thi ekn ond reesands of this assel, nor frorsfemed dantol Gf the assel . The Grouo
continees lo recognise the tronsterred ossef o the exdent of the Carmpary s continuing invalvamanl,

In thal cosa, ihe Group dle recapnitess an asociatad lability. Tha Innsfered asal and Ihe auocialed liabity are measurad on a
basls that refiacts tha igivhs ord ooligations that tho Group has refolned.

Financial Liabilities
Irit=l Recogriionond maasurermernt

Fincencial labiities are recognises when the Grous becomes a party o the corfrdctual provision: of the irslruments. Fnoncial
adties are inlfiody recognised ot for valus net of frensoction cosls for ol finopciol kobiFties not camed ot foir volue Shrough pref o
s,

The Compory's financlial lablllies Inélude:z ods and offer payables loons and Borowings including bank cverdialis and
derivative instmamednts.
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i)

Subsequen! measuremant

Firancial lioblities meosurss of amorisea cost ara subsaquenty meosued of wing EIR mathad. Fnoncial kabitities carriea of foir
value throlagh profit of ioss ase mecosunes o folr vialue with of| changes in for volue recognisecin tre stoternstt of profitand oss.
Loans & Bomowings

Afrer initicl recogrition, Inferest bearing loons and Sorowings are ubsequanily measured of anodined cost Wing EIR method. (ains
ongd [oss=s ore recognead in profit & loss when tha licbiifies ore derecognized an wellos fhvough ER omortzalion process.

finonclal Guorontes Confracts

Francial guorartee canfroct ssued by the Goup are thess conhocts that requines o poyment 1o b mode o o reimburse e
noldsr for g ioss IF Incurs Secouse Tha spacifed daibion fols fo mase payment whan dus in ocoordanca with the ferm of o debi
ratrurmant. Fnanclal guorantee corracts o ecogntied infally o2 o fability at fair value, adurted for frareacton cost that ase
deactly ottibutabls fo he luonc2 ol the guoantses,

Subsaquenfly, the latdty b meosured of he higher of me-omount of loss olowonce deterrnined os per imparment requirernents of
Ined AS 106 and Ineamount recogriyed lescumiudathve adfstmea nts.

Da-recognifion

A financial Fobilly s de-recognisac whan the chiigotion under the Robily ls decharged o concallad of anpires, Whian an sxsting
firanciad oty ls teplaced by anothar fram the same lender on substanhaly different barms, of tha tarrme of an exisling llability are
susstontially modifiso. such an exchange o modificotion s reoed as the derecogniban of the ariginal sbiiity and e ecogntion
of arewliablity. Thedifarencs in the respactive carving ormounts il meagnised n 1he siatement of profit o loss,

Defivalive inancial instruments & hadga occounting _

The Group uses dervative inanciol instuments, such as forword foregn exchongs conliocts o hedge s foraign cunency e Such
getvalive Franchkal inttruamants ane inlticly recognesd al falr value on the date on whicf o derivative confros! senfersd  infoand
ore sucsequenty remeasured ot forvoiue, with changes in fair volus recognised n statement of protit onc koss.

Dedvatives are comed ot inanclal gmets when the foir value = positve ord o fnonciod looities when the folr volue i negative. The
Groun desipnates their detivativas as hedges of foreigr cursncy sk mssockated with tha cosh fiows of highly prabable fosecost
frarsactions and vonabile inferast rote ngks casociated with the Bomowings,

Falf Volus Measureman!
The Group measures financial iInetrumsnits, such as, dervatives af fol veluy at soch balance shaal dats. Fak value k*ha price that

would bo ecelved to kel on et or paid o ranster g liobility In on ordeny fronsochion otwoen market poriciponm of the

mcsuramant dote, The for wilue memsutemant |5 basee on the prasumption that the marsar o to el the osset of trarstar thae

bbbty tfakss plocseithen

o Iniheprincipol manest for the ossst o Batility, o

e In'ine cosance of ¢ pincipal markel. m the most advanlageous markel for the asef of lakify The prncloal of the mosl
oavanlogeous maks! must De accambie by (ne Company,

The fain vaiue of an ossetora sapiity b measurad weing the ossumptons that manest porficeants would e when pricing 1he osset of
kol ty . assuming thal miorket pomicieants act n inel economic bast Intersst,

ATair value meosurement of a ndrrtinaniciol gmet tokey into ocoodnt o monket porticipant s aobilty o genercta economic oenafiy
by Lsing the asset in s mighest ond Dast use or by sefing i toanotnar markal participant that wouwid use the amel inits nigheast ard beoat
LheEs

Tre Group wses valloion technigues tho! are cppropriate in the- cicumstonces and for which sutficient dato dre avollobis o
rreoswr e fain vollus. mondmiling he uss of rlevant obsarvobie inputs ond miniming e use of unobasvabis nputs

Thie Group wses thatollowing esanshy for datarmining arid diselosing the folr valus of financlal instruments by valustion fechnigue
Leve| || Quoted (unodjusled) prices I active morkels fof idantical nuets of fabilles

Leval 2 Dftist b hnsgaess for wiich ol inputs wihich have o sgrificant effect on the recotded fainvalus are obssneble, sithardirscily
of Indirec iy

Lizval 3 Technigues which use Inputs thia! hove a significant efect an 1k recardad foll volue hal oe nol basad on cbsanobl
markel data, ' ' '

Far osets and kadiities that ore recognisad In the financio! stafaments an e recumng bosis, he Sroup determnas whether fronsters
navie Goourred batwean levakin the hlerarshy by re-gatetsing cotegorisation (based on the 'oweast level inputthat Epignitcantto tne
Tt vaalue mecsuramean! os o whole)al ke end of sach mpating penod.

Far the puposa of fair volse disslisures, the Groun has determined clossas of amels and lobdtles on the bass of the nature,
churactesstics ane feks of the asat o Labiity ond the evel of the falr vale Nsrarchy as explaired ahove.

(xiv) Provisionand Confingen! Liobiliies

A pravision & recognited when the Sroup has g precant cbigation as a resdt of post avents and It s probotie ot on outtiow of
'R oUN BEs - eMbDayYing economic banafits wil bo resuked o satfie the obligation  msoact of which a rellable sstimate con be
mace These e reyewed af eoch baancs shset dateand odiusted forefiec! theoursn: bast satirmalas,
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Contingent Liobilities ars not ecognited but o dinclossid in the notes, Contingent Assets are nelthsr retoghsed nor disciossd In tha
financial shataments.

(xv} locses
As 0 Lessee:
The sroup assessas whethero coninc! conlaing o lsase. al inceoion of a conhact, A Conirgct s, o conioins. & lecss if necontriac]
conyeys thengnht fo.control the wsa of an idenfiiad cuset for apanod of fime Inexchonge for considenation

T oy whisfher O cofrot! Sorweyl tha il to conliol e usa of anlden | INed ossat, Ihe Group assesos whigthes

03 thecontnact imolvas Ing we of an |denlited osal;

(ity  thaGreun I‘cuml:rﬂnndh:l-,'cl of the scanamic enafils from use of {he asse! Inrugh 1he pardod of e lease: and
() theGrous has the Haht fo drect the use of fre st

Mt it dote of commencament of thie leass., the Sroup recognzes arlght-of-use asset (ROU™) and a comasponding laase ooty tor
ol fesae aragngemants in which il Ba lossea, axcep! Tor lposesw!ih o fermof tweive montng of lass (sho-term Bmases) and iow voluo
e For thesa short-tarm ond kow value lscses, 1he Group ecogrites the leoss poyments o3 on opeating experse on a sirmight-
ke bows over the teimn of the leass.

The fight-ot-Lme owsats are inmoly recognized of cost, which comprisas the initial amount of the lease lobilty odusted for ony eoss
paymanis made af o pror fa the commancamant dale of he lacse plus any Intlial direct costs less any lecie Incentives They ara
sursenuenty measutad al cosl less accumulatad deprecial ion ond mpalrment kases.,

Cartoin iease arangements includes the opfions to sxtand or termingte the fecss bafore theena of the sass tarm. ROU osats ond
ease iablities includes these coliors whan s reasoncbly cartain thot they willoe exsrcsad.

Right-ofLee pmaly are deprecidled from e commencerment date on a shaight-line Dol avee the anarter of the lgase tarm and
uzafud ife of tne undedyng assat, Fight of use assen are evaluoted for recovarabiity whanever events orchopges in circumstancas
ndicate that thelr cormying amounts may not be recoverchle, For the purpose of Impalrment testing, the recoverable omodnt (e,
the higgher of "re fok vaiue less cosl To sel ond | he volue-in-use) k detarminad on an indiidual cscel bosk urdass the astal does nol
gerstate cash fiows that ore lagely independent of those from ofhiar casati. Insuch cases, the recovierabie amoun! & determined
tor iha Cash Ganerafing Unit ICGU o whioh ine asse! belongs.

The lecse lotdity 4 inltlally meciured of amertben cosh af the presont value of ths fulure 18ase cavmants. The base payments o
dacounted using s ntarsst rate imoicl B the 2o of, If nol 1eadiy asterminotls, wWing ne neremantal borowing fates i the
counfry of comiclle of thess leoses, Lease kabilifies are mmeansred witn o cotresponaing odiistment fo the reloted dght of (e sl
it thes Group chonges i ossewsenent if wheihes sl execlse an exdenson o o lerminalion opfian

|z oty cond BOWU crzset hove oaen separarely presaried in the Balones Shaar ond leose povments hove been olossfies as
fingricing cosh liows

Az alessor:

leass ncoma from operotng leases whare fha Group i a esser it recognised n ncome on o Fraighi-ine bass over tha lease term
uriless the receiptsare structured toincrease in s with expected general infialion to compensate for the espectedinflotionary cost
noieces The respachve sased aselsaie included in the balance sheel Based on fhell hohee

Basad of Company's assessment, the contrach enfered info by he Group do nol contain o keose ob specified at:ove o they ase
aliber ihor term orlow valug leanes. Tharelone, those have heen occountad as par othe: applicable accounling standands,

{xvl) SegmeniReporing
Ciossating segrrents cre reporfad I a manner congistent wift e Intemad reparting previded to Chiel Operafing Becision Mokear
{COOM),

he Group has dentified i Managirg Drector as COOM whao & respamiBle for allieoting resolrces and crsessng performanaos of
iz pperating segments ond mokes shotegic decsions

{xvii) Earnings par shara
Bodc ecrnings per sham ore colculated by dividing 1he ral profif o cds foe the padod aftribuloble 10 equity share hokders (otgl
geducting preference dividends, I any, and afttbutoble raxes) by the weighled averdge nurnber of edully shotes-outd anding
durnig tha perdod. For the purpose of colcuating dilted ecming per oo, tha net proft ar koss tor the pakod attibumble o equlry
shareholdan and e weighted avetcge umber of shanes ocutstanding duting the parled ae odusted for fne eifect of ol diutive
potan ol sguity tharss,

{xviil)Cosh and cash equivalents
Cosh and cash equivalents Include cosh and chegues in fand, bark bolorces, demand clemoails willh bans and olher shorl-lem
highly bauid investments that are teadiy coaverfible to known amaunts of sash and which are sublect to an imlgnificont sk of
chonges ir volue whate anlgino| maturity s fhree monfre orless

Cash flows areiepoted iEng e Indrect method whesty the prafit betare tax s ad|usied for the effact of tha trarsactions of a non:
cagh noture, ony deferals of accruals of post and future apsaiofing cash recelnts o payments and ferg ol Income or axpensas
mssocioted with invesling o inancrg cosh Mows: The coagh fows Tom aparatng, rvesting and foamoing activities of ne G2ouD o
sagreqarad.
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-%‘ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, uniess otharwise stated)

{xix) Botrowing Costs
Ganaral and scacilic barrowing costs tha! ane directly aftribuiabia 1o the ocquisiion, construchon o production of quaifying assats
ane capltilted o a part of cost Of hat aset, during the pedod Hil ol he actvfies necessary to prepare the qualiying assets for
rtended Use of wale ars complise, Cugiifying osteli an osels thol recessarly foka g substartial pariad ol fimea to gat 1sody for thalr
niendad use or=ala.

Cithir bonmwing costs ane recoanmeed o on sxperse in e pardod in which they ans incursd.

{1x) Exceplional fems
Whan an Fem ofincome or sxponss withen profit or los from oednory cotivity 2 of such sze_ notun or incidence that these discloswra s
relevent to explon the perfarmance of the Group for the year, the nature and amount of sach tems 5 dsclosed as excephionda fterms,
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¢ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All gmounts in Indion rupes iokhs, unless otherwise stoled)

3

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Pariculars Freehold Bulldings Mont& Fumitwe Vehicle Office  Elechical Tolaol
Land equipman! & Flxtures aquipment Installalions

Bolonce as of 31st March 2024 11692 35928 2874.4] 3.50 41.35 15.98 351 345214
Adldilions - . BOG. 25 035 % 3413 fa) 26
Deuchons Adlustmant - - 5673 - - 8,23

Bolonce os of 31st March 2025 11692 35828 341363 385 41,38 1751 Tisd 422518

Accumuiated Depreciation

Balance os al 318! March 2024 - 10421 41713 1.99 7.02 913 2088 760.10
Addilions - 1.7 19521 030 3.62 250 32 22224
Dol Hord) Adj stmard . - 5484 . - - 54.84

Bolanca as ol 315! March 2025 - 121.58 757 50 229 10.64 11.63 390 92750

Nel carrying omount os af 315t March, 2025 116982  237.70 265613 1.56 30.71 587 4874 A290 &2

Rafar Mala 18 for e detals i respact af cerlom ceoparly, plant and sguipment hypolhacoled /maripoged as secwily far
BOTOWINTS.

Particulars As al
3ist Morch 2025

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Blant ard equlprment undes instaiotion® SIB2G
Hulicting undar construction .

TOTAL 476.29

"Rafar Note |8 for the dotol In esoect of cedoin ropesly, plont and squipmet vpothecated/marfgoged an secunty for
LITTIWINGgS

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AGEING SCHEDULE
Particubars Lass than | year 12 yoors Z-3years  More than 3 years Total

As of 3st March 2025
Brojects Inprogress 678.2% . - - 47829
Projects lemponarly susoanded - . - .

Tatal &478.29 . . - &78.29

INTANGIBLE ASSETS Soflwore TOTAL
Gross Block

Bolance os of Tst April 2023 292 29
el 4 1t g

Deductions / Adjustments - .
Balonce as af 315t March 2024 .52 .92
AdedTiong -

Deductions [ Adjustments =

Bolonce as of 3181 March 2025 2.92 252
Accumulated omordisation

Balance as af 18t Apell 2023 279 279
Armorisalion chargs for the veor 013 Q.13
Deductions [ Adlustrients — =
Accumulated amorfisolion o af 3Tsl March, 2024 292 292
Amaonaotion charge for the year : -
Deductions  Acustents - -
Accumulaled omorisolion as of 313l March, 2025 2%2 292
Net carnying amount as of 31st Morch, 2024 - -
Ne! conrying omount as of 318! March, 2025 - -
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-ii',rL NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupee [akhs, uniess otharwise stated)

-] INVESTMENTS - NON - CURRENT
lrwvastmants in or asiociale (Eqully Shares:

Porticulars Foce Value Per Share Ne. of Share Total Value
Equity Shares of inoia Selorne and Chermecals Lid 10.00 1,003 0ma 4,1163]
snare of prott of on gEociofe 82.00
Tolal 419731

Invastrrion b inon gasociate (Refar Mole 400

Parmiculars Asan
315t March 2025
T LOANS
Unsecured, considared good
Agvance to employees |4 0y
TOTAL 14,064
‘8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Securlly Doposiity 147.18
TOTAL 167.18
§  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Umecured, considared good
Canital Advonces 54.72
Frepoo Epanses 1.0
TOTAL 43.74
10 INVENTORIES
Fow molencls o424
Werk-r-progress L4778
Finished gobcs 1.895.74
Stores & Spores A27 78
TOTAL 4,657 37
[tefier Mote 2(v)
MNofe: Mo Irantorkss witten down dismng tha year and In the pravious yeol
11 TRADE RECEIVABLES
rode Recalvabias contldered pood - Ursacunad 248490
Tiode Fecaivablas which hiwe slgrificant
rade Receivabias - cradll mooed 2.B1
Eses Abowoncss for expecied cradh o (2813
TOTAL 2,484 20
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025

(All amounts in Indian rupee [akhs, uniess otharwise stated)

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE;
Mwﬂng_hhlhﬂingmﬂmmammmmmrﬂ
Particulars Nol Due Lass than & manths Maore than  Tolal
& rmonths yeors Jyeon
As al 318t Mareh'2025
Il Undisputed Trode receivobles - consderea good 191017 7200 28t 48701
il Undispitéd Trade Retahaslo -
which have ignificant neneose in cradit Mk
iy uUndizpulad Trode secehibles - Sradil mpalred (2iB1) (281}
W Disputad Trogds recetudhibs = contldesd good . . .
vl Disputad Tiode Recaivolies -
which hove sgnificant Incrense in credm Mgk
vid  Olsputed Tiode Recavabies - credit impoared - - . -
Tatal 1921017 572.00 - 2484.20
Farticulars As at
3131 March 2028
12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bonk balance In cuneet accdunls @00
Cash an hand 1003
TOTAL 19.03
13 BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN ABOVE
in Dividand occounts 22.30
I Deposits accounts 404
TOTAL 26,36
14 LOANS
Unsecured, considered good
Loan ho armisioyenss A5.58
TOTAL 45 98
15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Secunty deposits 446
Ofher Recalvobis &2 52
Inferss] cocrusd on fed depoils 0.4
TOTAL —ahad
14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Atlvancas to umpliars F2X27
Hrepald 2265
Balarces with govesrmant authanlles | 42
101AL 24153
T EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital:
100,00 000 aquity shores of T 10 agon 100000
1.00,00,000 9% cumuloive redaamabla pralarenca shoras of 210 aoch 1000
TOTAL 2.000.00
|ssued, Subscribed and Poid up
6049 587 equity shores of 210 each, lully pald i R
Farfelled shores 007
TQTAL 605,03
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupee [akhs, uniess otharwise stated)

(i) Reconciliotion of the number of shares outslanding & the amount of share copilal of the beginning ond at the and of tha reporting

period:
2024-25
Paticulars MNo. of shares  Amount

Equity shares at The paginning of he yeor A049.587  ADA04
Acia : Shares grued guing ne year :
Less - Shores bougnt bock aunng me yaor

Equity shores oulstanding of the and ol year 6,049 587 A04.96

(I Terms/rights attoched to equity shares
The Parent Compony has only one Choss of equity shonas having o parvolue of T 10 per share, Eodh hokdar of equity shares it
entithéd to one vole pershom, The Compony declores and pays aividands in (ndian rupeas, The dividend proposead by fie Boord
of Dires fars s sumect fo the approval of the sharehoidarns in tha emsang Annual General Mestog. In he event of tha [iguidation of
hiz Corpipany he hiokdans of equity shares will e gniifled fo recave he lamaining assats of the Campany i prapadion o fha
RS af 1w gharss hedd,

(i Detalls of shares held by the holding /assoclate company:

Particulars No. of shares  Amount
Alaneer Jodoe Inda Privale Limtad 2.423.32) 242,33
Ashok Malchas end Timbeat Industries Privata Limited 211381 21139
Total 4,537 171 453,72
(v} Equity shateholdats holding mare than 5% of equity shares along with fhe number of equity shares held is os glven below:
Pariculars No. ol shares e
Honear lelyce ndio Frivofe Limifsd 2473321 a0 O
Asnoa hatches and Timibes inchusbies Privare Limsted 2.113.8/ 4 94
Total 4 537,19 75.00
(v} Delails shareholding of promoler and % chonges In the holdings dusing the year.
Particulars MNo. of shares B
Plonear Jalbcs indio Filvale Lmil'ad ?AR 32 Fiig a"
Aok Maleheas and Timber Incust res Brivate Uinited 2113870 84
Total 4 537,191 7500
Mote

“On September (9, 2024 Ponser Jebce india Private Limited, one of the Promoters of Narmada Gelatines Limited (the
‘Company’), sold 160,298 (Gne Lakh Sty Thousand Two Hundred and Ningty Eight) equity shares of the-Company having a
face vaiue of T10 2ach (representing 2 65% of the lotal ksued and paid-up equity share capital of the Company), thraugh an
Ofter Tof Sale (OF5) conducted via the desgnated window of B Limiled. The sale was undartaken in accordance with 5Bl
circuiar o SEBIMHOIMEDI MRD-PoD-3/P/CIR 2023710 dated January 10, 2023 an the 'Comprenansive Framework on Offer for
Sate (OFS) of 3hares Ihrough Stock Exchange Mechanism’ Consequent o the s3id sale, theshareholding of he Fromoler and
Fromoter Giogp hasreduced rom 77 -65% 10 75.00% of the paid-up equily share capialotthe Company,”

ANNUAL REPORT 202:4-25 (96



% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupee [akhs, uniess otharwise stated)

ivl) Apgragole number of shoves allotad as lully paid up by way of bonus shanes during tha las! llve years

Curing the los five financlal years, e Porent Company hat not aliohea any Do shanss,
{vil) lssue of shares for consideration other thon cash

Durng the preceding five finoncial yemes, the Porent Company has not sued any shore for consdenation ather than cosn
tviil) Dividend paid ond proposad Raler Note 45(c )

i7b OTHER EQUITY
Parliculars Reserves and Surplus Othir Tolal
Comprehensive
Income
Capital secullies  General Reloined Re-measuremsnt
Fetaqve Pramium Ratarve Eomings  of the defined
benefit plans
As at M st March, 2024 7.51 425.37 2,129.60 7,532.82 (515 10,289.44
Profit for the yeaar . 172054 1720594
Cither Compranersive Income for Thae year - (&5 199 tA1n
Dividend paid (60, 4) (4.54)
Al af 31t March, 20025 7.51 42537 2,329 .60 B.548.80D {71.32) 1133923
Purpose of the Reserves:

Securflies Pramium: Secuittes pramium s credited when shores cere lisuied at pramium. This will e ublised In aoccedance with tha
provigone ol the Aot

General Reserve: Tho Ganaral rasarva s cated by way o fronsier of arfits frem ratenad aomirgs for appropralion pumoses:. This
regentya i Ulieed In ooconrdance wilh tha provitions of (he Acl.

Retained Eamings: Retained samings are the profifs that fhe Company hes somed 1l date, les ary tonetsn fo genstal reserue,
ahvidends ot athas dishitutions pald tasharaboldarn.

Parliculars Asal
318! March, 2025

18 BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT

From a Bonk

Tarmn Laom”® ToR.08

Lass: Currant Moturinies of Long term bamowings (19500

107AL &03.08

“Term loon

- Term boan aresacured by o first ianking por-pais Mypothecation, Bxckeive chage on the asseli ciadmad out of fhe teim oan
Repgyablein sl aqual manthly nstalments (refal Delow). Rate of iInfersat 8.20% p.o (pravicul yearnil)’
Repayment Schedule

Parliculan Asat
315t March, 2025

From Bonks:

1-2 Veoms 195,00

-3 Yeom 19500

3 Yo 19500

&5 Yeors 1B

o6 Yieors 4114

lotad outstonding Bosrowing 198.02
19 PROVISIONS (MON-CURRENT)

FEnsion 9.8

10TAL 19.98
20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Daltamad Tox Ligb#les (Na1) 400 .89

TOTAL a0y .89
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21" MARCH, 2025
(&l amouns in Indian rupes (akhs, uniess otherwite stated)

21

(11 The moljor companesty of nooms 1ox apenie o af lolows:

Parficulars Year anded
318l March, 20258
Cunent Income tox chirgs 50,00
Deferred lax
Redaling fo olgination and revisdl of lemboary diferandces {21.99}
Income tax axpense repored in staterment of profit of loss 558.01
Reconcifiation
Accounting prafit/! (foss) betore Income fox 236056
Enacted toxate in inoa 25.17%
Computed fox sxpense 594 25
Differences dua o
Expenses not deduciole fod 1ox purposes 1 1a83)
Dihars 1.03
{15.600
Current income Tox axpenses recognised in Profif or Loss 578.45
Dadamed hox relates to following:
Recognised in Bolonce Sheel Hunwiudlnhﬂ!mlnn
Parficulan As af Year ended
31¢ March 2025 31t Mavch 2025
Accelerctad depreciction for fox puipose (418.400) {457
Expentos allowable on payment bos 8,72 (0, 193
Feilr valuation of financicl nstiliments - (15.22)
Deefamed fox assel [ Gobity) (405 B3}
Nel (income)/ expense (21.99)
Famiculars A5 at
31st March 2025

BORROWINGS
From Bonks

Bank Overaral! Feter Note below) 1.88

Coamn Crecht Tacility (Refer Note betow) 47226

Clarent Maturfies of Long temm omowings 195,00

bav. 12

Bank Overciralt
The oot tocilty s secured agalnst Sonk depoalts
Cash Credil

LCash Cradit 1472 26 Lokhs (previous year of), Pimary Securty Exclushve chorge an ontite cument assats (prasert and fulure),

Secondary Coliateral Ml - 12 morine, nepayabie umdum on demond Rabe of inferemst-8. 1 5%p.0 (previous yearnil)

TRADE PAYABLES

e oltstanding dues of micr and small erterprises
Tolal putsfanding dues of cradifon olhar thon
mmicro and smal enterpriEes

TOTAL

Tha Manogaman! has identified enterprisas which hove proviged goads ana sarvices 1o The Groun and which quallty unaer fhe
dedirition of micro, smiall and medum enterpemes, o defned under Micro. Small and Medum Enferprses Devealopment Act, 2006,
Accondingly, the diclosurs in respect of he amounts payable to uch entarpdaes hos Been made in the fnoncldl sidtaments based
on inforenation recewved and avaliabio with the Sroup, which & relied upon by the auditos. Further in the view of the managanmeant,

wal 86
7o0.85

171871

T Impact of nferes, ifary, Thot may be payabis in occordancea with the provisions of the Actimnot expecied tobe matarial,
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indian rupee [akhs, uniess otharwise stated)

Particuiars As at
15t March 2025

) The principal omount oulstanding as of the yeor end -
Iy  Penclpal emount die ond remaning ungpald
iy Imtaras! dua on (i) above and the unpod interest
vl interest pond on ol deloyved payments undes the MEMED Ast
V) Poyment mode beyond the gppointed day during the yw=or
Vi) Inrerest due and payabile for the period of delay other than (v above .
vil)  Interest coonsd and remcming unpaid
ikl Amount of furthes inlisas! remalning due and pavabile
0 B ceading yets

* it mehuctes amount payable In tha nature of coplfal creditors amaunting to 3.73 Lokrs (praviows year ril)

Trode payables ogeing schedula:
Oulstanding tof loliowing periods rom due dale of payment
Parliculan Mol Due  Llessthan  1-2 2-3 Mom than  Tolal
lyear  yeorn years 3 yeors

As af 31st March'2025
i) Unbiijed - - - - - -
0 Adicko and smicll anlarprised - 9S1.B5 . s oET1.BS
Iy Tradion athar lhan mem and smoll enterprlses - 7E7.8D 380 4 50 065 TEERS
) Disputed duss - Micio and smal anlepdsss
Vi Dlsped e gul other o mica and smol enterprises - - -

Total * 1,709 66 380 459 0,46 1.718.71

23 OTHER AINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Socutity dapoaty 810
Unooid divdand® 22.50
Addvances from customen 11297
TOTAL 142,77

"B BS.098 (PY- NIL) Trorslatred 10 Irnvastor BEduealion ana Proteclion Fund urda: Seciion 125 of Ihe Companies A<l 2013 as al yea
end

24  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Stanadory dues payable ana0

TOTAL 271.20
25  PROVISIONS

Gratulty T AT

Comparnioied absonces 1.4]

PeErahon 10.18

TOTAL 128.26
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-'## NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21" MARCH, 2025
(&l amouns in Indian rupes (akhs, uniess otherwite stated)

Partioular: Yaar ended
415t Mareh 2025
26  REVENUE FROM DPERATIONS
Sale of Manufochured products (net of rebates and discounts)
Galoriing 1402783
DCE - animial leed grods 4 BOV.24
Bone meol producs 2454
Othet Oparating Income
Sola of scigpfCogl ash | 2,22
Export ncentrves ano dufy drawback 014
Uatiifees no fongest requlied wiithen biock (Net} 10,53
Miscalloneols income 6.73
MET SALES 18,892.07
27  OTHER INCOME
Inerast income
Frorn banks Q&0
Fram ot [7.1¢ 1818
Changs Infalr valugrtion of curert [/ nan-cunant
ivasirnan s in i lue funcs 20,47
Profit on dispasal [ dscaes of proponty,
clanl ond saulpmsnt (Nel) (&0
TOTAL 165.25
28 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
aw Matenals
Oipening Slock L1674
Ada  Purchiones 1,466
Leds o Closing Stock Al 24
Raw materials consumed 11,407.13
2% CHANGE IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Opiering Stock
Finshid Goods 143316
Wode-in-prograss 5lad7 284543
Ciosing Stocks
Fnihed Goods i B95.74
Work-In-progress VATT S 337338
Nel (Increase) / Dacrecse {423.72)
30 EMPLOYEE BENEHTS EXPENSE
Solares ond wages 136072
Contiitution 1o provicdant end ofhear funds 20 Uiy
Shaff wellore expensss 543
TOTAL 161821
31 FINANCE COSTS
Interest sxperse on borowings |06 75
Omher bonowing costs 15,25
TOTAL 12208
32  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Deprecialion & Amadtisollon experss 222323
TOTAL 22223
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(&l amouns in Indian rupes (akhs, uniess otherwite stated)

Particulars Yaar ended
315t March 2028
33 OTHER EXPENSE

Consumption of steres ond spare parts 13885
Rotes and lowes (other thon foxes an Incame) 10,08
Efffuant expanies 207
Ground worar abstroction chamge: 2897
Insurcnce 26,42
Repairy grid mointsnanca

- Bulltiing 0.1

- Fiort and equiprmant &08.09

- Othee Repcis 1377 ARLET
Legal and professionol charges 1357
Auditors’ remunaration ("Retar nofe telow) &:17
Frelght and dilivisry charges 118.65
Commiasion 7o waling ogend 1005
Rarl 1584
Trenveslig AL
AovarfisEment 17.68
Ressorch and Devaloperiani sxpsnsas 1,95
Sundry bodanoes wiithan off 399
Difecton’ Fa 8.00
Eomsgn axchanga loss 012
Corparate social resporsibiity expenciiure 3411
hiscalaraous axpenses v E L
TOTAL 3768

Auditors’ Remunerofion®

Statulory cudll fees (including limited reviaw less) 4.00
Teax Aucht 1,00
Other cartification fees Qo
Reimbussman! af oul of pocke! experses 1.10
TOTAL 6.17

3 DISCLOSURE PURSUANTTOIND AS - 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS”
) Gratulty: In occordonce wilh e appicobile ks, he Group provioes for gratully. a defined benell ralaman) plon (The Gratuly
Flan ") covaring eigible amplayaes, Thi Srafulty Fan providia for o lump sumn paymant tovestad employaes onmtirement (abdact o
complrlion of fve year of canfinuowe ermoiovment). daath. ncacochallon ar larmination af employment that are tased on ks
gdrawn solary and tenurs of ampdovmernt. Liablities with regand fo the Sty Plan are gatarminad by achuanial vaiuation on tha
reperiing agte ond ine Company makes annud confribufion to the grofully lund admnstensd by Lite inssonces Coparcion of Indio
uraar Sroun Grotully Schame.
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21" MARCH, 2025
(&l amouns in Indian rupes (akhs, uniess otherwite stated)

Thie daclosmus inrespect of ihe delined Galuity Flanoms given beiow

Bulance Sheet =
Bafined banalll plans
Agal
3181 March, 2025
Prezant value of plan babities 41943
Foit valus of plon ossels J0Z.7t
Asset/(Liobilly) recogrised (114,67
Mavements in plan assets and plan lobilifies Presant valus of Fair value
abllgations of Plan assets
Ag af 16t April 2024 B35 3392
Currant sehaca cogl A4
Adjustment In opering balance
Pt sefvica cont . -
Interest Cosf/(incame) 21,58 2400
Retum on plon ctsts oxcluding Intamst bcome ; 0,45
Actuaonal fgain fess arsing trom changes o linoncial assurmphiom 2228
Actuarial fgan) foss arting dus to change n gemagraphic asumphions
Aztuanal (goerdinss ariing from Gpenance ad|usmments A4 36 -
Ernjpover conltbutiors 23,65
Barnsfi| paymeant {R.2m (TR2T)
As ot 3¢ March 2025 419.40 302,75
Particulars Year ended
315t March 2026
Stateman! of Profit and Loss
Empioyee Benefil Expanses:
Currant Sarvice Cagt 20,92
Inlerest Cogt iy
Post Service canl (vested banefity)
Nal Actuamicl (Gain) / Los
Intarest cost/(income)
Tatol amount recognised in Slotemant of profit & loss 24.49
Remeosuremant of the nel defined banefil llabliity:
Actuaral (Zamn) [ Loss recogriad for the period At 64
Asgal limil eltect .
Retumn on plon cesets exciuding net interest (A5
Unrecognised Actuond (Saln)/ Lass from previous parlod
Total amount recognised in Olher Comprehansive Income &6,1%
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, uniess otharwise stated)

D.

Assumptions

with the obyectve of presenting ihe plon asssts ond plon kablities of the defred beneflsplons ot thel folf volue on fne baiance
shaat, aaurmnplions wedar nd AS 19 arg sl by refarence to manal condifiors al the valuallon dote

Pariculars Ajg at
o1st March 2025

T sigrilicant actucnol assumstions wase o Tollows

Financhal Assumplions
Cscount mate &71%
Salary Escalaton Role
Monogemant Emoloyeas B.00%
Ner-managemeant Empiloyiest B.OC%
Demographic Assumplions
Expected Averoge remamnng workdng hves of employead (0 no, of yearns
AMonogemen! Emoioyeas |4
Ner-management Employess 9
Morality Rate LALM (2012-14)
Urbon
Atrition Rate
Manogement Employess | %
Nor-management Ermployess %
Refrarmant Ape &0
Atfhusted Avarage Future Ssnvicss
Sensitivity
Tha secstivity of the overall plan Iebiites o chonges in e weighted key assumphons are:
Impact on defined banaiil m
Change in  Increcss in Decreasa in
_—__ossumplion _gssumplion ossumption
Dlcaun! rete +1% (20,203 22487
Solary EBscalation Raole 1% 22104 0.1

The seraltivily anolses above hove been dalermined bosed on retsonaly paisibls Charges Of I respeciive assurmpiitn
occumng ot the end of the reparting penod and may not be recresantahve of the ochual change, It o bgsed on ochange n the key
psUmptinn whie rolding all omer assumptions constant. When caleuloting the sangithviny to 1he aisumation, the same matho used
o calculdta ine labilty recogrised In the balance shea! hos been applled The methads and fypes of assamplans used in preparnng
the senstivity analyss did notchange comoarsd with the preyvious psHod.

i) Compensated Absencas: The Gloup penmits encashment of compensated abdencs occumulated by ihell empioyess on
rafiramen! sparnation and duing ihe cous of wevice. The lablty In respect af the Company, lor outitanding balance of isave o
ineboloncoshoet dote s detormined snd provided an ha boss of ooruanol veluation performod by an indepandeant aofucry

Tha disclosure in respact of the defined Compansatad Absancas are ghvan palow;

Paniculars As 3t

315t March 2025
Expenses recogrisad In stolamean) of pralll and 1o 3,44
Balarics sheet labiity .4l
illy Pansion

The retrement bensiits panson wil be fxed amount of INR 565 par monith for on emplayee only atter refinng tom the orgonzchon
ard | senice rencersd oy the employes s 25 pean and above of thetimea of relirement. A persiongr may opt onopton o commite
INR 32,000 od o limp sum onde in ifelimea. After commutation of pengddn mamben won | gad any monitly pansion. (I any employes
anpira hihet soouse will pel lumpeurn benatil of INR 34 000, thersatter no manthiy pension will be poyabie. Linbiity determined ondg
proviced on tha boss of actuadial valuahon peeformed by a inceponannt octuany. Thr disticsurs 0 essoct of pension liaklity oo
ghvean ek

Paricular As at

J1st March 2025
Sypanant [ (oom) meagneesd in slotemant of profil ond loss 4,10
Baloncs shast lability 307
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, uniess otharwise stated)

Parniculars Year ended
3151 reh 2025

35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Estimated amount af canfract ramanng fo be exacutad on 131148
capilal account nol proviced for

Lass Capftol advonces pold There agairs! 54,72
Copital Commitments 1,254.74

36 CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES
Clalirs nat acknowledged as dabils [Exciuding futthe: nlanast [17any)
Income tow matten’

Excise dury 240185
Solles tos .78
Leand isvanee Cass 14,14
TOTAL 258.78
Motes

() The Group's pending fgatiors comprse mainly claims aganst the Comparly. procesdings panding with fax and olher
authorties. The Campony hos reyiewed all its panding itipations and procsaedings and Bas mode adeguote orovisons) whaeye
required ond decicsad he contingant loblities. whereve apoicabie, In ity financlal stotements. The Company doms not neaionotaly
spect ihe oulcoma of thase proceadings o have a materal imoact onjts consolidatad financa Katemants

() “Inoome fox matie: reloted to assesment yeor 2013 14, resufted In disputad tax germoena of T 7 85 lacs ofsan on occount of
disallowarcs of odditional depecation cloimad which i3 o mistake appaient frof record agoingt which the Parent Company s
rac Hiication aoplcation/appes Bpanding The Management it confidant that ik oeputed nemand will gat revesad o ractiied In
cue coume and hence. ol conskdetea as conlingent liottles,

17 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Erterpies whem the confrol st Relafionship Coased lo be the related parkyil
Jurrbra Wardd Holdings Lmilted Ulimate Holding Company 14.07 2023
Afrarmant (Maritius) Limitea Helaing Cormpony |4.07.2023

Other relaled parties - (Ceased 1o be related parly w.el 140720238

Amsman Moragemen! Sanices P, Lid., Dandvall Investments & Trading Ca Pyl Lid,, Firestom Sectranics Corporatian PyIL Lid,
GWL Froperties Lia., Hamhit Fnfaase & investments Py Lid,, Jumoo blectronics Coporation P Lid. Jumbo invastmenti Lid., Jumibo
Wt Holdings Ondic) Pet. Lid. Prime Enterprises Pyt Lid,, SMN Engineen | id.. Starfite investmeants Lid, Plous Investrmants Py, Lid,

Enleipriza whare Ihe conirol axisds Relofionship with effect ramd

Aonoot Jallca Inda Private Urmited Associole Co 407 23

Aghok Matchas and Timber Industied Pivate Umited Asociale Co 1407 #0323

Key monagerial personnel _

Ml Astok Maplr Manoging Deeclor

i, Arun Jaswal Chiet Fnanciol Offioer (w.a f 15 08.2025)

Me. Mahirma Pafkar Company Secrelory (waad 07 DB.2004)

WM Mehesth vetng Chiaf Finondal Officer (Caased from senvices o wef O7.01,2005)
My Meary Shorma Compuny Socialoy (Ceoted Nom sarvices o w ol 7836 2024)
Non-Exacufive Direcions

M & Annamolol®

M, 5. Mohesworon®

M. B Vioyachrai®

M Manlimagala Thongaman®
A, K Krshinamoaorthy

P Prakash M Neria!™

Wi Rovincra €. Rage **

M. Dnushti R Desal®™

M, Gounang Swas™

w1407 2023, "uplo 1407, 2023
Refarnote | folviio)
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, unless olherwiss stated)

Parliculars of hansaction and cutstanding balances with related porfies

Parficulars Nafure of Transaction Year endad
3is! March 2025

Transactions with relafed parfies

Blonear Jalice Indio Private Limilad: Purchade of row motesial {including 557} 1.524.64
Technical Corauttany Serdce 24.00
Sabas comrmisson ecalvad 672

Culstanding Bolonce wilh relafed porties

Aonaar Jefice india Privara Limited; Nt P2l

Transactions with Key Manogeral Personnel (Remuneration pald)

(Y Mr Ashok K Kopur 524

(i M Aun Jalswal 091

gy Mg Mohime Potkor 293

(v} W Mahash Verma 16,48

{v] Ma. Msenu Shama .55

‘A Ine Gratuly ond Compersaled absences are compulen for all e emplovess in oggregate. the amount relaling 1o Kay
Monagenal Pamannel cannot De indivicually be identified.

M Aran Joswol doined wea ! 1603 2025°

M. Maokima Patkorw & f 07,08 2025*

i Mahesh Vierma [Ceoaed from senvices tow.al, 07 01.2025"*"

M Meanu Shamia (Ceama hiom samnvdcas o w el 28062024y

Transactions with Non-Executive Directors (Sitting lee paid)

M. 5 Arnamalal 140
i, 5. Mahaswaran 1.00
M. B Viiyoduna 220
M, Manimegalal Thangarman 1.40
M Prakash M Naro

Mir, K Knghnarmicortty 220

AL Ravingra K Bole
Mirs. Drushll B Deasal

M. Gaurang Shan -

Notes:

0 Ne amounts in respect of ralgled parties bave Been willtan of | willen back during e v e bos-any orovisien bean mode
fordoubitul debts fmcalvabies duting the vaar, except &b diiciosed above.

() Allrefoled porty onsochians entered dutng 1he vear were in ondincry colrse ol thebusiness ond ars or am’siangih Dol

(i Kay Manoganal Parors whn are under the amployment of the Company ora enfitied 1o pont-ampioyment banshts (Cafinen
tarett grotulty plan) racogresed as pet nd A5 19 "Employee Benefin” in the inoncldl stotermearts and short-tem amployee
banifits In ha form of premium pold By cormpany for group heolth insuance plan. As thee employes boenefly ol lunipsum
amolnis provided on the boss of actuarkal valualion/ srerrium payment tor e Combany oo awhole. the some & nol Included
obove.

38 EARNINGSPERSHARE

Frofit guoiabie for equity shoreholdens 180254
Wwaighisad oveEnge number of egquity shanas o049 587 6.04%.687
Norminal valus of squity shor 10,00
Earnings par shara - Boec / Diluted 2v.80

37 INVESTMENTS - NON-CURRENT
Invesiments in Mufual Funds (ol NAV) - un-quoted, ully poid-up

As ot 3ist March, 2025
Porticulers Fabt Volue No.of  Tolaol
Perunil  Unils Value

Nepon India Short Term Funcl Growth Plan -
Npoon ndic Money Marke! Furnd- Direct - Growin

48l Savings Fund - Difect - Growmn -
ARSL Sovings Fund - Direct - Growth

FCICIPra Ultres Shaet fsrm fund -Dirsct Grawih E
Mipcon (ndia WUitra Short Duration Fund - Direct Growth Flan -
ABSL Savings Fund - Diract - Growm -

Tolal -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ﬁ@@



#

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, unless olherwiss stated)

a0 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
A, Invesiments in Equity Shares
Asat3ist March. 2025
Parliculars Fair Value No. of
Perunit  Unils
Equity shares of Indio Gelaling and Chamicali Lid 10.00 - 1.003,000 4171531
Tolal 41150
B. Summaonsed Financial information of on ossociote { Indio Gelating and Chemicals Limited)
M Summaised Balance Shesl:
Particulars Axaf Az aof
31¢l March 2025 318l March 2024
Mon-cunen ossals i0071.38 9132256
Sument comlt % 440 87 6,308.45
Netcuren lobillles 125305 1453 94
Cuyrret licbiifies | DAR05 181%.87
Equity 17.150.10 15,404,923
Canying amounl of invesimeni 411531 .
i) Summaorized Stotemant of Prefit and Loss:
Faver e 19.B52.67 20.683.97
Cosl of motanol conmsimed 81282} 908574
Puthaes of Slock-in-Trode - 14.57%
Chrnges In Inveniony Fnished Goods WIRST 51655 (365 .58)
Employee benallli aspenia 121783 1274 7%
Depracichion and amartisalion exbenss S50.08 §25.95
Hranse Coslh &7 78.74
Power & Fust 2. TRE.0Z 2 R02.50
Oiher expenes 4029.29 417125
Frofit belom hax 2.264. 84 3.726.45
Latvgs; T i i Py EDS G BT A
Profil for the year 1.738.93 2,838.85
Other compranonslye Ingoma : .
Tolol comprehensive Incoma for the year 75.17 (A.58)
Share ol profit for he year B2.00 .
41  CORPORAIE SQCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Ax par Section 135 ol Iha Companes Acl, 2013 a C5F Commitees nos been formed by tha Cormpany. A pard af intlafives uncsy
Comporole Social Respotstaily (CSH). the Company has undedlokan projacts in the amas ol anvidnmar] | rvar profiection,
educallon, velhood, healthcans, tanitation, neal devalopment, promanan of sports and cutural acthdfies, which are specified In
schadule Vil gt tha Componios Act, 2013, The amourt spert o the sama s given balow

Parficulars Yeor andad
31st March 2025
iy Amourtt required o be snet ot per Section 135 of fre Companies Ach, 2013 34 46

{1y Amount apeal during ke yeor on:

Construction / ocquisiian of any ossel -

On purposas ofhar than above 450

Bolences Utllaed froem e eeass spant in FY

) Shortfoll of the and of the vaar -

(v Tetal of previous years shartfoll r

{v) Reazon for shorttall A

O Notura of C5R activities literacy oromiotion Envisanment peotaction
Heqlth core ootivities. Eadication of hungs:
& poverty

(i) Dastalle of related porly tarnsactong in relabion fo CER skcsndiue
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#‘ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, uniess otharwise stated)

Pariculars Year ended
3151 March 2025
42  RESEARCH A DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Fevenue expendiiure
acdlare) and wages 1346
Critver exparsas -

43 FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
'Ihe fair vakes of the financiol ossets and abiifies are ncluded of the cmount af which the Instument could be exchanged in o
curment frareostion bebwaen wilkng parfies. othet thion na forced o iguidation sas. The fallcwdrg methoo and asurptions wese
usadi fo esfimdats e lair volees

M Fairvalue of cash and inor-tamm depoas, Trooe and ofter short term e svobles, rooe ooyabias, ofrer aurent lomilites, shor
terrm loors from bords and ather financial Insfiubons oopresimate thedr comdng armounts largety duse to short term maturifles of
Inesa instumanty,

(01 Financlal instruments with feed and variabile Interest rates are evaluated By the Compiany baned on panametes such ol infeest
rafes ond indvidual credll worthinesn of the courtar-party. Bosad on tha evaluation, alowonces ang taken 10 ooeourt 1or
axpecied osses of these recalvablas. Accordingly, Towr velue of sach refruments i not matarally different from thesr comying
amants,

Tne Group uses [he follcwing herorchy for geterminlng ond discioelng the folk volue of finonciol indfnements By voariotion
lac i

Lesvel 1 quoted (unadjusted) poces In octive markebs tor identcal casats or ot ihes,

Level 2 ofher lechnigues fos wilch ol ingufs wiveh have o significant sffect on the recorded fair volue ore obsevable, elfher directly

ar indirscty

Loved 3 technigues which use noutt thot hove o sghificon! effect o the recomad for value thal are nnt bosed on ODserabe

morket dota

mmmmwmammmwmmmmw
FVOC| FVTPL Amorfised  Tolalfair  Canrying
Note 2(xii) Mote2 (xiil) cog yolue gmoutt

Financial assels

Investment inon associale - - 4,197 &, 197 31 4,197 31
Trode racaivibles . 248420 248400 2484 30
Cost ond cosh equivalants - - 1703 1903 1963
Bank balonces altier than above 26,36 24 34 2636
Loon - - &0,04 AL D4 & 04
Oitan inonciol cwsats - 234 62 234 42 23042
Tola - - F02156 702154 7.021.58
Financial labilifies

Borrowings - - 127220 12722 | 27230
Trods povabilas - - 171871 Al s LHEN
Cthary - - 14277 14277 142 77
Total fin : - 380281 380281 380281
Falr volue estimation

For linarcio! instruments misosssd of fal value In 1he Bolancg Bhaal, a thiee leve ol volue hkerarchly 15 used thal et e

sgrificance of mpulrusadin the meacs ramants. The histarc y Gives tha Righest priodty fo unadjusted quoted prices in odtiva morkst

foridenticol assetsoriobites (Level | measuremants) and kwest oriorty o unotsenvasie nputs Level 3 measurements),

Tha cofegones usad are oF Tokows:

e Linel | quated prices for dentical Instrumants

o Level 2 diectly ar Intirectly obsanvable marst inputs, ofhier than Leve| 1 ingasts. ard

e Lovel 3 inputs wihich gre nof based on obsenvable morket doto

For cssets ond lacities which are cariad ot folrvalua. the ciossific aiton of fair volue calculaiions by coragory s mmarnsed Delcw:
Level | Lovel 2 Lovel 3

A1s! March, 2025
Assets o lair value : i 2
invastirnanis in Eauity Shoms Not Comed af Fair Volue

Themne ware no sigrficant changes in clossfcation and no sgrificant movemsols ocebwaean the fair valus eracny classiicahons of
fnanciol oysets anafirancicl iablites Sunng the years
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, uniess otharwise stated)

dd  RISK MANAGEMENT
Hnancicl isk management objsctives dnd policies |

The Griwups fnandciol fak momogement |5 an integral pan of bow to plon and executes 1 business strategies. Tha Compary s aothiy
apane 1 o moarke! ik, lauialy iss, cormmodily ree ani ensdlil rak. The Cormpany's financial rsk managesent polcy s set by [he Risk
Manegesmes! Commiftesand govened by ovarall d¥aciion of Boord of Direc o of the Company.

Mcarket Hek |5 1he i of foss of futune ecenlngs. fair vialues of futute cosh Mows that rmcy rasult frorm a changs i ihe price of a fnancial
iratrurnent. The value of o Enonilal ingtrument may chonge o o esull of changes in The infares! ioted, fonalgn cumency axthange
rates. equify orcas and othar morket changes That afftect masket rsk sensitive nstruments, Market sk s otinbotobie 1o all ot sk
sersfive financial ingtruments noluding mvestments and depaisits, foreign curency receivobies. poyabies ond inons and bomowings,

Risk Exposure arising from Meosurement Risk Monogement
(i) Cradhit ngk Cosh ond cosh aguivalents, Apang onolyss Crecil Cradil frran ond sttes of cradit
frace recehatiles, financial rerhirien and Parformance guarantess,

irtrurments. finoncha| assats
e ded al amorized cogl.

(M} Liguidiny right Borowingy and omiar loblines  #ollng eash e forecasts  Avodability of commifiod cred!
Ines and bommwing ficiities
(W) Morkar msk-interest role Long-tarm borowengs ol Senaitvity arolyn Interani rate swaps
vorcible rotes
) Markat rsk-foraign sxchonge Fullms commarncio! fronsochions . Cosh fow farecasting Forward fomign axchang
racogrised finanoial assets and - Sanitvity onolyals coniroets
fallities mot denamindted in
Ingicn iupeas
(v) Commacty rsk Purshase of Fow Motoric! As per produchion Frocuramant and Invantory

plarning and budpeting shately

| CREDIT RISK

‘Credit rigk arges from he possibilty thot counter pamy may not be oble to seffie Thalr abligahons s agreed. To manoge this, ine
Cioup paviodicolly ossestes he inonclal rebabiity of cuslomess, 'aking Inte aceaun! v fnonclyl condiion, cuttan! gconemic
trencly, anc analyss of Bstoricol bad detisond ogeng of aocount recsivabiles. indidciudl cradil limnils are sl accordingly. The Groun
eorsidas the probabiity of defouttupaon imfial iscognition of csset and whather thece has been asignificant increase in cred ik on
on angong basts Iroughod! sach epoting celod To asiess whalher Ihare (s 0 danificant Incregze n cradil sk fhe comgany
comparas the risk of defoul sadcuring on the casel e al the reporting date with the sk of defaull a2 af tha do'e of Inlfial recagnition.
The company conscan reosonable and supoortive fonwand-coking infermanon. Financial assets are writren off whien there s no
masanatle expactohon of recoveany. such os dabtor foilng fo engage n a repayment pEan with the company, The company
Provides tor ovendue outslanding os parthe pedcy opproved Dy the Board of Direcion. which are evelugled o a cose ho cass basts

Thee Company’s concenfration of sk witrespect 1o rade receiobbes s low, as s customar's base s widely spread across fhea length
ondbrsodth of the couniry and malority OF 1he Custormess ore with sound iranciol health

Thaoverooo crodit parod edendaed 1o cuslomens ranges within 30 - 120 days
Expecied credi boss for trode recelvabies under simpliied opproach

Porticulars Asal Az at
1 h ]
(o} Ageing of rode recelvabies
Fram the diate of mwoics
0+ & months 2482.17 2.0190:5:
& - Y moniths 203 .
Q- 12 monthe

beyond 12 morine

TOTAL ' 20 2.190,52
it} Reconcilotion of loss ollowance provision - Trade receivables
Opening provisEon 28! 2.81

Adaifional provision mode -
Lty Hod dealots wintsn off | seovared

Closing provisions 281 281
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES 0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025

[All'a

mounds in Indian rupee [akhs, uniess othanwise stated)

LEQUIDATY RISK
Lequldity rlsk [s detired o tne sk ihal the campany will fiot be able fo satfle ormest s abllpotions an five oral o recsanable price

The Group s treasuty deparfmant & rasponsiie for malntencnee of Iquidity Gnchading quanl lauleiy), continuity of funcing o wel os
Hirsly seitfierrsant of debls Inoddition. policios related 1o mitigalion of it ore ovensan by enior managsmsnt

Manageman! mocitons tha Groun 'sngt iowtity pogfion on the bosls of sxpactad cash fiows vis o via debt wande s fulfimantabligation
Maturity prafile of financial liobiffies
Ther latie below provides detofisregrding e mmaining conbrc ol maturitas of firancial liobiltes ot the eparting do's.

Controchual maturity patterns of Financial Liabllitles :
Parficulars As at 31sl March 20256

0-lyeat/ 1fo5  Total
on Demand  yean

Borrowings 127220 - 1272320
Trane payobles 1,718 7 - 1. 718.71
Crther finoneial lobiifes 14277 - 142,17
Tatal 1133169 - 313349

MARKET RISK- INTEREST RATE RISK

Irteseeest poster =iak 13 1 sk thr the falr vilue o future cash flows & o fnorclal Behurvsnt w8 Yucluote becoses of changes In morkes!
Intesigs! rates. In cedat lo balance he Company's poailion wilh regonds fo Inletest incorma and inlgest oxponss and o manoge he
interas! rate rsk, finonce depanmant perfarms o comprahaniive ntames! rale rsk manoegeman!. The Company @ not exposed 1o
sghifoant infermstete rsk gs gt the respecihva reporting dates,

MARKET RISK- FOREIGN CURRENCY RISk

The Group & axposed 1o farsgn exchonge ik Towond: honouhing of adpoedt) impot commitmants, Maragemen! avaluahes
axchangs rale exposae In This coniiec fion in ferme of s eslablished risk manogemean| polcies which incllides ine wse of defvalives
lie torsign enchonge forwond contracts 1o hedge ek of mipodule 0 fargsgn cunency, The compary & not expoied té fomelgn
cimancy sk ot the respaciiva recoring dates:

COMMODITY RISK
‘Principol Row Matedal for Company's produch b Crugthed bone. HCL Lime ond Codt ag a fusl The Group sourcss s maior o
mctedal raquiremant fram domestlc supgiiens iocotad In varnous port of indle
Tra Group efactivaly manogas with avalobily of motorialas wel o price volorilty batad on the following
s Rowmoteniols ore procured from different sources ol competithve prices
Altemative sourcas ars ceveloped far unintemuptad supply of raw matanals.

[Pemond ond supply ora extemal factons on which company mas nocontrol, howsyver the Cornpany plans s produchion and
saias rom he sxpadenae goined in the post ond on-goingshudy and appeosalal the morket dynamics, campelilion, ecanamic
palicias apd growlh pallems of diffgrant segrmenls aof users of company s prochucls

. Eps-:if-:rlnmmmdm:e1h5wbemﬂmdmmndmmwwwlhcwnmrm dalveany machanismis.elc,

s Froperirwentony conlrol systems have been put i ploce. The Mk commites of the Company compt sng mambeds from Socand
of Dirgctors ond the opemolions hot devaiopea ond anoctes a ik maonogemaent strotegy regorging commiod/ty Pricg risk ord i3
rritigelion |

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

fo) Copitol sk manogement

s haGeun's abjsclivawhan monaging capital et
o sofeguarnd thedr obility fo confinue os o golng cancem so thal ey can contirue to orovide rstums for shareholdars and
Benatis for ot stokehalders, and

s mairionanogtimaol mp_i’ﬁ:nnumurr.- toreduce ihe costol caplial

(B} Temmioon ore securad by o fiet ranking pori-passy hypolhecation, Exclusive chorge on the ossets created out of the term loan.
Cash Cradil Pnmary Security-Exclusive charge on enfire current assels (present and future) & fixed deposits referrad in Note 18
and2].

{c) Dividends
The Group oliowsthe poloy-of Dnadend forany financiol yveor asmay De decioed Dy Board considenng finonciol padormmoncs
aof the company and other intemal and extamal foctars,
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NGTES 1O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
{All omounts in Indion rupes loihs, unless otherwise stoted)

47

4%

Particulars As at
sl March, 2025

On Equity Shares
Dividends nol recognised at the end of reporting period

Sinco year end. tho diraclon have recommandoad tha paymant of a fiool
cividend ot T 10.00 per fuly paid up equify shiare. The proposed dividend s
woject to the opproval of shareholdars in the oreung onnuol genend
maaling, 404,94

Cunng fhe year, e Parerd Company hod received o whistle biowe: comipioml alegng cerrain unethicol praclices concemmng he
oparafions of the Farent Campary. On enguiny with the support of an edemnal agancy; it was found That the alegalions ware mare
sutmize ard davod of any substartial evidenca which are legally fenats. Adommal eportiom e agensy B awsited Inchuding thel
wiggestions fo strengthen ihe intemol contiol maawres, Betsrmant ond imocth funchioning of the Parant Company.

Cerfoiin financial cssets and flnancidl faoilities are subject fo formal confimnation ond reconcliiafions. The Monogamant, hawever,
¥ confidant that the iImpoct wheras!, If any, far the year on the inancial stotaments wil no! be matenal

Tha Frasident hol given bis ossen! 1o Ihe Code on Sockal Sacurlty. 2020 (TCode”) In Septarmbar 2020, On 131h Novarmbe: 20020 1he
Miristry of Lobowr and Employmant refecsed aratt ruies forthe Code, However, the date on which fhe Code will come into affect
hes nol Been rolified, The Group wil assess he impac! once the sublect rUles are nolilied and will give oppropfiofe impact o s
finoncky sialemeniy in tha pedod in which the Cods bacormes sifactive,

Other stalutory informalion:

i1 The Pamant does nal have ary banomi proparty, wham any proceading has bean nfiates or pending agamnst ina Company for
holehing any Baram| property

i THe Porart daes nethove ary ransacions with companias struck off

iy The Porent does not hive afy charges ar sollsfaction which ks vat o ba regislarad with ROC bayond tha slalutony perdod

vl The Parert hasnot frades orrvested in Crypio curtency of Vidud! Cumancy during fhe financial yeor.

V) The Pamant fos not! ogvanced of loaned or Invaited lunds fo ony ofher patsonds) of enfitviias), ncluding foeign arfifies
friermeadiaras) with the undastanding that the Intermediony sholl (o) drectly of indirectly land ot irvast In othar pasons or antilas
idenfified In any mionnes whatsoever by of on baralf ol he company (utimate beraficionies) of (b provids any guorontes,
sacurlty ar tha like 1o of on behall of the ulnole bonaficiones. '

vl The Parent hos not reéceivad ony fund from any person(s) ar enfity(ien). including foregn entifies (funding party) wiffh 1he
undenstanding (whether recarded in witing or otherwise) that the Group shalk a) grectly or indirectly lena or mvast in ofher
pamsong o antites icantified in any manng whatsoave: by of an behall of 1ha tunding party [Ullimote benaficaies) of B) provids
ary guaraniae, sacurlly ar he ke on baticlf of tha ullmals banaliciardas.

vil) The Parent does not have any such tansaction which B not recorded in fne books of accounts fhot has Dean surendsred of
dsclosed os ncome dunng tha year in the fox assessments uncer the ncome Tox Act, 1981 Gsuch as. search or survey or any other
rekvant peovisors of e eome Tas Act, 19481,

¥i#) The Parent has compllsd with the niamber of nyven preseribed undes clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Compankas
(Resfictian cnnumbet of Loyes) Rules, 2017

re}  The Parent (s nat dec iorad wiliul detoutrer by any bonk or inoncig) institution oriendar dunng e yeor

¥ Theouarfedy retumnsor itatements of cument ossets flled oy the Srowp with benkis of finanalal ingifutions are Inogreement with =
bool ol accounts

xfl The Parent has usad the besowings from banks ond financlal Instiutions for the specific puiposs for which # was 1aken o of
Bokonceshestdote.

Ihe Group b engagad in the motiuiactune ond sole of Ossalh ond Galatine. Since all these segrmants meet fhe agQreganion Critens as
par the equirements of Ind AS 108 on "Cpeiofing tegmants . Thie management canslasss hese o a single repariabie segment,
Accordingly, no further discipsurs s requined tobe furmnished.

Sigratures to pote | o 50 For and an benalf of ihe Board
5. Annamaolal Ashok K Kapur
Chginmian Nomoging Liractor
DIN: D000 1381 DINOD 126807

Hoce ; Jabaitur Arun Jotswal Mahima Palliar

Data . 24" May. 2026 Chreaf Finonciol Offics Campory Secratary
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Nolice ﬂE:I'E'bi"f awen fhal ihe ﬁitﬂmﬂﬂ Annaal Gendral Mesling of the Mambas of Namadn Gelofines Limited will e held on Mondeay,
D seplamber, 2005a! T1.000um (5T, vio vidso conlenancing/ after audio visao msans {VE/ O o trangact the folawing business'

ORDINARY BUSINESS

L

Tel recedvd condides (nd aaapt ihe Audired Stondalore and Conseiidaled Franclol Statements of he Company fal the yeor endac

31" Margoh, 2025 Inciuding the Reporh of Ihe Boord of Directon ang Auditcan thareon and n Hin respect 1o congigiar and |f thoughi il
T pors the foliowing resolution on on QOrdinory Resoition

"RESOLVED THAT tne Audited Stondaione ond Comsalidated FAnancial Stoternents of the Campony ot fhe year endied 319 Moich,
2025, Inchluding the Balance Shest o3 of that dale and the Statement of Profit and Lo Account and the Cosh Fow Slatement for the
year ancad on thal dofe togather with the Reports of the Dirsgran and Auditors thereon as jaid belon ks Meating be ord oo
hemsby approved and ogopted,”

To deciara dhvidend o Squily Enaras far the financiol year ended 317 March. 2025 and in this respact to congider and if thought i, 1o
pads with or without mocific ationis), the follcwing reselution ot an Oraindry [Resalitior:

"RESOLVED THAT In occordance with tha recommandotion of ima Boara of Directors, dividend @ 1008 | 2. #1000 par Equity Share of
T0/-sach iy poid-up. be and & hereby deciored in respact of e fronciol year endesd 31° March, 2005 ond ihel the dividena be
poid 1o fhos Egulty Sharehoidens whose names appear on the Reglstar of Egully Shanehoiden as on 15" Septemiber, 2025 of o thal
mandotees,”

To apomove revision in the Remursralion of M Lodha & Co. LLP, Chorfered Accountants, (Frm Reglstration No. 3010816}, Stafutony
Augitors of the Compony. for tha remaning lenure of their axitfing torm of five consecutive years. tne loBowing resclution = an
Ondinany Resoludicon

"RESOLVED THAT pwrauaint o the provisions of Sectiore 142 and other cpplicabie provisiors, # any, of the Comparses Act, 2013 and e
ruls mods thareundet (Inciuding any slalulary modificalion o re-enactment thefeol and in occodancs with Reguiation 1803 of
SEBI (Lefing Coiigotions and Dieclosure Requiramants) Regulations, 2015 read with Port-C of Schedula-ll for e hime being in foree),
andin Arthararce 1o tho resoiutnn passad By 1he Memban ot the Annug! Gaenarol Meating heid on Ssptomoer 22. 2002wl respact
to re-gppointmant ond rermunenotion payable to M7 Ladha & Co. LLP. Charlered Accounfant (Frm Regliteation No. 301051E),
Stokutory Auditors of the Company, and pusiwant to the recommendation of the Audl Commities and 3oms of Cracton. the
Termnerelion payatie 1o the Stattary Auditors be anc s hotaty modified, with 1he authorty 1o The Souard of Dlacton (nchiding i
commitiee) 1o oller and vary Ine teerms of thalr remuneroiion during e remal=ing lerura of hal appoinimen| ot such remunesation
oy be mutuclly ogreed betwaen the Board of Dimecfors of the company and the Stodutary Auditon’

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT™ the Boordl of Diecron of the Ccﬁ'ﬁmmr e ond hesetsy outhorsed to offer and/or vary the ferrms ond
condftions of the appointment including the fermunernation poyatsle durkg the terms of s tenune as may be mutually to be agreed
upon bebtweon the Slohutoly oudion and 1he Boad of drectors.”

To Gporove te-appoiniment of St 3. Annamalal (DIN: 00001381) s o Non-Executive & Nondindapendean! Dirscior of the Compary
onainthisraspact focorglicer ond ﬂha@rﬁt.mpmm!mfﬁnm:m as o Spechal Rewlutiar

"RESOLVED THAT corseni of the mambars be and s harsty ace arded, pumuan! 1o 1ha provisons of Saclion 15208) of the Campanias
Act, 2013, for re-gppointment of Shrd 5. Annamcial (DIN; 00001 381), wiho teties by rofolion ond being ofigiole offars nimsall o re
opponiment, gsa Non- Exacutive, Non-indapandent Directar of the Company. subject to retirement by rotation

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT cunuarit fo the provisans of Reguiafion 17(1A) of SEBI (Lsrng Oiligations and Disciosune Requiremants)
Regpdatiors. 2015 and sl cpplicabla provigans, o any . consent ofthe rmarmbeens bé ond s herably g accorded fof mdppainiment
ond gorfinuation of Mr. 5. Annamakal, who has attoinsd the age of T8 yeors, as a Nor-Executive Drector of the Company o long as
ne continuesin tre office ofihe Liractor of the Campany

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT 1he Booed be and I8 hesaby authoriad lo delagate ol or any of iha Dowers o any cormmitfeds of directos with
power 1o further delegane 1o any other office(s) / euthorzed representaivedl of tha Company to do of och, oseds ond things ond
toke oll such sheps asmay De necssary, proper of apadient fo gve effect fo thisresoiution,”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

a

o comider ond approve. Appointment of D Asm Chattopadhyoy. Compony Secrelarnesin Prachic e, os the Sscretanal Auditer foro
pedod of bysar ondin thisespect o condddr and M haugh! 7, 1o pass the fallowing ressiut on os on Crdinaty Resciutlon

"RESOLVED THAT pursuont fo Ihe provisicin of Sachon 20401 of thig Compdrias Act, 2013 & Rule ¥ of e Compaonist (Appalntmsnt and
Remunerarion of Personnel Rules, 2014 and othar apodcabie provisons,  any of the Companigs Act, 2013 ond Reguichon 244 of the
Securites and Exshange Board of indio (Lating Oblgotons ond Discionm Requirements) Reguiations, 2015 read with clculor sssed
Iereunder fo the adend opplicobie, ofher applicabi= reguinlions ramed by he Sacufes and Fashangs Board of Indio fn i
o, conset! of tha mamben be and is eneby oocondes (o apoolnimen! of D Asim Chattopadhyoy (FCS o 2303 (COR Mo,
B20) Company Sacretary in Prochcs as Secretanal Audlhor of the comoany for o patod of five years La, from FY 202524 1o 7Y 2220
2000 at a remureration foba mutually agreea upon between the Board ol Directon and Sacratarial Ao

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT me Boord bie and i hetety authoreed 10 0o of such oo, desds, things ong toale ofl auceh stend an mioy e
necesany, proper o sxpadent o graeeiiect o s meolion and for raten conrec ad hamwilh o nodental thesln
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT" Ihe Booid of Diiectors of the Company e and hasby autharssd to aller ondfer vary the feims andl
canditions of the oppolntmeont including e remunaration poyobile during the terme of his tonure as may Be mutuolly 1o e ogreed
upon batwesan the Secretoncl cuditon and the Boord of directon

8y Qrdat of The Board of Directos
Fer Narmaodo Gelafines Limiled

Mahima Pollor
Company Secratary

Aoce: Jobolowr
Dale: 137 August, 2025

Ragistored Offica
CARAVS, Room No, 28,

16, Chll Liris, Joboipur - 282001
Notes

Virtual Mesting: _

1o The Minshy of Corparote Affalin (UCMCA”") hos vide Il General Chouler Mos. 142000 doted Apill 8, 2020 and | /2020 dated Agill 13,

20120, ard sutsaquant choulans susd in Ihiregord, the lales! being 9/2024 doted Seplambser 19, 2024, (colactively =lamed 10 a3

“MGCA Circuiars™) has parmithed the companies fo hold ther Annual Genaral Meeting ("AGM” ) fhrough Video Conference (*VC) o

threugn Ofher Audio Visual Meaans (" QAVM ). without the phyalcal presance of he Memben ot o common venue: In compionce

with the preslons of the Companies Acl, 2012 (the Ach), the Securties and Bxenange Board of Inain (Lsng Obigations angd

Disclosuie Requisaments] Reguiations, 2015 ['SEBI Listing Reguiations?), and Secrelanal Standord2 on Gencrol Meslings (35-27)

muad by Tha intffute of Compary Secratanas of Indio ana MCA Cireuiars. tha 64" AGM of the Company & baing held through

YT/OAYM on Monday, Sept, 22 2025, o 17100 a.m. (I5T). The procesding: of the AGM am deamed o be condicted at he
Regislarad Offica of tha Company sluoted of CARAVE R Ho 28 CIVIL LNES. JARAL PUR Modhya Prodesh. inglio. 82001,

2. PURSUANT TO THE BROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013, A MEMBER ENTITLED 10 ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING ISENTITLED TO APPOENT A PROXY TO ATIEND AND VETE ON HISFHER BEHALF AND THE PRONY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY, SINGE THIS AGM 1S BEING HELD PURSUANT 10 THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC/GAYM, PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE CF
MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH, ACCORDINGLY, THE FACILTY FOR APPONTIMENT OF PROMES BY THE NEMBERS WiLL NOT BE
AVAILABLE FCR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SUIP AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOIT
ANNEXED TO THE NONICE,

Aufhorized Representiafive:

3. Cotporcte [ insitubonal members nfending 1o send thalr outhomzed representativen 1o oftend and vote af me AGM pusuant to
Saction |13 of the Act. ore requestad 1o end o certiied copy of the Board Rewiution authczing thelr represantative to atfend ond
vezis on their behall af the Mesting or to vole through remote s-voting ore requested 1o kend a ceftified copy of the Board Resohition
1o Ihe Serutinize: by e-mall of jainoginath&gmci com

Quotum:
4. Tre Memoosottendng the AGM through VC/OAYM wiil be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quonum under Section 102 of
the Act

5 Incasevoling by [oint hodders, valing by suchjoin! holders wha s higherin tha ordar of the nomes o per the Regisler of Memberns ot Ine
company anof the cut-off date. 'will be counted for the pumpose of this mesting.

Dispatch of Annuol Repart:

& In occcomdonce with the MCA Cheulols and the Chreulor Nes., SEBIFHO/CER/CMDYCIRIPI020/7 dated Mey 12 2020,
SERI/HOYCHYCMB2/CRIPI2021111 doted Jonuory 15, 2021, SEB/MHOCFDCMD2) CIR/Pra0Z2/62 coted Moy 13, 2022,
SERI/HO/CFD/ PoD2/PrCR R2023/4 aoted January 6. 223 EFBH HOJCFDY CFD-Pob-2/Pf CIR2IZ3167 cated October 07, 2023 and
SEBI/HO/CFDY/CRD-Pol-2/PYCIRF2024/ 13 dafed October 3. 2024 lskied by Securities and Exchangs Soard of india (colleclively
referred 1o s "SEAI Chroulon™), the Nollce of e AGHM clang with tha Annual Repant fae FY 2024-25 ls being sen! only hrough slschionic
moce fo fhewe Memiben whose e-mall adorasses are regstanad with tha ComponyDaposiory Pariciponts CDPE"). Additionally, in
cocordance with Regulafion 3601 )b) of the SEBIl (Ustng Chigotions & Disclosure Requrements) Regulations, 2015, me Company s
oo sencing o letter to shoreholdes whose amoll oddieses ans ol registered with Cﬂﬂwnv /Registin/ DP providing the wetilink o
Compary's wabsle from whate Ihig Annual Repor forFy J024-25 conbse bocesied.

1. Those Membens who are holdng shares in physical form and hove not upclated ther &-mail ids with the Company . ore requaested fo
updale the some by submitting o duly filed and signec Form [5R-1 olorig) with self-oftested copy of the PAN Card, and selt-aitested
copy of any documan! gs address proof (8. Diving Licansa, Viptar lgentily Cord. Posiport. Masked Acdhodgr, elc), o ihe
Company s KA ot the boiow mantioned oddmsa or by e-malto fa®obms. com

Process for obfaining physical copy of Annual Repart
8. ThaCampany shall ssnd ths physcal copy of Annual Repor for Py 2004-25 fa those Members who hava moads o regussl for the iames,

glitar i tho RTA or tha Compony, Additionally, ony mempes who desres fa get o physical copy of the Annucl Report FY 2024-28, moy
requast for the sama oy sending onemaliothe company ot ngliopieditfmall.com mantioning thair Fola No. /OP I ong Chant (.
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¢

10,

1.

12

4

15,

16,

I line with the Minisiry of Comparate Affor ( WMCA S Cheular No 1772020 caled 13" &pel, 2020, Marriban may alia nale that The Notlce
of the 64" AGM clong with Annudl Report for the Inancial year Z024-25, & avalable on the websita of the Company ol
nMps:/{narmocogeiaings.com/onnudl_rspan Himd L on e wabslte of STock txeniongas Lo Bt Limded www Beaindla com . Tha
AGM Notice |5 alse dessminaled on the website of COEL (agancy for praviding The Remote &-Voting fackty and evaling system
ounng the AGWM | & htps ! www svolingindio cam

Defols of Directors sesking appointmant/re-oppaintment:

Jetals os tequired In Repulation 36(3) of The SEBI (Letng Oblgations ond Disciosue Requiremants) Realulatons, 2015 and as par
provigions mentoned it clowse 1(1.2.5) of Ihe Secretornal Slandard - 2 on 'Generol Maetings ssued oy the Counclof the ingtule of
Company Secreiones of Indio ond approved by e Carfral Sovammen| in meepec] of the Eecios seeking (& apponirmsant ol e
AGM, ore gnnexed fo thisNotice andin the Corponate Govemance Report forming part of the Anmudd fepart,

Explanalory Slalemant.
The Bqpianatary Staterman pasuant 1o 5achon 102 of the Act in respect of e business Urdare farm 4 and tem & set ol abovo, ae
onngred harawiin

Procedure for inspection of documents

Documents telerad fo in tha occcomporying Nofice of the 62" AGM ond e Explanciory Stalerment shall be avaloble of the
Reglsiered Office of the Company for inspechion on ol worang aoys excep Saturday, batween 1 1100AM, o D100 P M. (STupic Ihe
cate of theMaeling

Tharegistar of Directars ond Kay Monaganial Pamanral and thair shcreholding mantained under sgction 1700f tha Act, the registion of
Caonfracts of Arangementsinwhicn the Directors are inferasteq, montaines unger Section 139 of the Act shall be made ovaiable for
ripres o by the Merm s aunng A,

Common Onfine Dispule Resolulion Poral:

SER vide Circular Nes  SERIAMOJOLAE/OAE 1AD-1/F/ CIR/A23/13] dated My 31, 2023, ond SEBLMO/OIAE] OIAE_IAD-
TP/CR2023/ 135 doted Augus! 04, 2023, tead with Master Clicuidr No. SEBI/HCY OIAE/QIAS_ |AD-1/P/CIR/Z023/ 145 dated July 31,
2023 (updated as on August 11, 2023). has establshed a commion Oning Dispule Resolution Porol ("ODR Portal®) tor resolufian of
oputes aiing in fhe Indion Secuities Morkel, Pusucnt 1o above-menlioned circulon, posl edhowsling opliona 10 reschve e
griavonces with the BTa/ Company diectly or rrough exdsing SCORES plotform, the investors con inflote dispute resalution rrough
fraa CIOR Porlol af nttps: /fematodtinfiogin

Grean Inlioliva:

Membaerms are otio requasted 1a infarm thalr comest e mell addess. It any, to the Bapasitones O sharas hald in dermat form) and fa ne
Reglstats and shame tminsfer agents by visibng frsir wabste namely *www cbsl com/grean php® (it shores held in ohysical fomi in
compllance of Gresn nitielhve o par. ciculor No. 1772011 dated 21 082011 and 18/2C01 | dated 29.04.201 1 ssued by Minkiry of
Caorparcra Atfaing to foc:itane the company "osand notics) documants rougha-mail

Dividend Related Information:
Dhiidsnd -Kgy Dotes

Record Date: Mondoy, 157 Septombar, 2025
i cletesmining tre ertilement of Mamibens

fe the final ghideand fo (e yact

ardacdMarch 3172005

Date of Payment: after Tussclay, 237 Septemiber, 2025

Dividurd on Eguity shoras, It deciared of the Mesting will be cradted / dispolched offer 23rd Seplemiber, 2025 subject o deduction
of lax of source ("TDS ") 1o thiss membars whoss nomes appedar on the Company's Regisle: of Membemal an 15 Septembe, 2025
Fecord Deta), 0 mspec! of shares hedd insechonic mode the dividend will Be poid o membarns whose nomes ara fumished oy the
Nofional Securlly Deposltory Limited (NSDL) and Cantial Depasitory Services (Indlad Limited (TDSL) o e benaficiol ownes on 15t
Saptarmizer, 2025,

Membas holding shores in demat form g hareby informed that bonk particularn regetared with el especive TP, with whom
tay rrainiain ther demat cecount. will be ussd by tna Company for the payment of dividend. Mambars roldirg shares in camal
form ame requested fo nhimale any change In fresk address and | o bonk mandate to their DR anly, as the Compary or [l REA
cannob aot on any eodest receied dirsctly on the same. The process for updaling the oforesald chonges has been delalled under
Point Now. 19 and 20

Mofe: SEBI vide s circular dated November 03, 202) subsequenty amended by circulors doted Decembar 14, 2021 and
Movember 17, 2023, has mandaled thal wilh eflec! lram Apdl 01, 2024, to make dividend payments only In elechionic mode.
Member: are once again reminded lo update thelr PAN, KYC details, and Chaoice of Nomination by submilling the relevant (SR
Forms before the cut-olf dole fo ensure limely credit of dividends.

in terms of the provisions of Section J2 of the of the Campanies Aot 2013, reod with Rule 19 of the Companias (Share Capital &
Debenturss) Rules. 2014, he lacllty for moking a nominalion & avalidblelor e Mefmibans o espat! of e shonet sl by them.
Mambans who hove not yet riegiterad e nominotions ars reguested o register tha sarme by subrnitfing Form Ne SH12, a Member
casires 1o concal The earier nomintition ond recond o fresh nominafian. ha rmoy suomit the saome in Form 3414 Mamben who oe
alfter fol dasidng to reglstar Namnation of wioulkd war to opl oul o requasted fo fill and submill Form Ne, 187-3. The sald forms con
B divwnloased fromthe webshe of the company hitps [/ www, aormadogeiatines com), The Members ars regusstad fo sutsmi! the
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said form 16 their DF 1 cote the shanes o held In elechione funm ond fo the RT4 incose Hhe shares ore hald o physicaol form, queting
Hhair follo ro.

1DS related information:

According fu the Finonce Act. 2020, divicend Incoma will s raeidible In e hancs of the Sharehalden w.a.!, Aplll 1. 2020, and ha
Company ls required to deduct taxal source (TDE) from the dividend paid to the Meamibars af prescrbed rafios in the income Tax Act,
1961 {The 1T Act'), In gerana. fo anable complonce with TDS mauikesmsnts, Members ore requesied o cormpiele and/or updote
frent Nesclanho Stots, AN, and Category as par e T Ach with thew Depasitary Paticiponty (0P onin cose shores are haild In
physlcol torm, with tha Company by sending documeanis balore 15" September, 2028 18 5. 000.m, (IED, to enabée the Compoany 1o
oalammine the appropniots TOS / withholding fox mieappliiconie;

Residant Sharaholders:
Te Deascluie fible ot Source o Residant Sharaholdeds
5.No. Parficulars Withholding fax rafe Documants requirad (if any)
fa) Vol PAN updated In the Company s 10% No dacumatt recgured
Register of Marnbes {1 no axerepion |8 sought)
@ NoPaNolia FAN not updated in bid 8 No documpn? reguied
the Company's Ragister of Mamben {il no axermplan i soughil)
(c) Avaliobiily of lovs/nil lon Seduction Rate specied Lo fom ceduction
corfificate ssuad by Income Tox n he cartificoto obtained from Nooma
Cepartment w/s 197 of Texx Aulieriby

Incorne for Acl, 1961
No Tax Deductible ot Sowre on dividend poyment to residant sharehoiders If the Sharehalders submif the docurients as mantioned
in Ihe below 1able with e Company of Iha Redgitlior & Shors Tronshar Agants. M. CB Managamen! Sarvices Pyl Lid, befoss
5" Septembern 2025 15,00 prm. (5T)

5.No. Parficulan Withholding fax rale Documents required (f any)

00 Submission of forrm 150G 156 Il Declaration in Form No. 158G (copicable 9 any
panon othar than o compary or afim) / Fom
15k (oppicable to an ledidual who & &80 yeos
ard abowve), luliling cesfain condiioni.

03 Shomholders to whom saction |9 il Documentony evidence thot the soed prowvighons
ol e Income Tax, 1967 doas not are 1ol apeicable
obply such ce LIC. GIC. ee

() Shereholder covetad u/s 1% of Income il Documentary avidence forcoverdge u)s 196 of
e Act 194] such o2 Government, HE Incorne Tax Act, 185!
comonatons sstablished by Central Al
& mutud) furds:

Non-Resident Shareholters:

Withholding fax on dividend payment to nion-residerit shareholdom It fhe non-esdent sharenaliden submit the documents an
manioned in e below tabla with the Company or the Reglsiror & Share lransfer Agenis, Mys, CB Managarrent Senices Pvi, Lid on
orbefore 16" Septemben, 2025, 1l 500 pm OET)

5r. Mo. Porliculars Withholding lax role Documenis required (if any)
0)  Foreign insttufional Investors (FIie) | e phe apclcabis FPA registration rumiber [ cestificate
Foralgn Portioda Irvestons (FPIsY, If any SLrchalge ongd cess) To ovall benefivial iate of 1ax fteaty folcwing lox
cocumsnis would ba requinad
0} Giher Non-tesidant sharehaldars 0% (pl.s oppicabla . Tax Resgency cedificate beued by tevenue
furchirgs ong cess) aulhority ol county of sidence of
of fax treaty mite snarshokde: far ihe yaar in which dividend
whichever k beneficial s recaved,
2 FAN
3. Form 10F flag & duly $gred

4, Sslt - decleration for non- extitence of
parmanent ettablishment/ $xed base in India
{MNole . Applicafion of benaficiol Tax Treaty
Rate sholl depena upon the complatanass of
Ihe documenly submifted by e Nan -
Resident shoreholdar ond aview o the

salistoction of the Campary
0 Avaliobiity of Lower/RIL foax decushon Rate scitied in Lower tox deduction ¢edilicale
cartificots Bsusd by incomea Tax Depl Cerlificate corained froern income Tax Authanty

W8 197 of Incams lax Act, 1941
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Notes:

9.

&l

23,

o Fomhgl for the cbove mentionad Formifdocumoniy ame ovallobip for downlood on the wobsio of the compony -
Rt [ fwww nammodogeiotines.com

e The Company wil sae o copy of e 1DS cestificats 1o s sharahoidan fhroug somoll regsterad wilt e Compary o ne
Reglstrar & Share Trarster Agents, M/s. C8 Management Services Pyt Lid, past payment of the dividend, Shorehaldens wil be
oble to downood Ihe TOS cediicats rom the Incame Tax Departman! & webisihe hites ) fincomatmdndingiiing. govin (refet 'o
Fearm 26850,

e Apploafion of 108 rofe @ sublect 1o necessary verfication by the Campany of the sharehokder detalls as avollobie m Ragistar of
Marmibencson fre Record Dofe. cndofhe: documents ovoEchilke with the Compony / Registiar & Share Transfer Agent, M/s. CB
Manogamesnt Sendces Pt L

o Incoss 105 S ceductad gl o Nigher iote; an ophan i shl avolatls with tha shareholder 1o fie the stum of income ond cialm an
dppropdat refund.

o InIhe event of any oeme tox demand (inciudng infares!. panally, ale.) arliing from cny mivepratantotion, haccuacy o
amasan of nfarmalion provided by the Membarn's, ach Member/s will be ressonable to indsmnily tha Company and alo.
provide Ihe Comporty with oll Information [ docurents and co-opatialion in any gpeeliols procssding,

o ThsCommurication i nol extioustive and does nat purport 1o be o complsts analyes ot Bsfieg of ol polenliol lox conséguences
in fhe matter of dividend payment, Sharehokosn shouid conal thesr rox achvison fonrequiste aclion to be taken by them

Members are requesied lo nolity Immediately:
o Tother Depasitoly Paricipants (DF) i respect 10 their Hlectronic Share Account: and

s lolhe Company al it Regliterad Office or lo Ihe Regehon and Bhae Tiarsfer Agents {RTA] of he Compony I respact of thai
pysicel shote holdings In prescribed Form No. I58-1oimet I8 avadoble on he webeile of the company of
FHps [ wunw narmmadagealatines com) quating thalr falls numbes and aﬁa!mhﬁihn it -attested wupparing docurmarnt () ssif-
aftested copy of the FAN card and () cancallea c hecus sal

eny change of addness and akn particulons of thelr Bank Accounts vl Niamme of Bonk. Branch, complerte oddness of the Buank and

Actount Numbat for pinting he sams on the Dividend Warants 1o ovold augulent gndashment,

Members nolding shores in slechonic form are haeby Informea that bonk particulons registesd oponst ther escec five depostony
accounts wil ba vzad by Ihe Company for payrran! of divdand. The Company of Its Registras canrol oot on any reoues) recalvac
girgctly frarm thi Mambor holding sharon in slpetronic farm for any change of bonk particulan o bienk mandates. Such changes am
o be odvised only 1o ine Deposiory Poricioont of the Members, Memioes holding sharas In physical form ond destous of alther
registating bonk particulors of chonging bonk porticulans dready regisiered agoinst thelr respactive folas for payment of dividend
otarequeded 0wt ioihe Company InForm No 152- 1.

Furthar, to recaive the dvidena, If any on'time, Members hoiding shares in privsical form who have not updated ther mondota for

recalving tne divdands directly In helr ork accounts thralah Eae ronie Claarling Servics nrany olher recrs are requesied o send

thie follewing decurments te ine 1A - Mis. CEManagemsrt Seevicns vt Lia. betars |5 Segitember, 20254

L Form N ISR duly tiled and sigred by ine holdars sfating thel nama, folle number, complate oodres: with gin code. mablo
rurnbas ancoliossing defolls rafating 1o the bank accourt inwhich fhe divicendisto be meslad:

il Nomeo! Bork and Bank Braneh -

fil.  BankAccount Numbet & Type ollotted by yourt Dank offer implementation of Core Borking Solutions: and

. 1 I-dlg'rl IFSE Codin

V. Sdigt MICR Code.

v, Dilginal copy of concaled cheque bearing 1he narrie of the Member or first halder incoe shares are held ioindly:

vl Sef-attestad copy of the PAN Card; andl

vill. Seb-stanted copy of ony docurnent (such os AADHAR Card, Diiving |lcenss  Bleation Identity Cand, Possipon) in suppart of the
adddress of e Meamber asegiseted wilt tha Company.

Furthar, placss nole thol netfuchions. I oy, already glven by Marnbsis In repect of ihores neld In phwsical form, wil nat be
ocutamancally appiied o the dvidend pold on shares hald i eleconic farm,

SEBI mondate on KYC Complionce:

SEBI vide it Crreular No. SEBHO/MIRED/MIRSDRTAMB/PCIR/ 2021 /655 dated 3ta Novemtern, 2021 as amended,; haos mandated the
sutxnission af Permopent Account Numbee (PANT by every participan! in the secutiffes markel. Mermban holding thares in alechionic
form afe thersfore, rauesled 1o submit Thalr PAN to their Depostory Paticipants with whor ihey ore mainiaining their demaol
account, Membens noidng shores in obysical Torm oan subimit thel PAN detals 10 ne Company of 1o he Regetor & Snore Transter
Agenits, M/s CAManogamaent Senvices Pt L1d

Ta pravenl frioudulent rantoctions. mamberns are aovisad 1o exercise due diigenca and nolify the Compony of any chonge In
okinass or carise of any rmamoer o soon s poesilble. Memban are gko advised not o leave Thar demar account(s) domant for
lurg, Perodic statarmen| of foldings sheuld pe oblained lom Ihe cojcemad Deposliony Saficipan! anc holdngs shouk be vaiifing

Nan-fesicen! indion memnbety ore saguested o inform he Company’s Regishon and Share Torsfa Agenis imfrmadictaly of

o chongein theresidential status critetum tolndia for permanant ssttiement: and
b pariculars ef Her Bork account mainlainad in indie with complsle name_ bmanch account ype, oocount ne. and oocess of
e Bcaribl, P! fumilshess e fied,
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25,

Intarmation relafing to unpaid of unclaimed dividends (nvesto! Education ond Protection Fund):

Pursuont 1o the provisions of Section 208A(8) and 205C of the Companien Act, 1956 [Sactian 124 of tha Companies Act, 2013). tha
Comporny hos trensfermad the unpoid or unclolimed dvidends upto the financlal yeoms ended 317 Manch, 2017, from fime o tme, 1o
tre Imvestor Education and Profection Fund (EPF) sstobiishesd under Saetion 2058 of the Act, In occordonce with the frovisions of
invesior Eounation and Prolection Fund (Upleoding of Infarmation regarding unpokd and unclaimed gmourts ling with fhe
companies) Rules, 2012, the Compony has upiooded the datols of unpald ond uncloimad armounts vng with e Compony ot an
24" Seprember 2024 (dote of iast Annudal Ganerdl Meeting) on the webifte of the Mnistry of Carpanate Atfalrs IMCA). Mambers who
hove nol encashed Thel dividerid wanants are advissd 1o wilte fo e Compony inmediataly cloiming dvidencs declorad by tha
Compitany.

Adhering to the vatlous requirements set ol in the investor Educotion and Pralection Fund Authartty (Accounting, Audit Transter and
Refurc) Rules, 2014 (Ruled), o amanded frarm ime 1o fima, the Campany hos, duning financicl yeor 202425, ranitaned 50 the EFF
Aulhodly all equily shamas of the Cofmpany In resoect of which dividands forseven corsaculive years af mond remdining unpold or
ureiermea oi on the dus date of tansfor, Membars may note thet sharas anwel as unciaimed dividena franatemad 1o IEPF Authortly
can be claimed bock from them. Concerned membels [ Invesions are advised ' visll the wablink:
Mt flept gov In/ERFA fisfund hitrrl Tarloaging clairm for rafunid of shates and | of dividends fraim the EEPF authodly, [n Fosm N, IEPF-5
oS onvdicia onwwwepl.gavin

SEBI mandate on issuonce of securities only In demat mode

28,

The Membes may hriner note that Pusuant 1o 55 (omendment) Reguialions. 2022 vo Netification daled 240 Joanuary, 2022 raad
with SEBI Circudar Ne: SERIHO/MIRSD MIRSD_RTABMP/CIRS2022/8 datad 25th Jonuary 2022, he lsted companies are required o
ssum the sacurifies In camaladalised farm only whie processing the raquests for lssue of duplcate sacurlties cortificata, Claim from
Unclamed Sspense Account. Renewal | Exaranpe of eeclites cemificate, Endomement. Sub-division | Spitting of securities
certificotn. Conscldotion of securities cedificates/ fobos: Tronsmesion. lareposftion. Also. i view of tha Regulation 40 of the BEBI
Listing Regulations, as amenaed with effect riom 24ih Jonuary, 2022, securtties of Istea companiss con now ba romsfsmad onky in Ihe
cemal mode,

2], Maimbads holding shores in physical Torm are hemslole raquested o comwet Their holdngs info the demal mode to avaid koss of
shiores or frsudulent tiorsactions and avall oelter Investar senicing, Accordngly, the members e recuasted to maka senice
eguest by submitfing o duly fied ond sgnod Form BR4. the format o wiesh & avolleble on the Compony's webate aof
At [ fwwiw Aarmodogsialness. comun In the downlood sectian of investor nfarmction.

28, Membes con confoct the Comeany s Registar and Tronster Agent, Mfs, C8B Monogemaeant Sanvices . L1d, of ro@cbmal. com for
caifance in thisregard

Datails of RTA:

& Althe work rslctead 1o share regshy In armsof bolh physical ond alecironic, ane being conducled by Company s Reglsiar & Share

Iransler Agents, C8 Manapamant Sarvices Privare Lrmfted, Resal Court Sth Floar, 20 SrRN. Mukneqese Rood, Kolkata-10000 | Phone:
(23320171 6700, Emait fo@cbrmal.com

Procedure for remole e-vahing ond e-vofing during the AGM:

113

al.

32

in complioncs win provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 ard Rules 20 of the Campanies (Monogement and
Administration) Pules, 2014 as amended up-lo-date, ond Requiation 44 of Ihe Sacuilies and Exchangs Board of Indlie (sting
Coigortions and Disclosurs Recuirementss Regulations, 2015, tha Cornpary i pleased fo affer evating focifvio the mamban to cost
ther vates eectronicoly af the &4 Annuol Genaral Meafing (AGM) 1o be neld on Monday, 227 Beprembes, 2025 of 1100 am, The
Company hos engaged the services of Ceniral Depository Services India Ud (CDSL o provide remate &-voting fociiities. The iemete
e-voling facility Is avallable ol the ink www.evolingindio.com . fuither the company hos enterss into an amangement with COSL oy
cordusting he AGM thraugh WEBEX Meetings

Ihe Membars can jom e EGM/AGM n the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes tbefore and affer the senaduled fime of thes ¢ ommencement
ot theMeasting by folowing thae procectas manlionad s he Notice. The fclity of porticipalion al the AW Inrough VO OAVM will be
made cyvdiable toateast 1000 memoers an frsl coma el sarvad bosts, This will not include lorge Snotehoidan (Shareholdens halding
2% or mome shorehokaingl, Promotes, Insfitutional Investan, Drecion. Key Menogernial Pesonnel, the Chairpemons of the Audit
Committee, Namination ond Rermunesation Cammittes and Stokehoidans Fesgiionsiip Comimifies, Audifon sic, whe ore aliowsd fo
ottand iha S LAGM withiut resticlion on occaunt of st comes fink nervied b,

The Company has fieed Monday, 16" Septemibar, 2025 as the cut-off dabe for datermining viating rghts of sharahoigers enfiiad o
partlcpte In the & voling proces In Ihis tegarg, your demal oceaunt/folla numb= has been enrcled by the Company ' your
porficiparionin e-voling on resohutions ploced by thae Comoany on gvotng syifem.

The remate e-voting faclity will be ovaillable during the following petied:

Commancemant of ramote a-voling End of ramote a-valing

Friday, 19" Septemiber, 2025 ot 10.00 o.m. Sunday, 21" September, 2025 of 5.00 p.m.

During s periog, members of the compary may cast thelr vote electroncolly. The remote ewvoling module snol e disoblea fo
vidting thareorte), Membas who hove vated frrough Remole e-Voling Wil ba ekgible 1o attend the AGN, Howaver, Thay shall not
b allowed o cost thsir vote ogaln during AGM,

Ihe voling rights of the rmernbers shal be n proporfion 1o thelr sharea of the pold up equity share capilal of the company as on
Wondagy, |5 September 2076
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The Baard of Direclan of the company has apponted (M5 Tanan Bodeul and Associates), M, Tapan Sadkul Frocheing Cost and
Management Accauntart (Mam. No. 233943, at Scrutinizer to scrufinize the Remole avoling pioceds an will o e-voling process
gunng The AGM in o far and rarsparant mannar and Thay ndve communcated thalr willngnes: 16 ba oppaintad ond will ba
cvanllrlalkE for sarme ppese.

Trie Serubinizer shall, Immedictaly afler Ihe conclusion of voring ol the AGM . unisiock the voites casl Infough e-veting (1.e. voles conl
cunng the AGM ana voles cost Trough Remotae-viamng) ond sholl submit o gonsolidoned Scrufinlzer's Repon of ihe Total votes cot
In fereonr, agolinsl, aslainad, any. lo tha ehaliman ar any pason aulbodied by him, whio Sl counlanignad tha sama, The Rasuls
will b& onnounced not latar than 2 woildng dove from the conclusion of the AGM. The reqlt declared dlang with the Scrutinize: s
Neport sholl be uplooded on the website of the company: www. nomodogedannes.com, and clse shall be communicoted 1o BSE,
whers fhe Company's squity shores ans lIfed and bie mnce ovoriable on thealt wekste

THE INSERUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING, AND JOINING THE VIETUAL ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The Remote & Voling pedod beging on Friday, Seplambe: 19, 2025, al 9:00 a.m. (I51) ond ends on Sunday, Juna 21, 2025 at 5:00p m.
{I5T), The Remots a-Vohling module shall be disablad by CDSL for veling theraalter. The Mambers whose names appear in tha Reglstar
of Members / Beneficial Owners o3 on Ihe cul-ofl dote L&, 15" Seplember, 2025, may cost thelr vote elechonically. The voling righ! of
shareholders shall be in proporfion 1o thelr shara in tha pald-up equity share caplial of fhe Company as of the cut-off date.

The delalls of the process and manner fof e-Voling and jaining virtual meeling for Individual shareholders and Mambers holding
shares in dematerialized form

L Sharsholdan who hove oready valed prior fo Ihe mesifing dofe would not be enfilled fo vole ot fhe mestirg veriie

. Pursuont bo SER Cireular No o SEBIHO/CRODICMD/CIR/P/R020/242 daoted 0F.12.2070, under Reguiation 44 of Seciaities and
Exchange Boord of Inda (Likfing Obigations and Cisclesure Reguirements) Pegulations, 2015, listed antities are requised 1o
provides remols e-viting fochity 1o I shorghoidens, nrespact of ol sharehalders resdlulions, Haweadar, I hos beah olsanved bl
tha padicipahion by the public ran-retitutional shoraholdeadat ol shareho'dars s ol a negigitble lavel

Cumeatly, thara are mutiple avoling servica providers (ESPs) peaviging a-voting 1oclilly io llstad entitias In indla, This recassitlas
regiEration on varous E55 and maintananes of muifipse user 108 ond pastwards by tha sharehoidam,

iy orde to iIncracee the efficeency of the vating process, pursdant 1o a publle consumation, I Roe bean dackded 1o angoée o
voting o all the demat oocount hoders. by way of o snghe login credential. through thar demat occounts/! wabsltas of
Depoditonisy Depository Participants. Demat ac counl holdems wodd B anlie 10 cast thal vate without having lo rsgister again
wilh theE5Ps. Iharsby, not orily Taclllaling searnless outhenlicalion bul alsoenbancing eose ond convanience of oanlicipating
Ino-voting Brocess.

Ity farms of the above manlaned cleularn Shorehoidas o advited o updals thel rmablle nurnber and emoll ldin Ihel dermal
aecountl inciderto occasse-Vomng facilty,

e woy tovole electancolly on COSL e-voting systermn conslstsof * Two Steps” whkch are marhoned Daiow.

Step | Accens hiough Cepositories COSL/NSDL &-Voling system
Logn rmathad for Ramate oVietfing and |oining he vifual meating o individual shamholdens hotding securities i+ Camat
mode '

In tet e of SEBI clreular no SEBHECFD/CMD) CIRP/ 2020242 doted Cecember 7. 2020 on e-voting foclity provided by
Lsted Companies. ingdvgual shaehaldens nelding secunlies in gemal mode are gllowed o vobe thiough thelr camdl
accoun! malnloinsd with Depositaniss and Gepesllony Padicipants. Sharsholdsr ara odvised 1o updals hair mobile number
ancd emall i n thes demaT accounts inorder fo oqcssss-vating facliity,

Loginmaihod for Individualsharahelsen hoding sscurllies in Demat mode CUSELNSDL Ik given boiow

Type of sharaholders Login Method

indwidugl Sharehoiders I} Usars who have ophed for CDSEL Eos | Eosiest fociity. con login throuah inalr existing uses ld ond
hotding securiiesin possward. Cotlon wil be mode avaloble 1o moch a-Voling poge wihaul ary. furlbier
Demal mode with authenlicofion. The wees fo login o Ecsi / Eodlest are egusstad to vist cosl websie
CDSL Depository www.cdlindio com and click on logn lcan & My Eos| New (Token) Tob

2} Affer sucoesid jogin the Bogl | Basest usar wil be alds fo e the 2 Voling optlan for aligible
companies whan the o-voling B in orogos ot par tha infarmalion provided by company. On
elleking tha avoling opfion, the usar will ba abile |6 seaaVoting pags of tha e Voling servica
pravicer for confing your vote duling the remote e-valing pedod o joining ¥irual meeting &
valing during the masiing Addiionally, thena 1 alss inks provided o occods th system of ol e
voting Sernvice Prowden. so that the wer can vigh the a-Voling snvice prowdens’ webinie

alrecty,

3 M the user & ol regisiered for Fosl/Fogiest. oplion ‘o regster b avelicble of cdd website
wivw cokslincia.com and click or login 8 My Easi New (Token) Talo and hen click on registiafion
opfian

4)  Atemalively. Ihe wer con girectly accass &-\oling page by providing Demal Account Number
and FAN NG, from o aNotng Ink avallobe on www coilindiocom, home poge. The systermwil
suthenlicate the user by sending OTP on regstecsd Moble & Email as ecordes ik The Demal
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Agcoan!, After succeshd authanteation, user will be otis fo sse tha a\olng onlion whane fha
svoting i i progres and oo cbie 10 difechy access the syshem of all e-Vioting Setvice
Providers.

Individual Sharenokders 1)

nolding se curities in

demal mode whh

NEDL Depository
2)
k)]
Fy

It you ane aveady regisfored tor NSOL [DeAS tochily, plecse vislt ihe e-Sandcos wabsite of NSOL
Open web browse: by yping e folowng URL Ritpe./ fessvices nadl com slther on o Pesonal
Computel of or o moblle. Once the home pope of g-3endces B jounched, click on e
*Ranafloial Ouwnee® jcon unde *Login® which s avalkable undar IDeAS" meticn. A naw screan
will apan. You wil Bave 1o anter yolr Lidet 1D and Passward, After saccasiiul cuthiarfication. you
will Do cbie to see eVonng services, Click on “Accaes toe-Voling” under &-Voiing services and
yos will be abile to see &-Valing pogs. Click on compary name o &\Voling service providar
naime and Yol Wil e redifected fo e-Voling ssnice provides wWistislte for casting yold vols
guing Ihe remolaa-voling panod ar joring virug mesting & woling duting tha maeling

it the wser ls not registered for |1DeAS e-Sarvices, opfion fo regster 5 ovalable at
hitpa! [ Jessrncss recll com,  Salact “Heglitsr Online for DefS "Forol o cilck ot
Pt/ fesenvices.radl comy Sacurm Web/ldecsDiaciPag ko,

Vst the e\icting webslte of NEDL Open web rowser by tping the foliowing URL:
hies:fwiw'w aveting. nedl comy aither on o Pesonal Comiputer or on amoba. Unce e nome
page of evoting system k lounchad, cick on the icon “login® which & avalable undar
‘Bhicirehoider /Memibet ssction. A new scresn will open. You will have to entes vour ser DHlle
your sieteen digh Semot occount numbe: hold with NSEHLY, Password/QTP and o Verdhcolion
Code oe shown on fi weeeen, After successfidl oathenticalion. you will be redactad 1o NSDL
Deposfory she whssesn you con see e-Vcting poge. Click on compiany name of &-Vollng service
provider nome and you wil be ediected foe-Vollng sendee provice: webialle for cosfing your
vote duting Ihe jemate &-\Jotng panod ar jeeing virual meeling & voling durdng e masling
For QTR boated login you can clleck on nttpr://esarvicas.nsdl.com/Sacura
Web/avating/evobngiopingp. You wil hove ioantar your B-dight DF ID 8-cigit Clieaf kd, PAN N
verfication code ana generate O1F, Enter the Q1P tecaived on regntered emall d/moble
numbe ond click onlogin. After successiul authenlication, you will be rediecisd o NSDL
Degashtory st whetaln you con a8 s-Voling pope. Cick on company name of e-Voling
sarvice provider name ond you will bie recrected to e-Voling service provider website for
cosing yaur vole dufing he remota e-Voling pancd o joining vifual maatmg & vating during

e maefing.

individual Sharenplders
{hoiding secumfies in
demal mode)

logn through their

Depository Farticipants (OP)

Yiow can also iogn usng the login credentias of your demal acgourt Through your Depostory
Paticipant registared with NSDL/COSL tor e-Voling lociity.  After Succassiul Ingin, you wil be
obila 6 see e-\oting ophion. Once you click on eMoting opfion, you wil be redimcted to
NEDL/CDE. Depostory site affer successiul authantioation, whesan you con 88 eVoting
fealure. Clck on coampany Nname of & Valling sendc e pravider name ond you willl ba redireciad
te &Voting senvice provides webate for casting vous vote duning the remate e-Voting penod o
foining virtualmesling & visting during themesting

impartant ote; Marmban who ore unotss o ratreve Uset 10/ Possword tre oovised fo use Fongat Lset 1D ond Forgat Pessword opmion
ovallobls of abovemanlionasd watsite

Helpdask for Individual Shoreholders holding securifies in demal mode for any technical issues refaled fo login fhrough Depasitory | .

COSL ond N3DL

Logintype

Helpdesk details

individual shareholders
nolding securizs in Damal
mode with CDSL

Mamban focing cny lachnicalissue in legin con confach COSL heipcask Sy sanding o moues! of
neipdesk. avoting@edilindo.com orcontaot of foll ree no. 18021 05911

individual Sharenholders
halding secunties in Bamal
mode with NSDL

Memgan tocing ony technicol bsus in logincan conact NEDL meipciesk by sonding creguest of
avoling@red.cainorcallat | 022 - 4884 J000 ancl (22 - 2459 7000

Step 2:Access through CDSL e-Voling syslem In case of shareholders holding shares In physical mode and non-individual
shareholdern in demat mode,

in Legin Mattod fee sharahioldars other than indiviaual sharehokdam hokdng secuntiesin darmal moda and shorehalders halding

pzcurities in physicol mode

[ Thasngreholoes should IoQ on 1o hee-voling weDiiia uwww svotingingio.com
I, Clckon ‘Shamholdses” moauis.

i, Mowenter your Lisar

o For QDAL |4 digits bareaficiary T,
o, F_-uf NSOL & Charscher DD fallowsad by & Digits Cllent D,
¢ Shareholdan halding shares in Physica: Formishould enfer Foba Number registerad with the Company,

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

@®



% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

he. Nl erle e image Verdficstion as displayed and Click an Login

v Iryouare bolding sharss In demat form and hac logged on fo www evatingindia com and vated on anaarlen evoting
of any compony, then your ersting possword 5 fobewed,

vl Ihyouare a frél-fime usar folow the steps given beow;

Fot Mambars holding shoves in Demal Form other than indlvidual and Physical Form

PAN Enher your 10 dight aipho-numere *PAN Bsued by income Tax Departrrant (Applcatyie for both
demal shoreholdads as weal os prvsical shareholdag)

s Sharaholden wha have notupooted thal PAN with the Company/Cetoliary Participon!t ors
requenad to use the reauenca numer sent oy Company /KA of contect Compary T,

Elvidend Bank Enter the Dividand Bank Detols or Dale of Birfh (In dd/mmyyyy fomat) o recorded Ir you
Detalis OR dematoccount o in the company ecoids inorder fologin.
Date af Brrth (DOB)

o ' both the delcss ore not recorded with the Sapositony of comcany, plecse aftar the
memberid / oo numbes In tha Dividend Sark datall falo

=

wvil,

Wil

35.

Aftar antenng Thesa dsloiz appropnataly. ciick on "SUBMITT ok,

Shiorahaldens Molding shares in physical foim will Then directly reach e Campany seleotion screen, Howavar sharehaldars noldirg
shires in demat form will fow reoch 'Pastwore Credfion’ menl whare they ors reguired fo mandatordy enferihelr logn password in
the rew password field. Kindly note that this poswond is 10 oe alo Wsad by he damat holdan for voling for esalutions of any other
company on which hey are slgitls o vole, arovided thel company opls for esvaling Ihrough COSL platioorm. I s strangly
recommandad not 1o share your pasiwond with any ofhet pamen and 1ake Uimast core o ke p your password confidentd,

Forshorenoldses holaing sharsp in physico! lorm, the detol con baused only for evoling on the resolutions conlained in this Notice
Cliek on e EVEN for he rslavan! «Cormpiny Niamds on which you ¢ hodie 1o yole

Cn fha voting poge; vou will e "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION " ond ogoins! fhi same the oplion "YES/NO lor voling Seisc! e oplion
YESar NO o dasiad, Tne option YES Implas that you assan| fo the Resoiution and oplion NG Impias that vou dissant fo tha Bacakitlon,

Cliek anhs "RESCLUMONSRLEUNE ! yowwsh (o visw hesntie Basalulion detals,

Aiter seiecting tha resalution, you have decided to vote on, cick on "SUEMIT®. A confrmahon box will e cspiayed, If you with o
canfiim yeur vite, dickon "OK", alse o change your vole, click on " CANCEL " ond occotdingly moily youl vale.

Cnceyou "CONFRM ™ yourviode on the resalution, you wll not be alkowed tormodity your vols.
Wou con alo fake a print of the votes cost by clckng on *Click hers 1o print” cptionon the Volingpoge.

It o gt account hoddar has forgotten the logn possword Han Enter the User 10 and the roge vesdficaton oodes and click on
Forgal Posswor & enter the detoial promoted by thaspstem

- Thete oz anopticnal provision 1o uplead BRPOA Il any upleaded. which wil be macle aualiabie to sorutintes for vadificatisn

Facliity far Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodions ~For Remole Voling anly

o Nosindividual shoehoiden (e, olber than Indiidugl, HUFE N sic) ord Custodions o= equied to log on fo
whww aviolting ncio.com and register hemsslves in he " Corporates” mocuis,

e A dconned copy of fhe Regstafion Fom beamg fie somp ong sign of the erfily showd be emalea to
haelpdesk. svoling@cdsindacom,

e Affar eceiving tha login delals o Complioncs Lsar should be oreoted wsing the agmin kbgin and password. Tha Caomplanca
Usert would be abie 1 link frie aocount(s) for whioh fhay wishfovate on.

o Trulisiofoccounisineed Infheloginwil bemapped oulomaticoly & con be ﬂnllhkhmmnruwmnngmm

o IEMondalory ihot o sconnad copy of the Boord Resolulion ond Power of AMomey (FOAY which Ihey hals lssusd In favour of
the Custodian , fany. shodd be uploaded InPDF format in 1 he system for tha scrulindzes to verily the sama.

o Alemafively Non individual shareholden are required mandalory fo send ine relevant Baord Resalution/ Authorty lafter atc.
togathar with atfested specimen sigraturs of the duly authorzed sgnatory wha angaUthorzed o vota 1o the Scrutinlzenang 1o
the Company af the eamal odarass vie nalibedredifimal com  (desgnated smail aodress by comeany). i theay have voted
from indivichual ol & not uplooded samein the CRSL e«nsling sysem for the scrutindzes fo varlly the same.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FORMEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

L. Theprocadue for atiending mesling B e-Vating on fhe diy of Ihe AGN ESM B sarme os iha instruc tiors mentioned above of e
wating.

2. Trm Onk for VIC/ AV to attend mesling will be ovalable whase e EVEN of Company will be gisplayes after successhul login os
pat the inghuctionsrmenliored obove fof evoling.

3, Sharcholdon whe hive voted Througn Remite o-Yating will e aligible o otterd the meating, Holayer, ey will nat be eligitle
tovote ol tha AGN/EGM.

4 shoreholidanoig encolragedio jon fhe Mesting fnrough Lapiops / iPads for befter evperience.

5 Further shopeholdan will be reguirsd fo alivw Comera and usa Infemea! with o good spesed fo avald any distubance duing Ihe
miesahing.

ANNUAL REPORT 202.4-25 (1d)



% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

4 Pleass note that Participants Connecting fram Mobids Devicas or Tablets o thiough Laptop connacting via Malile Hotspal maey
experance Audlo/Vides |65 dua to Fluctudation n thedl respective network. It 1 thersdore recommanded to wie Statée W-F or
LAN Connaction ta mitgata ony kind of aforesaid griiches.

1. Only those sharehcigen. who ara present In the AGM/EGM througn VEF0AVM foclity and hove not costed 1halr vole on the
Resolutions througn remate e-Voting ond are othaenwvise not bared from calng so. snall be eligible %o vota threugh e-Voting
system avallable during the FEGM/AGM '

8, Nany\Intesascost by thesharshalders freough the evoting avalabi= durng the EGMIAGM and If the seme sharehaiden hovs
nat participated in the mesting freough VCOAM faciity, hen thie vetes cast by such shareholdes miay be-corsidestad irvalid
s thatocilly ot evoting duwing the maesting s avalloss only to thashareh slder ottending the maafing

Noles:
in ogie the mambens have any guehss of lirute regardng otending AGM & &-Vioting fram tha COSL e Veling System, you con wiite an
email {oheipndesk evoting@cduinda com ercondact al foll frea no, 10021 05911,

37, INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/MEMBERS TO REGISTER THEMSELVES AS SPEAKER DURING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

L Tre Mesmbens who would ke 7o express inelr views on ask questions during tha meefing micy regimer thamssives as o speakes by
sanding their request In advance mentioning thal narne, damal accoun! nurmbe: oo pumber ernall id, mobéas numbar al
miatima.pafkarinarmosogsiorines. comonor betore | 47 Sephemtar, 2025,

2. Those Mamberswho nove regislonad errselves Qi a speakenwill ordy be allowea to express el views/osk guestions during e
migling, Tha compary resenes the dghit to rasirict the number of spaakers depending on the avalabillty of lime for he Anndol
Ganerol Mesting,

1. Tre Mamban shouls alow 1o Uie Camara and o required 1o use Intemet with @ gocd spead 1o avold ary dishubanse during

tharmeating.

3B, PROCESSFOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE E-MAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOTREGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY DEPOSTTORIES.

1, For Phynical shoreholdens: please provide necessory detas ke Folio No.. Nome of shareholder. scanned copy of tha shoee
cartificats (front and back), AN (sell -olfested scanned copy of PAN cord), AADHAR sal* allesled scanred copy of Aadhar
Car) by emall o Comgany at ngisptredifmal.com Aiaemalidatna@ebmeco,

Far Demat shareholders -, Peoss updots your amall o & mobile no. wilh your resoective Depasitary Paricipant (DP)
far Individuc Demat shamhcidan - Flease updale your amall id & mobilie no. with your respective Depository Participan!
{CF) which is mandalory whille e-Voling & ialning viflual maestings Ihesugh Depasitory.

I you hve ony quesed of sues regerding altending AGM & e\Voling form Ihe CDAL e-voling Systern, you can wiite, an amed o
naipdedk. evaling@cadindie. com orcantact attol frea ne, 18002109917

Al grievances connected with ne faciiy for voling by elecftonlo rmecns moy be oddressed 1o M Rokesh Do, 5. Monoger, (COSL )
Cantral Depasitony Sendces (india) Limitedt, A Wing, 25t Floar, Marathon Futures. Motatial Mill Compounds, N M Joshl Marg, Lowes Parel
(East), Mumbio! - 400013 or sened an emal o hefpdes. sveling@ oasingia,com orcall tolSseno. 18002106911,

e

8y Qrder of The Boord of Diectos
For Narmada Gelatings Limited

Mahimo Patkar
Company Segelany

Mace : Jabaiour
Dote . 13" August, 2075

Registerad Office:
CARAYS, Room No, 29
16, Civll Urws, Jobalpr - £82 (101
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102¢1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
llam No. 4

Ihe fallowing Slatement st olt all maledal facts relaling 1o the Ordinary Buslness (Soecial Resalution) mantianed in the accompanying
Notioe:

Wi, S Annamaial (DN 00001381), agea atow! 78 yeon, ko Bochelo: of Technoiegy (Chem Engg.). He hos vos! exparence in successtully
menaging Chemical indushias over o penoa of 5 decades. in 1973 he was apponted o he Manogng Diecior of Pandion Charmrcals Lid
(PCLY. which s ine lorgest produce: of Potosum Chiorate fninda.

He I8 alic oo the Boord of indio Gelatine and Chamicals Lmited, Ponger Jece Indio Pivots Limited, Srea Ayyanar Spinning ond Weaving
Wills Private Limited, Pendian Chamecals Umited, Mepoo ndustreai Limited, The Melal Pawder Company Uimited, Asia Malches Compary
Srivats Limited, Adok Male has and Timber Industries Privale Lmited, Niranjar Sankar Enlesprisas Priverle Wrrilted, Fionese NF Forgings Indio
Private Lmited.

He doea rat hold army shomes of the Comipany a8 on 317 Mareh 2025,

A5 M 5 Annamolal has attainesd e oge of 78 years, iherstars in complionce with the proviors of Regulation 17(1AS of Sscuwities and
Exchange Boord of Indle (Listing Codgations ond Diclosure Requiamants) Reguiotions 2015, members approval s reguined by possing o
Speciol Resoltion, far - appointrmiant of M, 5. Annamalal os a direstar laole fo rtire by rotafiorn

The Baard at e meating held on 247 May, 2025 it of the opinéon that M §, Annarmdiol hos vost knowledgd and vared Industry experanca
will ba of greo? volue to the Company and hos recommended the fesonon of Fam No. 4 of fra Notice o o Special Resohution ince Mr. 8
Armamoicl has attainad the age of 78 years) relating o fe oppomimant of Mr 5, Annamalol os o Nor-Executive Non-ndepantient
Diirector llabis Yo rafie by rotollan, o your appeovdl,

W, 5. Annamola s not disqualified from beng appainted ce a Cractor n ferme of Section (6d of the Companies Act; 2013 ond hove given
hsconsan! 1o oct oz Desciin of the Company

The otter details of M & Annarnalal in larrms of Regulalion 3503) of Ihe Lsling Regulation and Sascretorat Standard 2 ang annexad o Hhis
Notice

Eecapt M1 S Mahesworan ond Me 5 Arnamalal, none of tha other Direston, Key Maragerdal Pénonriel of the Comparty or ffies telatives
are, In any way concemmed of intarostod in the Resslution sat out of tem No. 42 e Nollea.

llemNo. 5

This faliowing S'atarmant sed out ofl malanal facts rsloling o the Special Business (Ordinary Resolution) menfionad in the accompanying
Nolice:;

Punsuonit o the provisions of Reguintion 24A of fhe Secunties ond Exchanges Beard of Ingle (Lisfing Oblgations and Disciosurs Requirsmenty)
Ragulotions. 2015 (SERI Lisling Reguiatians®) and provisions of Sacfior 204 of the Acf and Ruls § of the Comperies (Appaintmant sne
Rerunenation of Manogetial Pomanned) Ruies, 2014 " Fules ™), the Audit Committes and the Boagrd of Girecton of thalr respecive meaertings
neid on Moy 24, 2025, have opprovied ond racormmendad 1he opponiment of Dr. Asim Kumor Chottopodhyay (FCS No. 2303, CP No. 880,
Paar Review No. 6375/2025). a Practicing Company Secretary o the Secrataial Audior af tha Company on the fallowing tsims and
concifions;

a2 Termotappaintment: For oterm of Sifvel corsecutive yearns rom Ao 01, 2025 0 March 31, 2030,

o Proposed Fess: Ato Remunaration ormutudlly ogreed between the compony ona he Secrstano| Auditor plus oppicoble omes ond
rermiburssmiEnt of oul-of pocket expanses for atarm of fve consecutve financial yaars commencing from the financlal yeor 2025-24
ta Findnc|ol Yaior 2029-300 .. from Aped 1 2025 to March 31, 2030),

c.  Bask of recommenaatons: The ecammandatans are based on the hulfiiimeant of the esighbiity ariterio & guoificofion prescribed
undet e Act & [ules made Thereunder and SEBI Liiting Requictions: Wrlle mecommending fhe Boord of Drecton hove dlso
conscared exparance of e Individugl, copatiity. ndependent asessmant, audit espsisncs and ako svaluation of tra auelty of
cudt walk done by hirm in the post.

A Credentiais Dr Asm Kumat Chattopadhyay (FCS No 2303, CF No, 880, Pear Review No. 4375/2028), a Pracficing Campary
Secratory. b 0 sowshed pralessongl wit over 40 yean ol dch axpanerce, speciclling In secrstarlal audil ord colpornate
compliance acrass adivatsa rangs ofiridusines.

Acacsmically, he detinguished oy alormidoble wite of quaificatons including M com. LLB. Ph.D. (Applied Economics), FCMA, FES,
ond 0L,

Or, Asim Kumar Chottopadhyey has given his comsen! o ac! os Secretariol Avdiios of he Compony ond confirmmed fhat his
sppalmment. If approved woldd be within ihe prescribed Irrits ona that e & nal dissualfied 1o Be cppoinles o Sacratorial Audiar
iy perTe of praveions of the Act & Rulas mgde thereunder ard SEBI Lstrsg Regulctions.

he Board of Dyactans of the Comoany racammends the repoastion set out of ifem ho. 5 toroporoval of the Membens aa an On@nay
Fesalution

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 az)



% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

N of the Dvacior Key Moragerial Parsonnal o thal respeslve relalives aea in oy wery, coneamae of inferasied, linaneialy o
otharwiis, in tHe edld resolution,

By Ordes of the Boord of Deectons
For Narmodo Gelatines Limited

Mahima Palkor
Company Secretary

Poce | Jabalpur
Gote ! | 3" August, 2035

Difice:

Registerad
CARMVS, Room No, 28
16, Chil Lines, Jabaipuir--4582 007
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ANNEX|RE

Dietialls of Direclors sesking oopoinimant ond re-oppontmant ot iha 647 Annual Gensaidl Mesting
(Pursuant o Regulation 34(3) of tha SEBI (Lsting Oblgation and Disclosurs Requirement) Ragulatians, 2015 and Secrtorial Stendord 2 on

Eenerd Meetings)

Name of Direcior

Oirector Idertification Mumter

Dieggnation/catigorty of 1he Dirscior

Dt of Birth

Date of Apponiment | Re-opponimant n AGHM
aiugiimcoman

Expartise in spaciic functional o and past experence

Termra and cancitions ol re-apnonfren

Cratalls of remuneration lost dreawn (FY 2024-25)
Details of ramunsration sought fo be paid
Directomhin In other companies meluding
equiy isted companies (axciuding

foreign compariesy ot on ine date of this notice

"Membarships f Chioirronstaos of
commifaas of olher companias

(excliding forelgn companies)
g on dobe of 1hls Nolice

Sharehalding

Listad entity from which tha declo

hoaa ressignad] from Dvactomhip o ihe
pagt thres (1) yeon

No; of Boord Meotrgs atfendea

infer-s& relationship with athes Directar &
Kay Manogetiol Patscnniol

§. ANNAMALAI

00001381

Chorman, NorrBmcullva, Nordndependen! Directo:
2600, 1947

|07 2023

souhalor of lachnology (Chem. Engg.)

53 yaors of expanenca In menoging Chamical industrias oved o
pena ol § decacss. In 1973 he wos appalntsd os the
Managing Deector of Fandian Chemicos Lid (RCL, which I the
large) produsar of Potoutlian Chioraka in indla,

Dhrachorable fonalire by rolalion

Sittimg fisss: 1 40,000/

Sitting feey as approved by the Board of Dirscton
Indla Galotnes and Chamicat Limitsd
Fandan Chemicals Limited

The Metal Powder Chamicals Limitad

Bonesr Jellce ndia Pivate Umitea

Amnok Motches and Temies industrias Umited
Aslia Matches Caompany Private Limited

Sree Ayyanar Spinning and Waoving Mills Pt Ltc
Prones NI Forgings India Private Limifed
Niranjansankar Entorprises Privare Limited

2. Mepco Ingusties Umtec

I Nominalion & Remunecation Commiftea: (Membar)
ndic Galating and Chémicols Limited

D OB o~ PR L R

72 C5R Commitzse (Chalmaar)
Irdia Selatine and Clamicas Lirmiled

NI
NE

Goutor b
M. 5. Mahaswaran - Brathes of Me 5. Annarmalol

“The abeve inchudes Memberships/ Chalrmanships of only Listed Comprnies.
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Information at a glance

5. Ne. Parficulors

Detoils

Dot and lima of AGH

Moraay, 22na Septembiet 2025, at 11 00 a.m. (5T)

2 Made of Canduct Vidiao Conferancing (VE)/Oher Audio-Vsuol Means (OAVM)
i | Link for Participating In fhe meefing wiwtw. evalinginda, com _
frrough VC/QAYM (pleass efer 8-voting proceoure soaciied in Notica)
4 Contoct dotols of CDEL for ossiioncs Meimbas can connec! with;
before or during thie AGM Me Raokesh Dabd, & Marogsr (COSL
at helpdes evolingRodsindio.com or coll tol free no. 1500 21 0591
5 Necord cole for Finol Dvedend Monday, 15ih Soptermoen 2026
& Divicend payrment date After 23rd Sepdarrbar. 2025
7 Cut-ofl data for e-Valing Manday, 15ih September. 2025
B a-\oling stort dats and tima Fricday 1910 Seplormbsar, 2025 from 9.00 a.m. (5T
o e\oling =rid dofe ang tims Surday 2 st Septasnissn, 2025 1M 5.00 pam. (157}
11 Lirde o3 respgisten E-rmell addrests to iecalve nolics wiww, Cbal corm/graan php
12 Date. EBmoll aodress fo wibmit the form for On ar before 15th Seprembsern, 2025 4l 6,00 pm. (15T
TS axemplion
13 Regiration for Speoket Sharahoidsr fand smdll o mahimo patkor@narmadogsialines.com on of befors
Hah Saplambar 2005,
4 Neme, oddrass ang contoct detols of CH Monogamenl Sanvicas Py, Lig
Regishor and Transfst Agent (RTA) Raosal Court, 5th Aoon 20 5¢ RN Muldhates Rood. Kalkala - 00001
Emgik rto@cbmel.com
15 Lives wabicost of AGM ww evetingincdkycar
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